SUPERVISOR COUNCIL MEMBERS
William A. Smith, Jr. Kim Taylor, Deputy Supervisor
Naveen Havannavar

Cathy Koshykar

Seeded 178 Stephanie Townsend

Town Board Agenda
Pittsford Community Library — Fisher Room — 24 State Street
Tuesday, March 18, 2025 — 6:00 PM

Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Public Hearing on Proposed Revised Zoning Code

Minutes
Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of March 4, 2025

Legal Matters
Public Comment
LL#1 of 2025: Comprehensive Update to the Pittsford Town Code
Chapter 185 “Zoning” and the Town “Residential Design Standards and Guidelines” and
Amending the Official Zoning Map of the Town of Pittsford
Note: Vote not expected before March 27" Special Meeting

Operational Matters
Public Comment
Grant for the Barker Road Sidewalk Project: SEQRA
Set Bid Date for Installation and Repair of Concrete Sidewalks
Set Public Hearing for Sewer District Extension JHSD - 162

Financial Matters
Public Comment
Surplus Inventory
Vouchers

Personnel Matters
Public Comment
Hiring Resolution

Other Business

Public Comment

Adjournment



PUBLIC MEETINGS OF THE TOWN BOARD are IN-PERSON at TOWN HALL

ATTENDING IN PERSON

Comments:

As always, comments are open to Pittsford residents, owners of property in the Town who pay Town
taxes, owners of businesses in the Town, attorneys or agents designated by a resident to speak on the
resident’s behalf. To comment you must sign in at the sign-in desk.

VIEWING FROM HOME
1. Live

The Town Board meeting will stream live through our cable access station’s streaming portal. Please use
the following link:

https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTLOOYMCGU6WIccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/819?fullscree
n=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true

You can watch on any computer, tablet, smart phone or web capable TV. If you log in before the meeting
starts and see an error message, refresh your screen at 6:00 pm when the board meeting starts and
you can view the meeting live while it is happening.

Comments:

Comments are open to Pittsford residents, owners of property in the Town who pay Town taxes, owners
of businesses in the Town, attorneys or agents designated by a resident to speak on the resident’s behalf.

e atanytime before 2:30pm on the day of the meeting (a) by email to
comments@townofpittsford.org; (b) by submitting it in writing, through the drop slot to
the right of the front door at Town Hall (11 South Main Street); or (c) by U.S. Mail to the

Town Clerk, for receipt no later than 2:30 pm on the day of the meeting;

and, in addition,

e at any time during the meeting by email to comments@townofpittsford.org

e All comments submitted should include the name and street address of the
commenter. Comments from residents will be read by the Town Clerk at the
appropriate point of the meeting. The Clerk will read your name, but not your street
address unless you ask for it to be read.

2. On-Demand Video

As always, video will be uploaded to our cable access station’s streaming portal subsequent to the
meeting, usually within a few days. It is available on demand. You can see it here:

https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcgTLOOYMCGU6WIccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/690?fullscree
n=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true



https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/819?fullscreen=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/819?fullscreen=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true
mailto:comments@townofpittsford.org
mailto:comments@townofpittsford.org
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/690?fullscreen=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/690?fullscreen=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true

Minutes of the Pittsford Town Board for March 4, 2025

DRAFT
TOWN OF PITTSFORD
TOWN BOARD
March 4, 2025

Proceedings of a meeting of the Pittsford Town Board held on Tuesday, March 4, 2025, at 6:00 P.M.
local time in the Lower-Level Meeting Room of Town Hall, 11 South Main Street, in person.

PRESENT: Supervisor William A. Smith, Jr.; Councilmembers Naveen Havannavar, Cathy
Koshykar, Stephanie Townsend, and Kim Taylor.

ABSENT: None.

ALSO PRESENT: Staff Members: Robert Koegel, Town Attorney; Paul Schenkel, Commissioner of
Public Works; Renee McQuillen, Town Clerk; Jessie Hollenbeck, Recreation
Director; Kelly Eldred, Assistant to the Supervisor; Holly Jennings,
Communications Assistant; Spencer Bernard, Chief of Staff.

ATTENDANCE: Eight members of the public along with an interpreter attended.

Supervisor Smith called the Town Board meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. and invited all to join in the
Pledge to Flag.

SUPERVISORS ANNOUCEMENTS
Congratulations to the Pittsford Boys Hockey team for winning Sectionals and moving on to State
championship games.

To avoid inaccurate rumors, the Supervisor discussed information from the Sheriff's Office regarding a
pair of incidents in Pittsford last night. About 6:00 PM a person at the library received a text message
threatening to people at the library. Deputies evacuated the building and swept it for anything harmful.
The threat was found to be not credible, and the building reopened this morning. About 7 pm last night
an armed robbery took place at the apartments at 3660 Monroe Ave. Monroe County Sherriff’'s deputies
combed adjacent areas looking for the suspects and as of this meeting the search continues. The
Sheriff’s Office states no danger is posed to the public.

Reminder that we spring ahead one hour this weekend on Sunday morning. Don’t forget to check your
smoke alarms and carbon dioxide detectors.

MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 26 MEETING APPROVED

A Resolution to approve the minutes of the Town Board meeting of February 26, was offered by Deputy
Supervisor Taylor, seconded by Councilmember Townsend, and voted on by members as follows: Ayes:
Havannavar, Koshykar, Taylor, Townsend, and Smith. Nays: none.

The Resolution was declared carried as follows:
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the February 26, 2025, Town Board meeting are approved.

LEGAL MATTERS

DISCUSSION ON DONATION OF LAND TO TOWN BY BRIDLERIDGE FARMS LLC

Peter Vars with BME Associates, reviewed the history of the property for the board. In the 1960’s and
1970’s it served as a gravel pit, which lead to the creation of the quarry pond as ground water filled in.
The gravel pit was closed and ceased operations, as confirmed in a letter from the DEC in 2008. This



Minutes of the Pittsford Town Board for March 4, 2025

specific piece of property originally was planned to have a house built on it, but during the building of
another home adjacent to the site it was found that materials in the soil underneath were unsuitable for
good construction.

Discussion among Board members and questions to staff involved environmental concerns. Also, the
need for a Phase 2 Environmental Assessment prior to accepting the property, to include many test
borings, soil and groundwater samples, to provide a clear understanding of what the site may contain
and any remediation necessary. Given this and other questions about how the Town would
accommodate public safety on the property and a restrictive covenant on its use, the Board consensus
was to decline the offer.

BOARD REVIEW OF PROPOSED ZONING CODE REVIEW

Councilmember Townsend reviewed with Board members items she wished to discuss prior to the
public hearing. These covered clarification of certain definitions, minor formatting issues and additional
language to be added in various sections throughout the document.

Supervisor Smith then shared with the board his comments, including central placement of definitions
for easier reference, resolving formatting issues, correcting cross-references, and providing references
to single family attached residences and to geothermal installation.

Board members expressed their gratitude to all those past and present involved with bringing this
document to fruition.

OTHER BUSINESS

Councilmember Havannavar inquired about the possibility of setting forth on the town website the
process for creating lighting districts, just as the website sets out the process for creating refuse
districts. Supervisor Smith thanked Councilmember Havannavar for this idea and stated he would have
staff prepare this information for the website in the weeks ahead.

PUBLIC COMMENT
No comments were offered.

With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:09 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

Renee McQuillen
Town Clerk



MEMORANDUM

To: Town Board Members

From: Robert B. Koegel

Date: March 14, 2025

Regarding: LL#1 of 2025: Comprehensive Update to the Pittsford

Town Code Chapter 185 “Zoning” and the Town
“Residential Design Standards and Guidelines” and
Amending the Official Zoning Map of the Town of
Pittsford

For Meeting On: March 18, 2025

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The Town Board is scheduled to commence a public hearing on March 18, 2025 to
consider the enactment of Local Law #1 of 2025, which would replace the Town’s entire Zoning
Code, revise its Residential Design Standards and Guidelines, and amend its Official Zoning Map
consistent with proposed Zoning Code changes and Comprehensive Plan recommendations.

A copy of the proposed local law is submitted herewith.

As the Town Board has already scheduled a special meeting for March 27, 2025 to
continue the public hearing on this proposed local law, a proposed resolution to adopt the local
law has not yet been prepared.



BE IT ENACTED BY THE
TOWN BOARD OF THE
TOWN OF PITTSFORD

NEW YORK
AS FOLLOWS:

LOCAL LAW NO. 1 OF 2025:

THE ADOPTION OF PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO. 1 of 2025:
COMPREHENSIVE UPDATE TO THE PITTSFORD TOWN CODE
CHAPTER 185 “ZONING” AND THE TOWN “RESIDENTIAL DESIGN
STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES” AND AMENDING THE OFFICIAL
ZONING MAP OF THE TOWN OF PITTSFORD

Sec. 1 Title

This Local Law shall be known as “Local Law No. 1 of 2025: Comprehensive
Update to the Pittsford Town Code Chapter 185 “Zoning” and the Town “Residential
Design Standards and Guidelines” and Amending the Official Zoning Map of the Town
of Pittsford.”

Sec. 2 Amendment #1 to Existing Law

The provisions of Pittsford Town Code Chapter 185 “Zoning” are hereby
amended to read as set forth on “Exhibit A” attached hereto and made a part hereof.

Sec. 3 Amendment #2 to Existing Law

The provisions of the Town “Residential Design Standards and Guidelines” are
hereby amended to read as set forth on “Exhibit B” attached hereto and made a part
hereof.

Sec. 4 Amendment #3 to Existing Law

In accordance with the provisions of §185-5 of Chapter 185 “Zoning” of the
Pittsford Town Code, the Official Zoning Map of the Town of Pittsford is hereby
amended to be in accordance with the Map entitled “Official Zoning Map — Town of
Pittsford,” approved by resolution of the Pittsford Town Board dated March 27, 2025,
which such Map is attached hereto as “Exhibit C” and is made a part hereto, and which
Map amends the Zoning of various parcels of land within the Town, shown in black
border, as follows:

Prior Zoning Amended Zoning

Portion of: SRAA Suburban Residential RRAA Rural Residential
Portion of: IZ Incentive Zoning RN Residential Neighborhood



Portion of: RRAA Rural Residential RN Residential Neighborhood
Portion of: RN Residential Neighborhood 1Z Incentive Zoning
Portion of: RN Residential Neighborhood RRAA Rural Residential

C Commercial MU-C Mixed Use-Commercial
C-2 Commercial GC General Commercial
Sec. 3 Severability

If any clause, sentence, phrase, paragraph or any part of this Local Law shall for
any reason be adjudicated finally by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such
judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder of this Local law, but shall
be confined in its operation and effect to the clause, sentence, phrase, paragraph or
part thereof, directly involved in the controversy or action in which such judgment shall
have been rendered. It is hereby declared to be the legislative intent that the remainder
of this Local Law would have been adopted had any such provision been excluded.

Sec. 4 Effective Date
This Local Law shall take effect immediately following filing with the Secretary of

State.



EXHIBIT A



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Town of Pittsford

Chapter 185. Zoning

REDLINE

MARCH 12, 2025
DRAFT



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Table of Contents

ARTICLE 1
General Provisions

§ 185-1. Title, purpose and intent.
§ 185-2. Applicability.
§ 185-3. Compliance required.
§ 185-4. Construal of provisions.
§ 185-5. Official Zoning Map.
§ 185-6. Administration; fees.
§ 185-7. Penalties for offenses.
ARTICLE II
Terminology
§ 185-8. Definitions.
ARTICLE 11T

Agricultural Zone

§ 185-9. Definitions.

§ 185-10. Permitted uses.

§ 185-11. Farm market/country store regulations.

§ 185-11.1. Development of parcels and homesteads.
§ 185-11.2. Structures in farmsteads.

ARTICLE 1V
RN Residential Neighborhood District

§ 185-12. Purpose.

§18512—Purpeose:

§ 185-13. Permitted uses.

§ 185-14.—Speecial permit Specially permitted uses.

§ 185-15. Applicability.

§ 185-16. Context-based approach.

§ 185-17. Lot and bulk requirements.

§ 185-18. Subdivision of existing lots without creation of new road.
§ 185-19. Subdivision of lots that include creation of new road.

§ 185-20. Lot consolidation.

Page 2 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE V
{Reserved)

§ 185-21. (Reserved)
through-§ 185-22. (Reserved)

ARTICLE VI
{Reserved)

§ 185-23. (Reserved)

ARTICLE VII
B Residential District

§ 185-24. Purpose.
§ 185-25. Permitted uses.

§ 185-26.—Specialusepermit Specially permitted uses.
§ 185-27. Lot and bulk requirements.

ARTICLE VIII
RRAA Rural Residential District

§ 185-28.Permitteduses Purpose.
§ 185-28.1. —Special permituses:
§185-29-Definitions.

§ 185-29. Permitted uses.
§ 185-30. Specially permitted uses.

§ 185-31. Development of less than 10 acres.
§ 185-32. §185-31Development of 10 acres or more.

ARTICLE VIIA
RRSP Rural Residential South Pittsford-(“RRSP"Y)

§ 185-33.1. Establishment of district.

§ 185-33.2. Definitions.

§ 185-33.3. Permitted uses.

§ 185-33.4.—Speecialusepermit Specially permitted uses.
§ 185-33.5. Residential development of less than 20 acres.

§ 185-33.6. Residential development of 20 acres or more.

§ 185-33.7. Rural conservation sites in private ownership.

Page 3 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE IX
SRAA Suburban Residential District

§ 185-34. Purpose——Permitted-uses:

§ 185-34.1—Specialuse-permit Definitions.
§ 185-34.2. Permitted uses.

§ 185-35.Definitions Specially permitted uses.

§ 185-36. Maximum height restrictions.
§ 185-37. Cluster development.

$185-3FPensity-

§ 185-38. Density.

§ 185-39. Rural conservation sites in private ownership.
§185-39. — Maximum-height restrictions:

ARTICLE IXA
Monroe Avenue Transitional Zone (MATZ)

§ 185-39.1. Findings.

§ 185-39.2. Purpose.

§ 185-39.3.— Distriethoundaries-and Applicability.

§ 185-39.4. Definitions.

§ 185-39.5. Permitted uses.

§ 185-39.6. Specially permitted uses.

§ 185-39.7. Prohibited uses and limitations to permitted uses.

§ 185-39.8. $3485-39-7.Additional requirements for MATZ properties.
§185-39-8:-— Special- use permituses:

ARTICLE X
| Mixed Use - Commercial (MU-C) District

§ 185-40. Purpose.
§ 185-41. Permitted uses.

§ 185-42. Specially permitted uses.

§ 185-43. Use limitations.
§185-43——Sethbaeckrestrietions:

§ 185-44. LotsizeDimensional requirements.
§ 185-45. Parking-areasBulk requirements.

§ 185-46. Maximum-heightrestrietionsPerformance standards.

ARTICLE XA
| €-2General Commercial (GC) District

§ 185-46.1. Purpose.
§ 185-46.2. Permitted uses.

| § 185-46.3. SpecialusepermitSpecially permitted uses.
§ 185-46.4. Use limitations.

Page 4 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-46.5. Nenresidentialsite developmentDimensional requirements.
§ 185-46.6. Bulk requirements.

§ 185-46.7. Performance standards.

Page 5 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XI
Light Industrial (L.I) District

§ 185-47. Establishment-of-distrietPurpose.
§ 185-48. Definition:(Reserved).
§ 185-49. Permitted uses.
§ 185-50. Speecialuse-permitSpecially permitted uses.
§ 185-51. Use limitations.
§ 185-52. Minimum-dimensional siteDimensional requirements.
§ 185-53. Bulk requirements.
§ 185-53.1. Performance standards.
ARTICLE XII

High Technology and-Office Park (HTOP) District

§ 185-54. Purpose.

§ 185-55. Permitted uses.

§ 185-56. Speecialuse-permitSpecially permitted uses.

§ 185-57. Use limitations.

§ 185-58. LotBulk and bulkdimensional requirements.

§ 185-59. Parking, loading space-and area requirements.
ARTICLE XIII
(Reserved)

§ 185-60. through § 185-65. (Reserved)

ARTICLE XIV
Planned Unit Development District

§ 185-66. Intent and objectives.

§ 185-67. Minimum area.

§ 185-68. Single ownership.

§ 185-69. Location.

§ 185-70. Permitted uses.

§ 185-71. Intensity of land use.

§ 185-72. Common property.

§ 185-73. Signs, awnings and canopies.
§ 185-74. Maximum height limitations.
§ 185-75. Application procedure; zoning approval process.
§ 185-76. Site plan approval process.

§ 185-77. Financial security.

§ 185-78. (Reserved)

Page 6 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XIVA
Local Waterfront Overlay District

§ 185-78.1. Establishment of district.

§ 185-78.2. Permitted uses.

§ 185-78.3. Definitions.

§ 185-78.4. Authority of Planning Board.

§ 185-78.5. Review of actions.

§ 185-78.6. Enforcement; stop-work orders.

ARTICLE XV
Exterior Lighting Regulations

Reserved)

§ 185-79. threugh-Intent and purpose.

§ 185-93-(Reserved)80. Applicability.

§ 185-81. Non-Single-Family Residential lighting plan submittal and approval.
§ 185-82. Light trespass.

§ 185-83. Lighting fixture design.

§ 185-84. Color temperature.

§ 185-85. Exemptions.

§ 185-86. Prohibited lighting.

§ 185-87. Dark sky compliant light fixtures.

§ 185-88. (Reserved).
185-89. (R d).

§ 185-90. (Reserved).
185-91. (R« d).

§ 185-92. (Reserved).
185-93. (R d).

ARTICLE XVA
Parking Regulations

§ 185-94. Purpose and applicability.

§ 185-95. General requirements.

§ 185-96. Monroe Avenue Transition Zone (MATZ).

§ 185-97. Mixed Use — Commercial (MU-C) District.

§ 185-98. General Commercial (GC) District.

§ 185-99. Light Industrial (LI) District.

§ 185-100. High Technology Office Park (HTOP) District.

ARTICLE XVI
Hlosemeedy

Additional Use Regulations

Page 7 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-94-threugh-101 Purpose and intent.
§ 185-102 Applicability.

Page 8 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-103 Micro-breweries or micro-distilleries.
§ 185-104 Vehicle sales, service, or repair shops.
§ 185-105 Animal care facilities.

§ 185-106 Day care centers, child or adult.

§ 185-107 Restaurants or bars.

§ 185-108 Adult uses.

§ 185-109 (Reserved).

ARTICLE XVII
Supplemental Regulations

§ 185-110 - Prohibited activities.

§ 185-111- Multi-family dwellings and condominiums.

§ 185-112- Sewage disposal.

§ 185-113 - Accessory uses and structures.

§ 185-114 - Sale of produce in residential districts.

§ 185-115 - Outdoor storage and temporary outdoor storage containers.
§ 185-116 - Keeping of horses.

§ 185-117-threugh- Retaining Walls
§ 185-118—Reserved) Keeping of animals, other than horses.

§ 185-119 - Swimming pools.

§ 185-120 - Supplemental setback restrictions.

§ 185-121 - Fences and hedges.

§ 185-122 - Private roads and common driveways.

§ 185-123 - Driveways in public right-of-way.

§ 185-124 - Places of worship.

§ 185-125- Recreational land and open space required.
§ 185-126 - Telecommunications towers.

§ 185-127 - Satellite antennas.

§ 185-128 - Amateur radio communications antennas.

§185-129 — peseloinale npd oy Dopibedheelline
§185-130-1-—Mining and excavations.
§ 185-130 Ponds.

§ 185-131 —Peonds:

§-185-133-Schools.
§ 185-133.1-——132 Trash and recycling removal in residential zones.

§ 185-133 Reserved.

ARTICLE XVIII
Signs, . L .

Sign Regulations
§ 185-134 —Signs-inresidential-distriets:

§185-135A(Reserved).

Page 9 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§185-136. Si in Lischt Ind ial Distriet.
§ 185-134.1 Purpose

§ 185-134.2 Applicability

§ 185-137:134.3 Reserved.

§ 185-134.4 Building Permit

§ 185-134.5 Building Permit Applications
§ 185-134.6 Measurement

Page 10 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-134.7 Safety Provisions

§ 185-134.8 Design, Construction and Maintenance

§ 185-134.9 Location

§ 185-134.10 Sign Design Guidelines

§ 185-134.11 Signs in residential districts.

§ 185-134.12 Signs in the Light Industrial District.

§ 185-134.13 Signs in High Technology and Office Park District.
§ 185-138-134.14 Signs in Mixed Use — Commercial (MU-C) and €-2General Commercial
(GC) Districts.

§ 185-139-134.15 Temporary signs.

§ 185-140-134.16 Awnings and canopies.

ARTICLE XIX
Planning Board

§ 185-142. Creation and appointment.
§ 185-143. Powers and duties.

§ 185-144. Cluster development authorization.
ARTICLE XX
Zoning Board of Appeals

§ 185-145. Creation and appointment.
§ 185-146. Powers and duties.

ARTICLE XXI
Design Review and Historic Preservation Board

§ 185-147. Creation and appointment.

§ 185-148. Qualifications of members.

§ 185-149. Terms of members; removal; filling of vacancies.
§ 185-150. Powers and duties.

§ 185-151. Coordination with Planning Board.

§ 185-152. Records.

ARTICLE XXII
Tree Department

§ 185-153. Purpose and intent.

§ 185-154. Authority; supersession of state law.
§ 185-155. Definitions.

§ 185-156. Responsibilities of Tree Department.

Page 11 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-157. through § 185-159. (Reserved)

ARTICLE XXIII
Environmental Board

§ 185-160. Purpose and findings.

§ 185-161. Creation.

§ 185-162. Membership; terms of office.

§ 185-163. Officers, meetings and committees.
§ 185-164. Powers and duties.

ARTICLE XXIV
Parks and Recreation Board

§ 185-165. Purpose and findings.

§ 185-166. Creation.

§ 185-167. Membership; terms of office.
§ 185-168. Officers and meetings.

§ 185-169. Powers and duties.

ARTICLE XXV
Special Use Permits

§ 185-170. Authorization.

§ 185-171. Application.

§ 185-172. Notice.

§ 185-173. Public hearing.

§ 185-174. Determination of impact.
§ 185-175. Decision.

§ 185-176. Conditions on permit.

§ 185-177. Burden of proof.

§ 185-178. Permit required for expansions or additions.
§ 185-179. Revocation of special use permit.

ARTICLE XXVI

Variances

§ 185-180. Authorization.
§ 185-181. Burden of proof.

Page 12 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XXVIA
Subdivisions

§ 185-182. Subdivision approval.

ARTICLE XXVII
Temporary Activity Permit

§ 185-182.1.  Issuance; conditions.

§ 185-182.2.  Determination of impact.

§ 185-182.3.  Mitigation of impact.

§ 185-182.4. Revocation of permit.

§ 185-182.5. Number and duration of permits.
§ 185-182.6. Renewal of permit.

ARTICLE XXVIII
Landscape Alteration and Drainage Permits

§ 185-183. Purpose.
§ 185-184. Applicability.

§ 185-185. Permit required; exemptions.
§ 185-186. Permit application process.
§ 185-187. Issuance for violations.

§ 185-188. Restoration of site.

ARTICLE XXIX
Site Plan Approval

§ 185-189. Purpose.

§ 185-190. Approval required.

§ 185-191. Preliminary application submission requirements.
§ 185-192. Preliminary approval.

§ 185-193. Final site plan application and approval.

§ 185-194. Design; access; landscaping.

§ 185-194.1.  Duration of site plan approval.

§ 185-195. Consolidated review.

Page 13 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code

ARTICLE XXX

Landmarks, Historic Districts and Certificates of Appropriateness

§ 185-195.1. Purpose; intent.
§ 185-195.2. List of inventoried structures.
§ 185-195.3. Designation of landmarks.
§ 185-196. Certificate of appropriateness required.
§ 185-197.  Criteria for approval of certificate of appropriateness.
§ 185-198. Application procedure.
§ 185-199.  Hardship.
§ 185-200.  Enforcement.
§ 185-201. Maintenance and repair required.
§ 185-202.  Penalties for offenses.
§ 185-203. Appeals.
ARTICLE XXXI
Design Review
§ 185-204. Findings and purpose.
§ 185-205. Design review required.
§ 185-206. Time for decision.
§ 185-207. Appeals.
§ 185-208. through § 185-223. (Reserved)
ARTICLE XXXII

Nonconforming Structures and Uses

§ 185-224.
§ 185-225.
§ 185-226.

§ 185-227.
§ 185-228.
§ 185-229.

Purpose and general provisions.
Nonconforming single-family residential and farm structures.

REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Nonconforming structures other than single-family residential and farm

structures.
Nonconforming single-family residential and farm uses.

Nonconforming uses other than single-family residential and farm uses.

Termination of a nonconforming use.

Page 14 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XXXIII
Incentive Zoning

§ 185-230. Purpose and objectives.

§ 185-231. Authority.

§ 185-232. Applicability.

§ 185-233. Definitions.

§ 185-234. Permitted incentives.

§ 185-235. Community benefits or amenities.

§ 185-236. Special conditions.

§ 185-237. Criteria and procedure for approval.

ARTICLE XXXIV
Land Acquisition

§ 185-238.  Purpose.

§ 185-239.  Authority.

§ 185-240.  Applicability.

§ 185-241.  Definitions.

§ 185-242.  Procedure.

§ 185-243. Valuation for taxation.

§ 185-244.  Penalty for violation or cancellation.

[HISTORY: Adopted by the Town Board of the Town of Pittsford 7-21-1992 as Ch. 25

of the 1992 Code; amended in its entirety 9-18-2012 by L.L. No. 4-2012. Subsequent
amendments noted where applicable.]

Page 15 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code

Article 1. General Provisions

§ 185-1. Title, purpose and intent.

A.

Title. This chapter and the Official Zoning Map made a part hereof shall be known
and may be cited and referred to as the "Zoning Law of the Town of Pittsford."

Purpose and intent. This chapter is enacted in order to promote the health, safety,
morals and welfare of the residents of the Town of Pittsford and to implement the
Comprehensive Plan of the Town. To these ends, this chapter is designed:

*  To guide and regulate the orderly growth, development and redevelopment
of the Town of Pittsford in accordance with a well-considered plan and with
long-term objectives, principles and standards deemed beneficial to the
interest and welfare of the people.

*  To protect the established character of existing residential neighborhoods
and commercial and business areas and the social and economic well-being
of the residents.

*  To promote, in the public interest, the utilization of land for the purposes for
which it is best adapted in harmony with the established character of the
Town.

*  To reduce or prevent congestion in the public streets.
*  To facilitate the creation of a convenient, attractive and harmonious community.

*  To expedite the provision of adequate transportation, water, sewerage, flood
protection, disaster evacuation, schools, parks, forests, playgrounds,
recreational facilities and other public requirements.

*  To protect against destruction of, or encroachment upon, historic areas and sites.
*  To preserve existing and facilitate the provision of new housing to the community.

*  To protect against one or more of the following: overcrowding of land,
undue concentration of population in relation to the community facilities
existing or available, obstruction of light and air, danger and congestion in
travel and transportation or loss of life, health or property from fire, flood,
panic or other dangers.

*  To promote the public necessity, health, safety, convenience and general
welfare by equitably apportioning the cost of providing the additional public
facilities necessitated or required by development.

e To provide for the preservation of environmentally sensitive areas and agricultural
lands.

§ 185-2. Applicability.

Page 16 of 269

REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

A. Territorial application. The regulations and restrictions in this chapter shall apply to
all buildings, structures, land, water and uses within the territorial limits of the Town
of Pittsford, New York, outside the Village of Pittsford.

B. General application. All buildings and structures erected hereafter, all uses of land,
water or buildings established hereafter, all structural alterations or relocations of
existing buildings occurring hereafter and all enlargements of, additions to, changes
in and relocations of existing uses occurring hereafter shall be subject to all regulations
of this chapter. Existing buildings, structures and uses which comply with the
regulations of this chapter shall likewise be subject to all regulations of this chapter.
Existing buildings, structures and uses which do not comply with the regulations of
this chapter shall be governed by the provisions of Article XXXII.

§ 185-3. Compliance required.

No building or structure, no use of any building, structure or land, and no lot now or hereafter
existing shall hereafter be established, altered, moved, divided or maintained in any manner except
as authorized by the provisions of this chapter.

§ 185-4. Construal of provisions.

A. Conflicting provisions. Whenever any provision of this chapter imposes a greater
requirement or a higher standard than is required in any state or federal statute or other
Town law or regulation, the provision of this chapter shall govern. Whenever any
provision of any state or federal statute or other Town law or regulation imposes a
greater requirement or a higher standard than is required by this chapter, the provision
of such state or federal statute or other Town law or regulation shall govern.

B. Provisions are minimum requirements. In interpreting and applying the provisions of
this chapter, they shall be held to be the minimum requirements for the promotion of
the public safety, health, convenience, comfort, prosperity, morals or general welfare.

§ 185-5. Official Zoning Map.

A. The Town is hereby divided into the zoning districts provided in Articles III through
XIV of this chapter and as shown on the map entitled "Official Zoning Map, Pittsford,
New York," which map, together with all explanatory matter thereon, is hereby
adopted by reference and declared to be part of this chapter.

B. Regardless of the existence of purported copies of the Official Zoning Map, the
Official Zoning Map shall be located in the office of the Commissioner of Public
Works and shall be the final authority as to the current zoning status of land and water
areas, buildings and other structures in the Town, save for subsequent amendments
enacted by the Town Board and not yet officially recorded on said map.

C. No changes of any nature shall be made to the Official Zoning Map or any matter
shown thereon except upon resolution of the Town Board, and it shall be unlawful

Page 17 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

for any person to make unauthorized changes on the Official Zoning Map.

§ 185-6. Administration; fees.

A.

The Commissioner of Public Works shall be responsible for the administration and
enforcement of this chapter.

The Town Board shall, by resolution, adopt a schedule of fees for each of the
development permits and approvals provided by this chapter, which fees shall be
designed to cover the Town's administrative costs related to such permits and may be
revised from time to time by subsequent resolution.

The Commissioner of Public Works, or his designee, shall serve as the secretary of
the Zoning Board of Appeals and of the Planning Board.

§ 185-7. Penalties for offenses.

A.

Any person who shall violate any provision of this chapter or shall fail to comply with
any of its provisions or shall violate or fail to comply with any order, rule, permit,
approval or regulation made hereunder shall be guilty of a violation of this chapter.

Every violation of this chapter is hereby declared to be an offense punishable by a fine
not exceeding

$350 or imprisonment for a period not to exceed six months, or both, for conviction of a
first offense; for conviction of a second offense, both of which were committed within a
period of five years, punishable by a fine of not less than $350 nor more than $700 or
imprisonment for a period not to exceed six months, or both; and for conviction for a third
or subsequent offense, all of which were committed within a period of five years,
punishable by a fine of not less than $700 nor more than

$1,000 or imprisonment for a period not to exceed six months, or both.

For the purpose of conferring jurisdiction upon courts and judicial officers generally,
violations of this chapter shall be deemed misdemeanors, and for such purpose only,
all provisions of law relating to misdemeanors shall apply to such violations.

Each week's continued violation shall constitute a separate additional violation.

In addition to the remedies provided in Subsection B above, the Commissioner of
Public Works, or his designated agent, is authorized to issue a stop-work order to any
person acting in violation of any provision of this chapter or the terms of any permit
or approval granted thereunder. Such order, posted at a work site, shall be sufficient
notice to require such violator to immediately cease work on the site until an
appropriate permit is obtained or the violation otherwise corrected. Failure to abide
by a stop- work order shall constitute an additional violation of this chapter.

Page 18 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article II. Terminology

§ 185-8. Definitions.
The following words and terms, as used in this chapter, are defined as follows:

ACCESSORY FACILITY — A facility that serves the principal use and is subordinate in area, extent and

urpose to the principal use. Examples of such facilities include transmission equipment and storage sheds.

ACCESSORY STRUCTURE OR USE — A building, structure, or use whieh-that meets the following
conditions:

1. Is customarily asseeiated-with-and-incidental to-that-ofthe-main-struetureand subordinate to
and serves a principal building or use;

2. Is subordinate in area, extent, or purpose to the principal building or use served;

3. Is located on the same parcel as the principal building or use;

4. And may be attached or detached from the principal building, where applicable.

ACCESSORY SUITE — A division of a primary residence added to or created within a single-family
dwelling, having at least one shared or common wall with the primary dwelling. Accessory suites must
have shared living space with the primary residence but may provide separate sleeping and sanitary
facilities. The primary residence must remain in its entirety a single-family dwelling unit. Accessory suites
shall be located on the same parcel as the primary residence and have a shared entrance.

ANTENNA — A system of electrical conductors that transmit or receive radio frequency waves. Such
waves shall include cellular, paging and personal communication services (PCS). The frequency of these
waves generally range from 10 hertz to 300,000 megahertz.

premisesANIMAL CARE FACILITY — A commercial or non-profit operation that provides treatment and
services for the care of domesticated animals and pets that customarily reside and are cared for within a

residential dwelling.

APARTMENT HOUSE — A building containing three or more household dwelling units and designed for
and occupied exclusively by three or more families living independently of each other.

ARCHITECTURAL RESOURCES — Any structural or decorative component visible from a public way,
which, considered either individually or collectively, contributes to the aesthetic composition of the
structure.

BOARDING — The keeping of any horse on the premises not owned by the owner or lessee of said
premises, whether for a fee or otherwise.

BUFFER — An area of land undisturbed or established and suitably developed with natural vegetation and
landscaping. Fencing and berms may be included as part of such an area.

CAMOUFLAGING — The construction of facilities to house or support a telecommunications tower so
that the towers blend readily with the landscape, neighborhood and adjacent architectural features.
Examples of camouflaging are silo and barn, windmill and simulated tree.

CARRIER — A provider of telecommunications service.

Page 19 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

CO-LOCATION — The use of a telecommunications tower by more than one carrier.

COLLEGE — Includes universities and other institutions for higher education authorized to confer degrees.

COMMERCIAL STABLE — A business for boarding horses that may be owned by off-site owners: a
horse-drawn carriage or livery type of business; and a business for riding and riding lessons for fee.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN — The Town of Pittsford Comprehensive Plan Update and Generic
Environmental Impact Statement, as amended from time to time.

CONDOMINIUM — Any unit subject to the provisions of Article 9-B of the Real Property Law of the
State of New York.

COUNTRY STORE — A retail business that builds on the farm market model of a business (See definition
below.), but includes the sale of regionally produced agricultural and regionally produced arts and
handcrafted products within an enclosed structure of no more than 5,000 square feet in size. Additionally,
nonagricultural-related retail products may be sold in an area that is no more than 20% of the net sales floor
space. Outside sales of regionally produced agricultural products (i.e., strawberries, pumpkins, Christmas

trees, etc.) are permitted.

DAY CARE CENTER, CHILD OR ADULT — This shall include any program or facility, which is not a
residence, in which care for children or adults is provided on a regular basis away from the child or adult’s
residence for less than 24 hours and as otherwise defined under NYS Social Services Law and NYS Elder
Law. For the purposes of this Chapter, day care “centers” shall not include home-based childcare operations
as provided for by state law.

DEMOLITION — The razing of any existing structure, including substantial removal of structural building

components so as to cause an effective removal of an existing structure. Demolition does not include partial
removal of structural elements to facilitate restoration.

DWELLING UNIT — A group of rooms which are designed for residential occupancy by a single family,
providing housekeeping facilities for such family. In determining the number of dwelling units within a
structure, consideration will be given to the separate use of or the provision made for cooking, heating and
sanitary facilities, whether installed or not; both the actual use to which the dwelling is being put and the
potential use to which the dwelling might be put; and whether kitekenfood preparation and bathroom
facilities and bedrooms are so located as to provide privacy if occupied by an additional family.

DWELLING UNIT, UPPER FLOOR — A dwelling unit located within a mixed-use, multi-story building
on any floor other than the ground floor.

EVENT — Any happening or occurrence of a limited duration, including, but not limited to, the sale or
lease of a property, an election, a referendum, a garage, estate or yard sale, the erecting or repairing of a

structure on the premises, the seasonal sale of products grown on the premises of a residential property, and
the like.

FAMILY — One or more persons occupying a dwelling unit as a nonprofit household unit.

FARM AREA — That portion of a parcel that is specifically designated in a recorded conservation
easement to the Town of Pittsford as a "farm area."

FARM MARKET — A retail business operation, as an accessory use to an agricultural use, that sells
agricultural products, as defined by NYS Agriculture & Markets (AGM) Law Chapter 69, Article 1, Section
2. within an enclosed structure. Products for sale shall be limited to those which are produced within a 100-
mile radius of the site. Outside sales of agricultural products (i.e., strawberries, pumpkins, Christmas trees

Page 20 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

etc.) are also permitted.

FARM OPERATION — The land and on-farm buildings, equipment and practices which contribute to the
raising, production, preparation and marketing of crops, livestock and livestock products for gain. The farm
operation includes necessary farm structures within the prescribed limits of the farm parcel and the storage

of equipment as part of the farm operation. A farm operation does not include the operation of a commercial
stable.

FARMSTEAD — That portion of a parcel, as defined in this Section, that is specifically designated in a
recorded conservation easement to the Town of Pittsford as a "farmstead."

FLOODPLAIN AREA — Any portion of a property within the "area of special flood hazard," as defined
in Chapter 95 of this Code.

FREESTANDING COMMUNICATION TOWER — Freestanding lattice tower onto which a
telecommunications device is affixed.

FRONT SETBACK — The distance from the property line, in the case of a public road, or from the
easement boundary, in the case of a private road, to the part of the structure nearest such property measured
at right angles to the highway or drive but not including cornices, unroofed and unwalled terraces, entrance
steps, chimneys or cantilevers that extend two feet or less into the setback.

GARAGE SALE OR YARD SALE — Occasional sale of personal items at a single-family home when in
compliance with the following:

1. No more than three garage or yard sales per calendar year may be conducted at
any one property.

2. Each garage or yard sale may run for no more than three consecutive calendar days.

3. Hours for such sales shall be no earlier than 8:00 a.m. and no later than 6:00 p.m.

4. All goods must be brought inside after the sales hours.

5. Garage and yard sales under this section must be conducted by the owner(s) of the
personal items to be sold.

GARDEN POND — Any man-made body of water with a surface area no greater than 500 square feet and
a maximum depth of 36 inches.

GROWN ON THE PREMISES — Produce resulting from planting of seedlings or the tillage of the soil of
the premises, or produced naturally from trees or vines growing in and on the soil of the premises, or grown
for a majority of the life of the produce in a greenhouse on the premises. For the purposes of this Chapter

this may include eggs produced by chickens on the premises.

GUYED TOWER — Lattice tower supported by wire anchors onto which a telecommunications device is
affixed.

HEIGHT OF A STRUCTURE — The vertical distance as measured from the average elevation of the
proposed finished grade at the front of a building or of a structure to the highest point of the building or the
structure, which highest point shall include, but not be limited to, the highest or topmost point of the roof,
together with all towers, elevator penthouses, signs, tanks, elevator or stair bulkheads, mechanical
equipment, light poles and light standards, except for poles or standards of a public utility company.

Page 21 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

HOMESTEAD — That portion of a parcel, as defined in this Section, that is specifically designated in a
recorded conservation easement to the Town of Pittsford as a "homestead" and as being exempt from the
provisions of such recorded conservation easement.

HORSE — Either male or female horse, pony, mule, donkey and/or ass.

INCENTIVE ZONING — The system by which specific incentives are granted, pursuant to § 261-b of the

Town Law and the provisions of this chapter, on condition that specific physical, social or cultural benefits
or amenities would inure to the community.

JUNK — Any manufactured good, appliance, fixture, furniture, machinery, motor vehicle, recreational
vehicle, trailer, or similar object which is abandoned, demolished, discarded, dismantled, or so worn.
deteriorated or in such a condition as to be generally unusable in its existing state. This definition shall
include but shall not be limited to scrap metal, scrap material, waste bottles, cans, paper, rubble, boxes,
crates, rags, used construction materials, motor vehicle parts, and used tires.

LIGHT INDUSTRIAL E — A material-handlin I ing, assembly, manufacturing, research,

warchouse or similar facility where all input, output, operations and storage are wholly conducted within
enclosed buildings and which meets the other performance standards of the district.

LIVERY — The rental of horses or carriages to persons other than the owner of the horse or carriage

LOT AREA — The total area within the lot lines of a lot, excluding any portion of a lot within a public
highway.

LOT COVERAGE — The percentage of the area of the lot covered by impervious surface. This definition
includes all buildings and structures as well as impermeable surfaces such as driveways, decks, patios

pools, parking areas, and other similar lot improvements.

LOT WIDTH — The width of any lot measured at the minimum required front setback line, unless
otherwise defined in subsequent sections of this chapter.

MICRO-BREWERY — A micro-brewery or farm brewery operation duly licensed with the NYS Liquor
Authority. Such operation shall be limited to the building footprint limitation of the district in which it is
located, if any.

MICRO-DISTILLERY — A micro-distiller operation duly licensed with the NYS Liquor Authority. Such
operation shall be limited to the building footprint limitation of the district in which it is located, if any.

MONOPOLE — A single pole of variable cross section onto which telecommunications devices are affixed.

OPEN-WATER POND — Any man-made body of water with a surface area in excess of 500 square feet
and/or a depth of more than 36 inches.

OPEN SPACE or OPEN AREA — Any space or area characterized by natural scenic beauty or whose
existing openness, natural condition or present state of use, if retained, would maintain and enhance the
present or potential value of abutting or surrounding urban development or would maintain or enhance the
conservation of natural or scenic resources. For the purposes of this section, natural resources shall include
but not be limited to agricultural lands defined as open lands actually used in bona fide agricultural

production.

OPEN SPACE PROTECTION EASEMENT — An easement or similar interest in real property which
limits or restricts development, management or use of open space or other real property for the purpose of

Page 22 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code

REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

preserving or maintaining the scenic, open, natural or existing character, conditions, significance or

amenities of the open space or other real property. This term shall include an instrument granting any of the

foregoing limiting or restrictive interests to the Town, whether denominated "conservation easement."

"scenic easement," "scenic and conservation easement," "agricultural easement," "agricultural use

casement," "large lot easement." "large lot scenic easement” or by some similar label. The substance of

such instruments, however identified, shall be determined by the Town Board.

PADDOCK — An enclosure near a stable in which horses are exercised or allowed to go free.

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS — Measures by which the requirements for compliance with the purpose
and intent of this article can be determined. These standards may include, but not be limited to, empirical

measures of traffic or noise generation, or subjective observations of architectural compatibility and

landscape preservation, and similar aesthetic determinations.

~PERSONAL SERVICE ESTABLISHMENT —

A. A store or shop providing personal, financial, technical or repair services, assistance or
advice to individual consumers, including but not limited to:

1.

Ea e

S -

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

Arts and crafts studios or stores.

Appliance repair and rental.

Banks, savings and loans, and credit unions.
Bicycle and/or wheelchair repair.
Barbershops and beauty shops.

Contractors' offices, without accessory storage.
Dressmakers and tailors.

Dry-cleaning or laundry pickup stations.
Laundromat.

Locksmiths.

Musical instrument repair.

Optical center.

Professional photographer's studios.

Shoe repair.

Furniture upholstering shops.

Watch and or jewelry repair.

Copy and printing services.

B. Personal service establishments do not include, as either a primary or accessory use, the following:

1.

The sale, rental, storage, service or repair of any motor vehicles, including automobiles,
trucks, buses, trailers, recreational vehicles and motorcycles;-.

Page 23 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

2. Tattoo and/or piercing parlors, smoking lounges, sale of vape supplies and/or
paraphernalia.

18:3. Or any use listed separately as allowed in a zone.

PRIVATE GARAGE — A structure or portion of a structure, used for the private, noncommercial storage
of motor vehicles, in and about which no business or industry is conducted.

PRIVATE SWIMMING POOL — A pool in which no person other than the owner of the premises on
which it exists shall have any interest, right, license, permit or right of use of any kind or nature whatsoever.

PRODUCE — Fresh fruits, vegetables, flowers, trees, and the like.

PUBLIC GARAGE — A structure or portion of a structure in which the sale or maintenance or servicing
of motor vehicles or any mechanical vehicle is conducted or which is designed or used for the commercial
storage of motor vehicles.

REAR SETBACK — The distance from the rear lot line to the part of the structure nearest such lot line
measured at right angles to the rear lot line, but not including cornices, unroofed or unwalled terraces,
entrance steps, chimneys or cantilevers that extend two feet or less into the minimum setback.

RESTAURANT — An establishment that prepares and/or serves food and/or beverages. This includes, but
is not limited to, cafeterias, cocktail lounges, diners, fast-food places, cafés or coffee shops, ice cream
parlors and take-out or delivery of prepared food.

SATELLITE ANTENNA — An apparatus capable of receiving communications from a transmitter or
transmitter relay located in geoplanetary orbit.

SCHOOL — A regularly organized institution of learning, other than a college, approved by the Education
Department of the State of New York and/or Board of Regents.

SEQRA — The State Environmental Quality Review Act, Article 8 of the New York State Environmental
Conservation Law, as amended, and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

SIDE SETBACK — The distance from either side line of the lot to the part of the structure nearest such
side lot line measured at right angles to the side lot line, but not including cornices, unroofed or unwalled
terraces, entrance steps, chimneys or cantilevers that extend two feet or less into the minimum setback.

SIGN — Any name, identification, description, display, illustration, symbol, logo, statue or device,
illuminated or nonilluminated, which is visible from any public place or from one property to another,
designed to advertise, identify or convey information, including any landscaping employing the aforesaid,
and/or used for the purpose of directing the public's attention to an object, product, service, place, activity,
person, institution, organization or business. Displays of merchandise in storefront windows at regular
mercantile establishments shall not be considered signs; however, a false window or window box affixed
to the exterior of a structure is a sign.

A-FRAME SIGN
A temporary portable sign with two or more steeply angled sides. Also known as a “sandwich

board sign.”

ATTENTION GETTING DEVICE

Page 24 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Devices or ornamentations designed for the purpose of attracting attention to a use or property.
This includes sails, pennants, banners, inflatables, and the similar.

Temporary holiday decorations at the discretion of a CEO are not considered attention getting
devices.

AWNING OR CANOPY SIGN

A sign that is part of a movable or fixed ornamental roof-like structure extending from the face
of a structure over a door, entrance, window, or outdoor area and is constructed of durable
materials, including fabrics. Illuminated awnings and/or canopies shall be considered to be
signs.

DIGITAL SIGN

A sign that utilizes computer-generated messages or some other electronic means of changing
copy. These signs may include displays using incandescent lamps, LEDs, LCDs or a flipper
matrix.

DIRECTIONAL SIGN
Signs providing direction to pedestrians, bicyclists, or motorists to entrances, exits, driveways,
or other such accessways and containing no commercial message.

FREESTANDING SIGN

A sign independently supported by the ground or mounted on a supporting structure that is
placed on or anchored in the ground and is independent from any building.

ILLUMINATION
The lighting of a sign by one or more of the following artificial light sources:

(1) External. A separate light source attached to the sign or mounted on the ground and
directed so as to shine on the sign face.

(2) Internal. A light source concealed within the sign structure. This shall include back-lighting
where the bulbs or other elements are not visible on the outside ofthe sign.

OBSOLETE SIGN
A sign that advertises or identifies a business, event, product, service, etc. that is no longer in
operation, sold, or offered, or is otherwise irrelevant or outdated.

OFF-PREMISE SIGN

A sign that directs attention to a business, commodity, service, or entertainmentconducted, sold,
or offered at a location other than where such sign is located.

POLE SIGN

A type of freestanding sign that is supported by one post with a distance exceeding three feet
between the ground and the bottommost edge of the sign.

PROJECTING SIGN

A sign which is wholly dependent upon a building for support and which projects more than 12
inches from such building.

ROOF SIGN
Any sign erected upon the roof of a building or any portion of which extends above the roofline

Page 25 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

of the building as viewed from a right-of-way or residential property. This shall include lighting
fixtures placed on and/or around the roofline.

TEMPORARY SIGN

Any sign that is not otherwise permitted by this chapter. Signs indicating a happening or
occurrence of a limited duration, including, but not limited to, the sale or lease of a property, an
election, a referendum, construction work on the premises, seasonal sale of products grown on
the premises of an agricultural or residential property, and the like. Such signs usually being
constructed of poster board, cardboard, corrugated plastic material or an A-Frame-Sign.
Temporary signs allowed by this section specifically do not include signs for the sale of goods
or merchandise of any business.

WALL SIGN

A sign fastened to the wall of a building or structure in such a manner that the wall becomes the
supporting structure for or forms the background surface of the sign andwhich does not project
outward more than 12 inches from such building or structure.

WINDOW SIGN

Any sign which is applied, affixed, or painted on the interior or exterior of a window or located
inside within three feet of the windowpane. This does not include, customary identification placed
on the entry door(s) of the use, open and or closed signs of two square feet or less, or customary
window display(s) of products or decorations.

SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING — A building containing one dwelling unit and designed for and occupied
exclusively by one family.

STABLE — A building in which horses are sheltered and/or fed.

STRUCTURE — An assembly of materials, forming a construction framed of component structural parts
for occupancy or use, including buildings, and retaining walls 30 inches or greater in height.

SWIMMING POOL — Any body of water or receptacle for water having a depth at any point greater than
two feet that is used or intended to be used for swimming, bathing or wading, constructed, installed, moved
or maintained in or above the ground outside of any building, dwelling or other structure.

TACK SHOP — A business for the sales and repair of equine-related and other animal equipment and gear.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS TOWER — A structure on which transmitting and/or receiving antennas are
located. This includes but is not limited to freestanding towers, guyed towers, monopoles and similar
structures. It is a structure intended for transmitting and/or receiving telecommunications but excluding
those either for fire, police or other dispatch communications or exclusively for private radio and television
reception and private citizens' bands, amateur radio and other similar communications.

TEMPORARY STAND — A structure not attached or affixed to the premises except by the force of gravity
and capable of assembly and disassembly with simple hand tools.

TEMPORARY STRUCTURE — Any structure, not permanently attached to the ground, which is movable
in its entirety.

TWO-FAMILY DWELLING — A building containing two household dwelling units and designed for and
occupied exclusively by two families living independently of each other.

UNIT — A part of real property intended for any type of use or uses, and with an exit to a public street or

Page 26 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

highway or to a common element or elements leading to a public street or highway, and may include such
appurtenances as garage and other parking space, storage room, balcony, terrace or patio.

USE — The purpose or purposes for which any structure or premises or any part thereof is occupied or, if
unoccupied, for which they may be occupied.

USE CONVERSIONS/SITE MODIFICATIONS — Any change to a use, other than single-family
residential or permitted accessory uses thereto, or to the land or landscape elements associated with such

change.

VETERINARY CLINIC — A place where animals are given medical care, and the boarding of animals is
limited to short-term care incidental to the hospital use.

WOODED LANDSCAPE BUFFER — An area where the natural vegetation, including trees, shrubs and

smaller plants, are preserved and maintained in a natural state so as to provide visual screening and noise
mitigation from abutting uses.

Page 27 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article III. Agricultural Zone

PARCEL
——Any tax parcel, as identified by the Tax Map of the Town of Pittsford as of June 1, 2007.

§ 185-10. Permitted uses.

The-folowingUses are permitted: in the Agricultural Zone in accordance with the table below.

A.

B.

In Farm Areas:.

(1) Agricultural uses, as permitted in a recorded conservation easement;-and-epen-space.

(2) Open Space

In Farmstead Areas:-.

(1) Structures used solely in connection with an agricultural use:farm-markets;-operated-

5
ountsy ore

g €0 ores;-operated

(2) In-homesteads:single-familyresidential-Farm Markets, operated by the farm owner
as an accessory use to an agricultural use;-. See also §185-11.

(3) Country Stores, operated by the farm owner as an accessory use to an agricultural

Page 28 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

use;-and-epen-spaece. See also §185-11.
(4) Open Space

(5) Storage, as allowed in PDR conservation easement.

C. In Homesteads.

(1) Single-Family Residential

(2) Farm Markets, operated by the farm owner as an accessory use to an agricultural use.

See also §185-11.

(3) Country Stores, operated by the farm owner as an accessory use to an agricultural
use. See also §185-11.

(4) Open Space

B:D. On parcels not subject to a conservation easement:single-family residential-and-epen-
el

(1) Single-Family Residential

Page 29 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(2) Open Space

€-E.Accessory structures and uses, subject to § 185-113.

§ 185-11. Farm market/country store regulations.

A. A special use permit shall be obtained from the Planning Board for the use.

AB. Interior retail floor space shall not exceed 5,000 square feet in size.

B-C. All structures shall comply with the setback requirements set forth in §185-11.48-C-
and D1.

c:D. A-—spect C-permit-sh be-obtained from-the P e—The

Planning Board shall ensure that proposed structures are architecturally compatible with
the surrounding neighborhood and that adequate off-street parking is provided.

§ 185-11.1. Development of parcels and homesteads.

A. A parcel or homestead consisting of less than two acres may be developed at a density of
one residential dwelling unit. A parcel or homestead consisting of two acres or more may
be developed at a density of one residential dwelling unit per acre. The following
minimum standards shall apply:

B—Frontsetbacksshall-be 70-feet

Dimensional & Bulk Requirements

MINIMUM
Lot Width 125 feet
Front Setback 70 feet
Side Setback 20 feet
Rear Setback 10 feet
Floor Space 800 square feet

MAXIMUM

Height, building or structure 40 feet
Chimneys, attached to structure + 5 feet from height of structure

B. A-reasenable buffer shall be established and maintained between residential uses and any
Page 30 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

adjoining agricultural uses. FheThe size, configuration, and landscaping and/or screening
materials of such buffer shall be subject to review and approval by the Planning Board as
part of subdivision review.

C. Accessory structures and uses shall comply with the requirements of § 185-113, except
that accessory structures located in a homestead and adjacent to a farmstead and are used
solely in connection with an agricultural use need not comply with the requirements of §
185-113, but shall comply with the requirements of § 185-11.2.

Page 31 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-11.2. Structures in farmsteads.

Structures on lands designated as a farmstead in a recorded conservation easement shall be
limited to the types of structures specifically allowed for in such conservation easement. The
following minimum standards shall apply:

B e e

Dimensional & Bulk Requirements

MINIMUM
Front Setback 70 feet
Side Setback 20 feet
Rear Setback 10 feet
MAXIMUM
Height, building or structure 60 feet
Silos and Grain Elevators 80 feet

Page 32 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article I'V. RMN-Residential Neighborhood
(RN) District

§ 185-12. Purpose.

The RN Residential Neighborhood District is established to provide and maintain land area for
neighborhoods of single-family dwellings and to preserve the previously established (or existing)
context of such neighborhoods.

§ 185-13. Permitted uses.
The following uses are permitted:
A. Single-family dwelling-, detached

B. Single-family dwelling, attached, provided there are no more than two attached units per
building and no more than one dwelling unit per lot.

C. Agriculture.

D. Rural Conservation.

B-E.Accessory structures and uses, subject to § 185-113.

F. Senior housing development subject to approval by the Town Board and provisions of
Article XXXVIII, incentive zoning regulations.

§ 185-14. Speeial-permitSpecially permitted uses.

The following uses may be allowed pursuant to a special permit issued by the Planning
Board:

A. Place of worship, subject to § 185-124.

B. School, subject to § 185-133-131.

§ 185-15. Applicability.

All lots shall comply with the lot and bulk standards of this article. Any lot existing at the time
of adoption of this article shall be considered legal as to lot size.

Page 33 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-16. Context-based approach.

A. Lot and bulk standards for the construction, expansion, or alteration of homes and
accessory structures are based on their neighborhood context. To determine this context,
the average lot dimensions of nearby residentially developed properties have been used.
In some cases (such as side yard and building envelope), averages have been established
based on an analysis of existing conditions for parcels throughout the district. The Town
has utilized tax parcel data, published aerial orthophotography and other mapping data to
determine relevant measurements. As necessary and appropriate, these data sources have
been supplemented with other data available to the Town, including, but not limited to,
subdivision plats, property surveys, etc. Unless otherwise noted, all distances are rounded
to the nearest foot.

B. For the convenience of property owners, the Town has established and maintains a
database for the district that is on file with the Planning Department and available online.
For each parcel in the district, the database contains most of the dimensional requirements
outlined in this article, based on precalculated averages derived from existing data as
described above. In cases where a property owner has an official survey stamped by a
licensed surveyor which indicates a different existing lot width or lot size measurement
from what the Town has determined in the database, the survey measurement shall be
used as the basis for other dimensional requirements that are derived from lot width or lot
size.

C. Lot and bulk requirements for individual lots are determined by applying the provisions
of § 185-17 to the lot dimensions derived from applying the provisions of Subsection B.

' § 185—17. Lot and bulk requirements.
A. Front yard: The front yard is the area from the public right-of-way to the building line.

Structures and additions are prohibited in the front yard, except as permitted within the
facade area per Subsection D of this section.

B. Building line: The minimum front yard-depthsetback for each lot within the district has
been determined by the Town, based on the average front yard depth of nearby properties
on the street. That average distance from the right-of-way determines the location of the
building line. (See Figure 1). The Town maintains a database that includes the location
of the building line for each lot, expressed as the distance from the public right-of-way to
the closest structural wall of each primary structure, not including cornices, unroofed and
unwalled terraces, entrance steps, chimneys or cantilevers that extend two feet or less
from the structural wall. In some cases when primary structures are facing a private street,
the average front yard-depthsetback has been measured and the building line located
based on distance from the edge of pavement. In the case of some flag lots, and as
provided in § 185-17L, where the relationship to a street is ambiguous, the building line
has been located across the front facade of the existing house.

(1) Structures and additions are not permitted to extend past the building line, except as
permitted in a facade area, as provided in Subsection D of this section. Existing

Page 34 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

structures which already extend past the building line are permitted minor facade
additions, provided that such additions are contained wholly within the facade area.

(2) For construction of new primary structures, the building line shall serve as an
approximate "build-to" line, and the front facade of the primary structure shall be
located within 10 feet of the building line. However, upon proper application, the
Design Review and Historic Preservation Board may permit a deepergreater front
yardsetback if appropriate within the context of the neighborhood.

Figure 1. Area and Bulk Elements

PROPERTY LINE
o _.r_ - T
! REAR BUFFER o H .
: , i | :
I S praaansnniinnras sy : ]
| i | 1
| ! ! |
: le g ! :
I 12 BUILDABLE £ H |
8 e gl |
' 3 i H }
| ! ! |
! | | 1
| i i eersvovar ol i |
i ‘ FACADE AREA u : 1
I FRONT YARD | '| j
: pnopsmnw_movg_] T ‘
™ N
I = ;/L |
i STREET H
..--L..--.::------_r---*Fmpmp"wﬂ‘h,.lq ............... J--
H ¢ FACACE ANEA ] RIHEE T H
! E FRCHTYARD ! |
i € ]
I N 1T o TH OVPTOURROTPRPoR. [ IR
|
L o
STREER

C. Lot width: For the purposes of this district, the width of the lot; shall be measured at the
building line.

D. Facade area: Minor facade additions, such as unenclosed porches, unenclosed entry
vestibules, entry canopies and bay windows, are permitted to extend forward of the

bulldmg line into the facade area#hefiep%hmheﬁfaeadea?eaﬂmﬂ%e%*egrea{eﬁef

dep&reﬁﬂ}e#aeaéeﬁearshaﬂ—ne%e*eeeéﬂghﬁee% no more than 8 feet (See Flgure 2)

Page 35 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

PROPERTY LINE

et e e g s s — e —

PROPERTY LINE

| SUBJECT PROPERTY |
i i
| |
1 1
1 1
- 1 FACADE AREA S
1 8 Feet Max. 1 FRONT YARD 1
DEPTH .
T P [ PN [
) () (D) ()
= o — — =

E. Side yard: The minimum side yard for a lot is based on the width of the lot, as specified
i#FableinTable I. The minimum side yard measurement can only be used on one side of
the lot. The only permitted structures within the side yard area are permitted accessory
structures pursuant to § 185-113.

Table I. Minimum Total Required Side Yards

Page 36 0of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Lot Width MinimumMIN MinimumMIN Both
(feet) One Side Sides Total (feet)
(feet)

Less than 60 5 15
60 to 90 10 20
91 to 120 10 25
121 to 140 10 30
141 to 160 15 40
161 to 180 15 60
181 to 225 20 90
Greater than 225 20 120

Page 37 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

F. Buildable area: The buildable area on a lot is where the primary and any accessory
structure may be built. The buildable area does not include the front yard, side yard or
rear buffer.

G. Maximum building footprint: The building footprint includes all roofed structures that
are attached to the primary structure.

H. The maximum building footprint permitted is based on the size of the lot, as specified in
Table 1L

Example: According to Table II, thea lot referred-toof 18.000 square feet, upon which
size the calculations in SubseetionE(5)-of this seetion'example are based, would be
permitted to have a maximum building footprint equivalent to 3,675 square feet plus
5% of the lot area over 17,500 square feet (5% of 500 square feet equals 25 square
feet). Therefore, the maximum building footprint would be 3,700 square feet.

Table II. Building Footprint

Lot Size Maximum Building Footprint
(square feet) (square feet plus percentage of lot size)
Less than 10,000 29%

10,000 to 12,500 2,900 + 19% of area over 10,000
12,501 to 15,000 3,375 + 9% of area over 12,500
15,001 to 17,500 3,600 + 3% of area over 15,000
17,501 to 20,000 3,675 + 5% of area over 17,500
20,001 to 25,000 3,800 + 9% of area over 20,000
25,001 to 30,000 4,250 + 5% of area over 25,000
30,001 to 35,000 4,500 + 1% of area over 30,000

Page 38 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

1. Editor's Note: Former Subsection F(5) referred to a lot of 18,000 square feet, upon which size the calculations in this

35,001 to 45,000 4,550 + 4% of area over 35,000
Greater than 45,000 4,950 + 2% of area over 35,000

I.  Maximum lot coverage: The maximum lot coverage shall not exceed 40% of the total
area of the property.-Lot-coverage-includes-all-improved-surfaces; buildings,-driveways;
ﬁ Ersll%s? Elesl;sﬂ EaFiES7 EE Els alld EF]!E! si“lilfu IEE llllpl B elllellts'

J. Rear buffer: A rear buffer shall be applied to all lots extending 2610 feet from the rear
property line, for the width of the property. (See Figure 3). Primary or accessory
structures are not permitted within this area, except fences and garden sheds in accordance
with § 185-113.

K. Rear yard: The rear yard is the portion of the buildable area located behind the rear wall
of the primary structure, in between the side yards and forward of the rear buffer.

Page 39 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Figure 3. Rear Yard and Rear Buffer AreasArea

PROPERTY LINE

LIN
Smant
8
s
i
H

REAR YARD

PROPERTYLINE _ _

From Rear Buffer
to Rear Wall of
Primary Structure

SIDE YARD

.

BUIDING LINE o —

STREET

PROPERTY LINE
mr mees et et e maarmma
Wi Im Feet Min.

&
! §| REAR YARD l I
) & From Rear Buffer )

| | to Rear Wall of
5 m Primary Structure

SIDE YARD
SIDE YARD

: : FACADE AREA . BOILBING LINE :

=co =i .. _PROPERTVUNE(ROW),_ ..

. A -

STREET

L. Corner lots: Corner lots are lots that front on more than one road right-of-way and shall
include curved lots that function as a corner lot. Corner lots shall contain a front yard
abutting each road right-of-way. The Town has determined a building line for each front
yard in existing corner lots. The front yard toward which the front entry door faces shall
be considered the primary front yard for establishing all other dimensional requirements
described in this section (facade area, lot width, etc.). The yard behind the house, from
the front entry door perspective, shall be considered the rear yard, while the remaining

Page 40 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

yard shall be considered the only side yard. (See Figure 4.)

(1) Incases where a corner lot abuts three streets, each yard abutting a road right-of- way
shall be considered a front yard and the remaining yard shall be considered the rear
yard.

(2) Notwithstanding the provisions of § 185-17E of this article, the side yard of a corner
lot shall, in all cases, be 2010 feet in width.

(3) A new primary structure on a corner lot shall be oriented to face the more primary
road, unless, upon proper application, it is otherwise determined by the Design
Review and Historic Preservation Board that this does not meet the intent of this
section or is otherwise out of character with the neighborhood. In cases where there
is no clear distinction which street is the more primary road, the property owner may
elect which direction the house will face.

Page 41 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code

Figure 4. Corner Lots

t
r
:
PROPERTY LINE %
f ¢ b e —— E
3
L3
o ¥
|« %
: H
B [} "
4 ' L —_— T s
s L TACADE AREA
=T S AT
I
i
w0
] & STREET
I ’
<
i g
IS FRONT
[ DOOR
BUILDING Y
UINE ; AR AR Lk

STREET

M. Flaglots: A flag lot is a lot with access that is provided to the bulk of the lot by means of

a-narrewanarrow corridor. Flag lots that front on or are immediately at the end of a private
road or common driveway shall have the same requirements as regular lots. Flag lots
which do not front on or are immediately at the end of a private road or common driveway
shall be subject to the following modifications and/or additional requirements:

(1) Flag lots (developedCreated prior to October 22, 2012): Lot and bulk requirements

shall be as follows:

Page 42 of 269

REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Figure 5. Flag Lots (PeveloepedCreated prior to October 22, 2012)

a) The building line ("A" in Figure 5) shall be determined as a line running parallel
with the front facade of the existing house along its frontmost face. Upon proper
application, the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board shall make a
determination as to the location of the building line, if it is not readily apparent
due to the unusual shape or orientation of the house.

b) The depth of the facade area shall, in all flag lots, be eight feet ("B" in Figure 5).

Page 43 0f 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

¢) The side setbacks (“C” in Figure 5) and rear setback (“D” in Figure 5) shall have
a depth of 20 feet.

(2) Flag lots (uﬂdeve}eped}Created after October 22, 2012) The lot and bulk
requirements £ ; alrea

res*deﬂ&al—stmc—tufes&fesenkshall be as follows

Page 44 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Figure 6. Flag Lots (Created after October 22, 2012)

/A.
e S
/7 ‘ N
\ \\s@' .
/7 & *
R 2 A
/ A&@ ‘0
. ¥
’ 2N\
<, \
.\ % '
A BUILDABLE AREA \
o< 41/,) '.
s \
N @/ -
'.*/9’44,)7_ .>
N «© 7
. b
N % <<°z\\4 ~/
. '8/' S .
g 7
2 S
. #
\ .
-t
\ -
4 L

a) The front yard, side yards, and rear buffer shall all have a depth of 60 feet (Figure
6).

b) Upon proper application, the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board
shall determine and set the building line.

¢) The depth of the facade area shall be eight feet.

N. All accessory structures;with-the-exception-of fences-and-gardensheds;shall- be located-
within-therear-yard shall conform to §185-113.

Figure 6. Flag Lots (Undeveloped)

Page 45 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

AN
#N,
A \
/7 \
@'&// \?%
& Y
7 % iy
L D N
e @ii \,
’,/ N
4 .
Sy, N
E \
\~\\ @*&"‘; BUILDABLE AREA .\\.\
‘. N
. ‘\\
\\\ ” >
. " Y
N SF 7
\\ LS l/‘
e
= @*i; 4::% / 7
\ //"
\ 7
\
i
H 1

O. Building height: The maximum permitted height for structures or additions is 30 feet,
except that chimneys attached to such structures may extend five feet above the highest
point of the structure. However, upon proper application, the Design Review and Historic
Preservation Board may permit additional height, provided that it finds that such height

is appropriate within the context of the neighborhood, to a maximum of 40 feet. Eurther;

Page 46 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

| i 7 Buildine Heick

§ 185-18. Subdivision of existing lots without creation of new road.

A. Determining context. The subdivision potential of a lot without the creation of a new
publienew public or private road shall be determined based on its context to its adjacent
lots, which shall be chosen as follows:

(1) The adjacent lots must be on the same side of the street as the subject lot, with lot
frontage on the same public or private road.

(2) The adjacent lots must be residential lands. Other land use types, such as recreational,
institutional, commercial or public lands (schools, golf courses, ball fields, parks,
playgrounds or utilities), shall not be counted as adjacent lots.

(3) The adjacent lots must be immediately next to and contiguous to the subject lot and
to each other.

a) The two adjacent lots on either side of the subject parcel should be used whenever
possible ("Lot A" in Figure 8). If it is not possible to use two lots on either side,
then the closest similar combination should be used, such as one to the left and
three to the right ("Lot B" in Figure 8), or all four to the same side if necessary
("Lot C" in Figure 8).

Figure 8. Determining Adjacent Lots

Page 47 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

b) Ifitisnot possible to find four adjacent lots which are contiguous with the subject
lot and to each other, then three lots may be used ("Lot D" in Figure 8).

¢) Adjacent and contiguous lots do not include those on the other side of a street.

d) In cases where it is not possible to find three adjacent lots for consideration, upon

Page 48 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

proper application, the Planning Board shall determine which surrounding lots
are to be considered adjacent lots, including lots further removed or on the
opposite side of the public or private road.

e) On lots which are on or adjacent to corners, the orientation of the proposed
primary structure shall dictate which lots shall be counted as the adjacent lots. In
the example on the left in Figure 9, the proposed primary structure is oriented
toward the primary road, so that the four lots along the primary road would be
considered the adjacent lots, because they are oriented in the same direction. In
the example on the right, the four lots on the secondary road would be considered
the adjacent lots, while the lot on the corner would not be considered an adjacent
lot since its primary structure is oriented toward a different street.

Figure 9. Determining Adjacent Lots by Orientation

ol TN N 00n
F PRCEIRED HOAT

B. Lot requirements. The lot requirements for a subdivision that does not include the
creation of a new public or private road shall be calculated based on the average
dimensions of the adjacent lots and shall be determined as follows:

(1) Average lot area. The average lot area is the average of the adjacent lots. If this
average exceeds two acres, then two acres shall be used as the minimum lot size of
the newly created lot(s).

(2) Average lot width. The average lot width is the average of the adjacent lots. If this
average exceeds 100 feet, then 100 feet shall be used as the minimum lot width for
the newly created lot(s).

(3) Average lot depth. The average lot depth is the average of the adjacent lots. The depth
Page 49 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

shall be measured from the midpoint of the front property line to the furthest part of

Page 50 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

the rear property line. If this average exceeds 200 feet, then 200 feet shall be used as
the minimum lot depth for the newly created lot(s).

(4) Example calculation. In the example below, the average lot area of the four adjacent
lots is 1.40 acres. The subject lot may use this average lot area or a default lot area
of two acres, whichever is lower, as the minimum lot area for any new lots. (In this
example, 1.4 acres is the minimum lot area.) The average lot width of the four
adjacent lots is 205 feet. The subject lot may use this average lot width of 205 feet
or-aora default lot width of 100 feet, whichever is lower, as the minimum lot width
for any new lots. (In this example, the default lot width of 100 feet is the minimum
lot width.) This calculation is repeated for lot depth to determine the final minimum
dimensional requirement for any new lots created from the subject lot.

Page 51 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code

REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Example A. Context-Based Subdivision: Example Calculation

I I Deleted Cells
May Use Smaller Delet;e d Cells
Dimension of Minimum
Adjacent Lots Average or Default | Required for
Context New Lots
Criteria
|Context
Criteri
1 2 3 4 Average | Default
Lot area 098 | 1.16 | 1.65 1.84 1.40 acres | 2.0 acres 1.4 acres
Lot width | 175 | 215 | 240 190 205 feet 100 feet 100 feet
Lotdepth | 285 | 350 | 315 256 301 feet 200 feet 200 feet

C. Reduction for unbuildable land. In determining the lot area of the subject lot and of the
adjacent lots, the site capacity calculation worksheet referred to in the Town's Subdivision
Regulations shall be used to calculate the buildable area.

D. Building line. As part of the subdivision process, the Planning Board shall determine the
building line for each new lot, based on the context of the adjacent lots.

§ 185-19. Subdivision of lots that include creation of new road.

A. Subdivision context and lot requirements. New subdivision lots that include the creation
of a new public or private road should be arranged in a fashion which is in keeping with
the surrounding neighborhood context and in a manner that respects abutting lots in terms
of lot area width and depth, as well as yard orientation and street orientation. In general,
the subdivision layout shall achieve the following design principles to the extent practical:

(1) As part of the subdivision approval process, the Planning Board shall determine the
appropriate number of allowable lots, as well as the building line, lot area, lot width
and lot depth for each new lot, based on the context of the new lots to adjacent

existing lots and to one another.

Page 52 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(2) Rear yards of new lots should face the rear yards of existing adjacent lots.

(3) Front yards of new lots should not face into the rear or side yards of existing adjacent
lots unless there is a significant distance, as determined by the Planning Board,
between the front of the new home and the rear or side yard of the adjacent lot.

(4) Front yards of new lots should not face into the rear or side yards of new lots unless
there is a significant distance, as determined by the Planning Board, between the
front of the new primary structure and the rear or side yard of the other new lots.

(5) A vegetated buffer may also be required by the Planning Board to create appropriate
screening.

(6) Front yards should face the front yards of lots across the street, and side yards should
face into the side yards of adjacent lots.

(7) The examples in Figure 10 illustrate and describe how the subdivision context and
lot requirements in this subsection can be used to evaluate proposed subdivision
layouts. In these examples the proposed layouts are not acceptable.

Page 53 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code

REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Figure 10. Sample Subdivision Layouts (Unacceptable)

o . O

|
|

o | !

M-

Eoor -&Thn,; proposed layout creates awkward
rgiatlenshlps where front yards are facing side
or regétr yards of adjacent properties.

Removing one of the proposed lots could
allow for a redesign that would provide
adequate separation and make this type of

layoutmerelayoutmore acceptable.

g :_‘Q,F':J

Poor - This proposed layout does a better job
of having the rear yards of proposed new lots
face the rear yards of existing properties to the
right; however, it creates a street directly
abutting the rear yards of the existing
properties to the left.

(8) The examples in Figure 11 illustrate and describe how the subdivision context and
letrequirements|otrequirements in this subsection can be used to evaluate proposed

subdivision layouts. In these examples the proposed layouts are acceptable.

Page 54 of 269




Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Figure 11. Sample Subdivision Layouts (Acceptable)

. -
o,

i

1;’ : g [ ;__ ,,ﬂll_ JI fﬁT
CEByir & ole/ 0
G g © 0
Ey/a | Kk ,

L. i L. l..'

Beﬁ‘ieia "f;hls proposed layout keeps rear
ﬁdrﬁsﬂfacmg rear yards and also provides a
vegetated buffer along the new road to shield
it from the rear yards of the existing .
properties to the left. Preferred - This proposed laygut keeps the

rear yards of proposed lots facing the rear
yards of existing properties to the left and the
right. It also creates a front-yard-to-front-yard
relationship across the street for the new
homes in the subdivision.

§ 185-20. Lot consolidation.

Proposals to merge two or more lots, or lot line adjustments resulting in a net increase of 10,000
square feet or more to one lot, shall be reviewed by the Planning Board as if it were a
subdivision. As part of its review, the Planning Board shall consider the potential impact of the
proposed consolidation on neighborhood context and, in particular, the potential size of a
primary structure on the larger lot in relation to existing primary structures in the neighborhood.

Based on its review, the Planning Board may approve the consolidation or lot line adjustment,
Page 55 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

grant approval with specific conditions limiting the potential size of primary structures on the
modified lots, or disapprove the application.

Page 56 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code

Article V. (Reserved)

§ 185-21. threugh-§185-22-(Reserved)
§ 185-22. (Reserved)

Article VI. (Reserved)

§ 185-23. (Reserved)

REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Page 57 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article VII. B Residential District

§ 185-24. Purpose.

The B Residential District is established to provide and maintain land area for residential
neighborhoods of both single- and multifamily dwellings.

§ 185-25. Permitted uses.
The following uses are permitted:

A. Single-family dwelling, attached or detached.

B. Two-family dwelling.
C. Apartment house.
D

Senior housing, subject to approval by the Town Board and provisions of Article
XXXVIII, incentive zoning regulations.

D:E. Accessory structures and uses, subject to § 185-113.

§ 185-26. Special-use-permitSpecially permitted uses.

The following uses may be permitted pursuant to a special use permit issued by the Planning
Board:

A. Place of worship, subject to § 185-124.

B. School, subject to § 185-133-131.

§ 185-27. Lot and bulk requirements.

A. Lot size. Each single-family or two-family dwelling shall be located on a lot in
comphianee-withcompliancewith the following:

Page 58 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Lot and Bulk Requirements

16,000 square feet

Front Setback 50 feet
Rear Setback 10 feet

Height, building or structure 30 feet !

Page 59 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

S S > Except that chimneys
attached to such structure may extend five feet above the highest point of the structure.

B. No more than one residential building shall be erected on any one lot.

C. Apartment house regulations. Each apartment house shall comply with the following
additional regulations_and shall be subject to site plan review and approval in accordance
with Article XXIX of Town Code:

(1) Location. No apartment house shall be erected on any lot or premises less than one
acre in size.

(2) Lot area for dwelling unit. No apartment house may be erected which has less than
2,850 square feet of lot area for each dwelling unit in said apartment house.

(3) Number of dwelling units. No apartment house shall have more than eight dwelling
units.

(4) Dwelling unit size. No dwelling unit shall have less than 700 square feet of livable
floor space and not less than one separate bathroom. Any dwelling unit having more
than one bedroom shall have, in addition to the 700 square feet of livable floor space
specified herein, 150 square feet of livable floor space for each bedroom over one.

(5) Setbacks. Subject to the supplemental setback requirements of § 185-120, the
minimum setbacks for apartment houses and their garages shall be as follows:

a) Front setback: 50 feet.
b) Side setbacks: 15 feet.
¢) Rear setback: 1020 feet.

d) There shall be at least 40 feet between the nearest points of any two apartment
houses.

Page 60 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(6) Water, storm and sanitary sewers. No apartment house shall be erected unless

Page 61 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

serviced by public water, storm and sanitary sewers.

(7) Rental office. One office for rental or management purposes or for a caretaker unit
may be established as part of an apartment development, provided that it is limited
in size to one apartment unit or its equivalent and it is integrated into the development.

Page 62 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article VIII. RRAA Rural Residential
Distriet(RRAA)
District

§ 185-28. Purpose.

The purpose of the Rural Residential (RRAA) District is to support ongoing golf course uses
while creating medium to low-density development regulations, with emphasis on creating rural
conservation areas consistent with the Town of Pittsford’s Greenprint program and the goals of
the Town of Pittsford Comprehensive Plan.

§ 185-28.1. Definitions.
For purposes of this article, the following term shall have the meaning indicated:

PARCEL

Any tax parcel, contiguous tax parcels under single ownership or contiguous tax parcels
proposed to be developed as a unit. For the purpose of this section, each tax parcel shall be
identified by the Tax Map of the Town of Pittsford dated January 13,1986, and single ownership
shall be determined by deed filed as of January 13, 1986. It is the express intent of this article
that no parcel as defined herein may be changed or reconfigured after January 13, 1986, for the
purposes of applying or avoiding the restrictions of this article.

§ 185-29. Permitted uses.
The following uses are permitted:
A. Single-family dwelling, detached.

B. Single-family dwelling, attached: provided there are no more than four attached units per
building and no more than one dwelling unit per lot.

B-C. Agriculture.
A—Open-spaee:

D. Rural Conservation.

€-E.Accessory structures and uses, subject to § 185-113.

B-F.Accessory structures and/or facilities, owned and maintained by a homeowners'
association, and located on homeowners' association lands. Such amenities are subject to
review and approval by the Planning Board as part of a subdivision application process
or site plan application.

Page 63 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

G. Senior housing development, subject to approval by the Town Board and provisions of

Page 64 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article XXXVIII, incentive zoning regulations.

§ 185-281—Special permit30. Specially permitted uses.

The following uses may be permitted pursuant to a special permit issued by the Planning
Board:

A. Place of worship, subject to § 185-124.
B. Golf course.

C. School, subject to § 185-133131.

§485-3031 Development of less than 10 acres.

A parcel, as defined herein, consisting of less than 10 acres may be developed at a density of 1.0
residential dwelling units per acre. The following lot and bulk requirements shall apply:

+-0-residential-dwellingunits-per-aere—The followinsLot and Bulk Requirements-shal-apply:

MINIMUM
Area 32,000 square feet
Width | 125 feet
Front Setback 70 feet
Side Setback ‘ 20 feet
Rear Setback 10 feet
MAXIMUM
Lot Coverage 33%
Building Height | 40 feet !

A——NOTE: 1) Except that a-pareelas-defined-herein—whiehistessthan32.000-butlargerthan
16,000chimneys attached to a primary structure may be-developed-with-one-dweling unit:

Page 65 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

. . q | § ;
L%ee%mg%s&%%%ﬂﬁdﬂ#ﬁﬂpeﬂ%&u#&eeﬁ%m#ﬂ%@eﬂmﬁﬂ xtend up to five feet
abovc the &ggfega%e—mefe—th&ﬂ%%—,éhwhmt pom t of the &fea—ef—t-he—pafeel—er—pafee}q—eﬂ—

ateastructure.

§ 185-3132. Development of 10 acres or more.

A parcel consisting of 10 acres or more may be developed at a density of one residential
dwelling unit per 10 acres. In lieu of development at said density, such parcel may be
developed with a cluster development at a density of 1.0 residential dwelling units per acre,
provided that the following conditions and limitations are met:

A. Application of Town Law § 278. “Cluster Development, all development applications
shall be processed by the Planning Board pursuant to the provisions of § 278 of the Town
Law. As part of that process, the Planning Board shall, at a minimum, apply the
limitations and conditions of this article. Resulting lots of cluster development shall have
a maximum lot coverage of 40%.

B. Development site. Residential dwelling units shall be developed on a maximum of 35%

Page 66 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

of the base site area, as defined in § 175-5, within the parcel.

C. Site capacity. The maximum allowable dwelling units that may be built on said

development site shall be determined by the Site Capacity Calculation Worksheet, as
required by the Town's Subdivision Regulations-*.!"!

1 Editor's Note: Said worksheet is included as an attachment to Ch. 175, Subdivision etLandofLand.
D. Permanent rural conservation site. A minimum of 65% of the base site area within the
parcel shall be permanently designated as rural conservation and shall be so designated
on the Official Zoning Map.

(1) The selection of land within a parcel to be designated as rural conservation shall be
made by the applicant and subject to the approval of the Planning Board based on the
following criteria:

a) Preservation of existing farms or the ““Greenprint for Pittsford'sPittsford’s

"o

Future;",” mapped in 1996.
b) Appropriateness of land for agricultural use.

c) Appropriateness of land for recreational use, including but not limited to trails or
passive parklands.

d) Establishment or preservation of blueways and/or greenways.

&)e)  Preservation of environmentally sensitive lands.

e)f) Inappropriateness of land for development.

Hg)Location and availability of roads, utilities, and other services.

&)h)  Location of other rural conservation land.

ki) Location of historic or significant properties and/or other developments.
1)) Establishment of major roadway corridor buffer(s).

k) Establishment of landscape buffers between neighborhoods.

(2) Rural conservation lands may be held in private ownership or, if proposed for public
ownership, shall be dedicated to the Town of Pittsford.

(3) Land designated as rural conservation shall be limited to the following uses:

a) Agriculture, to include the growing of crops and accessory agricultural uses. No
livestock farming shall be permitted, but nothing contained herein shall prevent
the keeping of horses in privately owned rural conservation land in accordance
with § 185-116 of this chapter, including pasturage, but no structures other than
fences as permitted by this chapter may be erected thereon.

Page 67 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

b) Dedicated park and recreation area.

¢) Open space.

§ 185-3233. Rural conservation sites in private ownership.

A. Where rural conservation sites result from the application of RRAA zoning requirements,
or are otherwise existing, and which are not dedicated to the Town, they shall be
deseribedbedescribed in a conservation easement executed by the owner and delivered to
the Town. The Department of Public Works may not grant final approval to any
development plans until the conservation easement is received by the Town.

B. The conservation easement shall describe the rural conservation site in metes ané
beundsandbounds and shall include the statement: "This tract or parcel of land is a rural
conservation site subject to the provisions of the Town of Pittsford Zoning Law
substantially restricting its use."

C. The conservation easement shall be recorded by the Town in the Monroe County Clerk's
office.

Page 68 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article VIIIA. Rural Residential South
Pittsford ("(RRSP') District

§ 185-33.1. Establishment of district.

A. Purpose. The purpose of the Rural Residential South Pittsford (RRSP) Zone is to support
creative, low-impact development patterns and land uses that conserve resources and
lands identified in a public planning process for an update to the Comprehensive Plan
which focused on the area in Town south of the New York State Thruway. The district is
established to provide and maintain land area to promote and support ongoing
agricultural uses and activities that complement the rural character of the residential and
Mendon Ponds Park setting and encourage farms to remain in farm production, while
providing reasonable land area for neighborhoods of single-family dwellings at a medium
to low density on a range of lot sizes using conservation-sensitive design. The resources,
lands and values identified by the community as important to conserve include: rural
character, agriculture, highly visible open space lands, and visual and wildlife buffer area
adjacent to Mendon Ponds Park lands.

B. Pursuant to § 185-5, the Official Zoning Map of the Town of Pittsford is amended and
revised to establish and include the Rural Residential South Pittsford Zoning District,
as described in Exhibit A-*.1!

1 Editor's Note: Exhibit A is on file in the Town offices.
§ 185-33.2. Definitions.

COMMERCIAL STADRI L AL 1 for =H L 1 N 1t -
ahorses—thatmay s—effs o
1 | 1 1 + £ 1 M . d 1 3 £ = d 1 £ £
drawn-earriag very-typ usiness-and-a-bu = dingandridinglessens
COINTRYVY CTAODLE A a1l b 1 that il tho for- 1ot dol of ol M (S dofinits
d S tailby thatbuilds-entheta & = a-business{Seed
beal AY "‘\,ﬁ 1 Liad 4l 1 £ 1 11 | = 1 14 1 43 M 1] ” éﬂ@eézgﬁg:&ﬁé
W udes—the—sa sionaly—p agrieulturaland—regionally—p
hondarafiad ate sl £ 41 FaYaYa) fopt g ; Addis 1
duets stz £ quarefee dd 5
tlaot s o t] N0/ £+l toolag £1

Page 69 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

EARM ODPEDR ATION Thelond and form buildi immentand I hick tributa to tha
STEIF P

PARCEL

——Any tax parcel or contiguous tax parcels under single ownership. For the purpose of this
article, each tax parcel shall be identified by the Tax Map of the Town of Pittsford dated March
16, 2004, and single ownership shall be determined by deed filed as of March 16, 2004. No
parcel as defined herein may be changed or reconfigured after March 16, 2004, for the purposes
of applying or avoiding the restrictions of this article.

TACK SLIOPR A M £ 41 1 A M £ M laotoad d ath M 4 A

S usinessforthesalesandrepa G and animal-equip and-gear:
METERINADRYNY T INIC A }-/1 1 '% 1 " M SEEY =M 1 > 2l % N d; & £ %
hmited-to-short-term ineidental-to-the-hospital

T

§ 185-33.3. Permitted uses.

The following uses are permitted as principal uses within the RRSP District:
A. Single-family dwelling, detached.
B. Private stable; keeping of horses, subject to § 185-116.

C. Farm operations, provided that such operations are consistent with §§ 150 and 308 of the
Agriculture and Markets Law of the State of New York.

Page 70 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

D. Farm stand, subject to the provisions of § 185-114.
E. Rural Conservation.

E-F. Accessory structures and uses, subject to § 185-113.

§ 185-33.4. Special-use-permit-Specially permitted uses.

The following uses may be permitted on parcels of five acres or more pursuant to a speeial-
usespecialuse permit issued by the Planning Board:

A.

e

m o o =

Commercial stable.

Farm market, within an enclosed structure of no more than 1,200 square feet in size.

Country store.

Veterinary clinic.

Tack shop.

Place of worship, subject to § 185-124.

School, subject to § 185-133131.

Page 71 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

H. Gelfeourse.Golf course.

§ 185-33.5. Residential development of less than 20 acres.

B-A. Site capacity. A parcel of less than 20 acres may be developed at a maximum
density of one residential unit per five acres. A parcel which is less than five acres but
larger than 16,000 square feet may be developed with one dwelling unit as a preexisting
nonconforming lot. No more than one residential building shall be erected on any one lot.
Approval of subdivisions under § 278 of the Town Law for parcels of less than 20 acres

is-prohibitedisprohibited.

&B. ___ The following minimum standards shall apply to parcels of five acres or more:
(1) The minimum lot size shall be five acres.
(2) Front property line width shall be 200 feet as measured parallel with the highway.
(3) Front setbacks shall be 70 feet as measured from the front property line.
(4) Side setbacks shall be 20 feet from the property line.
(5) Rear setbacks shall be 50 feet from the rear property line.

(6) Minimum floor area shall be 1,800 square feet.

Page 72 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(7) The maximum permitted height of any structure is 40 feet, except that chimneys
attached to such structure may extend five feet above the highest point of the
structure.

H—Lot coverage. The-maximtmpermitted-hetght-otfany-straetareis40-feet-exeept-that

S S 5
hed-to-sueh-struetare-mav-extend ve—feet-above-the shec

C. Max 15%.

D. A parcel which is less than five acres but larger than 16,000 square feet may be
developedbedeveloped with one dwelling unit. The following minimum standards shall
apply:

(1) Each lot shall have a minimum lot width of 125 feet.
(2) Front setbacks shall be 70 feet.

(3) Side setbacks shall be 20 feet.

(4) Rear setbacks shall be 10 feet.

(5) Minimum floor space shall be 1,800 square feet.

§ 185-33.6. Residential development of 20 acres or more.

A parcel of 20 acres or more may be developed at a density of one residential unit per five acres.
Said development shall comply with the provisions of § 185-33.5B. In lieu of development at
said density, such parcel of 20 acres or greater may be developed at a-deasityadensity of up
to one residential unit per acre, provided that development meets the following conditions and
limitations:

A. Application of Town Law § 278. “Cluster Development,” all development applications
shall be processed by the Planning Board pursuant to the provisions of § 278 of the Town
Law. As part of that process, the Planning Board shall, at a minimum, apply the
limitations and conditions of this section.

B. Site capacity. The maximum allowable dwelling units that may be built on said
development site shall be determined by the site capacity calculation worksheet, as
required by the Town's Subdivision Regulations.

C. The development shall demonstrate significant application and incorporation of the
community values and guiding principles for community amenities for the area south of
the New York State Thruway as presented in the South of the Thruway Update to the
Town of Pittsford Comprehensive Plan. The guiding principles for community amenities
outlined below as specific criteria_are listed in order of priority, Preservation of

Page 73 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

agricultural lands being the highest priority:

(1) Preservation of agricultural lands and uses.

(2) Permanent protection of larger contiguous areas of significant open space resources
which are visible to the general public, including farmlands and natural wildlife
habitats and corridors.

Page 74 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(3) Buffering of new development from existing residences and public views.
(4) Restoration and adaptive reuse of mined landscapes.

(5) Provision of trail connections through the neighborhood.

(6) Provision of public sewers.

(7) Adaptive reuse of farm structures that preserves the agricultural setting and uses such
as the farmstead and barns and surrounding fields.

(8) Creative site planning that maintains residential and pastures and rural character (i.e.,
not "cookie-cutter" design), allowing for direct visual access to open land,
woodlots, horse farms, scenic views, etc.

(9) Design that respects and buffers Mendon Ponds Park.

(10) Protection of dark night skies through limited lighting and appropriate placement,
design and construction standards.

Page 75 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code

REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

D. Dimensional requirements for development on parcels of 20 acres or more:

| Amountof Inserted Cells
“Asideas ) Front
Permanent | Ysimum Lot Property | Front | Rear Side Impervious
Rural Conserva Dw.ellmg Width | Line Width | Setback-| Setback-| Setback-| Coverage
ResponsivaessResponsiveness to ﬁO"CO“S”VIaﬁ .I-Jm.tsypeF Minimu mnm Feet smum)in ; R
Criteria (asapplicable to respective on Area able Aerel Lot Size-| a¢ front Feet Feet Feet
project) InAeres | building
liney2
Minimum standard for all
. . 0.20 per |5.0 Acres| 200 ft N 70 ft 50 ft 20 ft
. ~ 0, D — = = = 0,
g;(;]eedczlsé Slikgprllaly conservation 0% Acre MIN MIN 200_ft MIN MIN MIN MIN 15% MAX
Project responds significantly o 0.5per | 1.0Acre | 125ft N 40 ft 40 ft 20 ft 0
to at least four (4) criteria 40% MIN Acre MIN MIN 125 AL MIN MIN MIN MIN el
Project responds significantly | 550, ppy | OT3PEC | NA | NA | NA NA. | NA | NA | 33%MAX
to at least six (6) criteria Acre
Project responds significantly N 1.0 per N
- . 65% MIN N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 40% MAX
to at least eight (8) criteria Acre

Page 76 of 269




NOTES: (1) Measured as amount of total project area set aside.
(2) Calculation to be based on dwelling units per developable acre.

(3) At front building line.

Page 55 of 193



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

E. Permanent rural conservation site. The open space within the parcel shall be permanently
designated as rural conservation and shall be so designated on the Official Zoning Map.

F. The selection of land within a parcel to be designated as rural conservation shall be made
by the applicant and subject to the approval of the Planning Board.

G. Rural conservation lands may be held in private ownership or, if proposed for public
ownership, shall be dedicated to the Town of Pittsford.

H. Land designated as rural conservation shall be limited to the following uses:
(1) Farming operations.
(2) Dedicated park and recreation area.

(3) Open space.

§ 185-33.7. Rural conservation sites in private ownership.

A. Where rural conservation sites result from the application of RRSP zoning requirements,
or are otherwise existing, and which are not dedicated to the Town, they shall be
deseribedbedescribed in a conservation easement executed by the owner and delivered to
the Town. The Department of Public Works may not grant final approval to any
development plans until the conservation easement is received by the Town.

B. The conservation easement shall describe the rural conservation site in metes ane
beundsandbounds and shall include the statement: "This tract or parcel of land is a rural
conservation site subject to the provisions of the Town of Pittsford Zoning Law
substantially restricting its use."

C. The conservation easement shall be recorded by the Town in the Monroe County Clerk's
office.

Page 56 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article IX. SRAA-Suburban Residential
Residential(SRAA) District

§ 185-34. PurposePermitted-uses:
- - — thod:

b v é;i lg]e I.&l“. 7 (ivve i g.
E—Open-space:

The purpose of the Suburban Residential (SRAA) District is to support ongoing educational uses
while creating medium-density development regulations that meeting the vision and goals of the
Town of Pittsford Comprehensive Plan.

§ 185-34.1-—Special-use permit-uses:

§185-35; Definitions.

For purposes of this article, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

PARCEL

——Any tax parcel, contiguous tax parcels under single ownership or contiguous tax parcels
proposed to be developed as a unit. For the purpose of this section, each tax parcel shall be
identified by the Tax Map of the Town of Pittsford dated January 13, 1986, and single ownership
shall be determined by deeds filed as of January 13, 1986. It is the express intent of this article
that no parcel as defined herein may be changed or reconfigured after January 13, 1986, for the
purposes of applying or avoiding the restrictions of this article.

§ 185-34.2. Permitted uses.

The following uses are permitted:

A. Single-family dwelling, detached

Page 57 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

B. Single-family dwelling, attached.

C. Agricultural uses.

D. Rural Conservation.

E.__Accessory structures and uses. subject to § 185-113.

185-35. Specially permitted uses.

The following uses may be permitted pursuant to a special use permit issued by the Planning
Board:

A. Place of worship, subject to § 185-124.

B. School, subject to § 185-131.

C. Golf Courses.

Page 58 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-36._ Maximum height restrictions.

The maximum permitted height of any structure is 30 feet, except that chimneys attached to such
structure may extend five feet above the highest point of the structure.

§ 185-37. Cluster development.

All residential development applications shall be processed by the Planning Board pursuant te—
thetothe provisions of § 278 of the Town Law. As part of that process, the Planning Board shall, at
aata minimum, apply the limitations and conditions of this article.

§ 185-3738. Density.

Each parcel may be developed at a density of 1.7 residential dwelling units per acre, subjeet-
tesubjectto the following limitations and conditions:

A. Development site. Residential dwelling units shall be developed on a maximum of 70%
oftheofthe land within the parcel.

B. Site capacity. The maximum allowable dwelling units that may be built on said
development site shall be determined by the site capacity calculation worksheet, as
required by the Town's Subdivision Regulations.

C. Permanent rural conservation site. A minimum of 30% of the land within the pareelbase
site area shall be permanently designated as rural conservation and shall be so designated
on the Official Zoning Map.

(1) The selection of land within a parcel to be designated as rural conservation shall be
made by the applicant and subject to the approval of the Planning Board based on the
following criteria:

a) Preservation of existing farms.

b) Appropriateness of land for agricultural use.

¢) Appropriateness of land for recreational use.

d) Preservation of environmentally sensitive lands.

e) Inappropriateness of land for development.

f) Location and availability of roads, utilities and other services.

g) Location of other rural conservation land.

h) Location of other development sites.

Page 59 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(2) Rural conservation lands may be held in private ownership or dedicated to the Town.
(3) Land designated as rural conservation shall be limited to the following uses:

a) Agriculture, to include the growing of crops, and accessory agricultural uses. No
livestock farming shall be permitted, but nothing contained herein shall prevent
the keeping of horses in privately owned rural conservation land in accordance
with § 185-116 as permitted by this chapter, including pasturage, but no
structures other than fences, as permitted by this chapter, may be erected thereon.

b) Dedicated park and recreation area.

¢) Open space.

§ 185-3839. Rural conservation sites in private ownership.

A. Where rural conservation sites result from the application or SRAA zoning requirements,
or are otherwise existing, and which are not dedicated to the Town, they shall be
deseribedbedescribed in a conservation easement executed by the owner and delivered to
the Town. The Department of Public Works may not grant final approval to any
development plans until the conservation easement is received by the Town.

A—The conservation easement shall describe the rural conservation site in metes ané

Page 60 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

B. beundsandbounds and shall include the statement: "This tract or parcel of land is a rural

conservation site subject tetheto the provisions of the Town of Pittsford Zoning Law
substantially restricting its use."

C. The conservation easement shall be recorded by the Town in the Monroe County Clerk's
office.

Page 61 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article IXA. Monroe Avenue Transitional
Zone (MATZ)

§ 185-39.1. Findings.

The Town Board finds that special action is required to address the unique problems and
concerns for this area, including but not limited to concerns regarding the existing ane-
potentialandpotential disinvestment in the residential properties located in this area, the high
volume of traffic experienced by properties adjacent to Monroe Avenue, the proposed
demolition of architecturally significant structures and recent zoning variances granted which
are not conducive to supporting the expressed community desire to maintain and protect the
residential quality of this area. In order to support and protect the health, safety and welfare et
theofthe residents of this corridor, and the Town as a whole, this article is adopted.

§ 185-39.2. Purpose.

The Monroe Avenue Transitional Zone (MATZ) is created as a separate zoning district to
encourage the continued residential uses associated with this district, to protect the established
residential character and inherent natural features of the district and to offer incentives for
property owners to maintain and improve their properties in a manner that protects the residential
quality of the district. This article is designed specifically to retain, strengthen and enhance the
attractive and harmonious residential neighborhood and natural communities existing within the
boundaries of the district.

§ 185-39.3. Distriet boundaries-and-Applicability.

—The MATZ
District generally extends northwesterly along Monroe Avenue from the bridge over the canal at
the village/Town boundary through French Road and the beginning, immediately past that
intersection, of a commercial zone.

§ 185-39.4. Definitions.

As used in this article, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

ARCIITECTLIR AL RESOIIRCES Anu gtrnatural or d £ mponentvisible from Ll
5 5 F 28]

Jhinly | = 3 PRI PES PRSP | 11 1o 11 4y 1 1] o v aity £
s th 5 s=—eentributes—to—th stk mpesit the

EXISTING USES
——Those residences and their accessory uses, accessory buildings and structures appurtenant
thereto, including additions, which were present on a site, existing and complete as ofdanaany 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

1, 2000.

Page 63 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

DEREAODRDMAMNCECTANDADRNG AL 1
J

andantentofthisarticleecanbedetermined—Th

measures—oftrathh £ Hen; by

M OONDEND T ANNDOCADE DITEDTD A L% Z2EeS 1 tat' M | M 4. )P N A
5 i3

smallesplants: B d-and-maint & turalstat to—p ¢ 1 &

§ 185-39.5. Permitted uses.

The following uses are permitted:

Page 64 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

A. Single-family dwelling, detached.

B. Accessory structures and uses, subject to § 185-113.

B-C. Home occupation, as an accessory use, a—professional-officein—asinglefamily
dwellingforprovided such use is in conformance with the sele-userequirements of the

resident-owner—The-offiee§ 185-113. However, such home occupation may include one
nonresident employee.

§ 185-39.6. Specially permitted uses.

A. Intent. In order to advance the purposes of this District, certain uses will be allowed
through a special use permit process by the Planning Board. In addition to the general
special use permit requirements of the Zoning Code, a special use permit is only
appropriate under this section for those circumstances where the applicant can
demonstrate that the residential character and scale of the district are conserved through
the proposed project. Special use permits may be granted only for the following uses:

(1) The adaptive reuse of a residential structure existing prior to January 1, 2000, for

small-scale offices for a business, professional organization, administrative sales,
insurance, the design and graphic arts, art studio, photo studio, licensed therapy or

similar organization having only limited contact with the general public.

(2) Multi-resident senior or retirement housing.

(3) Bed-and-breakfast overnight facilities.

(4) Place of worship, subject to § 185-124.

(5) School, subject to § 185-131.

(6) Single-family dwelling, attached.

B. Change of use. No specially permitted use may be changed to any other use without
review of such change by the Code Enforcement Officer. Such review shall determine
that the proposed new use would be allowed as a specially permitted use and to what
extent, if any, mitigation of the impact of such use would be necessary. The Code

Enforcement Officer may counsel with and receive guidance from the Planning Board to
make these determinations.

§ 185-39.7. Prohibited uses and limitations to permitted uses.
The following uses are prohibited or limited:
A. Any use not expressly permitted under § 185-39.5 or § 185-39.86 is prohibited.

B. Any new single-family dwelling or any demolition or alteration of an existing residential

Page 65 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

structure which will either continue as a single-family dwelling or which is subject to a
special use permit under § 185-39.86 shall be subject to the requirements of § 185-39.78.

Page 66 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

C. Retail sales other than by mail, general medical, dental, or related offices, or similar high-
volume traffic generators (i.e., more than 20 vehicle trips per day) and any other use not
expressly permitted herein.

§ 185-39.78. Additional requirements for MATZ properties.

The following provisions are applicable to all properties within the district, except for those
provisions which are identified as applicable only to those properties seeking special use permit
approval for a change in use. To the extent that any property does not comply with these
requirements as of the effective date of this article, it shall be considered a preexisting
nonconforming use or condition, subject to the limitations applicable to such uses or conditions
as are contained in this Code or otherwise under law.

A. Appearance of buildings and grounds. The architectural and general appearance of all
buildings and grounds shall be in keeping with the character of the neighborhood, and
such is not to be detrimental to the public health, safety and general welfare of the
community in which such use or uses are located. All extra building facade and site
modifications shall conform to the Monroe Avenue Design Guidelines, dated April 2,
2002, as amended and supplemented-*.!"!

1 Editor's Note: The Monroe Avenue Design Guidelines are on file in the Town Clerk's
office.

B. Lot and bulk requirements. The following shall be applicable to all lots and use
conversions/site modifications in the MATZ Zone:

(1) Lot size. Each shall be located on a lot in compliance with the following:
a) Each lot shall have a minimum area of 45,000 square feet.

b) Each lot shall have a minimum lot width and road frontage of 150 feet.

¢) No more than one primary structure shall be erected on any one lot.

(2) Required setbacks. Subject to the supplemental setback provisions of § 185-120, the
minimum required setbacks for each structure are:

a) Front setback: 70 feet.
Page 67 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

b) Rear setback: 35 feet.
c) Side setback: 15 feet.

(3) Height. The maximum permitted height of any structure or dwelling is 30 feet, except
that chimneys attached to such structures may extend five feet above the highest point
of the building.

(4) Lot coverage.

Page 68 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(5) Other performance standards.

(6) Wooded landscape buffer.

a)

b)

<)

With the exception of routine, seasonal maintenance or minimal clearing for
utility connections, no trees and/or shrubs shall be trimmed or removed from the
area within the wooded landscape buffer on any parcel- prior to the issuance of a
Landscape Alteration Permit (Article XXVII, § 185-183 et seq., Code of the
Town of Pittsford). The dimensions of the buffer are as follows:

[1] Front yard buffer: 35 feet. The construction of a walk and driveway
are-exeludedareexcluded.

[2] Side yard buffer: 15 feet.
[3] Rear yard buffer: 20 feet.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, the Planning Board may, during the site
plan review process, require the replacement, preservation and/or planting of
larger wooded landscape buffer areas to screen parking, refuse storage or similar
uses from abutting properties to advance the purposes of this Code.

Nothing contained herein shall affect the applicability of Article XXVII,
Landscape Alteration Permits (§ 185-183 et seq., Code of the Town of Pittsford),
as it relates generally to lots located within the MATZ Zone.

(7) Where Design Review and Historic Preservation Board review is required by this
chapter, such Board, in addition to any other general or specific standards it would
apply in any other application, shall consider and apply the following specific
considerations:

a)

b)

<)

d)

°)

The project shall respect the existing architectural and landscape design of the
existing residential setting, considering the overall context of the site and
building in terms of its history, surroundings and the aesthetic sense of its original
designer and builder.

Any improvements shall be completed in a residential style and shall be
compatible with the adjacent structures and neighborhood.

The project, including landscaping, shall feature elements of a residential scale,
proportion and landscaping.

For those projects seeking a special use permit, no conversions/site modifications
shall result in more than a total five-percent increase in nonresidential square
footage of any structure on any lot within the MATZ Zone.

New construction of a residence shall be designed to complement the
architectural and landscape design of the district.

Page 69 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

C. Parking. Eorthese-projeetsseekinga-speeialpermitallThe parking faeilitiesrequirements
of §185-96 in Article XVA shall: apply.

Page 70 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Page 71 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article X. Mixed Use - Commercial
(MU-C) District

§ 185-39:8—Specialuse permituses40. Purpose.

3 * 3 veby;-The purpose of the
Mixed Use - Commercial District is to support the vision and goals of the Town’s
Comprehensive Plan, Active Transportation Plan, and other supporting plans and studies.
Specifically, this District is intended to foster the redevelopment of the auto-oriented Monroe
Avenue corridor (from the Brighton Town line to French Road) into an attractive, multi- modal
commercial corridor that serves as the Town’s primary activity center. The Mixed Use -
Commercial District regulates the location, design and use of structures and land to emphasize
and redefine the streetscape in a manner reminiscent of the traditional character, walkability, and

human-scale environment exemplified within Pittsford Village center. Future investment in the
Mixed Use - Commercial District should:

A. Continue to develop the corridor as a destination center for the Town, providing a variety
of goods, services, and experiences for residents and the travelling public.

B. Incorporate residential living options to increase local housing choice for residents.

C. Support the mixing of uses, both vertically and horizontally, to maximize the use of land
and increase economic opportunity.

D. Enhance non-motorist access and connectivity both along the Monroe Avenue corridor as
well as within and between development sites, neighborhoods, the Auburn Trail, and the

Canal Path.

E. Capitalize on existing infrastructure and employ sustainable development practices that
mitigate potential negative environmental effects.

Page 72 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(3)—§ 185-124-0r § 185133

Page 73 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§-185-40. Permitted uses.

A. The following uses are permitted _in the MU-C District:

(1) Animal Care Facility, operated wholly within a building and not including

cremation, subject to § 185-105.

(2) Business or Professional Office, includes financial institution.

(3) Personal Service Establishment (see definitions §185-8).

(4) Recreation Facility, Indoor.

H(5) Retail Store.

Page 74 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(2)(6) Health Club.

(7) _Community, Cultural, or Instructional Facility.

(8) Park or Playground.

(9) Mix of Uses in a Single Building or Lot.

(10)Residential Dwelling Units, as part of a mixed use development in accordance with

§185-43 (H).

&3dD Accessory uses-and-structures and uses, customarily associated with
and incidental to a principal use.

§185-41—Speecialuse permit-§ 185-42, Specially permitted uses.

A. The following uses may be permitted in the MU-C District pursuant to a special use
permit issued by the Planning Board:

(1) Animal Care Facility, with outdoor animal area, subject to § 185-105.

(2) Day Care Center, Child or Adult, subject to § 185-106.

(3) Micro-brewery or Micro-distillery, subject to § 185-103.

(4) Boutique Hotel or Inn.

B(5) Restaurant or Bar, with inside and/or outside seating-, subject to § 185-107. (See
also restaurant definition in § 185-8).

i . ] . ] ) ] ﬁ I . ] E}ﬂq%]ﬁf%‘ﬂﬂif‘ef‘.

(6) Solar Energy System, as accessory use only.

§ 185-43.8185-42< Use limitations.

A. Appearance of buildings and grounds. The architectural and general appearance of all
commercial and residential buildings and grounds shall be in keeping with the character
of the neighborhood, and such is not to be detrimental to the public health, safety and

Page 75 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

general welfare of the community in which such use or uses are located. All extra
building facade and site modifications shall conform to the Monroe Avenue Design
Guidelines, dated April 2, 2002, as amended and supplemented.’

B. Noise. All speaker systems, public address systems or other equipment used as a source
for the production or reproduction of voice, music or other types of sound, whether for
advertisement, entertainment or other usage, must be confined to the interior of structures
or the outdoor sales/service area.

C. Storage of materials. No materials of any kind shall be stored outside of any structure
except_such storage of materials as is specifically provided in § 185-115.

Page 76 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Page 77 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

1. Editor's Note: The Monroe Avenue Design Guidelines are on file in the Town Clerk's office.

D. Hours of operation. No trucks shall operate on the premises between the hours of 8:00
p-m. and 6:00 a.m. local time. Trash removal and similar services shall be carried out
between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. local time.

E. Restriction on sales. Unless otherwise specifically authorized in this chapter, no sales
shall be conducted except from a permanent enclosed structure.

F. Unless otherwise specifically authorized in this chapter, each use shall be conducted from
a structure used or constructed as an established place of business for the conduct of such
use.

G. No use shall be permitted to be established or maintained which by reason of its nature or
manner of operation is, or may become, hazardous, obnoxious or offensive owing to
emission of odor, dust, smoke, cinders, gas fumes, noise vibration, refuse matter or-

be-deemed-an-integral part-of such-strueture-water-carried waste.

A mixed use building or

§185-44-Lotsize:
H. Eaehlot may include residential units provided the following conditions are met:
Each unit shall have-a-minimumarea-o£30;000n0t be less than 500 square feet and-atotswidth-of

Page 78 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code

REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Q) %%%for a one bedroom and 140 additional square feet for each

bedroom thereafter with not less than one separate bathroom.

(2) Where such building is within 100 feet of Monroe Avenue, all residential units shall

be located above the ground floor level.

(3) At least 20% of the development must be dedicated for commercial use.

(4) Minimum parking requirements for residential units shall be determined by §185-95

(F).

§ 185-44. Dimensional requirements.

MU-C DISTRICT. Dimensional Requirements
Minimum Lot Size
Mixed Use 30,000 sf + 4,000 sf/du’ over 5 units
Nonresidential Use 30,000 sf
Minimum Lot Width 150 ft
Front Setbacks
Minimum Front Setback 15 ft?
Maximum Front Setback 50 ft?
Minimum Side Setback 20 ft
Minimum Rear Setback 30 ft

NOTES: (1) The notation “sf/du” indicates additional square feet of lot area to be provided per dwelling

unit.

(2) As measured from the nearest edge of the sidewalk or public right-of-way, whichever is furthest

from the centerline of the roadway.

Page 79 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-45. Bulk requirements.

MU-C DISTRICT. Bulk Requirements
Minimum Building Height 30 ft
Maximum Building Height ' 45 ft
Maximum Building Size (buildings fronting Monroe Avenue only) 2
Building Footprint 15,000 sf per building section *
Building Width, front facade 100 ft
Minimum Open Space or Landscaped Area
Share of Lot Area 20%
NOTES: 1) Chimneys may extend five feet above top of structure.

2) Buildings existing at the time of enactment of this section shall be exempt.

3) An individual building section shall be considered a structure built to stand alone and/or connect
to adjacent buildings such as a wing or addition adjoined via a fire wall, breezeway, or other
structural element providing for the articulation of the principal structure(s) to appear as a
smaller scale.

§ 185-46. Performance standards.

A. Parking. All parking areas shall be in accordance with the provisions of Article XVA
(Off-Street Parking Regulations) of this Chapter.

B. Lighting. All exterior lighting shall be in accordance with the provisions of Article XV
(Exterior Lighting Regulations) of this Chapter.

C. Signs. All signs shall be in accordance with the provisions of Article XVIII (Sign
Regulations) of this Chapter.

Page 80 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article XA. €-2General Commercial (GC)
District

§ 185-46.1. Purpose.

A——The intended-purpose of the €-2General Commercial District is to accommeodatesmatl—teo
m%%s%prov1dc for ﬂcx1b1hty of commermal#retaﬂ and weeMsm g

commercml#ret&ﬂ and 1ndustrlal uses W}thmmay bc pcrmlttcd in the G—2Gcncral Commer01al
District:

the-C-2, effective ]andscapmg, screening, and site design elements will be requlred to mitigate

potentially negative impacts to the desired character of the streetscape and nearby
neighborhoods. Review of future development in the General Commercial District;- should also
consider multi-modal connectivity through elements such as deser'rbed—iﬂ—E*h—ibit—A—.sparking lot
location and design, incorporation of pedestrian-scale design elements, multi-use trail
connections, and pedestrian-friendly building design and scale.

§ 185-46.2. Permitted uses.
A-—The permittedfollowing uses en-pareels-up-to-twe-acres-in-size-are limited-to:
A. Residentialusespermitted in the BResidential GC District;-and-subjeet-to-the lotand bulle

(1) Animal Care Facility, operated wholly within a building and not including
cremation, subject to § 185-105.

H(2) Business or Professional Office, includes financial institution.

(3) Personal Service Establishment (see definitions §185-8).

(4) Recreation Facility, Indoor.

Page 81 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(5) Retail Store.

6) Health Club.

(7) _Community, Cultural, or Instructional Facility.

(8) Vehicle Sales, Service, or Repair Shop, subject to § 185-104.

(9) Park or Playground.

2)—Accessory structures and uses, subjeetto-§+85-13-

2)(10) Mixed-customarily associated with and incidental to a principal use-

§ 185-46

3. uses.

A. The following use may be permitted in the GC District pursuant to a special use permit

Page 82 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

issued by the Planning Board:

(1) Animal Care Facility, with outdoor animal area, subject to § 185-105.

(2) Boutique Hotel or Inn.

(3) Day Care Center, Child or Adult, subject to § 185-106.

(4) Micro-brewery or Micro-distillery, subject to § 185-103.

(5) Restaurant or Bar, with inside and/or outside seating-, subject to § 185-107. (See
also restaurant definition in § 185-8).

(6) Solar Energy System, as accessory use only.

§ 185-46.4. Use limitations.

A.

Appearance of buildings and grounds. The architectural and general appearance of all
commercial buildings and grounds shall be in keeping with the character of the
neighborhood, and shall not be detrimental to the public health, safety and general
welfare of the community in which such buildings and grounds are located.

Page 83 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

2 Editor's Note: Exhibit-Ads-on-file in-the Town-offices.

B. Noise. All speaker systems, public address systems or other equipment used as a source
for the production or reproduction of voice, music or other types of sound, whether for
advertisement, entertainment or other usage, must be confined to the interior of structures
or the outdoor sales/service area.

C. Storage of materials. No materials of any kind shall be stored outside of any structure,
except storage of materials as is specifically allowed by § 185-115.

D. Hours of operation. No trucks shall operate on the premises between the hours of 8:00
p-m. and 6:00 a.m. local time. Trash removal and similar services shall be carried out
between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. local time.

E. All uses shall be conducted from a permanent enclosed structure.

F. No use shall be conducted or maintained which by reason of its nature or manner of
operation is hazardous, obnoxious or offensive owing to emission of odor, dust, smoke,
cinders, gas fumes, noise, vibration, refuse matter or water-carried waste.

§ 185-46.5. Nonresidential site- developmentDimensional requirements.
e

GC DISTRICT. Dimensional Requirements
Minimum Lot Size 25,000 sf
Minimum Lot Width 80 ft
Minimum Front Setback 30 ft
Minimum Side Setback 20 ft

Page 84 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

| Minimum Rear Setback 30 ft

§ 185-46.6. Bulk requirements.

GC DISTRICT. Bulk Requirements
Maximum Building Height 45 ft

Maximum Lot Coverage

Gross Impervious Surface 75%

Minimum Open Space or Landscaped Area
Share of Lot Area 20%

§ 185-46.7. Performance standards.

A. Visual buffering.

(1) Landscaped front lawns shall be provided from the edge of road pavement or curbing
to the edge of the building front.

(2) Landscaped visual buffering of main site buildings, parking areas, walkways,
internal roads and appurtenant structures is required and is subject to Planning Board
approval prior to the issuance of a permit of occupancy or operation.

(3) HVAC units and dumpsters shall be kept to the rear of the front line of the main
structure and shall be vegetatively or otherwise unobtrusively screened from view
and are subject to Planning Board approval prior to the issuance of a permit of
occupancy or operation.

B. Accessory structures. Accessory structures shall be constructed to the rear of the front
line of the primary structure.

C. Loading docks. All loading docks shall be located to the rear of the front line of the

Page 85 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

primary structure. Loading dock(s) shall not be placed in a manner that impedes traffic.

D. Parking. All parking areas shall be in accordance with the provisions of Article XVA
(Off-Street Parking Regulations) of this Chapter.

(—H—nghtmg All prenmses exterior llghtmg shall be prewded—m accordance Wlth adeqa—a%e

E. Parkingshall-beplaced-to-the side-andrearprovisions of Article XV (Exterior Lighting
Regulations) of the-frontline-of the-primary-strueturethis Chapter
this Chapter.

F. Signs. All signs shall be in accordance with the provisions of Article XVIII (Sign
Regulations) of this Chapter.

Page 86 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article XI. Light Industrial (LI) District

§ 185-47. Establishment-of districtPurpose.

The intended-purpose of the Licht-IndustrialLl District is to aceommeodate Hehtindustrial-and-
speeifie-business-uses;and-to-regulate-such-support the development and-uses-to-minimize-potential-
adverse-effects-on-othernearbyuses; reduce-potentialof existing industrial land use eonflicts;-and-

strengthen-the-areas into vibrant, stable economic witality-and-attractiveness-of centers. While
traditional industrial operations may continue to serve the Industrial DistrietItisnotPittsford

economy, the intentviability of large-scale manufacturing operations may be affected by current
market shifts and advances in technology. This District is intended to support the Fownto-allow
vision and recommendations of the eenversion-or-expanston-ef- Town’s Comprehensive Plan by

fostering a limited commercial/retail-uses-within-the LightIndustriallight-industrial mixed use
environment that increases local investment and employment opportunities. Future development in

the LI District exeeptas-provided-herein-should seek to achieve

As-used-in-this-artiele; the following terms-shall-have-the-meanings-indieatedobjectives:

LICGHT INDMICTRIAL 1IQD

A. Contribute to the local economy by increasing the tax base and local job opportunities, as
well as providing for the production and availability of goods, services, and utilities to the

region.

B. Foster an innovative, viable center for industry within the Town, allowing for specific
commercial uses, including uses that serve or support office and industrial operations.

C. Continue to support light industrial development provided that such uses operate in a
manner that protects and maintains the health, safety, welfare, and quality of life of
nearby neighborhoods.

D. Promote high-quality site design and landscaping that contribute to the aesthetic appeal of
the streetscape and minimize potential negative impacts of industrial and commercial
operations on adjacent land uses.

185-48. (Reserv

§ 185-49. Permitted uses. [Amended 2-19-2013 by L.L. No. 1-2013; 4-19-2017 by L.L.
B-A. The following uses are permitted_in the LI District:

(1) Animal Care Facility, operated wholly within a building and not including
Page 87 of 269




Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

cremation, subject to § 185-105.

(2) Ammunition/Firearms Sales.

(3) Animal Care Facility, operated wholly within a building, and not including
cremation

H(4) Business or Professional Office.

Page 88 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(5) Indoor active recreation.

(6) Self-Storage Facility.

(7) Manufacturing, Processing, or Fabrication of Goods.

23(8) Research and Development_or Laboratory.

(9) Packaging or Assembly of Products.

(10) Printing or Publishing Operations.

“@dan Warehouse/distribution, Distribution, or Storage Facility.

&)(12) Wholesale Operations.

©)(13) Adult-entertainmentVehicle Sales, Service, or Repair Shop. subject to the-
regrtrertentrot§ 185-53 3 -ofthisCode [ 04,
§ 185-50. Special-use-permit-Specially permitted uses.

A. The following uses may be permitted in the LI District pursuant to a special use permit issued
by the Planning Board:

(1) Animal Care Facility, with outdoor animal area, subject to § 185-105.

(2) Micro-brewery or Micro-distillery, subject to § 185-103.

(3) Energy Storage Facility.

(4) Solar Energy System, as accessory use only.

B. An otherwise permitted light industrial use may include input, output, operations and/or
storage outside of an enclosed building, pursuant to a special use permit issued by the
Planning Board.

C. Small-scale retail sales ancillary to the primary light industrial use. For the purposes of this
section, "small-scale" is defined as less than 10% of the floor area of the principal use.

D. Any permitted use where the handling or storage of hazardous material is ancillary to the
core business function.

Page 89 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

E. Recreational vehicle storage. Recreational vehicles, which shall include any vehicle used for
recreational purposes, including boats, boat trailers, motor homes, camper trailers, pickup
campers, pop-up trailers, all-terrain vehicles, jet skis, motorcycles, and snowmobiles, may
be stored on parcels that meet the following requirements:

(1) The parcel shall contain a minimum of 10 acres.

(2) The storage area shall be set back a minimum of 500 feet from any and all road rights-

Page 90 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

of-way.

(3) The storage area shall be reasonably screened from view with fencing and/or vegetative
material to reduce the visual impact of the storage to adjacent parcels and road rights-
of-way.

Page 91 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

A. Environmental protection. No use shall be permitted to be established or maintained
which by reason of its nature or manner of operation is or may become hazardous,
obnoxious or offensive owing to the emission of odor, dust, smoke, cinders, gas, fumes,
noise, vibration, refuse matter or waterborne waste.

B. Material handling. All material handling owing to processing, manufacturing,
remanufacturing, repair, salvaging, storage or other similar activities will be fully
contained within enclosed buildings. Transfer of materials between buildings and storage
facilities is permitted during normal business hours, provided that said materials are
moved directly from one enclosed building to another.

§ 185-52. Minimum-dimensionalsiteDimensional requirements.

LI DISTRICT. Dimensional Requirements
Minimum Lot Size 30,000 sf
Minimum Lot Width 100 ft
Minimum Front Setback 30 ft
Minimum Side Setback 25 ft
Minimum Rear Setback 25 ft /50 ft !

NOTE: 1) The smaller requirement shall apply to lots adjacent to the railroad.

§ 185-53. Bulk requirements.

LI DISTRICT. Bulk Requirements

Maximum Building Height | 40 ft !
Maximum Lot Coverage

Gross Impervious Surfacc| 75%
Minimum Open Space or Landscaped Area
Share of Lot Area| 25%

NOTE: (1) Chimneys may extend 10 feet above %he—lmghest—pem{m of the-structure.

Page 92 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§185-53~
§ 185-53.1. Performance standards.{Amended419-2017 by Lt No1-2017

A. Visual buffering.

Page 93 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(1) Landscaped visual buffering of principal structures, accessory structures, loading
docks, parking areas, walkways, internal roads and appurtenant structures is
required.

H(2) Landscaped front lawns shall be provided from the edge of the road pavement or
curbing to the edge of the building front, but cars for sale may be displayed on hard-
surface lots between the road and the building front.

(3) HVAC units and dumpsters shall be kept to the rear of the front line of the principal
structure and shall be vegetatively or otherwise unobtrusively screened from view.

B. Accessory structures.

(1) All accessory structures shall be not less than 30 feet from any other structure on the
premises.

(2) Accessory structures shall be constructed to the rear of the front fagade line of the
principal structure.

C. Loading docks. All loading docks shall be located to the rear of the front line of the
principal structure. Loading dock(s) shall not be placed in a manner that impedes traffic.

D. Parking. All parking areas shall be in accordance with the provisions of Article XVA
(Off-Street Parking Regulations) of this Chapter.




Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Page 95 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(NN o din o v dan frongnaicainn ofthaco ody ]t thae ey 1 A 4
GG HSCSCHRCHoy—of >
talanh tallit 2o PN 1 e M




Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

E. Lighting. All exterior lighting shall be in accordance with the provisions of Article XV

(Exterior Lighting Regulations) of this Chapter.

F. Signs. All signs shall be in accordance with the provisions of Article X VIII (Sign
Regulations) of this Chapter.

Page 97 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article XII. High Technology and Office
Park (HTOP) District

§ 185-54. Purpose.

Based on the goals and objectives identified in the Town’s adopted plans and studies, the
purpose of the High Technology and Office Park District is intended-to-provide-to achieve a
favorable balance of office, medical, and supporting limited nonresidential uses. The regulations_
herein are designed to limit and restrict permitted and special use permit uses to those that will
be compatible and have a minimal adverse effect upon residential and commercial areas in close
proximity and that have a high job-development potential. Development within the HTOP
District should include internal vehicular and pedestrian connections between buildings, parking
lots, and open spaces to support safe, efficient navigation by employees and visitors traveling to
and throughout the site.

§ 185-55. Permitted uses.

A. The following uses are permitted in thisthe HTOP District:

effices-Business or Professional Office.

(2) Office or Clinic, Administrative or Medical.

§ 185-56. Speecial-use permit-Specially permitted uses.

A. The following uses may be permitted in the HTOP District pursuant to a special use
permit by the Planning Board:

(1) Day Care Center, Occupying no more than 10,000 square feet of interior building

Space.

The following limitations and conditions apply to and must be complied with by all permitted
and special use permit uses:

A. Storage of materials. No materials of any kind shall be stored outside of any structure
except such storage of materials as is specifically provided in § 185-115.

B. Loading and unloading operations shall take place entirely within the site, shall be so

Page 98 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

located as not to interfere with pedestrian routes and shall be so designed or screened as
not to be visible from any point less than eight feet above grade within any residential-

Page 99 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

district.

C. No permitted or special use permit use shall be conducted in any manner which would
render it noxious or offensive by reason of dust, refuse matter, odor, smoke, gas, fumes,
noise, vibration or glare.

D. Unless a perimeter landscaped open space is provided, a durable and well-maintained
solid wall, fence, compact evergreen hedge or other screening device, not less than four
feet nor more than six feet in height, shall be provided along every lot line shared in
common by a parking lot and a lot devoted to any residential use.

E. The Code Enforcement Officer shall be authorized to revoke a parking lot approval or the
principal use of a parcel in the event of the failure to comply with the provisions of this
district.

§ 185-58. LotBulk and bulkdimensional requirements.

HTOP DISTRICT. Dimensional Requirements

Minimum Lot Size 30,000 sf
Minimum Lot Width 150 ft
Minimum Front Setback 70 ft*
Minimum Side Setback 25 ft!
Minimum Rear Setback 50 ft!

NOTE: (1) Or 100 feet from any residential district boundary.

HTOP DISTRICT. Bulk Requirements

Maximum Building Height 40 ft!
Maximum Lot Coverage
Gross Impervious Surface 50%
Minimum Open Space or Landscaped Area
Share of Lot Area | 50%

NOTE: (1) Chimneys may extend 10 feet above t-he—h—bghe&t—pemt@g of-the structure.

Page 100 of



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

e d in-paved-areas shall be previdedin accordance with
&éequaffe—tfee—p&s—te—peﬁmt—pfeper—\w{efmg the provisions of Article XVA (Off-Street Parking

Page 101 of



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XIII. (Reserved)

§ 185-60. through § 185-65. (Reserved)

Page 102 of



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XIV. Planned Unit Development

District

§ 185-66. Intent and objectives.

A.

B.

Intent.

(1) It is the intent of this Planned Unit Development (PUD) District to provide
flexible land use and design regulations through the use of performance criteria
so that small- to large-scale neighborhoods or portions thereof may be developed
within the Town that incorporate a variety of residential and nonresidential uses,
and contain individual building sites and common property which are planned
and developed as a unit. Such a planned unit is to be designed and organized so
as to be capable of satisfactory use and operation as a separate entity without
necessarily needing the participation of other building sites or other common
property in order to function as a neighborhood. This article specifically
encourages innovations in development and more efficient use of land in such
developments.

(2) This article recognizes that while the standard zoning function (use and bulk) and
the subdivision function (platting and design) are appropriate for the regulation
of land use in areas or neighborhoods that are already substantially developed,
these controls represent a type of pre-regulation, regulatory rigidity and
uniformity which may be inimical to the techniques of land development
contained in the planned unit development concept. Further, this article
recognizes that a rigid set of space requirements along with bulk and use
specifications would frustrate the application of this concept. Thus, where PUD
techniques are deemed appropriate through the rezoning of land to a planned unit
development district by the Town Board, the set of use and dimensional
specifications elsewhere in this chapter are herein replaced by an approval
process in which an approved plan becomes the basis for continuing land use
controls.

Objectives. In order to carry out the intent of this article, a PUD shall achieve
the following objectives:

(1) A greater choice in the types of environment, occupancy tenure (e.g.,
cooperatives, individual ownership, leasing), types of housing, lot sizes and
community facilities available to existing and potential Town residents at all
economic levels.

(2) More usable open space and recreation areas.

(3) The preservation of trees, outstanding natural topography and geologic features
and prevention of soil erosion.

(4) A creative use of land and related physical development which allows an

Page 103 of



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

orderly transition of land from rural to urban uses.

(5) An efficient use of land resulting in smaller networks of utilities and streets and
thereby lower costs.

(6) A development pattern in harmony with the objectives of the Comprehensive Plan.
(7) A more desirable environment than would be possible through the strict
application of other articles of this chapter.

§ 185-67. Minimum area.

Under normal circumstances, the minimum area requirements to qualify for a planned unit
development district shall be 40 contiguous acres of land. Where the applicant can demonstrate
that the characteristics of the applicant's holdings will meet the objectives of this article, the Town
Board may consider projects with less acreage.

§ 185-68. Single ownership.

The tract of land for a project may be owned, issued or controlled either by a single person or
corporation or by a group of individuals or corporations. An application must be filed by the owner
or jointly by owners of all property included in a project. In the case of multiple ownership, the
approved plan shall be binding on all owners.

§ 185-69. Location.

The PUD District shall be applicable to any area of the Town where the applicant can demonstrate
that the characteristics of the applicant's holdings will meet the objectives of this article.

§ 185-70. Permitted uses.

All uses within an area designated as a PUD district are determined by the provisions of this section
and the approval of the project concerned.

A. Residential uses. In developing a balanced community, the use of a variety of housing
types and densities shall be deemed most in keeping with this article.

B. Commercial, service and other nonresidential uses that are properly scaled to the area
of the application. Consideration shall be given to the project as it exists in its larger
setting in determining the appropriateness of such uses.

C. Customary accessory or associated uses. Accessory uses such as private groups,
storage spaces, recreational and community activities, places of worship and schools
shall also be permitted as appropriate to the PUD.

§ 185-71. Intensity of land use.

Because land is used more efficiently in a PUD, improved environmental quality can often be
produced with a greater land use intensity and/or number of dwelling units per gross building area
than usually permitted in traditionally zoned districts. The Town Board shall determine in

Page 104 of



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

each case the appropriate land use intensity and/or dwelling unit density for individual projects.
The determination of land use intensity and/or dwelling unit densities shall be completely
documented, including all facts, opinions and judgments justifying the selection of the intensity
and/or density.

§ 185-72. Common property.

Common property in a PUD is a parcel or parcels of land, together with the improvements thereon,
the use and enjoyment of which is shared by the owners and occupants of the individual building
sites. When common property exists, the ownership of such common property may be either public
or private. When common property exists in private ownership, satisfactory arrangements must be
made for the improvement, operation and maintenance of such common property and facilities,
including private streets, drives, service and parking areas and recreational and open space areas.

§ 185-73. Signs, awnings and canopies.

The Town Board shall establish the requirements for signs, awnings and canopies for each area
designated as a PUD district, utilizing, as a guide, the provisions of Article XVIII of this chapter.

§ 185-74. Maximum height limitations.

The Town Board shall establish maximum height limitations, so as to be reasonable and
appropriate given the location of the development, the terrain involved and the nature of the
development.

§ 185-75. Application procedure; zoning approval process.

Whenever any planned unit development is proposed, before any permit for the erection of a
permanent building in such planned unit development shall be granted, and before any subdivision
plat of any part thereof may be filed in the office of the Monroe County Clerk, the applicant shall
apply for and secure approval of such planned unit development by the Town Board, in accordance
with the following procedures.

A. Application requirements.

(1) The applicant shall submit a sketch plan of the application to the Town Board.
The sketch plan shall be approximately to scale, though it need not be to the
precision of a finished engineering drawing, and shall clearly show the following
information:

(a) The location of the various uses and their areas in acres.

(b) The general outlines of the interior roadway system and all existing rights-
of-way and easements, whether public or private.

(¢) Delineation of the various areas indicating for each such area its general
extent, size and composition in terms of type of use; in the case of
nonresidential uses, the nature of the proposed use and its intensity; in the
case of residential use, total number of dwelling units, approximate

Page 105 of



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

percentage allocation by dwelling unit type (i.e., single-family detached,
duplex, townhouse, apartments); and general description of the intended
market structure for each such area.

(d) The interior open space system.
(e) The overall drainage system.

(f) If grades exceed 3% or portions of the site have a moderate to high
susceptibility to erosion, flooding and/or ponding, a topographic map
showing contour intervals of not more than five feet of elevation, along with
an overlay outlining the above susceptible soil areas, if any.

(g) Principal ties to the community at large with respect to transportation; water
supply and sewage disposal.

(h) General description of the provision of other community facilities, such as
schools, fire protection services and cultural facilities, if any, and some
indication of how these needs are proposed to be accommodated.

(i) A location map showing uses and ownership of abutting lands.

(2) In addition, the following documentation shall accompany the sketch plan:

(a) Evidence of how the applicant's particular mix of land uses meets existing
community demands to include area-wide as well as local considerations.

(b) Evidence that the application is compatible with the goals of local and area-
wide Comprehensive Plans, if any.

(c) A general statement as to how common open space is to be owned and
maintained.

(d) If the development is to be staged, a general indication of how the staging
is to proceed. Whether or not the development is to be staged, the sketch
plan shall show the intended total project.

(e) Evidence of the applicant's competence to carry out the plan and the
applicant's awareness of the scope of the application, both physical and
financial.

B. Advisory referral to the Planning Board.

(1) The Town Board shall submit the application to the Planning Board for its
nonbinding advisory report to the Town Board. The review at this stage is
intended to obtain the input of the Planning Board on the application. It is not
intended to serve as a site plan or subdivision review, which would only occur
after a decision by the Town Board on the PUD request.

(2) The Planning Board will schedule a public workshop on the application, which
may be conducted as part of its regularly scheduled meeting. The intent of the
workshop is to share information between the applicant, the Planning Board

Page 106 of



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

and interested members of the public. The workshop will not supplant the formal
hearing which will be conducted by the Town Board later in the review process.

(3) Within 45 days of receipt of the application from the Town Board, the Planning
Board will prepare an advisory report to the applicant and the Town Board. The
Planning Board's report will describe the beneficial aspects of the proposal and
make recommendations for the amelioration of any adverse aspects of the
proposal. The Planning Board's report and the application will then be transferred
back to the Town Board for its final decision on the application.

C. Public hearing and action on application.

(1) Upon receipt of the advisory report from the Planning Board, the Town Board
shall set a date for and conduct a public hearing, in accordance with the
provisions of applicable law, for the purpose of considering establishing a PUD
district for the applicant's plan.

(2) The Town Board shall refer the application to the Monroe County Planning
Department for its analysis and recommendations pursuant to the provisions of
§ 239-m of the General Municipal Law, and the Town Board shall also refer the
application to the Commissioner of Public Works for his review.

(3) The Commissioner of Public Works shall submit a report to the Town Board
within 30 days of the referral, commenting on and making appropriate
recommendations as to the feasibility and adequacy of the design elements of the
application.

(4) Within 45 days after the public hearing, the Town Board shall render its decision
on the application. If the Town Board grants the PUD districting, the Zoning Map
shall be so noted. The Town Board mayj, if it feels it necessary in order to fully
protect the public health, safety and welfare of the community, attach to its
zoning resolution any additional conditions or requirements for the applicant to
meet. Such requirements may include, but are not confined to, visual and
acoustical screening; land use mixes; order of construction and/or occupancy;
circulation systems, both vehicular and pedestrian; necessity of sites within the
area for necessary public services such as schools, firehouses and libraries;
protection of natural and/or historic sites; and other such physical or social
demands.

§ 185-76. Site plan approval process.

Site plan approval for all planned unit developments shall be obtained in accordance with Article
XXIX, Site Plan Approval.

§ 185-77. Financial security.

No building permits shall be issued for construction within a PUD district until improvements are
installed or a performance bond or letter of credit posted in accordance with the same procedures
as provided for in § 277 of the Town Law relating to subdivisions. Other such requirements may

Page 107 of



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

also be established from time to time by the Town Board.

§ 185-78. (Reserved)

Page 108 of



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XIVA. Local Waterfront Overlay
District

§ 185-78.1. Establishment of district.

A. The purpose of the Local Waterfront Overlay District (LWOD) is to provide special
controls to guide land use and development within the waterfront areas of the Town.
The regulations are designed to protect the sensitive waterfront areas and to maintain
consistent land use with the Town and Village of Pittsford's Local Waterfront
Revitalization Program (LWRP). The LWOD regulations are not intended to be
substituted for other zoning district provisions. The overlay district is superimposed
on the principal zoning district provisions and should be considered as additional
requirements to be met in establishing a use within the respective principal zoning
district.

B. Pursuant to § 185-5, the Official Zoning Map is amended and revised to establish and
include the Local Waterfront Overlay District.

§ 185-78.2. Permitted uses.

A. Those uses otherwise permitted in the underlying districts shall be permitted in
accordance with the regulations applicable thereto.

B. In addition to any other provisions of this chapter applying to them, lots, lands and
structures in the Local Waterfront Overlay District shall be subject to the policy
standards, conditions and design guidelines contained in the Town and Village of
Pittsford's Local Waterfront Revitalization Program as such document may be
amended from time to time, as well as the provisions of this article.

§ 185-78.3. Definitions.
As used in this article, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated: ACTIONS —

A. Either Type I or unlisted actions as defined in the State Environmental Quality
Review Act (SEQRA) regulations (6 NYCRR Part 617) which are undertaken by
an agency and which may include:

(1) Projects or physical activities, such as construction or other activities that
may affect the environment by changing the use, appearance or condition
of any natural resource or structure, that:

(a) Are directly undertaken by an agency; or
(b) Involve funding by an agency; or

(¢) Require one or more new or modified approvals from an agency or
agencies;

Page 109 of



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(2) Agency, planning and policy-making activities that may affect the
environment and commit the agency to a definite course of future
decisions;

(3) Adoption of agency rules, regulations and procedures, including local
laws, codes, ordinances, executive orders and resolutions, that may affect
the environment;

(4) Any proposed action within the Town's jurisdiction relative to the
Local Waterfront Revitalization Program - Town and Village of Pittsford
boundary that requires site plan review and approval by the Town of
Pittsford Planning Board; or

(5) Any combination of the above.

B. This article does not apply to Type II, excluded or exempt actions as
defined in the State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA) regulations
(6 NYCRR Part 617).

AGENCY — Any board, agency, department, office, other body, or officer of the Town.

COASTAL AREA — That portion of the New York State coastal waters and adjacent shorelands
as defined in Article 42 of the Executive Law of the State of New York which is located within the
boundaries of the Town, as shown on the Coastal Area Map on file in the office of the New York
State Secretary of State and as delineated in the Local Waterfront Revitalization Program - Town
and Village of Pittsford.

COASTAL ASSESSMENT FORM — The form used by an agency to assist it in determining the
consistency of an action within the limits of the Local Waterfront Revitalization Program - Town
and Village of Pittsford.

CONSISTENT — That an action will fully comply with the policy standards and conditions
contained in Section III of the LWRP and, whenever practicable, advance one or more of them and
will consider the design guidelines contained in Section V of the LWRP.

DIRECT ACTIONS — Actions planned and proposed for implementation by an agency, such as
but not limited to a capital project, rule-making, procedure-making and policy-making.

LOCAL WATERFRONT REVITALIZATION PROGRAM (LWRP) — The Local
Waterfront

Revitalization Program - Town and Village of Pittsford, approved by the New York State Secretary
of State pursuant to the Waterfront Revitalization of Coastal Areas and Inland Waterways Act
(Executive Law, Article 42), a copy of which is on file in the office of the Town Clerk.

PLANNING BOARD — The Planning Board of the Town of Pittsford.
§ 185-78.4. Authority of Planning Board.

The Planning Board is hereby authorized to review and make all determinations regarding the
consistency of proposed actions with the Local Waterfront Revitalization Program - Town and
Village of Pittsford policy standards and conditions and the LWRP design guidelines.

Page 110 of



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-78.5. Review of actions.

A.  Whenever a proposed action is located, in whole or in part, within the LWOD, an
agency shall, prior to approving, funding or undertaking the action, refer to and
receive a determination from the Planning Board that the action is consistent with the
LWRP policy standards and conditions set forth in Subsection J herein (unless a
determination from the Planning Board is not forthcoming as stipulated in Subsection
G).

B. Whenever an agency receives an application for approval or funding of an action or
as early as possible in the agency's formulation of a direct action to be located in whole
or in part in the LWOD, the applicant or, in the case of a direct action, the agency
shall prepare a CAF to assist with the consistency review of the proposed action.

C. The agency shall refer a copy of the completed CAF to the Planning Board for review
within 10 days of its submission.

D. After referral from an agency, the Planning Board shall consider whether the proposed
action is consistent with the LWRP policy standards and conditions as set forth in
Subsection J herein. The Planning Board shall require the applicant to submit all
completed applications, CAFs and any other information deemed necessary for its
consistency review and determination.

E. The Planning Board shall render its determination, in writing, to the agency within 30
days following referral of the CAF from the agency, unless extended by the mutual
agreement of the Planning Board and the applicant or, in the case of a direct action,
the agency. The consistency determination shall indicate whether, in the opinion of
the Planning Board, the proposed action is inconsistent with one or more of the LWRP
policy standards and conditions or design guidelines and shall elaborate, in writing,
the basis for its determination.

F. The Planning Board shall, along with its consistency determination, make any
suggestions to the agency concerning modification of the proposed action to make it
consistent with the LWRP policy standards and conditions and design guidelines or
to greater advance them.

G. In the event that the Planning Board's consistency determination is not forthcoming
within the specified time, the referring agency shall provide written notification to the
Planning Board regarding assumption of the consistency review and make its own
consistency decision without the benefit of the Planning Board's determination.

H. The Planning Board (or agency, in a case when the Planning Board's determination is
not forthcoming within the time period specified in Subsection E) shall make the
determination of consistency based on the CAF and such other information as deemed
necessary to make its determination.

I.  The Planning Board (or agency, in a case when the Planning Board's determination is
not forthcoming within the time period specified in Subsection E) shall have the
authority, in its finding of consistency, to impose practicable and reasonable
conditions on an action to ensure that it is carried out in accordance with this

Page 111 of



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

chapter.

J. Actions to be undertaken within the LWOD shall be evaluated for consistency with
the following policy standards and conditions and design guidelines, which are
derived from and further explained and described in Sections III and V of the Local
Waterfront Revitalization Program - Town and Village of Pittsford. Agencies that
undertake direct actions shall also consult Section IV of the LWRP in making their
consistency determination. The action shall be consistent with the policy to:

(1) Foster a pattern of development in the LWRP area that incorporates the design
guidelines contained in Section V of the LWRP and which enhances community
character, preserves open space, makes efficient use of infrastructure, makes
beneficial use of the waterfront location, and minimizes the adverse effects of
development (LWRP Policy 1).

(2) Take advantage of the community's location on the canal to provide amenities
for residents and visitors; and guide future development so that it complements,
not competes with or detracts from, the historic village.

(3) Protect water-dependent uses, promote siting of new water-dependent uses in
suitable locations and support efficient harbor operation (LWRP Policy 2).

(4) Protect existing agricultural lands within the LWRP area (LWRP Policy 3).

(5) Promote sustainable uses of living marine resources in coastal waters (LWRP
Policy 4).

(6) Protect and restore ecological resources, including significant fish and wildlife
habitats, wetlands, and rare ecological communities (LWRP Policy 5).

(7) Protect and improve water resources (LWRP Policy 6).

(8) Minimize loss of life, structures, and natural resources from flooding and erosion
(LWRP Policy 7).

(9) Protect and improve air quality in the LWRP area (LWRP Policy 8).

(10) Minimize environmental degradation in the LWRP area from solid waste
and hazardous substances (LWRP Policy 10).

(11) Provide for public access to, and recreational use of, the coastal waters, public
lands, and public resources of the LWRP area (LWRP Policy 11).

(12) Enhance visual quality and protect outstanding scenic resources (LWRP Policy 12).
(13) Preserve historic resources of the LWRP area (LWRP Policy 13).

(14) All actions must conform to the State Environmental Quality Review Act
(SEQRA) regulations (6 NYCRR Part 617).

(15) All actions must adhere to Town protective measures for environmental
resource preservation (the Pittsford Environmental Guidebook and the

Page 112 of



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Greenprint for Pittsford's Future).

(16) Perform dredging and disposal of dredge spoil materials in a manner that is
protective of natural resources.

K. Written finding by Planning Board.

(1) If the Planning Board (or agency, in a case when the Planning Board's
determination is not forthcoming within the time period specified in Subsection
E), determines that the action would not be consistent with one or more of the
LWRP policy standards and conditions and design guidelines, such action shall
not be undertaken unless the Planning Board or agency makes a written finding
with respect to the proposed action that:

(a) No reasonable alternatives exist which would permit the action to be
undertaken in a manner that will not substantially hinder the achievement
of such LWRP policy standards and conditions and design guidelines;

(b) The action would be undertaken in a manner that will minimize all adverse
effects on such LWRP policy standards and conditions and design
guidelines;

(¢) The action will advance one or more of the other LWRP policy standards
and conditions and design guidelines; and

(d) The action will result in an overriding Town, regional or statewide public
benefit.

(2) Such a finding shall constitute a determination that the action is consistent with
the LWRP policy standards and conditions and design guidelines.

L. The Planning Board and, if applicable, each agency shall maintain a file for each
action made the subject of a consistency determination. Such files shall be made
available for public inspection upon request.

§ 185-78.6. Enforcement; stop-work orders.

The Commissioner of Public Works shall be responsible for the enforcement of this article. No
work or activity on any project in the LWOD which is subject to review under this article shall be
commenced or undertaken until the Commissioner of Public Works has been presented with a
written determination from the Planning Board or agency that the action is consistent with the
LWRP policy standards and conditions and design guidelines. In the event that an activity is not
being performed in accordance with this article or any conditions imposed thereunder, the
Commissioner of Public Works shall issue a stop-work order, and all work shall immediately
cease. No further work or activity shall be undertaken on the project so long as the stop-work order
is in effect.

Page 113 of



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article XV. Exterior Lightingameseses
Regulations

§ 185-79. Intent and purpose.Reserved):

The purpose of these regulations is to provide regulations for outdoor illumination that follow
International Dark Sky Association and the Illuminating Engineering Society of North
America recommended practices for safety, utility, security, productivity, enjoyment, and
commerce. Furthermore, these regulations are intended to minimize adverse impacts of
lighting such as light trespass, obtrusive light and or glare, light pollution, and skyglow, while
also conserving energy and reducing instances of excessive or unnecessary illumination.

§ 185-80. Applicability.Reserved):

A. §185-81-This article shall apply to the installment of new exterior lighting fixtures,
the expansion and alteration of existing fixtures, as well as the replacement of

fixtures associated with all uses inall zoning districts. This shall include, but is not
limited to, all exterior lighting fixtures intended for the illumination of buildings,
landscaping, signage, parking, walkways, yards, and recreation facilities.

B. Notwithstanding the above, this article applies to any existing obtrusive light and or

glare that is impacting residential property. Nonconforming properties shall be
required to come into conformance within 60 days of the effective date of this Article.

§ 185-81. Non-Single-Family Residential lighting plan submittal and approval.

All new or replacement non single family-residential exterior lighting is subject to review and
approval by the Department of Public Works or the Planning Board through a Site Plan
application. All applications subject to site plan review, with exterior lighting components
shall include a lighting plan. Such lighting plan shall indicate the location, fixture design,
type of lamp. luminaire, mounting height, source lumens, illuminance, and glare control
options, if any, for each light source and area. Illuminance may be plotted by using
manufacturer's photometric charts or the Planning Board may require ISO footcandle

drawings to examine the interaction of all lighting on the site. Additional documentation may
be requested as necessary to show conformance to the standards set forth in this article.

Reserved):
§ 185-82. Light trespass.dResersed):

A. Exterior illumination greater than one (1) foot candle shall not encroach or trespass
upon adjacent properties in a manner that exceeds the limitations set herein and shall
be so arranged so at to prevent direct glare (view of, or reflected view of the light
source) onto any adjacent property or public right-of-way.

B. Residential Districts. All outdoor lighting shall be shielded or otherwise contained so
as not to exceed one (1) foot-candle from the property line on which the light

Page 114 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

originates.

C. Nonresidential Districts. All outdoor lighting shall be shielded or otherwise contained
so as not to exceed two (2) foot-candles from the property line on which the light

originates.

D. Exterior lighting fixtures on commercial, industrial, institutional, and otherwise
nonresidential properties, except as required for security, shall be extinguished during

non-operating hours to minimize the indiscriminate use of illumination.

E. Where practicable, lighting installations are encouraged to include timers, sensors,and
dimmers to reduce energy consumption and unnecessary lighting.

§ 185-83. Lighting fixture design.(Reserved):

A. Lighting Levels shall be minimized to a level appropriate for the use and are subject
to approval by the Department of Public Works and or the Planning Board as part of
Site Plan approval.

B. Fixture Design. Fixtures shall be fully shielded, pointing downward, to minimize
skyglow, glare, and light trespass. The use of lighting fixtures compliant with

International Dark Sky Association standards is required. Examples of acceptable and
unacceptable lighting fixtures per the International Dark Sky Association are provided
in §185-87.

C. Fixture Height.

(1) Freestanding lighting fixtures for non-residential uses throughout residential

districts should be distinctive and pedestrian-scaled at no more than 15 feet

in height. All other freestanding lighting throughout residential districts are
limited to 10 feet in height.

(2) Parking area light fixtures in non-residential districts shall not exceed 25
feet in height.

(3) Spot or flood type lighting attached to a structure shall not be placed at a
height greater than 20 feet above grade.

D. Canopy and Roof Overhang. Lights installed on canopies or roof overhangs shall be
recessed so that the lens cover is flush with the bottom surface of the canopy or

overhang, ensuring light sources are shielded. Lights shall not be mounted on the
sides or top of the canopy or overhang.

E. Outdoor Signs. Lighting fixtures used to illuminate an outdoor sign shall be mounted
on the top of the sign and shall be shielded or directed in such a way that the light
illuminates the sign only. Internal illumination of a sign shall be concealed behind
opaque, translucent, or other similar types of glass or plastic.

F. Bottom-Mounted or Up-lighting. To minimize unnecessary lighting, up-lighting shall

be allowed for approved flagpoles, landscaping, and signage only. Illumination shall
be directed solely onto the object for which it is intended.

Page 115 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-84. (Reserved):Color temperature.

A. Bulb types should be selected to reduce blue light emissions, which may be hazardous

to human health and wildlife. No exterior lighting shall have a color temperature
exceeding 3000 Kelvin.

B. The following lamps are listed in order of preference: Light Emitting Diode (LED),
metal halide, high pressure sodium, and low pressure sodium.

§ 185-85. Exemptions.
The following types of lighting are exempt from this regulation unless otherwise specified:

A. Street lighting installed by the Town, Monroe County, or the NYS DOT.

B. Temporary holiday lighting decorations.

C. Temporary lighting associated with Town sponsored events or events with an
approved temporary activities permit.

D. Temporary construction and emergency lighting needed by police, emergency, or
highway crews, provided the light is extinguished upon completion of the work.

E. Hazard warning lights required by a federal or state regulatory agency, except that all
fixtures used must be as close as possible to the federally required minimum output.

F. Lighting associated with farm or agricultural operations. However, farm or
agricultural operations within 100 feet of an adjacent residential dwelling shall be

shielded to prevent light trespass onto the adjoining property.

§ 185-86. (Reserved):Prohibited lighting.
The following types of lighting shall be prohibited, unless otherwise specified:

A. Blinking, flashing, strobe, or search lights.

B. Strip lighting used to illuminate building facades, rooflines, or signs.

Any light that may be confused with or construed as a traffic control device.

C
D. Roof-mounted lighting.
E

Mercury vapor lighting.

§ 185-87. Dark sky compliant light fixtures.

Figure 1 below is intended to provide examples of acceptable and unacceptable light fixture
designs as identified by the International Dark Sky Association.

Page 116 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

FIGURE 1. Dark Sky Compliant Light Fixtures

Unacceptable / Discouraged Acceptable

Fixtures

at produce glare and light trespass Fixtures that shield the light source to minimize glare and light trespass
and to facilitate better vision at night

T

Full Cutoff Fixtures

Unshielded Floodlights

gm—
— Fully Shielded
- Wallpack & Wall
[ !I1 [@ Mount Fixtures

Unshielded Wallpacks P

& Unshielded Wall

Mount Fixtures L

@ :L;D d

Drop-Lens & Sag-Lens Fixtures <
w/ exposed bulb / refractor lens @

Unshielded Streetlight

Fully Shielded Fixtures

Full Gutoff Streetlight

@: Unshielded @ Fully Shielded
‘Period’ Style ‘Pariod’ Style %
Fixtures Fixtures
.‘ '. By shislded
Unsmeld_ed o, r 4 Fully Shielded ER
Security Light ) 4 s = Security Light

Flush Mounted Canopy
Fixtures

Unshielded PAR Drop-Lens Canopy

? Floodlights W

ILLUSTRATIONS BY BOB CRELIN®. RENDERED FOR THE TOWN OF SOUTHHAMPTON, NY. COURTESY OF INTERNATIONAL DARK-SKY ASSOCIATION

§ 185-88. (Reserved).

§$185-90-Reserved):
$185-01 (Reserved):
§185-02 (Reserved):
§185-93 (Reserved):

§ 185-89. (Reserved).
§ 185-90. (Reserved).
§ 185-91. (Reserved).
§ 185-92. (Reserved).

§ 185-93. (Reserved).

Page 117 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code

REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article XVA.  Off-Street Parking

Regulations

§ 185-94. Purpose and applicability.

A. Purpose. The purpose of this Article and intent of its regulations is to achieve the

B.

following objectives:

(1) Ensure that any site is designed to provide proper circulation, reduce hazards to

people travelling on foot or by another active transportation mode, and protect the

users of adjacent properties from nuisances caused by the noise, fumes, and glare

of headlights which may result from the operation of vehicles;

(2) Ensure there are adequate amounts of parking and loading spaces to serve the

use(s) and users of the property;

(3) Encourage alternative parking designs and modes of transportation to reduce

dependence on single-occupancy vehicular trips and improve efficiency during

travel;

(4) Ensure safe, comfortable, and well-planned multi-modal access can be made to

all commercial and residential properties within the Town while minimizing

potential conflicts; and

(5) Improve the Town'’s resiliency to significant weather events caused by climate

change through the implementation of green infrastructure and adherence to

sustainable design principles.

Applicability. The application of general requirements and district based regulations

of this Article shall apply to all nonresidential uses as well as multi-family uses as

indicated in the following table:

General District Based
District / Use Requirements Regulations
Monroe Avenue Transitional Zone (MATZ) NA §185-96
. B . §185-95 g
Mixed Use — Commercial (MU-C) All Sections §185-97
) . §185-95 y
General Commercial (GC) (All Sections) §185-98
. . §185-95, except for
2 _
Light Industrial (LI) Subsections D & L §185-99
High Technology Olffice Park (HTOP) NA §185-100
. . . ~ g . § - ) E
Multi-Family Dwellings (regardless of district) 185-95, except for N/A

Subsection E

Page 118 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-95. General requirements.

A. Site Plan Review. All development shall require the submittal of a parking site plan to
the Planning Board for review and approval.

B. Flexibility.
(1) Recognizing that the rigidity of these regulations may limit the extent to which

development proposals may be sensitive of context and unique site conditions,
the standards herein may be modified as part of site plan review. In this regard, a

written finding must be made by the Planning Board that the modification is in
conformance with the following criteria:

(a) Maintains compliance with these regulations to the greatest extent
practicable;

(b) _Offers an innovative development/design solution for the site in question;

(c) Will not result in a detrimental effect on the public health, safety, or general
welfare; and

(d) Is compatible with the stated vision and goals of the Town’s Comprehensive
Plan and other relevant plans and studies.

(2) No modification may be permitted that wholly waives compliance with the
applicable standard or requirement.

(3) It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to demonstrate that the above criteria
are met for the requested waiver or modification.

C. Nonconformity. Nonconforming sites may not be required to bring the entirety of

such site into conformance, if, in the opinion of the Planning Board, the scope of the
proposed project or improvements are not substantial enough to require full
compliance. Proposed improvements to the property, however, may still be required
to increase the level of conformity of the site to maintain consistency with the intent
of this section.

D. Location. No parking area shall be
located in the front yard area between

any building and Monroe Avenue or at
the corner of any street. Parking may be
permitted in the side yard when in
compliance with the following
standards:

(1) The overall width of the parking
area frontage does not exceed 30%
of the lot width (see figure at right).

(2) The parking area is at least 10 feet

behind the front building line.

E. Number of Spaces. All premises shall be provided with a parking area on a site of
sufficient size to accommodate the motor vehicles of all employees and business
uests. The goal is to provide adequate, but not excessive parking spaces and paving.

Page 119 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Parking requirements shall be submitted by the applicant with a parking plan. Where
no specific standards exist, the Planning Board will determine the appropriate parking

count. To aid in this determination, the Planning Board may require that the applicant
complete a Parking Demand Analysis. This may include, but is not limited to:

(1) The names and addresses of the owner(s) and tenant(s) that will be using the
parking;

(2) An estimate of the number of spaces needed to accommodate the proposed

use(s):
(3) A summary and map of the proposed location and configuration of spaces (on-

site, public lots, on-street, joint, shared, etc.);

(4) A market study and/or other supporting information and rationale behind the
requested number of parking spaces; and

(5) An analysis of existing parking conditions in the surrounding area, to include a
radius of at least 1,000 feet.

F.  Multi-Family Parking.

(1) Regardless of the district in which it is located, parking areas for multi-family
uses shall conform to the requirements of this Section, except for Subsection E
above (Number of Spaces).

(2) The number of parking spaces for multi-family developments in any district shall

be provided at a minimum rate of 1.75 spaces per dwelling unit, unless otherwise
approved as part of site plan review.

G. Paving.

(1) All parking areas shall be hard-surfaced, such as asphalt or concrete, and have a
dust-free surface, capable of being kept free of snow and debris, maintained in a
smooth and well-graded condition.

(2) The use of pervious paving material is highly encouraged. Where such material is

used. only 50% of the paved area shall be counted toward the maximum lot
coverage requirement.

H. Lighting. The outdoor lighting of parking lots shall be in conformance with the
provisions of Article XV (Exterior Lighting Regulations).

1. Snow Storage. All parking lots must include a dedicated area for the placement and
storage of snow.

J. ADA Compliance. All new or reconstructed off-street parking areas must comply
with Americans with Disabilities Act standards.

K. Screening.

1) Where an off-street parking area abuts a property line, including a public right-of-

Page 120 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

way, the perimeter shall include a landscaped buffer of at least eight feet in
width.

(2) The landscaped buffer may be provided in the minimum setback area.

(3) Buffering measures shall include ground cover and low shrubs or flowering
plants. At least one shade tree shall be provided per 25 feet of the perimeter,
planted at intervals of not more than 25 feet.

(4) Where, in the opinion of the Planning Board, a landscaped buffer alone does not

provide adequate screening, fencing may also be required.

(5) Landscaped visual buffering loading docks is also required.

L. Landscaped Islands and Medians. Parking areas containing 10 or more spaces shall
include landscaped islands and/or medians in accordance with the following:

(1) Landscaped islands shall be utilized in

parking areas to separate parking stalls . 20 spaceg max mm!f!ﬁ

into groupings of not more than 20 | TTTTTTTT TS [ [TTT
spaces between islands (see figure at = e o —
right). ’

(2) Parking areas shall be broken up into
“rooms” of no more than 40 spaces
separated by landscaped medians or
pedestrian accessways (see figure at

right).

(3) The dimensions of all islands and
medians shall be a minimum of eight
feet wide to protect plant materials and
ensure proper growth (see figure at

right).

(4) Each island and median shall include at least one tree. Low shrubs and ground
covers will be required in the remainder of the area.

(5) Trees shall be provided at a rate of one shade tree per eight (8) spaces. Trees shall
be no smaller than two-inch caliper (trunk diameter at four-foot height) at the

time of planting and shall reach at least eight (8) feet in height at maturity.
(6) Trees and other plantings in parking area islands and medians shall be tolerant of

salt, cold temperatures, and be physically strong enough to support a load of
snow without additional protection. Due to heat and drought stress and vision
clearances, ornamental and evergreen trees are not recommended.

(7) Islands and medians shall be protected with concrete curbing. Curbing shall be so
designed to allow for the flow of water to the stormwater management system.

M. Pedestrian Connectivity. Off-street parking areas of five (5) or more spaces shall

Page 121 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

include a clearly identified pedestrian pathway from the parking spaces to building

entrances and uses on site. Pedestrian connections to the public sidewalk shall also be
required, where applicable.

(1) Pedestrian paths shall be a
minimum of six feet wide. 0 )

Pedestrian paths shall be
delineated with 6 y
OHHHEHHHHHD

landscaping, curbing,
raised or decorative

pavement, or other
protective device that is L J.U w yuin Buininig

identifiable during all ¥
seasons.

Main Street Edge
OO

kS
g
A

Internal Street Edge

(2) Abutting land uses and
buildings on a site shall be
connected by a pedestrian

path.

(3) Pedestrian paths connecting off-street parking spaces to a building or use
entrance shall be provided at a ratio of one pedestrian path for every four parking
rows or 140 feet of parking lot width, whichever is greater.

N. Parking Aisles. Off-street parking aisles shall be at least 12 feet, but no more than 24
feet in width.

O. Access Management.

(1) Access from streets to parking shall be clearly defined. All curbcuts shall be
delineated with raised curbing.

(2) To minimize the number of curb cuts, shared access drives and the development

of rear service lanes for access to parking areas may be required by the Planning
Board.

(3) No access driveway shall be located closer than 50 feet to the intersection of
public streets or another driveway, unless otherwise approved as part of site plan
review.

P. Joint or Shared Parking Spaces. Where two or more uses are located on the same lot
the Code Enforcement Officer may consider joint or shared parking spaces in
aggregate to assess the adequacy of parking for all uses on the site.

Q. Charging Stations. The following requirements shall apply to charging stations and
electric vehicle supply equipment (EVSE) established as part of an approved
accessory off-street parking area. Private charging stations and EVSE installed as an
accessory use to single- or two-family dwellings are exempt from these provisions.

(1) Battery charging station outlets and connector devices shall be mounted to
comply with local and state building and energy codes and must comply with all

Page 122 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

relevant ADA requirements.

(2) Equipment mounted on pedestals, lighting posts, bollards, or other devices shall

be designed and located as to not impede pedestrian travel or create trip hazards
on sidewalks.

(3) Cords shall be retractable or have a place to hang the connector and cord at least
three feet off the ground. Any cords connecting the charger to a vehicle shall be
configured so that they do not cross a driveway, sidewalk, or passenger unloading
area.

(4) EVSE pedestals shall be designed to minimize potential damage by accidents,

vandalism and to be safe for use in inclement weather.

(5) EVSE shall not encroach into the required dimensions of a parking space (length
width, and height clearances).

(6) EVSE shall be maintained in all respects, including the functioning of the

equipment. A phone number or other contact information shall be provided on the
equipment for reporting problems with the equipment or access to it.

(7) Advertising signage. lighting, amplification devices or audio systems, colors to

attract attention, or other attention getting devices shall be prohibited.

(8) Where parking spaces are served by EVSE, those spaces shall not county towards
the maximum lot coverage requirement.

R. Grading & Stormwater.

(1) All parking areas shall provide proper drainage and stormwater management

infrastructure and be appropriately graded to provide for the proper mitigation
and direction of runoff.

(2) Wherever possible, stormwater runoff generated on parking areas shall be
directed according to the following infrastructure, in order of preference:

(a) Bioswale, rain garden, or similar green infrastructure system

(b)  Storm sewer system

S. Bicycle Parking. Bicycle parking infrastructure shall be provided for parking lots
being redeveloped or built new as part of the Planning Board's Site Plan approval

process. The Planning Board will require bicycle parking infrastructure commensurate
with the size and scope of the project.

§ 185-96. Monroe Avenue Transition Zone (MATZ).

A. Applicability. The regulations of this section shall apply to all projects seeking a
special use permit in the MATZ District, as well as home occupation uses.

B. Location. All parking areas shall be located behind the front building line.

C. Number of spaces. Parking areas shall have a maximum number of eight (8) parkin

Page 123 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

spaces per parcel.
D. Paving.

(1) All parking areas shall have a dust-free surface, capable of being kept free of

snow and debris, maintained in a smooth and well-graded condition.

(2) The use of pervious paving material is highly encouraged. Where such material is

used, only 50% of the paved area shall be counted toward the maximum lot
coverage requirement.

E. Snow Storage. All parking lots must include a dedicated area for the placement and
storage of snow.

F. ADA Compliance. All new or reconstructed off-street parking areas must comply
with Americans with Disabilities Act standards.

G. Screening. The perimeter shall be suitably screened with plantings and/or fencing.

H. Pedestrian Connectivity. Off-street parking areas of five (5) or more spaces shall

include a clearly identified pedestrian pathway from the parking spaces to building
entrances and uses on site. Pedestrian connections to the public sidewalk shall also be

required, where applicable.

1. Traffic generation.

(1) For those projects seeking a special use permit, no use shall exceed an average
daily traffic generation of 20 vehicle trips per day.

(2) Trip generation shall be determined by the Planning Board using published
professional manuals and other reliable sources.

(3) The Planning Board may require vehicle or pedestrian interconnections between
properties, subject to a special permit review, in order to protect the safety of the
public and to reduce congestion on Monroe Avenue.

J.  Lighting. The outdoor lighting of parking lots shall be in conformance with the
provisions of Article XV (Exterior Lighting).

§ 185-97. Mixed Use — Commercial (MU-C) District.

A. All off-street parking areas in the MU-C District shall conform to the general parking
requirements of §185-95.

B. Monroe Avenue Design. The design of all parking areas in the MU-C District shall
conform to the Monroe Avenue Design Guidelines, dated April 2, 2002, as amended

and supplemented.

§ 185-98. General Commercial (GC) District.

A. Parking. All off-street parking areas in the GC District shall conform to the general

Page 124 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

parking requirements of §185-95, in addition to the following:

(1) Parking in the front setback area is prohibited. Parking shall be placed to the side
and rear of the front line of the primary structure.

(2) For corner properties, the Planning Board may allow parking in one of the

setbacks.

(3) Landscaped front lawns shall be provided from the edge of road pavement or
curbing to the edge of the building front.

§ 185-99. Light Industrial (LI) District.

A. Parking. All off-street parking areas in the LI District shall conform to the general
parking requirements of §185-95. except for the requirements of Subsection D

(Location) and Subsection L (Landscaped Medians and Islands).

B. LI District parking areas shall also be in accordance with the following:

(1) No off-street parking spaces shall be located in the front yard area, with the
exception of a single row of parking spaces not less than 40 feet from the front

property line.
(2) Atleast 50% of the parking area in the front yard shall be screened from the

public right-of-way by buildings, walls, landscaping, or other visual buffer.

(3) All visitor parking areas shall be hard surface (asphalt or concrete); shall be not
less than 40 feet from the front property line; and if located in front of the main
structure, shall be screened with appropriate landscaping to buffer the visual
impact of the parking area.

(4) All exit and entrance lines to parking and service lanes shall be clearly marked

and maintained.

§ 185-100. High Technology Office Park (HTOP) District.

A. Each use shall have adequate parking appropriate to the size, location and nature of

the use.

B. Turnaround area. All parking areas shall be arranged to permit vehicles to exit without
backing onto any street or sidewalk.

C. Backup area. Except for attendant-operated parking lots, each parking space shall be
provided with a sufficient backup area to permit egress in one maneuver, consisting of

one backward and one forward movement.
D. Access. Every parking lot containing 25 or more spaces shall be provided with a two-
way driveway at least 24 feet in width or two one-way driveways, each at least 15 feet

in width.

EE. Surface. Off-street parking lot shall be surfaced with an asphalt or portland cement

Page 125 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

binder pavement providing an all-weather, durable and dustless surface and shall be
graded and drained to dispose of surface water accumulation by means of a positive
stormwater drainage system connected to a public sewer system. Individual stalls
shall be clearly identified by markings four inches to six inches in width.

F. Car stops. Suitable devices shall be provided, located and designed to protect required
screening devices and landscaping from damage by vehicles.

G. Tree pits. Trees designated for preservation in paved areas shall be provided with
adequate tree pits to permit proper watering.

H. Slope. No area of any parking lot, excluding access ramps, shall have a slope in
excess of 5%.

Page 126 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article XVI. Reserved)Additional Use
Regulations

§ 185-101 Purpose and intent.

A. Purpose. This article provides additional regulations for uses that are generally
considered to have a higher potential for incompatibility with existing or desired land use
patterns, including, but not limited to, green spaces, neighborhood context, and
residential or low impact commercial uses, without proper mitigation measures. The
purpose of the regulations contained herein is to promote the health, safety, and general
welfare of the public, while also protecting property values and the character of the
immediate neighborhood and Town of Pittsford community.

B. Intent. These regulations are intended to mitigate the potentially undesirable impacts of

certain uses, which by reason of nature or manner of operation, are or may become
hazardous, obnoxious, or offensive owing to excessive and undue increases in the

production and presence of odors, dust, smoke, fumes, noise, vibrations, refuse matter.
vehicular traffic, excessive lighting, diminished aesthetics, or human activity.

§ 185-102 Applicability.

A. The following requirements are applicable to all uses, permitted and specially permitted,
as noted in the district use lists of this Chapter.

B. Specially permitted uses must obtain a special use permit in accordance with Article
XXV. Site plan review and design review may also be required as noted herein and in
Articles XXIX and XXXI, respectively.

C. Should the additional use regulations of this article conflict with other requirements of
this chapter, the regulations contained herein shall take precedence.

D. No authorization for a special use permit, building permit, or certificate of occupancy

shall be granted for any use listed in this article unless it is determined that the proposed
use also meets the additional regulations herein.

§ 185-103 Micro-breweries or micro-distilleries.

A. When adjacent to residential uses or districts, such uses shall be buffered to minimize
visual and auditory impacts in a method approved during site plan review. Such buffering

may include but is not limited to landscaping, screening, and fencing.

B. All such uses dealing with the importation, manufacture, distribution, or sale of alcohol
shall obtain a license(s) as required by the NYS Liquor Authority and operate in
accordance of the regulations therein.

Page 127 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

C. Micro-breweries and micro-distilleries shall provide access to the public through the
inclusion of a tasting room or other such designated area for the service of patrons.

D. A waste management plan shall be required to provide for proper upkeep of the site and

disposal of refuse. All refuse containers shall be located in the rear yard and maintain a
setback of at least five feet from all property lines.

E. Where the provision of on-site refuse containers is infeasible, a shared waste

management agreement may be established between adjacent uses. Under no
circumstance shall any shared refuse container be located outside of a 200 foot radius of a

single use.

§ 185-104 Vehicle sales, service, or repair shops.

A. A curbed landscaped area shall be maintained at least eight (8) feet in depth along all
street frontage space not used as driveway. The required landscaping and screening
treatments of such area shall be determined through site plan review.

B. All automobile parts and dismantled vehicles are to be stored within a building, and no
repair work or automobile maintenance is to be performed outside a building.

C. No automotive use area shall be used for auto wrecking or for the storage of wrecked,

partially dismantled or junked vehicles, or equipment or motor vehicles which do not
qualify for New York State vehicle registration.

D. Where adjacent to a residential district or use, the hours of operation shall be limited to
the period from 6:00AM to 10:00PM.

E. Fuel, oil and other materials which are environmentally hazardous, shall be stored,
controlled and disposed of in accordance with the Rules and Regulations of the NYS

Department of Environmental Conservation, and documentation shall be filed with the
Town.

F. No vehicle sales or service use shall include a publicly accessible gas station.

§ 185-105 Animal care facilities.

A. All animal care services shall be provided within a completely enclosed building, unless
otherwise allowed in accordance with Subsection B, below.

B. Animal care facilities with outdoor animal exercise, play, or containment areas shall
require the issuance of a special use permit.

C. Adjacent properties shall be adequately protected from noise, odors, and unsightly
appearances as determined appropriate by the reviewing board in site plan review.

D. All buildings, structures, accessory use areas, and outdoor animal exercise, play, or

Page 128 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

containment areas, except off-street parking areas, shall be located at least 50 feet from
any property line abutting a residential use or district.

E. Screening for outdoor animal exercise, play, or containment areas may be required along
lot lines bordering residential uses or districts at the Planning Board’s discretion.

F. A waste management plan shall be required to ensure proper upkeep of the site and
disposal of animal excrement and waste.

§ 185-106 Day care centers, child or adult.

A. No day care shall be permitted without obtaining the proper license and registration, as
required by NYS and Monroe County Law.

B. A landscaped buffer or fence of at least five feet in height shall be provided at all side and
rear property lines abutting a residential use or district.

C. The regulations of this section shall not apply to home-based childcare providers licensed
by the state.

§ 185-107 Restaurants or bars.

A. All such uses dealing with the importation, distribution, or sale of alcohol shall obtain a
license as required by the NYS Alcoholic Beverage Control Law and operate in
accordance of the regulations therein.

B. Restaurants must have a full kitchen and menu as required by the NYS Liquor Authority
when the sale of beer, wine, and/or liquor is provided.

C. No restaurant or bar shall have a dance floor greater than 50% of the gross floor area.

D. A waste management plan shall be required to provide for proper upkeep of the site and
disposal of refuse. All refuse containers shall be located in the rear yard.

E.  Where the provision of on-site refuse containers is infeasible, a shared waste

management agreement may be established between adjacent uses. Under no
circumstance shall any shared refuse container be located outside of a 200-foot radius of

a single use.

§ 185-108 Adult uses.

A. Applicability. The following special regulations shall apply to all adult bookstores and
adult entertainment establishments.

B. Definitions. As used in this article, the following terms shall have the meanings
indicated:

Page 129 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ADULT BOOKSTORE

A business enterprise which has a substantial portion of its stock-in-trade printed, visual
or audio material of any kind or other novelties which are characterized by their emphasis

on specified anatomical areas or specified sexual activities, including any such
establishment having a substantial area devoted to the sale and display of such material.

For purposes of this definition, "substantial portion" or "substantial area" shall be 25% or
more of any of the following:

(1) The number of different titles or kinds of such merchandise;
(2) The number of copies or pieces of such merchandise;
(3) The amount of floor space devoted to the sale and display of such merchandise; or

(4) The amount of advertising which is devoted to such merchandise either in print or
otherwise promoted via the broadcast media.

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT ESTABLISHMENT

Any business enterprise which is other than an adult bookstore which has presentations
characterized by emphasis on the description or depiction of specified anatomical areas or
specified sexual activities during live shows, motion-picture films, videotapes or sound
recordings presented to an audience of one or more individuals. Also included in this
definition is any business enterprise, other than a bona fide medical or health service
establishment, requiring a client or customer to display any specified anatomical area.

PECIFIED ANATOMICAL AREA
Includes:

1) Unless completely and opaquely covered, human genitals, pubic regions, buttocks or
female breasts below a point immediately above the top of the areola.

(2) Even if completely and opaquely covered, male genitals in a discernibly turgid state.
SPECIFIED SEXUAL ACTIVITIES

Any touching of the genitals, pubic areas or buttocks of the human male or female or the
breasts of the female, whether clothed or unclothed, alone or between members of the
same or opposite sex, or between humans or animals, in an act of apparent sexual
stimulation or gratification.

C. Restrictions.

(1) No more than one of the enumerated adult uses shall be permitted on any single lot

in the Town.

(2) The property line of a parcel where said adult uses are located shall not be within

Page 130 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

500 feet of any residential zoning district, measured as a straight line between the
nearest points on the property lines.

(3) _The property line of a parcel where said adult uses are located shall not be within

500 feet of the boundary of any town or village, measured as a straight line between
the nearest points on the property lines.

(4) The property line of a parcel where said adult uses are located shall not be within
500 feet of the property lines of a school, place of worship, day-care center, park or
playground or other lot containing another such use, measured as a straight line
between the nearest points on the property lines.

(5) The property line of a parcel where said adult uses are located shall not be within

1,000 feet of the property lines of a lot containing another such adult use, measured
as a straight line between the nearest points on the property lines.

(6) All adult bookstores and adult entertainment establishments shall be conducted in an
enclosed building. Regardless of location or distance, no one who is passing by an
enclosed building having a use governed by these provisions shall be able to visually
see any specified anatomical area or any specified sexual activity by virtue of any
display which depicts or shows said area or activity. This requirement shall apply to
any display, decoration, sign, window or other opening.

(7) No audio or video transmission of these adult uses, either by broadcast, telephone,

satellite, microwave or other electronic transmission, to off-site locations shall be
permitted.

§185-94-threugh-§ 185-109 —(Reserved).

Page 131 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT
Article XVII.  Supplemental Regulations

§ 185-110- Prohibited activities.

A. Dumping. Dumping of refuse, garbage, vegetation, waste material or other substance is
prohibited in all districts. Vegetation shall exclude the home composting, provided all
compost waste is contained within an enclosed composting bin.

B. Junk and discarded materials. The use of any premises in any district for the keeping,
collection, sale or abandonment of junk and/or discarded materials, including wastepaper,
rags, scrap materials, etc., is prohibited.

C. Speaker systems. Speaker systems, public address systems or other sources for the
production or reproduction of voice, music or other types of sound, whether for
advertising, entertainment or other purpose, are hereby prohibited upon any public
highway, except such vehicles as are authorized by the laws of the State of New York to
be equipped with sirens.

§ 185-111 Multi-family dwellings and condominiums.

A. Multi-family dwellings. The following special provisions shall apply to all multifamily
developments, multifamily, townhouse, and other multi-residential unit structures or

portions of a planned unit development in residential districts:

(1) Every development shall have within it suitable open space available for the use of
the residents in a manner suitable to the prospective occupants of the development as
determined by the Planning Board. Area devoted to swimming pools and other such
formal recreation areas shall be considered in meeting this requirement. Yard areas
may also be considered so long as access to them is not prohibited by fencing or
other means: but parking areas shall not be included in such assessment.

(2) All living units shall have a storage area in the same building of at least 7% of the
living unit. No storage area shall be less than four square feet.

(3)_Sidewalks shall be provided and be integrally designed so as to provide safe and
convenient access between buildings and between buildings and internal open space,

recreation, parking, and service areas.

(4) Parking for multi-family uses shall be provided in accordance with § 185-95 H.

AB. All condominiums are expressly made subject to the provisions of Article 9-B of
the Real Property Law of the State of New York as presently written and as hereafter
Page 132 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

amended. For such purposes, said article of the Real Property Law is incorporated by
reference into this chapter at this point with the same force and effect as if the same were
set forth at

Page 133 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

length. Before any transfer occurs of any condominium as defined in said law, copies of
all documents filed with the State of New York or any of its subdivisions, departments or
bureaus as required by Article 9-B of the Real Property Law of the State of New York as
presently written or as hereafter amended are to be filed with the Town Clerk of the
Town of Pittsford.

§ 185-112: Sewage disposal.

A. The drainage of all sewage from structures hereafter erected or altered must be conducted
in piping of sufficient capacity to sewers maintained by a governmental agency in the
street or highway adjacent to the lot upon which such structures are erected or altered. In
the absence of a public sewer system to which sewage may be drained, septic tanks
approved by the Monroe County Health Department and dry sewers shall be installed on
the lot, conforming to this chapter and the rules and regulations established by the Town
Board to effectuate the purpose of this section. At such time that a public sewer system
becomes available to such lot, connection to the public system shall be made. Exceptions
for the installation of dry sewers shall be governed by § 121-18 of Chapter 121, Sewers.
The Town Board may promulgate, establish, revise and alter plans, rules and regulations
for the construction and maintenance of sewage disposal systems for the protection of the
health, safety and welfare of the occupants and of surrounding premises.

B. The application for permits required by this chapter and the accompanying plan shall
state or show the means adopted to dispose of such sewage and the location of a potable
water supply installed or to be installed thereon, and such disposal system must be
constructed in all its parts in strict conformity with the plans, rules, and regulations
applicable thereto.

§ 185-113: Accessory uses and structures.

The following accessory uses and structures are permitted on the premises of single- and two-
family dwellings, but only in connection with and incidental to a permitted principal use and in
compliance with the restrictions of this section.

A. Permittedaecesseryuses—Permitted accessory uses and structures shall be limited to the
following, and any additional use or structure which the Commissioner of Public Works
finds is similar to those listed in scope, size and impact, is customarily associated with
residential dwellings and is otherwise in compliance with this chapter:

(1) A home occupation which:

a) InvelvesHas no persensemployees other than the persensresidingresident
employee(s) reporting to the property for work, unless otherwise permitted by

the district in the-dwellingunitwhich it is located;

b) Shows no visible evidence from the exterior of the dwelling unit of the conduct
of the occupation, except for signage that is required by law;

Page 134 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

c) Generates no-additional-traffie norparking beyond-the-typieak-traffic and

parking activity that is consistent with normal residential use in the

neighborhood-in-which-the- home-oceupation-islocated, allowing for

occasional short-term parking without creating congestion or safety concerns
for the neighborhood; and

d) Is conducted entirely inside the dwelling unit.

¢) Home-based childcare providers licensed by the state shall be exempted from
the provisions above.

(2) Private greenhouse.

(3) Private tennis or outdoor recreational court, provided that back and side backstops
shall not exceed 12 feet. Lighting of such courts is prohibited.

H—Aboveground deck-

(4) Gazebe, patio, terrace, pergola, or treecheusegazebo.

(5) Treehouse, playground, or playhouse.

5)(6) Freestanding air-conditioning machinery, pool equipment.
6)(7) Freestanding backup electrical generators.
B i e

(8) Accessory suites. See §185-8 for the definition of an accessory suite.

€H(9) Storage structure, including a private garage, pool house. garden shed. or similar.
(10) Private swimming pool, subject to § 185-119.

©an FeneeFences, subject to § 185-121.

€012) Keeping of horses, subject to § 185-116.

(13)Keeping of animals. other than horses subject to § 185-118.
abd4a) Sale of produce, subject to § 185-114.

a2(15) Satellite antennas, subject to § 185-127.

(16) Retaining walls, subject to § 185-117.
37 Flagpole, limited to one per lot.

Page 135 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(18) Electric vehicle charger, mounted interior, exterior or free standing

(19) Geothermal system for heating and or cooling. Subject to § 185-113 C (4).

(20) Ramp, lift, or other such structure intended to provide an increased level of
accessibility for home occupants or visitors.

(21) Solar energy system, roof-mounted. Such use may be permitted provided the array:

Page 136 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

a) Is located entirely on the roof of the structure;

b) Matches the slope of the roof; and

¢) Does not cause the structure to exceed the maximum building height

requirements of the district in which it is located.

(22) Solar energy system, ground-mounted. Such use may be allowed with the issuance of

a special use permit and site plan approval by the Planning Board on lots of at least
five (5) acres, provided the array:

a) Is located with the least impact to neighbors and the public as determined by
the Planning Board.

b) Is set back at least 25 feet from the side and rear property lines and 100 feet
from any public right-of-way; and

¢) Covers not more than two acres or 10% of the total area of the lot, whichever is
less.

B. General regulations.

(1) An accessory use or structure shall be located on the same lot as the principal use or
structure served.

dH2) Accessory structures shall be included in the calculations required by this
chapter for the purpose of complying with height-and-lot coverage regulations.

C. AnSize and location restrictions.

(1) The total square footage of roofed or enclosed accessory structures, including
pergolas, shall not exceed 320 square feet in area, with no one structure exceeding
225 square feet.

(2) The height of an accessory structure shall not exceed 12 feet as measured from the
average ground elevation at the front of the accessory structure to the highest point
of the structure, except for flagpoles which shall not exceed 20 feet.

(3) No accessory use or structure shall be permitted in the front or side yard areas
except for the following:

a) Fences and geothermal systems may be located in any yard area.

a)b) Interior and exterior mounted electric vehicle chargers may be located on
the-samelotas-the prineipal-use-orstruectureservedany facade of the primary
or accessory structure. Freestanding electric vehicle chargers shall not be
located in the front yard.

c) FheFreestanding air-conditioning machinery. backup electrical generators,
and pool equipment may be located in the side yard.

Page 137 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

d) Flagpoles and rearsetbacksramps or lifts for accessibility are exempt from

any location restriction.

“4) A accessory uses and structures shall b&thes%reqwred—ferdweﬂmgs%th%

follow the

primary structure minimum setback requ1rements—aﬂd—e*eept—fer—garéeﬂ—sheds— of
the zoning district in which it is located, with the following exceptions:

a) Fences shall be exempt from setback requirements.

b) Sheds 120 square feet or less may be eenstruetedplaced not closer than four
feet from the rear and/or side property lines if the shed or a portion of, is located
within the minimum rear setback.

¢) Geothermal systems must maintain a minimum setback of 10 feet from all
property lines.

§ 185-114- Sale of produce in residential districts.

A. Purpose. It has been the custom for farmers and gardeners in the Town to sell or offer for
sale from their residential premises produce grown by them on their residential premises.
This custom is beneficial both to those who sell and those who buy such produce, and the
Town has no objection to such sales, subject to reasonable regulation. The Town Board
finds that such sales of produce in residential areas are incidental to the primary use of
the premises. The purpose of this section is to provide reasonable regulation of these
sales, so as to make them compatible with the primary residential use of the premises.

B. Definitions. As used herein, the following words and phrases shall have the meanings
indicated:

PREMISES—PREMISES
The land owned and/or leased by a Town resident from which the sale or offer of sale is
made.

Page 138 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

TFEMPORARNV QT AN

4 ve fadt bhad ££

1l

to tl 3 + v o £ £ 14
b i J

A
£ N d-ds N stla o3 lo 1o d
S =¥ P €t

& ¥

C. Regulations.

(M

@

(©)

Produce may be sold from premises, in a residential district in the Town by a
resident of the Town, where such produce is grown on the same premises from
which the sale or offer for sale is made.

Such sales may take place only during the period of May 1 through November 30

each year, except that trees. apples, pumpkins, squash-and, honey, eggs. or other
such products grown on the premises may be sold year-round;-and-Christmas-trees

saebenldodusne e et e

One temporary stand for the sale of such produce may be used- in accordance with
the following:

a) The stand shall be limited to 200 square feet in floor area and eight feet in
height.

Page 139 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

b) The stand may be located in the front yard area, provided the frontmost edge of
the stand is set back at least 10 feet from the front property line.

¢) The stand is not a fully enclosed structure. At least one wall of the stand shall
be open to allow for free ingress/egress by the public.

D. Agricultural uses exempt. Nothing herein contained shall be applicable to the sale of
livestock or the bulk sale of produce grown on premises used as a farm-e+truek-

garden.

§ 185-115: Outdoor storage—fAmended 5-20-2014-by L1 No-5-2014} and temporary

outdoor storage containers.

A. Storage of junk. Outdoor storage or maintenance of junk shall not be permitted on any lot
in any district, unless otherwise permitted.

AB. No construction or building materials of any kind shall be stored outdoors in any
zoning district except those used in the construction or alteration of a structure upon the
lot or lots where such material is stored. Such material shall not be stored for a period in
excess of one year. This section shall not apply to the storage of any products grown
upon the premises, nor to nurseries, nor to machinery, equipment and supplies essential
to the operation of a farm.

C. The use of outdoor temporary storage containers shall:

(1) Not to exceed 90 days.

(2) Be entirely enclosed within a rodent proof container, not to exceed a total of 320
square feet in size.

(3) Be setback not less than 10 feet from the right-of way.

§ 185-116- Keeping of horses.

A. Purpose. It is the purpose of this section to regulate the keeping of horses as an accessory
use in residential districts within the Town and to prohibit the keeping of horses in such a
manner or in such locations as to be offensive to occupants of adjoining property or
persons residing in the vicinity.

RBOARDING Tha 1 b £ 1 41 1 4 d- oy ¢ 1 £ 1d
PHIE SRy 2 P SS5 =OWHREE—DY ad izas
lhath £ £ 41 3
P S WOt & 2 W
HORSE Eatl 1 £ 1ol 1 d 1 d
= + 2 2 S PORYS e y-ae &S
ILINERY Tl tol oL 1] 1 £ +1n Fa Fa Lelha 1o

Page 140 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

STADI I A sl ds 1 lhial 1 chalt d A £a

B. Regulations.
(1) There shall be no livery services provided on any parcel in the Town.

(2) Boarding of horses is allowable, but in no case shall the number of horses boarded
exceed 1/2 of the total number of horses allowed.

(3) Minimum lot area.

a) The minimum lot area necessary for parcels involving the stabling or keeping
of horses shall be in accordance with the following schedule:

Page 141 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Number of Horses Minimum Acreage

1 and 2 3

3 through 5 5

6 through 10, per horse 10

11 or more 10, plus 1/2 per horse over 10

b) Where more than one parcel of land is involved in computing the above
minimum acreage, the parcels must be contiguous. If leased land is included
for purposes of the calculation set forth in Subsection €B(3)(a) above, the
lessee must have sole and exclusive possession of the leased land, and the
property owner and/or lessee to whom the calculation applies must obtain an
annual permit from the Code Enforcement Officer. The permit will not be
issued unless a valid lease is shown to the Code Enforcement Officer and all
parcels are in compliance with setback requirements.

(4) Setback. Any structure or building erected for the stabling or keeping of horses shall
be set back at least 150 feet from all boundary lines of the premises.

(5) Fencing.

a) There shall be erected and maintained a fence around any paddock area,
pasture area or any other area outside of the stable where a horse is allowed.
Such fence shall be a minimum of four feet high, except an electrical fence
which need be only three feet high, supported by wooden or steel posts at
intervals of not more than 10 feet. Such fence shall be of sufficient strength
and may be either a three- or four-board wooden rail fence or a wire fence, or a
combination thereof, or a one-strand electrical fence and shall be strongly
secured to each post. Any opening in such fence shall have a self-closing gate
of sufficient strength.

b) The barns, stalls, paddocks and any other grounds in the Town where horses
are kept shall be maintained in a clean and sanitary condition so as not to
create any condition or odor which would be objectionable to persons
occupying adjoining property.

§ 185-117—threugh- Retaining Walls

A. Purpose. It is the purpose of this section to regulate the size, location and engineering

design of retaining walls to insure retaining walls are safe and do not negativity impact or
threaten adjacent or nearby properties.

B. Retaining walls are subject to the following requirements.

(1) _All retaining walls shall be set back from property line(s) twice the total height of the

wall(s).

Page 142 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(2) Retaining walls greater than thirty (30) inches in height must apply for and receive a

permit prior to the start of work. The permit for the retaining wall can be a separate
building permit or associated with a project permit.

a) The application must include an accurate site plan that identifies property lines

and wall setbacks as well as detailed plans of the retaining wall with all
associated drainage and grading work to be done.

b) The Town can require that a licensed engineer stamp the plans and town
engineering review charges will be billed back to the applicant at the rate
identified on the Town’s Fee schedule.

(3) Retaining walls greater than four (4) feet in height are discouraged, terraced retaining
walls must have a shelf width equal to one and a half times the height of the upper
wall.

(4) A safety fence may be required.

(5) The height of a fence or safety fence, whether placed adjacent to or atop a retaining
wall. will be measured from the base of the lowest wall. For fending regulations, see

§ 185-121.

§ 185-118—(Reserved) Keeping of animals, other than horses.

A. All livestock, poultry, birds, and the like, with the exception of chickens as provided for
by Subsection D, shall be maintained in a permanent roofed and walled building which
shall be located at a minimum setback of 150 feet from all boundary lines of the property.

B. Residents housing no more than four (4) dogs, cats, birds, or other customary

domesticated animals per dwelling unit shall be exempt from the provisions of this
section.

C. Swine. The keeping of swine or pigs is prohibited in all districts.

D. Chickens. Chickens are only allowed if kept and maintained in accordance with the
following requirements.

(1) Permit Required.

a) The keeping of chickens shall be subject to inspection and issuance of a
building permit by the Code Enforcement Officer. In reviewing such permit

the Code Enforcement Officer may seek an advisory opinion of the Animal
Control Officer.

b) All building permit applications for the keeping of chickens shall be submitted
with the required fee as provided for by the Town of Pittsford Fee Schedule
and approved by the Town Board.

Page 143 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

¢) Access to the property must be allowed for inspection purposes.

(2) General Requirements.

a) Maximum number of chickens.

Lot Size Max Number
Less than 3 Acres 6
3 or more Acres 12

b) Chickens shall not be permitted to be housed in the primary structure of the lot
or any other accessory structure thereon, other than an approved coop and/or
outdoor enclosure, as described in Subsection (3).

¢) The keeping of roosters shall be prohibited.

d) No chickens shall be allowed in multi-family complexes, including duplexes
and triplexes.

¢) Chickens shall be kept for personal use only: no person shall sell chicken meat
or engage in breeding or fertilizer production for commercial purposes. The
sale of eggs may be permitted with a temporary stand in accordance with the
regulations of § 185-114, Sale of produce in residential districts.

f) The slaughtering of chickens on the premises is prohibited.

g) Such animals shall be provided with a covered, predator-proof coop or outdoor

enclosure that is well ventilated and designed to be easily accessed for
cleaning.

h) Chickens must be kept in coops from dusk to dawn.

i) Chickens shall be kept only in conditions that limit odors and noise and the
attraction of insects and rodents so as not to cause a nuisance to occupants of
nearby buildings or properties and to comply with applicable provisions of
both the New York State and County sanitary codes.

1) Owners shall comply with all applicable regulations of NYS Department of
Agriculture and Markets [Law regarding the keeping of chickens. No animal
may be kept in a manner that is injurious or unhealthful to itself or any other
animals kept on the property.

(3) Coops and Outdoor Enclosures.

a) Chickens cannot be free range and must always be within a coop or fenced
enclosure which contains them on the property and prohibits them from
occupying any space within 50 feet of any property line.

Page 144 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

b) Chickens shall be kept in rear yard areas.

¢) Coops and enclosures must be screened from the neighbor’s view, using an
opaque fence and/or landscape screen.

d) The coop may not be taller than six (6) feet, measured from the natural grade,
and must be easily accessible for cleaning and maintenance.

¢) Chickens shall have access to an outdoor enclosure that is adequately fenced to
contain the birds on the property and to prevent predators from accessing the

birds. Outdoor enclosures shall be a minimum of four (4) square feet per

animal.

f) Coops shall be limited to a footprint of no more than 50 square feet.

g) The enclosure area must be well drained and clean at all times, offer access to
living vegetation, be resistant to erosion by activities of the birds, and provide
access to water, shelter, and feeding areas.

h) The coop and outdoor enclosure must be kept in a sanitary condition and free
from offensive odors. The coop and outdoor enclosure must be cleaned on a
regular basis to prevent the accumulation of waste. Bedding must be kept in a
dry, mold-free, friable condition, and replenished as necessary.

(4) Feed. Chicken feed or other food used to feed the chickens shall be stored in a rat-
proof, fastened container stored within a structure, which shall only be unfastened
for the retrieval of food and immediately refastened thereafter.

(5) Manure Management. Waste must be managed through proper use and disposal of

bedding materials and coop design.

(6) Running at-Large. Chickens are not permitted to run at-large in the Town of

Pittsford. Where a chicken(s) is found off the premises of its owner and/or caretaker.
the provisions for at-large impoundment of Chapter 58 of the Town of Pittsford Code

may apply.

D(7) Violations. Failure to adhere to the requirements of this section shall be considered
a code violation subject to the provisions of § 1-17 Penalties for offenses of the Town
of Pittsford Code.

E. Honeybees.

(1) The keeping of honeybees is allowed on single family residential properties provided

the following conditions are met.

a) It shall be unlawful to keep more than two (2) colonies of bees, on a lot less
than 1 acre: or more than 4 colonies on properties greater than 1 acre.

Page 145 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

b) All colonies must be kept in structures designed for the purpose of keeping
bees and shall be of a design commonly used for the housing and keeping of
bees.

¢) Bee colonies must be located behind the rear wall of the home.

d) Bee colonies must be located 20 feet from all property lines.

¢) Hives shall not be located within 50 feet of'a swimming pool or a kenneled

animal.

f) Hives are not permitted within 10 feet of any adjacent buildings.

g) To the extent possible, colonies shall be placed to minimize possible impacts to
adjacent neighbors.

h) A convenient on-site source of fresh water must be available and maintained at
all times.

i) In any instance in which a colony exhibits unusual aggressive characteristics

by stinging or attempting to sting without due provocation, the beekeeper must
promptly re-queen the colony with another queen.

(2) The keeping of honeybees on property in agricultural use greater than 4 acres is
allowed up to 20 colonies, provided that no colony is located closer than 200 feet to
any property line, unless permission has been granted by that adjacent property
owner.

§ 185-119: Swimming pools.

A. Private swimming pools. All swimming pools shall be installed and maintained in
accordance with the regulations of the New York State Uniform Fire Prevention and

Building Code, NYCRR Title 19, Appendix G and all other applicable code sections. No
private swimming pool shall be constructed or maintained unless:

1— Editor's Note: F §185-117, Parki £ i d ial-vehicles i idential distri 48185

g-of e uction-and eial-v distriets;and-§
118, Parking ofh flers; w led 5-20-2014- by L.L. No. 5-2014.

(1) The water's edge of such pool is no closer to the lot or property lines than the
minimum setback requirements for a residential structure in the residential district.
Any heater or filter units or equipment must be-withinmeet the minimum setback
linesrequirements of the said-tet-erproperty and if located behindon the rear-wallside
of the main-strueterehome must be screened with a solid fence that extends not less
than 6 inches above the equipment.

(2) The proposed drainage of such pool is adequate and will not interfere with the public
water supply system, with existing sewage and drainage facilities, with the property
of others or with the public highways.

Page 146 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

B. Such swimming pool shall be deemed a building or structure under all applicable
provisions of the Building and Plumbing Codes of the Town. No permit shall be granted
for the construction of any such swimming pool unless and until the construction plans-

Page 147 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

therefor, together with plumbing plans, location map and grading plan, in conformity
with the above, have been filed with the Town Building Department.

C. There shall be erected and maintained a close-type fence or other protective type of
enclosure in compliance with the New York State Building Code.

D. Portable pools. Portable pools of a size capable of retaining water to a depth less than 24
inches and having a plain surface area of water not to exceed 120 square feet shall not be
required to comply with the provisions of this section, provided that the following
conditions are complied with in all respects:

(1) The pool shall be located in the rear yard of the premises and as far removed from all
property lines as is practicable.

(2) Provision shall be made on the premises for drainage of water from the pool.

§ 185-120: Supplemental setback restrictions.

Every structure hereinafter erected or altered shall comply with the setback restrictions of the
district in which it is located, except when the following regulations apply:

A. Upon the following streets and highways, the front setback shall be at least 70 feet, to
wit: Clover Street, East Avenue, Mendon Road, Mendon Center Road, Fairport Road,
Jefferson Road East, Jefferson Road West, Marsh Road, Palmyra Road, Washington
Road, Allens Creek Road, Lehigh Station Road, Calkins Road, Willard Road,
Knickerbocker Road, Thornell Road, Stone Road, Tobey Road, West Bloomfield Road
and East Street.

B. Upon corner lots, the setback from the lot line abutting on each street shall be the front
setback required on that street or highway.

Page 148 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-121- Fences and hedges.

A. On lots used for residential purposes, no fence shall exceed six feet in total height, and no
fence more than three feet in total height shall be erected in front of a front setback. The
total height of a fence shall include the height of any wall(s), retaining wall(s), berm(s)
or the like. Decorative fence posts may extend above the foregoing height limitations by
no more than six inches.

B. On lots used for nonresidential purposes, Site Plan approval efby the Planning Board
shall-beis required prior to the erection of a fence or wall more than three feet in height-

in-frontof the-front setback line-orfor-a-fence-more-than-six-feet-in-height.. The Planning

Board's review and approval of any such application shall be based upon safety, visual
impact and other reasonable considerations.

C. All fences shall be constructed so that the finished side faces outward from the premises
with the backers and/or supports facing inward toward the property owner's side of the
premises.

Page 149 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

D.

At the intersection of two or more streets, no hedge, berm, fence, or wall (other than a
single tree or post) which is higher than three feet above ground level, nor any
obstruction to vision, including agricultural crops, shall be permitted in the triangular area
formed by the intersecting street lines and a line joining each 50 feet distant from such
intersection measured along the edge of pavement.

The provisions of this section relating to height limitations shall not apply to fences on
premises used exclusively for farm purposes, except that the provisions of Subsection D
hereof shall apply to premises used exclusively for farm purposes.

§ 185-122: Private roads and common driveways.

A.

For the purposes of this section, "private roads" are defined as paved driving surfaces,
owned and maintained by one or more adjacent homeowners or a homeowners'
association, which do not qualify as common driveways in accordance with the definition
below.

For the purposes of this section, "common driveways" are defined as privately owned
driving surfaces which provide a means of access from a public or private road or
common driveway to not more than a total of three residential lots and which do not
connect to any other public or private road or common driveway.

Private roads and common driveways are permitted in residential districts when approved
by the Planning Board, subject to the provisions of this section. In determining the
appropriateness of a private road or common driveway, the Planning Board shall consider
whether it will minimize adverse environmental effects on the site, the length of the road,
overall density, proposed offset of driveways, road grades and center line radius, present
and future setback requirements and all other generally accepted planning standards.

Compliance with requirements of the New York State Attorney General.

(1) The owner and/or developer must obtain and deliver to the Town verification of
compliance with any and all requirements of the New York State Attorney General.

(2) No certificate of occupancy will be issued until such verification is in the Town's
possession.

Conditions relating to all private roads and/or common driveways.

(1) Certification of construction specifications. The owner and/or developer shall furnish
the Town certification by a professional engineer that the private road has been
constructed as required herein.

(2) Access easement.

Page 150 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

a) The owner shall grant to the Town a permanent easement allowing access at all
times to Town vehicles, municipal fire vehicles and to such other emergency
vehicles as the Town may designate.

b) Such easement shall be of sufficient width, as determined by the Planning
Board, to accommodate the aforesaid emergency vehicles, and the paved
private road or common driveway shall be located wholly within said easement
area.

¢) Where feasible, the center line of the easement shall coincide with the center
line of the private road or common driveway pavement.

F. Conditions relating to all private roads.

(M

@

3)

“)

Construction specifications. Private roads shall be built in accordance with Town
specifications, except that the Planning Board may excuse the applicants/owners
from the requirements relating to the installation of concrete gutters and/or drains as
long as it finds that other means of adequate drainage are available and may allow a
pavement width of not less than 41820 feet.

Turnarounds. A turnaround area or areas must be constructed and paved at such
location or locations as the Planning Board may determine, such turnarounds to be of
sufficient size to accommodate emergency vehicles.

Signs. At the entrance to each private road there may be erected and maintained a
sign not exceeding one foot by three feet in size bearing the words "Private Road" or
"Private Drive."

Setbacks. The setbacks for structures on private roads shall be measured from the
edges of the easement for the private road.

A-——Conditions relating to all common driveways.

G.

5- Common driveways shall be built in accordance with

appropriate specifications for their intended use, as determined by the Planning Board.

§ 185-123- Driveways in public right-of-way.

All driveways in the Town which pass over a portion of the unpaved public right-of-way must lie
within and between the side lot lines, as extended to the paved public highway, of the premises
served by such driveway.

§ 185-124- Places of worship.

In reviewing an application for a special use permit for places of worship, the Planning Board
shall, at a minimum, require that the following criteria be met:

A. Required setbacks. The minimum required setbacks for places of worship are:

Page 151 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(1) Front setback: 70 feet.
(2) Rear setback: 10 feet.
(3) Side setback: 20 feet.

B. Lot size. Each place of worship shall be located on a lot with a minimum land area of
three acres.

C. Lot coverage. All buildings, structures and impervious surfaces shall not occupy in the
aggregate more than 33% of the area of the parcel or parcels on which sueh-building-

struetures-and-impervious-surfacesare-to-bethey are located.

D. Parking.

(1) Off-street paved parking must be provided, with one parking space for every three
seats within the structure. Where seating is bench-type, each 20 inches shall be
counted as one seat.

Page 152 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(2) The general parking requirements of §185-95 in Article XVA shall also apply.

E. Lighting. All exterior lighting shall be in accordance with the provisions of Article XV
(Exterior Lighting Regulations) of this Chapter.

F. Signs. All signs shall be in accordance with the provisions of Article XVIII (Sign
Regulations) of this Chapter.

EG. Height. The maximum permitted height of places of worship and their related
structures, not including a spire, shall be 30 feet, except that a chimney attached to a
place of worship may extend 10 feet above the highest point of the structure.

E-H.AlI other relevant requirements of this Code not inconsistent with these criteria shall be
applicable to places of worship.

G:L. Need and location. By New York decisional law, the applicant shall not be required to
make an affirmative showing of the need for the proposed establishment or expansion of
the place of worship, and the particular site chosen may not, in and of itself, be the basis
for a denial of the special use permit.

§ 185-125: Recreational land and open space required.

A. Statement of purpose and authority. This section is enacted in recognition of the need, in
the continuing development of the Town, that adequate provision must continue to be
made for open areas in residential districts for use as parks for playground or other

Page 153 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

recreational purposes. This section applies to all instances where residential development
is proposed, whether such development occurs through the subdivision and plat review
process as provided in Town Law §§ 276 and 277 or by the site plan process pursuant to
Town Law § 274-a or is accomplished by local law or ordinance. The authority granted
herein to require land for parks or a sum of money in lieu thereof relating to properties

Page 154 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

subject to site plan review instead of subdivision plat approval is intended to and does
hereby supersede and/or supplement the provisions of Town Law § 274-a to the extent
that said Town Law may be inconsistent or lacking in granting such authority.

Recreation areas or recreation fees. The Planning Board, before the approval by it of a
final detailed site plan or of a final site plan or the approval of a plat pursuant to Town
Law Article 16, showing lots, blocks or sites with or without streets or highways, or an
application for a building permit or plan for the erection of any residential structure or
structures, shall also show, in all proper cases and when required by the Planning Board, a
park or parks located and to be developed for Town-wide recreational purposes. If the
Planning Board determines that a suitable park or parks of adequate size and topographic
quality cannot be properly located on the lands shown upon such plan or are otherwise
not practical, the Planning Board shall require, as a condition to the approval of any such
plan or application, a payment to the Town in the amount e£$856approved by the Town
Board for each dwelling unit in any residential structure or structures. Said sums of
money shall be paid at the time a building permit is issued for each such dwelling unit
and shall constitute a trust fund to be used by the Town exclusively for parks, playgrounds
or other recreational purposes, including the acquisition of property.

Placing of monuments; size and quality of parks. In approving such plans or applications,
the Planning Board shall require that suitable monuments be placed by the developer at
such block corners or other relevant or necessary points as may be required by the said
Board to delineate such park areas, and the locations thereof are to be shown on the map
of such property. The park shall be of reasonable size and topographic quality for
playgrounds or other recreational purposes.

§ 185-126- Telecommunications towers.

A.

B.

Intent. The purpose of this section is to allow for telecommunications installations while
providing for the health, safety and aesthetic character of the Town consistent with
applicable federal and state law, in accordance with the Town's Comprehensive Plan,
with particular regard to scenic vista protection. This section is intended to comply with
the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996.

(Reserved).

Page 155 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

COIOCATION Tl £ o ¢4l RRER 4 s
ERELECSTANDINC COMMIINICATION. _TOWED L fm%f' 4 hiok
telecommunieat = affixeds

MONAOPOLE A ;ﬂg B 1 £ a¥ N $1 Be hiah-tal m +1 4. 2 aﬁ%*eé
TELECONM /f.\ /TT- INICA TTﬁ\T.C ’T‘f\‘\l‘tﬂ? A % . hich ¢ %t*ﬂb A ﬁ%ﬁ#@
lecated—This—ineludes-but Hmited=te—freestanding=t —guyed— —monepoles—and-similar
rs v _ ) T rs ¢$‘ 1t dad £ 4 Sﬁ'“' | 2373 o +a] %ﬁ' 41 ot 1 Ai*ﬁg
theseeitherfortire—pok therdispatehcommunieats Lusivelyforprivatesadioandtel

st dprivateeiti ! bapds—amat di dothersimil samunieats

C. Approval of telecommunications facilities.

(1) No telecommunications tower shall hereafter be used, erected, moved, reconstructed,
changed or altered except after the granting of a special use permit by the Town
Planning Board and in conformity with the provisions of this section. No existing
structure shall be modified to serve as a telecommunications tower unless in
conformity with this section.

(2) Telecommunications towers and accessory facilities shall be permitted in any zoning
district upon the issuance of a special use permit as provided in Article XXV and the
granting of preliminary and final site plan approval, in accordance with Article

Page 156 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

a E‘E‘Sl'd anece “lit h A Ft‘i e e“XXIX

(3) Inreviewing an application for a special use permit for a telecommunications tower,
the Planning Board shall, at a minimum, require that the following criteria be met:

a) Site location. A proposed location shall receive approval from the Planning
Board following satisfaction of the following requirements:

(1]
(2]

(3]

Documentation of the need for the use of the site proposed.

A completed visual environmental assessment form (visual EAF),
including a simulated photographic visualization of the site, with
particular attention to visibility from key view points identified on the
visual EAF. The Planning Board may require submittal of a more detailed
visual analysis based on the results of the visual EAF.

Preference shall be given that the proposed facility be located in a higher
use district or on higher-intensity-use property. Such preference, from
most favorable to least favorable, is as follows:

[a] Property with an existing suitable structure.
[b] Industrial districts.

[c] Commercial or Mixed-Use districts.

[d] Business-eoffice/Office park districts.

[e] Municipal or government-owned property.
[f] Residential districts.

[g] Viewshed areas.

b) Height.

(1]

(2]

The Planning Board shall approve, subject to the limitations set forth in
Subsection C(3)(b)[2] below, the height of each proposed
telecommunications tower. In reviewing such issue, the Planning Board
shall consider the minimum height necessary for the applicant's needs and
may also take into consideration the potential for co-location in
approving or requiring additional height above the minimum necessary
for the applicant's needs.

The maximum height for telecommunications towers permitted under this
section, including any antennas, extensions or other devices extending
above the tower, measured from the ground surface immediately
surrounding the site, shall be 100 feet.

Page 157 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

¢) Co-location and use of preexisting structures.

(1

(2]

(4]

Applicants are encouraged to provide their towers for use by other
carriers at a reasonable fair market value. Additionally, where such co-
location is unavailable, location of antennas on preexisting structures
shall be considered by the applicant. An applicant shall be required to
present an adequate report inventorying existing towers within a
reasonable distance of the proposed site and outlining opportunities for
co-location with existing facilities and the use of other preexisting
structures as an alternative to a new construction.

An applicant intending to co-locate with an existing tower shall be
required to document intent from an existing tower owner to co-locate.

In the case of new towers, the applicant shall be required to submit a
report demonstrating good faith efforts to secure co-location with existing
towers as well as documenting capacity for future co-location for the
proposed tower. Written requests and responses for co-location shall be
provided.

The applicant must examine the feasibility of designing a proposed
telecommunications tower to accommodate future demand for additional
facilities. This requirement may be waived by the Planning Board,
provided that the applicant demonstrates that future shared usage of the
proposed facility is not feasible and an unnecessary burden, based upon:

[a] The number of Federal Communications Commission (FCC)
licenses forseeablyforeseeably available for the area.

[b] The number of existing and potential licenses without tower
spaces/sites.

[c] Available spaces on existing and approved towers.

[d] Potential adverse visual impact by a tower designed for co-
location.

d) Setbacks. Telecommunications towers and antennas shall comply with all
existing setbacks within the affected zone. Additional setbacks may be
required by the Planning Board to contain on site substantially all icefall or
debris from tower failure. Setbacks shall apply to all tower parts, including
guy-wire anchors, and to any accessory facilities.

e) Visibility and aesthetics.

(1

Towers shall not be artificially lighted except to assure human safety as
required by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA). Towers should

Page 158 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

be designed and sited so as to avoid, whenever possible, application of
FAA lighting and painting requirements.

[2] Accessory facilities shall maximize use of location, building materials,
colors and textures designed to blend with the natural surroundings.

[3] No telecommunications tower, antennas or accessory facility shall
contain any signs or advertising devices.

f) Existing vegetation. Existing on-site vegetation shall be preserved to the
maximum extent possible. Clear-cutting of all trees in a single contiguous area
shall be minimized to the maximum extent possible.

g) Screening. Deciduous or evergreen tree planting may be required to screen
portions of the tower and accessory facilities from nearby residential property
as well as from public sites. Where the site abuts residential or public property,
including streets, at least one row of native evergreen shrubs or trees capable
of forming a continuous hedge at least 10 feet in height within two years of
planting shall be provided to effectively screen the tower base and accessory
facilities. In the case of poor soil conditions, planting may be required on soil
berms to assure plant survival, with the plant height to include the height of the
berm.

h) Access.

[1] Access may be required to assure adequate emergency and service access.
Maximum use of existing roads, public or private, shall be made. Road
construction shall be sufficient to accommodate the intended use.
Construction of pervious roadways (crushed stone, gravel, etc.) is
preferred. At all times, road construction shall minimize ground
disturbance and vegetation-cutting to within the bottom of fill, the top of
cut or no more than 10 feet beyond the edge of any pavement. Road
grades shall closely follow natural contours to assure minimal visual
disturbance and reduce soil erosion potential. Public road standards must
be waived in meeting the objectives of this subsection.

[2] All telecommunications towers and accessory facilities and guy anchors,
if applicable, shall be enclosed by a fence not less than six feet in height
or otherwise sufficiently protected from trespassing and vandalism.

i) Radio frequency effects. It is recognized that the Telecommunications Act of
1996, Public Law 104-104, Section 704, prohibits the regulation of cellular and
personal communications towers based on the environmental effects of radio
frequency emissions where those emissions comply with the FCC standards for
those emissions. The Planning Board may, however, impose a condition on the
applicant that the communications antennas be operated only at FCC-
designated frequencies and power levels.

Page 159 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(4) The Planning Board shall have the authority to require appropriate camouflaging and
to impose such reasonable conditions and restrictions as are directly related to and
incidental to the proposed telecommunications tower special use permit and/or site
plan.

D. Reimbursement for expenses. Each application shall include application fees and
engineering review fees, as outlined in the Town of Pittsford fee schedule.?

E. Removal of facilities; bond.

(1) Any applicant installing a telecommunications towers-antennas-and/or-aceessory-
faetlity within the Town shall remove any and all such structures immediately upon
the discontinuance of use, shall reasonably restore the site and shall incur all
expenses therefor.

(2) As security for the performance of the requirements set forth above, the applicant
shall, upon the granting of approval under this section and prior to the installation of
any facilities, execute and file with the Town Clerk of the Town of Pittsford a bond
or other undertaking which shall be approved as to form, manner of execution and
sufficiency for surety by the Town Board and shall be with a solvent surety
corporation. Such bond or undertaking shall be conditioned upon the faithful
performance of the provisions of subsections above, and in the event of default, the
bond or undertaking shall be forfeited to the Town of Pittsford, which shall be
entitled to maintain an action thereon. The bond or undertaking shall remain in full
force and effect until the removal of the telecommunications tower;-antennas-ane/or
aeeessory-faeilities and site restoration. The value of the bond shall be equal to the
cost of demolition and restoration of the site.

F. Applicant build-out plan.

(1) As part of any application in accordance with this section, the applicant shall submit
to the Planning Board a build-out plan setting forth the applicant's current facilities
within the Town, together with the applicant's intentions for additional facilities
within the Town for the ensuing 24 months, and shall also certify whether any and
all existing facilities of the applicant are in active use and are necessary for its
telecommunications operations.

(2) The aforesaid build-out plan shall include a statement as to how the proposed facility
will supplement, detract from or coordinate with existing telecommunications towers
in the Town and contiguous jurisdiction: any changes proposed within the following
twenty-four-month period, including a build-out plan for new locations and the
discontinuance or relocation of existing facilities.

(3) A similar build-out plan and certification of use of existing facilities shall be
thereafter submitted by such applicant on or before January 31 of each year, as well
as upon any further application for any additional facilities.

(4) The Planning Board shall impose the provisions of Subsection F(3) above as a

Page 160 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

condition of the issuance of any special use permit granted in accordance with this
section.

G. Exceptions. The provisions of this section shall not apply to the following:
(1) Individual, scientific and medical equipment as regulated by the FCC in 47 CFR 18.

(2) Military and government radar antennas and associated communication towers for
navigational purposes as regulated by 47 CFR 87.

3 Editor's NeterSaidf heduleis filein the Town offices.

(3) Radio transceivers normally hand-held or installed in a vehicle, such as an
automobile, truck, trailer or watercraft.

(4) A radio frequency machine which is designed and marketed as a consumer product,
such as a microwave oven and radio-controlled toys.

(5) Lawful or approved uses existing prior to the effective date of these regulations,
including the repair and maintenance of existing communications towers and
antennas.

(6) Antennas used solely for the residential household television and radio reception in
accordance with § 185-127 of the Town Code.

(7) Satellite antennas one meter or less in diameter and building-mounted in commercial
districts and ground-mounted in residential districts, regardless of the zoning district

in which it is located.

(8) Satellite antennas measuring two meters or less in diameter and located in the
following eommereial-districts:

a) Mixed Use — Commercial District.

a)b) General Commercial District.

bjc) Light Industrial District.

e)d) High Technology Manufacturing-and Office Park District.
('i) ];‘if‘iﬂ% SS-af d ()fﬁee l)] ‘fﬁ.e{.

(9) Amateur radio antennas owned and used by amateur radio operators licensed by the
Federal Communications Commission. Such uses shall be regulated by §185-128.

§ 185-127- Satellite antennas.

A. Findings and purpose. The Town Board efthe Tews-has become concerned about the
appearance and impact of satellite antennas. The Town Board finds that unless
Page 161 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

regulated, such antennas can be installed in an aesthetically unpleasant manner with an
adverse impact on surrounding properties. The intent and purpose of this section is to
establish a procedure and criteria to avoid the adverse impacts of the installation of such
antennas and to

Page 162 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

preserve the character, beauty and general welfare of the municipality, while complying
with the restrictions imposed by the federal government in 47 CFR 104.

B. Reserved.
SATELTFTITE ANTENNA A 4 N £ 13z 3 43 £ fae
EENN apparatus—eap . = atre
ttor pal 1 tod 1 4 it
tra: s A seoplanetary &
B-C. Satellite dish considered structure; requirements. No person shall cause, suffer or
permit the erection and/or maintenance of any satellite antenna or device, except as set
forth herein:

(1) Any such antenna shall be considered a structure for which a building permit is
required.

(2) Except as provided in Subsection F hereof, in residential districts, such antennas
shall be ground-mounted only and be located in the rear yard area. In nonresidential
districts, such antennas may be ground-mounted or roof-mounted. In all districts,
such antennas must comply with applicable setback requirements.

B—Applications; permits. Applications for building permits shall be made to the Code
Enforcement Officer. Plans and sketches shall be submitted by the owner of the
premises only. Said plans shall show the location of all physical improvements o

&D. ron the subject premises and the proposed location of the antenna. Proposed new
landscaping shall be depicted.

(1) No installations shall be allowed over or upon an easement.

(2) The diameter of such dish shall not exceed 12 feet. The height of such device and its
installation shall not exceed 15 feet above ground level at its maximum height for
ground-mounted antennas. Roof-mounted antennas extending more than three feet
above the roofline shall be concealed from ground-level view by a parapet wall or by
exterior architectural material.

(3) The color of such installation shall be in solid earth tones, and said color tones shall
be maintained in such character during the usage of said satellite antenna under this
permit.

(4) All ground-mounted antennas shall be effectively screened on all sides that do not
create an adverse picture reception by a solid fence, compact evergreen hedge,
planting screen or principal structure. Satellite antennas shall be located and
designed to reduce or eliminate visibility from surrounding properties at street level
and from public streets.

(5) Allinstallations shall be in compliance with the manufacturer's instructions and
erected in a good and workmanlike manner.

(6) All antennas and the construction and installation thereof shall conform to applicable

Page 163 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

electrical, fire prevention and building codes.

(7) Antennas shall meet manufacturer specifications, be of noncombustible and

Page 164 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

corrosive-resistant material and be erected in a secure, wind-resistant manner.

(8) Every antenna must be adequately grounded for protection against a direct strike of
lightning.

(9) The Code Enforcement Officer, when he deems it necessary, may require the owner
to provide certification by a licensed architect or professional engineer as to the
safety of the installation and, in the case of roof-mounted antennas, as to the
appropriate load-bearing capacity of the roof.

D:E. Permit fee. An application for a building permit pursuant to this section shall
be accompanied by such fee as is specified for same by resolution of the Town
Board.

E-F. Exemption for small antennas. A satellite antenna which is 40 inches or less in diameter
may be installed without the necessity of obtaining a building permit and not subject to
the requirements of Subsection C(2) hereof, provided that such antenna is installed
behind the front facade of the main structure, does not extend above the roofline of the
main structure and complies with the provisions of Subsection D(3) through and
including (9) of this section.

§ 185-128: Amateur radio communications antennas.

A. Special use permit. A special use permit must be obtained from the Zoning Board of
Appeals before a building permit may be issued for amateur radio communications
antennas which exceed the applicable district height restrictions.

B. Preexisting antennas. These are exempt from the provisions of this section.

C. Applications. An application for such special use permits shall be as generally provided
for in §§ 185-171 through 185-173 of this chapter, except that § 185-171A through H are
hereby replaced with the following requirements:

(1) A scaled plan or drawing of the proposed antenna, with design data, certified by a
professional engineer or the manufacturer.

(2) Satisfactory evidence that such antenna will withstand the wind load requirements
for structures as established in the New York State Fire Prevention and Building
Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

Page 165 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(3) A diagram or plan showing the lot or parcel and its dimensions on which the antenna
is to be located and showing the location of all structures on the lot or parcel and the
location of the proposed antenna.

(4) A list of all property owners and their addresses within 500 feet of the applicant's lot
or parcel.

(5) The required application fee established by the Town Board.

Page 166 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(6) An environmental assessment form (EAF).

(7) Such additional maps, plans and specifications or other information as may
reasonably be required by the Zoning Board of Appeals.

(8) Proof that the applicant is an amateur radio operator licensed by the Federal
Communications Commission.

D. Determination. In making its determination upon each application, the Board shall, in lieu
of the provisions of § 185-174, be guided by the following standards:

(1) The proposed antenna meets good and accepted engineering standards for such
antennas;

(2) The proposed antenna meets the wind load requirements for structures as established
by New York State law;

(3) The proposed antenna shall be to the rear of the rear line of the principal structure on
the lot or parcel, provided that an antenna consisting of a single strand of wire, or
portion thereof, is permitted in the front of the rear line of the principal structure if it
is screened or arranged such that it is not visible from the public right-of-way;

(4) The proposed antenna shall not exceed a height of 100 feet above the ground;
(5) No more than one antenna structure shall be located on the lot or parcel;

(6) No part of the proposed antenna, including stays and guy or supporting wires, shall
be in violation of the relevant district setbacks;

(7) If'the base of a ground-based antenna is visible from any public right-of-way or from
adjacent property, then appropriate screening of the base shall be required,

(8) Antennas may not be located on conservation easements, drainage easements, public
utility easements or on any reserved open space;

(9) Reasonable conditions regarding maintenance and safety may be imposed on the
special use permit; and

(10) The special use permit shall contain the condition that the Code Enforcement
Officer, or his designee, may enter the premises at any reasonable time, accompanied
by the owner, to inspect the antenna installation for its construction, stability and
maintenance.

E. Decision. The federal government has determined that amateur radio communications
antennas and activities are beneficial to the public health, safety, morals and general
welfare of the community. If the proposed antenna meets the requirements of Subsections
C and D of this section, then the special use permit shall be issued, with such reasonable
conditions as the Board may impose in accordance with the provisions of Subsection D-

Page 167 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

herein.

F. Sections 185-175 through 185-177 are not applicable to this antenna special use permit
process.

§ 185-129—"Fypes-of single—and-two-family-dwelings:

Page 168 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§185-130-1- Mining and excavations.

A. Purpose and findings.

(M

@

3)

“)

In order that land may be mined and excavated in the Town in an orderly and
reasonable manner while protecting the value of property, protecting the health,
safety and general welfare of the public, as well as protecting the natural beauty and
aesthetic values in affected areas, this section is enacted.

The New York State Mined Land Reclamation Law (Environmental Conservation
Law § 23-2701 et seq.) reserves to the state permit-granting authority, reclamation
standards and certain other authority over the extractive mining industry in the state
which exceed a certain volume of production. That state law allows for the exercise
of certain powers by local governments over mining and excavational activities.

The Town Board finds that the only extractive mining industries within the Town are
two sand and gravel operations, both of which are preexisting, nonconforming uses-
inresidential zenes, and further finds that the volume of production of those
operations is such as to bring them within the state regulatory authority.

This section is enacted to supplement the provisions of state law governing those
sand and gravel operations.

B. Expansion of existing mining operations prohibited.

(M

@

3)

The sand and gravel operations existing within the Town are Tax Account No.
191.020-001-027 (commonly called the "Lehman Farm"), which comprises about
94.7 acres of land as shown on the Town of Pittsford Tax Map, and Tax Account No.
191.010-01-018 (commonly called the "Youngs Farm"), which comprises about 66.4
acres of land as shown on the Town of Pittsford Tax Map. These two operations are
preexisting, nonconforming uses and are the only mining and excavation activities in
the Town.

These sand and gravel operations may not expand onto adjacent or other parcels of
land.

In the event that these tax account numbers are amended or altered to include
additional land, then mining or extractive activity is prohibited on such additional

land.
Page 169 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

C. Referral of permit application to Town by state.

(1) The state is required by state law to refer to the Town for comment all permit

Page 170 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

D.

applications for mining activities within the Town over which the state has
jurisdiction. The Town is required to comment, if it decides to do so, within 30 days.

(2) The Town Supervisor is required by state law to make the comments on behalf of the
Town. The Supervisor shall consult with the Town Board before making such
comments, except that if mining activities are prohibited by Town law at the
proposed site, the Supervisor shall promptly so notify the state in writing.

(3) State law permits comments by the Town as to appropriate setbacks from property
boundaries or public rights-of-way, man-made or natural barriers to restrict access,
control of dust and hours of operation. The Town Board finds, based on past
experience and previous Town Board legislative standards, that the following are
reasonable and necessary minimum requirements that ought to attach to any such
permit granted by the state in this Town:

a) Setbacks: at least 75 feet from property boundaries or public rights-of-way.

b) Barriers to restrict access: a four-strand barbed wire fence adjacent to any
portion of the excavation face reasonably accessible to the public, whether the
excavation face is active or inactive; the fence shall be at least 10 feet back
from the excavation face or, if the excavation face is less than 10 feet from the
property line, the fence shall be of equal distance from the excavation face and
the property line; the four strands of barbed wire shall be at one-foot-horizontal
intervals with the lowest being one foot above the ground; and poles or stakes
supporting such barbed wire shall be at intervals not greater than 10 feet.

¢) Dust control. A vegetative buffer zone shall exist between all excavation faces

and adjacent property lines, unless the existing topography provides a natural
buffer.

d) Hours of operation: from 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. local time.
Inspection and enforcement.

(1) The Commissioner of Public Works, or his designee, including all Town Code
Enforcement Officers, shall have the authority and responsibility for inspection of all
mining operations in the Town and shall report to the Town Board any violations of
state or Town laws regulating the same, including violations of any conditions
attached to state permits.

(2) Violations of state law or state permit conditions shall also be promptly
communicated to the appropriate state authority.

(3) The Town Board may take such legal action as it deems appropriate to enforce state
and Town law and permit violations.

Page 171 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-131.130 Ponds.

A. Purpose. It is the purpose of this section to define and regulate all ponds in residential
zoning districts in the Town in order to protect the environment, protect the rights of
others to natural water flows and to prevent health and safety hazards that may occur by
reason of the existence of ponds.

B. Definitions. As used herein, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

GARDEN DPONTD A delad £ 4 1l £ 4 4l S00 foot d
A N ¥ & Gass &y &t ¥ GSHrrace-ares greaeTme Fere ane
d th of 24 o N
& S eP
OPEN /A TED DAONTY A dabhad £ 1th £ M £500 font
a2 ¥ e R o Water=v S-S race-ares ek
d th o f Fa o W/ 1

a6 =6 e

C. Exemptions.

(1) Ponds constructed as part of active agricultural operations are exempt from this
section.

(2) Retention and detention ponds mandated and/or owned by the Town are exempt
from this section.

(3) Natural ponds left in their natural state are exempt from this section.
D. Regulations.

(1) General.

a) All ponds must be maintained so as to assure that they do not become
offensive to neighboring properties by reason of stagnation, algae, mosquito-
breeding and similar conditions.

b) No pond can interfere with or impede the natural flow of water nor adversely
impact any floodplain or wetland area.

¢) All ponds shall have a maximum depth of 24 inches within eight feet of the
water's edge.

(2) Garden ponds may be constructed on any residential property subject to the
applicable setback requirements and without the necessity of obtaining a building
permit or landscape alteration permit.

(3) Open water ponds. No open water pond may be constructed on any residential
property unless:

a) The property on which the pond is to be constructed is five acres or more in
size;

b) The pond is at least 100 feet from all property lines on the premises where it is
to be located;

Page 172 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

¢) The pond shall conform to the requirements of and be approved by the Soil
Conservation Service of the United States Department of Agriculture or its
successor agency; and

Page 173 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

d) A landscape alteration permit has been issued therefor, except that such permit
shall not be required where the Planning Board has approved such pond as part
of the subdivision approval process.

In reviewing an application for a special use permit for a school or college, the Planning Board
shall, at a minimum, require that the following criteria be followed:

A. Required setbacks. The minimum required setbacks for school and college structures and
parking areas are as follows:

(1) Front setback: 70 feet.
(2) Rear setback: 10 feet.
(3) Side setback: 20 feet.

B. Lot coverage. All buildings, structures and impervious surfaces shall not occupy in the
aggregate more than 50% of the area of the parcel or parcels on which such building,
structures and impervious surfaces are to be located.

C. Parking. The general parking requirements of §185-95 in Article XVA shall apply.

Page 174 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

D. Lighting. All exterior lighting shall be in accordance with the provisions of Article XV
(Exterior Lighting Regulations) of this Chapter.

E. Signs. All signs shall be in accordance with the provisions of Article XVIII (Sign
Regulations) of this Chapter.

B-F.Height. The maximum permitted height of a school or college and its related structures
shall be 30 feet, except that a chimney attached to a school may extend 10 feet above the
highest point of the structure.

EG. All other relevant requirements of the Town Code not inconsistent with these
criteria shall be applicable to schools and colleges.

E-H.Need and location. By New York decisional law, the applicant shall not be required to
make an affirmative showing of the need for the proposed establishment or expansion of
the school, and the particular site chosen may not, in and of itself, be the basis for a
denial of the special use permit.

§ 185-133.1:132 Trash and recycling removal in residential zones.
A. Trash and/or recycling removal services shall be carried out between 6:00 a.m. and

7:00p=a—ocattime
p.m. local time.

Page 175 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-133 Reserved.

Page 176 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article XVIII.-Signs; A-wnings-and_Sign
Regulations
Canepies

§ 185-134 Reserved.

§ 185-134.1 Purpose

A. Purpose. The purpose of this Article is to promote and protect the public health,
welfare, and safety by regulating existing and proposed signs which are visible from
streets or other public areas or from one property to another. These regulations are
designed to balance the development and promotion of business and industry with the
provision of signage in a manner that is not a detriment to the public.

B. Objectives. The intent of this Article is to achieve the following objectives:

(1) Establish a consistent process for those seeking to install signs;

(2) Protect property values and create a more attractive economic and business climate;

(3) Reduce the adverse effects of signage on the desired Town character and foster a
visually pleasing community environment;

(4) Provide structures and uses with effective means of identification while reducing

visual clutter through the prevention of excessive and confusing sign displays;

(5) Reduce visual distractions and obstructions that may impact traffic safety, and

reduce hazards that may be caused by signs overhanging or projecting above public
rights-of-way; and

(6) Enforce and encourage the objectives and goals of the Town of Pittsford
Comprehensive Plan and other supporting plans and studies.

§ 185-134.2 Applicability

A. Signs Under Regulation. The requirements of this Article shall govern and control all
signs within the Town of Pittsford legible from any street, sidewalk, public right-of-way,
public space, or from one property to another property.

B. Prohibited Signs. Attention Getting Device, Digital Sign, Obsolete Sign, Off-Premise
Sign, Projecting Sign, Roof Sign, and Window Sign.

C. Exempt Signs. The provisions of this Article shall not apply to:

(1) Signs erected and maintained pursuant to the following requirements and/or in
Page 177 of 269




Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

discharge of any governmental function, including safety signs, road signs, historical
markers, highway directional signs. or signs otherwise required by any local, state,

Page 178 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

or federal law. ordinance, or regulation.

(2) Signs not applicable to §185-134.2 (A) are exempt from all regulations in this
section.

D. Customary Decorations Permitted. This Article shall in no event be construed to
prohibit the temporary decoration of premises in any district during religious, patriotic

or holiday seasons in a customary manner.

§ 185-134.3 Reserved.

§ 185-134.4 Building Permit

A. Permit Required. Prior to the erection, alteration, reconstruction, or relocation of a
freestanding sign, wall sign, pole sign, and awning or canopy sign, a building permit
shall first be obtained by the Code Enforcement Officer (CEQ) in accordance with
below. Where a permit is not required, such sign must still comply with the regulations
of this Article.

B. Exempt Actions. Normal maintenance and repair of a sign not involving structure
changes, including, but not limited to. repainting in kind. repairing, changing of parts. or
cleaning shall not require the issuance of building permit.

§ 185-134.5 Building Permit Applications

A. Application Submittal.

(1) Building permit applications shall be submitted to the CEO on the appropriate
forms provided by the Town of Pittsford.

(2) Incomplete applications will not be processed. The CEO shall provide written or
electronic notice of application deficiencies to applicants. If such deficiencies are
not corrected within 30 days of notice, the application will be considered
withdrawn.

B. Application Requirements. The following shall be provided in all building permit sign
applications. The CEO may require application materials to be prepared by a licensed
engineer or sign professional if deemed necessary for adequate review of the proposed
sign and its structure.

(1) Name, address, contact information, and signature of the applicant.

(2) Name, address, and signature of the building and/or property owner (if not the
applicant), and a statement of consent for the applicant to seek such building permit.

(3) The interior square footage of the business or organization.

Page 179 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(4) Dimensions and drawings indicating the size, shape, construction, materials, and
layout of the proposed sign(s).

(5) Indicate on drawings the size measurement required by section 185-134.6 herein.

(6) Site plan and elevations indicating the proposed location and size of the sign(s)
drawn to scale.

(7)_Color illustrations and/or photographs of the proposed sign and sign area.

(8) Proposed illumination system., if any. and the type of and intensity of the lighting to

be used. Underwriters Laboratories (UL) certification of the electrical components
shall beprovided to the CEO.

(9) Any additional site and/or sign information deemed necessary by the CEO for the
proper review of such application.

(10) All applicable permit fee(s).

C. Review Criteria. The approval of building permit applications shall be based upon the
following criteria:

(1) The sign follows the design guidelines outlined in §185-134.10 to the greatest
extent practicable.

(2) The sign is otherwise compliant with this Article and all other applicable local,
state, and federal laws and regulations.

(3) The CEO shall refer all sign applications to the Design Review and Historic
Preservation Board for review and approval. Signage replaced in kind shall not
require Design Review and Historic Preservation Board review and approval,
unless otherwise determined by the CEO. Such review will occur at a regularly
scheduled Design Review and Historic Preservation Board meeting. Upon referral,
the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board shall assume final decision
authority within Zoning limitations.

§ 185-134.6 Measurement

A. Sign Area.

(1) One-Sided Sign. The area of a sign shall be computed by means of the smallest
three (3) rectangles or less, that will encompass the extreme limits of the writing,
representation, emblem, graphic, and/or other display, together with any backdrop.,
material, or structure on which it is placed. Letters and graphics affixed directly on
a building facade shall be considered to have no backdrop. See figures below.

Page 180 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(2) Two-Sided Sign. In the case of a two-sided sign only one side of the sign is
considered in determining sign area if the sides of the sign are back-to-back or
diverge at an angle of 45 degrees or less. No sign shall be permitted to have more
than two sides.

SIGN |, MM

B. _Sign Height.

AREA (FACE)

(1) Freestanding Sign. The height of a freestanding
sign shall be calculated by measuring the vertical
distance between the top part of such sign or its
structure, whichever is highest, to the elevation
of the ground directly beneath the center of the
sign. See figure at right.

(2) Other sSigns. The height of all other signs shall be determined by measuring the
vertical distance between the top part of the sign face or structure, whichever is
highest, to the bottom most edge of the sign face or structure.

§ 185-134.7 Safety Provisions

A. No sign shall obstruct free egress from a window, door or fire escape, interfere with any
opening required for ventilation, or otherwise become a hazard to life or property.

B. The sign is not confusing or distracting, nor will it create a traffic hazard or otherwise
adversely impact public safety. Signs shall not include a phone number, email and or
website address.

C. No sign shall interfere with vehicular, pedestrian, or bicycle access or visibility,
including public view of any traffic or street sign, signal, or device.

D. No sign shall be permitted that may be confused with a traffic control sign, signal or

device or emergency light. This includes signs with beams and illumination directed

upon a public street, higchway, sidewalk, or adjacent premises so as to cause glare or

reflection that may constitute a traffic hazard or nuisance.

E. All lighting fixtures and light sources shall be dark sky compliant, shielded to prevent
glare and be in conformance with the requirements of Article XV, Exterior Lighting

Regulations.

Page 181 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-134.8 Design, Construction and Maintenance

A. All signs and its illumination shall be maintained in safe and good structural condition,
in compliance with all applicable building and electrical codes, and in conformance with
this Article. Such maintenance includes replacement of all defective bulbs, parts,

materials, painting, repainting, cleaning, replacement of copy, and other acts required
for proper upkeep of such sign.

B. The Town shall not be responsible for the maintenance of any signs, or the structures or
vegetation in connection therewith.

C. Signage associated with a business, group, or entity may be removed by the Town of
Pittsford and charged to the property owner following the abandonment or vacancy of

the associated space for six months or more. This provision shall be enforceable six
months after its adoption.

§ 185-134.9 Location

A. No sign shall be erected in any public right-of-way or on public property, including on
trees, fences, utility poles, bridges, fire hydrants, or traffic signs, unless written consent
of the governmental unit having jurisdiction of the location is obtained.

B. No sign shall obscure, alter, or cover the architectural features of any building.

C. No sign attached to a building facade shall extend beyond the ends of the wall surface.

D. All free-standing signs shall maintain at least a 10-foot setback from all property lines,
unless otherwise noted within this Article.

§ 185-134.10 Sign Design Guidelines

The following sign design guidelines are intended to provide applicants, the CEO, and Design
Review ad Historic Preservation Board with guidance for best practices in addressing issues
related to sign compatibility, legibility, placement, and color.

A. Compatibility.

(1) Signs should be constructed of high-quality materials compatible with the building
form and desired character of the area in which they are located.

(2) Signs should be appropriately scaled for the building or site upon which they are
located, so as not to dominate the facade or streetscape.

(3) Signs on buildings that have a monolithic or plain facade should be used to create
visual interest through appropriate sign design features, scale, and proportions.

(4) Signs should be designed to include relief in the lettering or sign face to create
shadows and provide depth and visual interest.

Page 182 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

B. Placement. Signs should be so located to respect and compliment a building’s facade,

utilizing logical signage areas created by existing architectural details or ornamentation.

. _Color.

(1) Use of color and color combinations utilized for signs should be limited. Generally,
a sign should not utilize more than three colors, including accent colors.

(2) Day-glo or florescent colors are prohibited.

(3) Buildings or their architectural treatment shall not be so garish in line, color, or
effect, so as to constitute a sign in themselves. Painting, striping, lighting, or other
graphic or attention getting device, is considered a sign and is regulated by town
zoning and these guidelines. Therefore, no structure shall be so striped or painted
so as to make the structure or building a sign.

Monroe Avenue Design Guidelines. Where located along the Monroe Avenue

corridor, all signs shall be in conformance with the regulations of the Town of Pittsford
Monroe Avenue Design Guidelines.

§ 185-134.11 Signs in residential districts.

Permanent signs in the Agricultural Zone, RN Residential, B Residential, RRAA Rural
Residential, Rural Residential South Pittsford, Suburban Residential and Monroe Avenue
Transitional Zone Districts shall be limited to the following:

A.

Where a permitted home occupation is maintained, and where signage for such home
occupation is required by law, such signage may be maintained, only to the extent
required by law. Lighting is not permitted.

Where a permitted commercial stable, farm market, country store, Veterinary clinic or
tack shop is maintained, one freestandlng sign may be erected on the premlses not
exceeding 16 square feet in size

pedestﬂaﬂ#mb#rty One addltlonal busmess 1dent1ﬁcat10n sign may be erected on

the building facade, not exceeding six square feet in size-identifying the business._
Lighting of such sign is permitted by direct illumination (no backlit or internally

illuminated signs permitted), provided that the lighting is source dark sky compliant
and is entirely screened from view.

In the Monroe Avenue Transitional Zone, for any permitted home occupation or special
use permit use, one small;freestanding pole sign, made of wood or nonglare finish
material, may be erected. Such sign may not exceed three square feet in area, nor
exceed four feet in length in one dimension. Lighting of such sign is permitted by
direct illumination (no backlit, or transhaeentinternally illuminated signs permitted),
provided that the lighting source is dark sky compliant and entirely screened from
view. The sigapestpole sign may not exceed five feet in height.

Page 183 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

D. Permanent signs and/or structures identifying gelfeeurses-subdivisions;apartment-houses-

Page 184 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

M

Signs shall be limited to one one-sided sign or structure on each side of each
entrance.

H—Signs shall require approval asfoHews:

2

of the location and structural design details shall-be-subjeet-to-the-approval-ef the

from the Commissioner of Public Works.

3)

“)

)

(6)

(N

The sign shall be located on the private subdivision, apartment house or other
residential property, unless the proponent requests and the Commissioner of Public
Works determines that it may appropriately be located in the highway right-of-way.
In determining whether to permit a sign in the right-of-way, the Commissioner shall
take-inte-aceountconsider highway safety, sight distance, snow removal and
storage, proximity to properties not in the subdivision and the need to have the sign
located in said right- of-way.

If the sign is on a post or pole, the sign shall not exceed six square feet, and the post
or pole shall not extend more than +0six feet above the ground on which it is
located.

If the sign is part of a stone, brick or other permanent wall or structure, the sign
shall not exceed six square feet in size, and the structure on which it is located shall
not exceed four feet in height.

Such signs and structures located in a highway right-of way may be removed by the
Town if they become damaged or are in an unsightly condition.

Any lighting of such sign is permitted by direct illumination efsueh-(no backlit or
internally illuminated signs shal-be-elear;landseape lightingand-shall- bese-
arranged-sepermitted), provided that itdeesnotprojectdisperse-or-display-any
lightrays-ento-adjacent properties-the lighting source is dark sky compliant and

entirely screened from view. Such illumination may not be of the flashing,
intermittent or interrupted type.

E. TheTeownshallnotberesponsiblefor the-maintenanece-of any-such-Permanent signs and/or
structures er-vegetationidentifying non-residential uses in eennection-therewith;-exeept-for
the-mewingof srassinapublieresidential districts:

1)

Signs can be placed at each entrance, as a one-sided sign on each side of the

(2)

entrance: or one, two-sided sign visible from the street; or one sign mounted to the

Signs are not to exceed 20 square feet in size per side. If such sign is freestanding,

or is part of a stone, brick or other permanent wall or structure, the structure on
which it is located shall not exceed five feet in height above grade.

&(3) The sign shall be located on the private property unless the proponent

Page 185 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(4)

requests and the Commissioner of Public Works determines that it may
appropriately be located in the highway right-of-way. In determining whether to

permit a sign in the right- of-way, the Commissioner shall consider highway
safety, sight distance, snow removal and storage, proximity to properties and the
need to have the sign located in said right-of-way.

Such signs and structures located in a highway right-of way may be removed by the

Town if they become damaged or are in an unsightly condition.

Page 186 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(5) Any Lighting of such sign is permitted by direct illumination (no backlit or
internally illuminated signs permitted), provided that the lighting source is dark sky

compliant and entirely screened from view. Such illumination may not be of the
flashing, intermittent or interrupted type.

§ 185-135. (Reserved)
§185-136:134.12 Signs in_the Light Industrial District.

Permanent signs in the Light Industrial District shall be limited to the following:

A. Freestanding signs.

(1) One two-sided freestanding sign per property is permitted stating the street address
number and/or the building name or, in the case of a single occupant, the business
name. Sign may be externally lit with shielded lighting to prevent glare.

(2) The sign shall be located adjacent to the main vehicular entrance and not closer to
the edge of road pavement than 20 feet.

(H—AllsignsSignage shall be maintained-in-good repair-and-in-a-legible-condition:
i SISIE: i sregarding signage she formlimited to thefeHowing:
ta)—The-maximum-size-of anyfreestanding sign-is-eight square feet per side-

(3) Fhe and a maximum height of ¢
40 inches measured from average grade.

B. Business directory signs.

(1) For properties with multiple tenants, a single one-sided freestanding directory sign
identifying the businesses on site is permitted. The directory sign shall be situated
in an unobtrusive, interior location.

(2) Dimensional requirements regarding the directory sign shall conform to the
following:

(a) A maximum size of two square feet per tenant is allowed.

(b) The maximum size of any directory sign may not exceed 10 square feet,
regardless of the number of tenants.

(c) The height of any directory sign may not exceed six feet, including the
mounting poles or structure.

C. Business identification signs.

(1) Signs identifying the business operated on the premises shall be allowed as
provided herein.

Page 187 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(2) All business identification signs shall be affixed to the building and shall not project
above the facade.

(3) Dimensional and lighting requirements regarding signage shall conform to the
following:

(a) For a single-tenant structure, no such sign shall be more than 100 square feet in

Page 188 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

area—-eodes e s el e Dle bl o L b ol
stgn. Two signs are permitted when there are multiple elevations facing the
abutting highway if in the aggregate. they do not exceed 100 square feet in area.

(b) For astructure with multiple tenants, no such sign shall be more than +6950

square feet in area-defined-asthesmatestreetancle-which-will-containal-the-
elements-ofthesign-. Additional signs are permitted-when-there-are-multiple-

entranees if in the aggregate they do not exceed 100 square feet in area.

(c) Signage may be internally or externally illuminated, provided it is dark sky

compliant and does not create glare.

§ 185-137:134.13 Signs in High Technology and Office Park District.

No sign shall be erected; except
is-attachedentrance signage, consistent with the existing monument agnage on Linden Oaks Drive.
Monument base shall not to a-building—erstructurethereon—No—suchsignshall- be-merethan

100exceed 52 square feet-inarea~—Neo-sueh, and the sign;—ifprejeetingshall projeetmeore placed
on top of the base can be no greater than threel5 square feet per side.

§ 185-138:134.14 Signs in Mixed Use — Commercial and-(MU-C-2) and General Commercial
(GC) Districts.

Permanent signs in the Commereial-and-MU-C-2 and GC Districts shall be limited to the
following:

A. Identification signs. Signs identifying businesses or service establishments shall be
allowed as provided herein.

(1) No sign shall be erected in any eemmereiatMixed Use - Commercial (MU-C)
District unless such sign so erected is attached to a building-e+strueture-. No such
sign shall extend merethan-sixfeetabove the roof line.

A minimum of any-building:

square

feet inper 1,000 square feet of lease area for eaeh%me&r—fee&eﬂmempy—ﬁac—ad%




Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(2 n-plan-shall-include all proposced signs for th
} } businesses or-service-establishments-

thereinlarger than 1,000 square feet.

(a) Signage may be located on facades other than the main entry facadefacade.

(b) Signs in excess of one per business or service establishment, but not exceeding
two signs, may be allowed, provided that the overall square footage of signage
does not exceed the amount allowed herein.

(c) Sign location and individual sign sizes shall be appropriately spaced, shall be
proportional to one another and shall properly balance the need for visual
recognition by the location of signs on facades other than the main entry facade
with the visual impact of such proposed signs on the district and/or nearby
structures.

Page 190 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

1—Editor's Note: Said-fee-schedule is-on-file in-the Fown-offices:

B. Directional signs. Directional signs such as "ENTER" and "EXIT" shall be permitted to
facilitate traffic flow entering and exiting properties, with the following conditions:

Page 191 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(1) Such signs shall not exceed 36 inches in width by 18 inches in height and shall not
exceed 40 inches' total height above grade nor obstruct the sight distance of drivers of
motor vehicles.

(2) Such signs shall not be placed within the road right-of-way without the written consent
of the governmental unit having jurisdiction of the location.

(3) Such signs shall be limited to "ENTER" and "EXIT" signs bearing no advertising and
to signs related to public safety as deemed necessary by the Commissioner of Public
Works or state Department of Transportation.

(4) Such signs smay-are encouraged to include street numbers.

(5) Directional signs may be lit internally and are subject to Department of Public
Works review and approval.

C. Parking restriction signs. Parking restriction signs shall be permitted to facilitate the
organization of parking lots, with the following conditions:

(1) All such signs shall be a standard size of 12 inches in width by 18 inches in height
and shall not exceed 72 inches'inches total height above grade nor obstruct the
sight distance of drivers of motor vehicles.

(2) Such signs shall face the parking places they are designed to restrict only.

(3) All such signs shall contain black, block lettering on a white background only and
shall not contain any logo or other advertising.

(4) All such signs shall be mounted or affixed in a secure manner so that they are
maintained in an upright position at all times.

(5) The within conditions shall not apply to handicap, fire lane or emergency-only
parking signs.

D. [llumination of signs in commercial districts.

(1) No premises in any commercial district and no exterior signs located in any Mixed
Use - Commercial (MU-C) District shall have floodlighting or any other type of
illumination unless a permit or site plan approval to that effect has been issued by

the Code Enforcement Officer or Planning Board based on the following factors:

(a) Such signs and lighting shall be in accordance with Illuminating Engineering

Society of North America (IES) recommended illumination levels and shall not
encroach on adjacent property.

(b) Such signs and lighting shall be erected, operated, and maintained consistent
with the provisions in this Article.

(2) All illuminated signs, with the exception of "ENTER" and "EXIT" signs as

Page 192 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

described in § 185-134.14 A, shall be placed on automatic timing devices which
will allow illumination to commence each day not sooner than 1/2 hour before the
business is open to the public and which will terminate illumination each day not
later than 11:00 p.m. local time, unless the business is actively operating and open
to the public. Any business actively operating and open to the public after 11:00
p.m. local time shall terminate illumination 1/2 hour after closing.

Page 193 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Losnlatiens
A. Temporary signs may not be erected in any public right-of-way or on public property,
including on trees, fences, utility poles, bridges, fire hydrants or traffic signs located on
such public right-of-way or public property.

B. The owner and/or occupant of the property on which such signs are erected and/or
displayed shall consent to the erection of such signs and shall be responsible for their
removal.

C. Temporary signs allowed by this section specifically do not include signs for the sale of
goods or merchandise of any business.

D. Temporary signs may not be illuminated.

E. Inresidential districts, the amount of temporary signage that may be erected per Tax
Map parcel at any time shall not exceed four signs. No one sign shall exceed eight
square feet, and the total signage shall not exceed 32 square feet.

F. In nonresidential districts, the amount of temporary signage that may be erected per Tax
Map parcel at any time shall not exceed four signs. One sign may be up to 12 square
feet. All remaining signs shall not exceed eight square feet, each, and the total signage
shall not exceed 32 square feet.

G. Temporary signs relating to an event shall be removed by the owner or occupant of the
property not later than four days thereafter.

§ 185-140:134.16 Awnings and canopies.

B Definttions-Asused-hereins The following terms-shall-have the meanings-indicated:

Page 194 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Regulationsregulations are applicable to all awnings and canopies.

S S pta and-specificatio S propesed+ allation—If such
awnings and/or canopies are over 30 square feet in size or exceed 10 feet in length,
such plans and specifications submitted for building permit review must be signed
and sealed by a professional engineer or registered architect. In the case of awnings
and/or canopies of a lesser size, the Code Enforcement Officer may require such
certified plans and specifications.

B. Illuminated awnings and/or canopies.

(1) Tlluminated awnings and/or canopies shall be considered to be signs.

Page 195 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(2) All fabrics used in illuminated awnings and/or canopies shall comply with the New
York State Building and Fire Codes with respect to flammability standards.

Page 196 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Page 197 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Page 198 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XIX. Planning Board

§ 185-142. Creation and appointment.

There shall be a Planning Board which shall consist of seven members who shall be appointed by
the Town Board in such manner and for such terms as provided in state law.

§ 185-143. Powers and duties.

The Planning Board shall have such powers and duties as are granted to it or imposed on it by state
law. The Planning Board may adopt, after a public hearing, such rules, regulations and forms as it
may deem necessary for the proper and efficient discharge of its duties, so long as such rules,
regulations and forms do not conflict with state law. Such rules, regulations and forms are subject
to the approval of the Town Board.

§ 185-144. Cluster development authorization.

The Planning Board is hereby granted the authority to employ the powers set forth in Town Law
§ 278 and to apply them to all undeveloped residentially zoned land in the Town when, in the
Planning Board's discretion and judgment, such use of those powers will benefit the Town.

Page 199 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XX. Zoning Board of Appeals

§ 185-145. Creation and appointment.

There shall be a Zoning Board of Appeals which shall consist of seven members who shall be
appointed by the Town Board in such manner and for such terms as provided in state law.

§ 185-146. Powers and duties.

The Zoning Board of Appeals shall have such powers and duties as are granted to it or imposed on
it by state law. The Zoning Board of Appeals may adopt, after a public hearing, such rules,
regulations and forms as it may deem necessary for the proper and efficient discharge of its duties,
so long as such rules, regulations and forms do not conflict with state law. Such rules, regulations
and forms are subject to the approval of the Town Board.

Page 200 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XXI. Design Review and Historic
Preservation Board

§ 185-147. Creation and appointment.

There shall be a Design Review and Historic Preservation Board which shall consist of seven
members. The Town Board shall appoint the members of the Design Review and Historic
Preservation Board and shall annually designate a Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Board.

§ 185-148. Qualifications of members.

All members of the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board shall be residents of the Town
and shall be deemed qualified by reason of training, experience or civic interest and by reason of
sound judgment to determine the effects of an application upon the desirability, property values
and development of surrounding areas. Up to three members of such Board shall be registered
architects in the state, one of whom must possess demonstrated experience with historic
architecture, and at least two members of such Board shall be deemed qualified by reason of
training, experience or civic interest and shall have a known interest in historic preservation and
architectural development within the Town.

§ 185-149. Terms of members; removal; filling of vacancies.

A. Members of the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board shall serve for seven-
year terms, except that the initial Board shall be appointed so that there is one member
serving a term of one, two, three, four, five, six and seven years, respectively.

B. The Town Board shall have the power to remove any member of the Board for cause
and after public hearing.

C. Ifavacancy shall occur in the Board other than by expiration of term, it shall be filled
by the Town Board for the unexpired term.

§ 185-150. Powers and duties.

A. The Design Review and Historic Preservation Board shall have powers and duties as
follows:

(1) Approval or denial of applications for design review, pursuant to Article XXXI of
this chapter.

(2) Designation of identified structures as landmarks, pursuant to Article XXX of this
chapter.

(3) Approval or denial of applications for certificates of appropriateness, pursuant
to Article XXX of this chapter.

(4) Such other powers and duties as are granted to it or imposed on it by this chapter.

Page 201 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(5) Seeking the advice of professional consultants, subject to Town Board approval.
(6) Promulgation of rules and regulations as necessary for the conduct of its business.

(7) Adoption of criteria for the identification of significant historic,
architectural and cultural landmarks.

(8) Conducting surveys of potentially significant historic, architectural and cultural
structures within the Town, in order to update the Town's list of inventoried
structures. Such survey activity and inventoried structures update shall include a
five-year reassessment of previously inventoried structures to assess any changes
in physical integrity and the evaluation of potentially eligible structures that have
reached 50 years of age and have not been previously surveyed and/or included
on the Town's list of inventoried structures. The results of each such survey shall
be submitted to the Town Board for potential amendment to the Town's list of
inventoried structures and shall include, at a minimum, representative
photographs of structures the Board finds to be appropriate for inclusion in the
Town's inventoried structures list, together with statements as to the relevant
background and the distinguishing character-defining features of each such
structure.

(9) Making recommendations to the Town Board concerning the acquisition of
facade easements or other interests in real property as necessary to carry out the
purposes of this chapter.

(10) Increasing public awareness of the value of historic, cultural and architectural
preservation by developing and participating in public education programs.

(11) Making recommendations to the Town Board concerning the utilization of
state, federal or private funds to promote the preservation of historic landmarks
within the Town.

(12) Recommending to the Town Board acquisition of a landmark structure by the
Town where its preservation is essential to the purposes of this act and where
private preservation is not feasible.

B. The Board may adopt, after a public hearing, such rules, regulations and forms as it
may deem necessary for the proper and efficient discharge of its duties, so long as
such rules, regulations and forms do not conflict with state law. Such rules, regulations
and forms are subject to the approval of the Town Board.

§ 185-151. Coordination with Planning Board.

Upon request of the Planning Board, the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board shall
consult with and advise the Planning Board with respect to any site plan or subdivision plan on
which it is required to pass under the provisions of law or of this chapter.

§ 185-152. Records.

The Design Review and Historic Preservation Board shall keep minutes of'its proceedings showing
the vote of each member upon every question, or if absent or failing to vote, indicate

Page 202 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

such fact, and shall also keep records of its examinations and other official actions.

Page 203 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XXII. Tree Department

[Added 9-6-2022 by L.L. No. 3-2022]

§ 185-153. Purpose and intent.

This article is enacted to designate the Town's Department of Public Works as the official Tree
Department of the Town of Pittsford for the purpose of the Town's application for recognition as
an Arbor Day Foundation Tree City USA and for the following purposes:

A. Clarify that the Public Works Department is responsible for management and care of
the Town's community trees, through its Parks and Highway Departments.

B. Continue efficient and cost-effective management of the Town's community trees.

C. Continue the planting, maintenance, and preservation of the Town's community trees
in order to protect and enhance the environment and character of the Town.

D. Continue the practice of consulting with professional arborists from time to time when
necessary or desirable.

E. In conjunction with the Town's Communications Department, foster community
support through educational outreach, and encourage good citizen tree management
practices through knowledge sharing.

§ 185-154. Authority; supersession of state law.

This article is adopted pursuant to the authority granted by the Municipal Home Rule Law and
shall supersede any provision of state law which is inconsistent herewith.

§ 185-155. Definitions.

Asused in this article, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

COMMUNITY TREE — A tree on Town-owned land or within the right-of-way of a Town public
street.

RIGHT-OF-WAY — The Town-owned land bordering a Town public street used for sidewalks,
edge stone, planting spaces, and/or utility transmission.

TREE — A living perennial, woody plant, including all of its parts, whose trunk is greater than
three inches in diameter at a height of four feet above the ground and whose full height at maturity
would reach a minimum of 12 feet.

§ 185-156. Responsibilities of Tree Department.
The responsibilities of the Tree Department shall be as follows:

A. Tree City recognition and grant applications. In conjunction with the Town's Chief of
Staff and its Communications Director, the Commissioner of Public Works shall
advise and assist with the designation and annual renewal of the Arbor Day

Page 204 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Foundation Tree City USA recognition and advise and coordinate the submission of
future Urban Forestry Grant applications.

B. Community tree maintenance. The Tree Department will be responsible for the
planting, maintenance, and removal of community trees.

C. Environmental education and awareness. Together with the Town's Chief of Staff and
the Communications Director, the Tree Department will coordinate and promote the
Town's annual Arbor Day celebration and activities. As the Department's time and
resources allow, it may also support local schools, libraries, and community centers
in offering environmental education programs and programing relating to tree planting
and preservation.

D. Best management practices for community tree care and maintenance.

(1) The Tree Department will have supervision over the species and variety of trees
to be planted, including the size, height, and width of the trees, and expected
maximum growth.

(2) The Tree Department will supervise the management and care of the Town's
community trees.

(3) The Tree Department will have supervision over protecting and controlling the
spread of invasive species affecting the Town's community trees and evaluating
means to control such spread of invasive species and to mitigate damage caused
by it.

§ 185-157. through § 185-159. (Reserved)

Page 205 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XXIII. Environmental Board

§ 185-160. Purpose and findings.

The preservation and improvement of the quality of the natural and man-made environment within
the Town of Pittsford, in the face of population growth, urbanization and technological change
with their accompanying demands on natural resources, are found to be of increasing and vital
importance to the health, welfare and economic well-being of present and future inhabitants
and require forthright action by the Town. It is recognized that the biological integrity of the
natural environment on which man is dependent for survival and the natural and functional beauty
of our surroundings which condition the quality of our life experience cannot be protected without
the full cooperation and participation of all of the people of the Town working in partnership with
local and state officials and with various public and private institutions, agencies and
organizations. Establishment of an environmental advisory board is a necessary step in fostering
unified action on environmental problems.

§ 185-161. Creation.

There is hereby created an advisory board to be known as the "Environmental Board."

§ 185-162. Membership; terms of office. [Amended 2-22-2024 by L.L. No. 3-2024]

The Environmental Board shall consist of at least seven but no more than 11 members who shall
be appointed by the Town Board and serve at the pleasure of the Town Board. Persons who are
interested in the improvement and preservation of environmental quality shall be eligible for
appointment as a member of the Environmental Board. Each member appointed to said Board shall
serve until December 31 of the year in which he or she is appointed.

§ 185-163. Officers, meetings and committees.

The Town Board shall designate a member of the Environmental Board to act as Chairperson
thereof. The Commission shall adopt rules and procedures for its meetings. It shall keep accurate
records of its meetings and activities and shall file an annual report as provided in this article.

§ 185-164. Powers and duties.
The Environmental Board shall have the powers and duties to do the following:

A. Advise the Town Board and Planning Board on matters affecting the preservation,
development and use of the natural and man-made features and conditions of the
Town insofar as beauty, quality, biological integrity and other environmental factors
are concerned and, in the case of man's activities and developments, with regard to
any major threats posed to environmental quality, so as to enhance the long-range
value of the environment to the people of the Town.

B. Develop and, after receiving general approval by resolution of the Town Board,
conduct a program of public information in the community which shall be designed

Page 206 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

to foster increased understanding of the nature of environmental problems and issues
and support for their solutions.

C. Conduct studies, surveys and inventories of the natural and man-made features within
the Town and such other studies and surveys as may be necessary to carry out the
general purposes of this section.

D. Maintain an up-to-date inventory or index of all open spaces in public or private
ownership within the Town, including but not limited to natural landmarks and glacial
and other geomorphic or physiographic features; streams and their floodplains,
swamps, marshlands and other wetlands; unique biotic communities; scenic and other
open areas of natural or ecological value; and of the ownership, present use and
proposed use of such open areas, so as to provide a base of information for
recommendations by the Board for their preservation and/or use.

E. Seek to coordinate, assist and unify the efforts of private groups, institutions and
individuals within the Town, in accord with the purposes of this section.

F. Maintain liaison and communications with public and private agencies and
organizations of local, state and national scope whose programs and activities have an
impact on the quality of the environment or who can be of assistance to the
Environmental Board.

G. Working in cooperation with the Planning Board, recommend from time to time to the
Town Board features, plans and programs relating to environmental improvement for
inclusion in the Comprehensive Plan of the Town and, similarly, recommend to the
Town Board appropriate and desirable changes in existing local laws and ordinances
relating to environmental control or recommend new local laws and ordinances.

H. Prepare, print and distribute books, maps, charts and pamphlets in accord with the
purposes of this article.

I.  Obtain and maintain in orderly fashion maps, reports, books and other publications to
support the necessary researches of the Board into local environmental conditions.

J. Recommend to the Town Board interests in land, whether fee simple or lesser
interests, including but not limited to conservation easements and development rights,
which the Town ought to consider acquiring by gift, purchase or otherwise to further
and foster the best environmental interests of the Town and its residents.

K. Carry out such other duties as may be assigned to it from time to time by the Town
Board.

L. Reports. The Environmental Board shall submit an annual report to the Town Board
not later than the first day of April of each year, concerning the activities and work of
the Board and from time to time shall submit such reports and recommendations as
may be necessary to fulfill the purposes of this article.

Page 207 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XXIV. Parks and Recreation
Board

§ 185-165. Purpose and findings.

The acquisition and administration of Town parks and the development and administration of
appropriate recreation programs greatly enhance the quality of life in the Town. The Town Board
finds that it would be beneficial for the Departments of Public Works and Recreation, in carrying
out their duties relating to parks and recreation matters, to have the benefit of continuing and
informed citizen assistance and participation.

§ 185-166. Creation.

The Town Board hereby creates the Parks and Recreation Board.

§ 185-167. Membership; terms of office. [Amended 4-5-2016 by L.L. No. 1-2016]

The Board shall consist of at least seven but no more than 11 members who shall be appointed by
the Town Board and serve at the pleasure of the Town Board. Each member appointed to said
Board shall serve until December 31 of the year in which he or she is appointed. Such Board
members shall be residents of the Town.

§ 185-168. Officers and meetings.

The Town Board shall designate a member of the Parks and Recreation Board to act as Chairperson
thereof. The Parks and Recreation Board shall select from among themselves a recording secretary.
They shall adopt rules and procedures for their meetings and shall meet monthly to carry out their
duties. The Director of Recreation, or his or her designee, shall attend all meetings of the Board.

§ 185-169. Powers and duties.
The Parks and Recreation Board shall perform the following functions:
A. Review and comment on all present and proposed recreation programs.

B.  Work in cooperation with the Planning Board to review all subdivision plans and other
development plans and submit their comments to the Planning Board.

C. Work in cooperation with the Commissioner of Public Works and Director of
Recreation and submit to them and/or the Town Board any recommendations they
may have concerning the business of the Public Works and Recreation Departments
relating to parks and recreation matters.

D. Recommend to the Commissioner of Public Works and Director of Recreation and/or
the Town Board any changes they find necessary or desirable in Town laws, rules and
regulations relating to parks and recreation matters.

Page 208 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

E. Recommend to the Commissioner of Public Works and Director of Recreation and/or
the Town Board the possible acquisition, utilization or disposal of Town park lands.

F. Serve as a link between the community and the Departments of Public Works and
Recreation, providing input as to the improvement and expansion of services and/or
facilities.

G. Submit an annual report to the Town Board not later than April 1 concerning the
activities and work of the Board and from time to time such other reports and
recommendations as may be necessary to fulfill the purposes of this chapter.

Page 209 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XXV. Special Use Permits

§ 185-170. Authorization.

The Planning Board and the Zoning Board of Appeals each have the authority to grant special use
permits, but such authority is limited to those uses this chapter specifies shall be reviewed by each
board. Where not specified in this chapter, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall have the authority
to grant the special use permit.

§ 185-171. Application.

All applications for special use permits shall be made by the owner or the owner's agent and filed
with the secretary of the appropriate board in accordance with such board's approved submission
schedule. No application shall be accepted, considered or scheduled for public hearing until all
required materials have been deemed to be complete and accurate. The application shall include
the following:

A. A diagram or plan showing the dimensions of the lot on which the proposed use,
structure or alteration is proposed, its location on the lot, all structures on the lot, lot
dimensions, setbacks, parking and ingress and egress.

A locational drawing.
A plan showing the intended use, structure or alteration.

A description of the proposed use and its operation.

m o 0o w

A list of all property owners (and addresses) of each parcel of property within 500 feet
and/or affected property owners.

e

The required application fee as specified by resolution of the Town Board.
An environmental assessment form (EAF).

Such additional maps, plans and specifications or other information as may be
required by the applicable board.

§ 185-172. Notice.

The Town will place a legal notice in the proper newspaper, advertising the applicant's name, the
property location, the special use permit requested and the time and place for a public hearing.

§ 185-173. Public hearing.

Before acting upon any application for a special use permit, the appropriate board shall hold a
public hearing thereon.

§ 185-174. Determination of impact.

In passing upon each application, the appropriate board shall determine whether the proposed use

Page 210 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

would endanger or tend to endanger the public health, safety, morals or the general welfare of the
community. The appropriate board may consult with any other Town board, commission,
department, agency and/or official it deems advisable. It may also engage the services of engineers,
planners or other professionals to aid in the review process. All costs incurred by the board for
such professional services shall be reimbursed to the Town by the applicant. In making such
determination, it shall consider the following:

A.  Whether the proposed use will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of
this chapter, taking into account the location and size of the use, the nature and
intensity of the operations involved in or conducted in connection with it and the size
of the site with respect to streets giving access to it.

B.  Whether the proposed use will tend to depreciate the value of adjacent property, taking
into account the possibility of screening or other protective measures.

C.  Whether the proposed use will be detrimental to the flow of traffic in the vicinity or
otherwise create a traffic hazard.

D. Whether the proposed use will create fire or other safety hazards.

Whether the size and use of the proposed facility, alone or in combination with similar
facilities in the area, will be so substantially out of proportion with the character of
nearby residential neighborhoods as to jeopardize the continued use of the
neighborhoods for residential purposes.

F.  Whether the proposed use or operation will produce or present substantial danger of
excessive noise, noxious odors, noxious or harmful discharge, fire or explosion,
radiation, chemical or toxic release or other conditions injurious to the health or
general welfare of occupants of the surrounding area.

G. Whether the location and size of the use, the size of the site in relation to the use, the
operations in connection with the use and the parking and traffic related to the
operations will be such as to create a significant hazard to the safety and general
welfare of the surrounding area.

H. Whether the proposed use will be detrimental to neighboring property or alter the
essential character of the neighborhood.

I.  Whether the proposed use complies with the State Environmental Quality Review Act
(SEQRA).

§ 185-175. Decision.

If the board determines that the proposed use would endanger or tend to endanger the public health,
safety, morals or general welfare of the community, it shall deny the application; otherwise, it may
grant a special use permit, provided that the proposed use, construction or alteration complies with
the provisions of this chapter. The secretary of the board shall notify the applicant of the decision,
and if a special use permit be granted, the secretary of the board shall issue and deliver the same
to the applicant.

Page 211 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-176. Conditions on permit.

In granting a special use permit, the board may impose reasonable conditions in order to mitigate
any adverse effects of the proposed use. If the board finds such adverse effects cannot be
adequately mitigated, then the board shall deny the special use permit.

§ 185-177. Burden of proof.

With the exception of schools and places of worship, the applicant shall have the burden of proving
that the proposed use, construction or alteration will not endanger the public health, safety, morals
or general welfare of the community given all relevant considerations. Under New York decisional
law, there is a rebuttable presumption that schools and places of worship are in furtherance of the
public health, safety, morals and general welfare of the community, and the burden of proof is on
those who seek to rebut that presumption.

§ 185-178. Permit required for expansions or additions.

A special use permit is required not only for the original establishment of a specially permitted use
but also for any expansions or additions thereto.

§ 185-179. Revocation of special use permit.

Once granted, a special use permit may be revoked if, after notice and public hearing, the board
which granted it determines that the conditions and restrictions imposed upon the permit have been
violated or not fulfilled.

Page 212 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XXVI. Variances

§ 185-180. Authorization.

The Zoning Board of Appeals is authorized to grant use or area variances pursuant to state law.

§ 185-181. Burden of proof.

The burden is on the applicant to submit competent proof of the necessity of a variance consistent
with the requirements of state law and the rules and regulations of the Zoning Board of Appeals.

Page 213 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XXVIA. Subdivisions

§ 185-182. Subdivision approval.

No person shall make a subdivision of any land within the Town or proceed with the improvement
for sale of lots in a subdivision or the construction of ways or preparation therefor or the installation
of utilities and municipal services therein, unless and until a final plat application of such
subdivision has been submitted and approved by the Planning Board pursuant to Chapter 175,
Subdivision of Land.

Page 214 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code

ARTICLE XXVII. Temporary Activity Permit

§ 185-182.1. Issuance; conditions.

A. Upon application and upon payment of a fee as set by the Town Board, the
Commissioner of Public Works, or his designated representative, may issue a
temporary activities permit for the use of a specified area in any zoning district for
temporary activities not otherwise permitted in such zoning district.

B. The Commissioner of Public Works, or his designated representative, may require the
applicant to submit such information as he may require and may fix the location of all
structures on the premises where the proposed temporary activity is to be conducted.

§ 185-182.2. Determination of impact.

A.  Prior to issuing a permit, the Commissioner of Public Works shall find that the
contemplated use will not:

M
@

3)

Be detrimental to adjacent property;

By reason of its location or nature, create a hazard of any nature to the public or
to any adjacent property owner or occupant; or

Unreasonably interfere with the lawful use or enjoyment of the public highways
or of adjacent property.

B. In determining whether a permit should be issued, the Commissioner of Public
Works may require the following information in the application:

M

@
3
“)
®

(6)
O
®)

A diagram or plan showing the dimensions of the lot on which the proposed use,
structure or activity is proposed, its location on the lot, all structures on the lot,
lot dimensions, setbacks, parking and ingress and egress;

A locational drawing;
A plan showing the intended use, structure or alteration;
A description of the proposed use and its operation;

A list of all property owners (and addresses) of each parcel of property within
500 feet and/or affected property owners;

The required application fee as specified by resolution of the Town Board;
An environmental assessment form (EAF), if applicable; or

Such other information as may be required by the Commissioner of Public Works
to determine that the contemplated use will not have a negative impact on
adjacent properties or uses as defined in § 188-182.2A above.

Page 215 of 269

REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

§ 185-182.3. Mitigation of impact.

In granting a temporary activity permit, the Commissioner of Public Works, or his
designated representative, may impose such conditions on the temporary activity permit as are
necessary to mitigate the harm(s) described in § 185-182.2A above.

§ 185-182.4. Revocation of permit.

Any temporary activity permit granted hereunder may be revoked immediately by the
Commissioner of Public Works, or his designated representative, in the event that the use made
thereunder violates any of the conditions of its issuance or shall have become a nuisance.

§ 185-182.5. Number and duration of permits.

The Commissioner of Public Works shall promulgate a series of guidelines for the issuance of
temporary activity permits, including the appropriate number of permits and duration of each
permit. In establishing the guidelines, the Commissioner of Public Works shall determine the
minimum reasonable time period necessary to accommodate temporary activities within the Town
without violating the purpose and intent of this article. In determining the expiration date of each
specific temporary activity permit, the Commissioner of Public Works shall utilize the guidelines
to determine the minimum time necessary to accommodate the applicant's event and issue the
permit for that time period.

§ 185-182.6. Renewal of permit.

Any permit issued may be renewed by the Commissioner of Public Works, or his designated agent,
upon application and payment of the appropriate fee in accordance with the procedures for the
original permit.

Page 216 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XXVIII. Landscape Alteration and
Drainage Permits

§ 185-183. Purpose.

The purpose of this article is to protect and preserve the environment in the Town by regulating
the excavating, grading, regrading, landfilling, berming or diking of any property, the removal of
certain trees and any other actions affecting land that may adversely affect the environment.

§ 185-184. Applicability.

This article shall apply to all lands in the Town which have not been granted final subdivision
approval or final site plan approval and which do not have a Town-approved grading plan.

§ 185-185. Permit required; exemptions.

A.  When required. Unless specifically exempted in this section, a landscape and drainage
alteration permit shall be obtained from the Commissioner of Public Works prior to
the commencement of any excavating, grading, regrading, landfilling, berming, diking
or the installation or modification of any drainage swale, channel or pipe of any land
within the Town and prior to the removal of any trees with a diameter in excess of
three inches at a point 4 1/2 feet above grade.

B. Exemptions. A landscape alteration permit shall not be required for the following
activities:

(1) Agricultural and farming operations which constitute the principal use of any lot
or tract of ground.

(2) Customary and incidental routine grounds maintenance, landscaping and
gardening which does not affect stormwater drainage entering or leaving any
public right-of-way.

(3) Emergency repairs of a temporary nature which are necessary for the
preservation of life, health or property and which are made under such
circumstances as to make it impossible or impractical to obtain a landscape
alteration permit.

(4) Lands for which a floodplain development permit has been issued pursuant to
Chapter 95 of this Code.

§ 185-186. Permit application process.

A. Anapplicant for a landscape and drainage alteration permit must deliver to the Town
Department of Public Works the following documents:

(1) Application on Town form.

Page 217 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(2) Plan of work to be done.
(3) Completed environmental assessment form (EAF) for SEQRA review.

The Commissioner of Public Works shall, within five working days, notify the
applicant whether or not the permit will be approved, approved with conditions or
disapproved. If the permit is disapproved, the reasons for the disapproval shall be
stated.

The applicant shall have the right to appeal any approval with conditions or disapproval
to the Zoning Board of Appeals.

§ 185-187. Issuance for violations.

A.

The Commissioner of Public Works, or his designated agent, shall issue a stop-work
order to any person acting in violation of this article.

Such order, posted at the work site, shall be sufficient notice to require such violator
to immediately cease work on the site until a landscape and drainage alteration permit
has been obtained, or the provisions of § 185-184 have been satisfied.

§ 185-188. Restoration of site.

Notwithstanding the provisions of § 185-187, the Commissioner of Public Works may require such
violator and/or the owner of the property to restore the site as nearly as possible to its previous
condition if the Commissioner determines such action is required to prevent further damage to the
site or the environment in general.

Page 218 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XXIX. Site Plan Approval

§ 185-189. Purpose.

The purpose of site plan approval is to determine compliance with the objectives of this chapter
where inappropriate development may cause a conflict between uses in the same or adjoining
zoning district by creating conditions which could adversely affect the public health, safety or
general welfare.

§ 185-190. Approval required.

All uses, except for single-family or two-family detached residences and their accessory buildings,
including site modifications to such uses, shall be subject to site plan approval by the Planning
Board, in accordance with the provisions of this article. All site plan information and building
designs shall be prepared by a licensed architect or engineer. In addition, the architect or engineer
shall submit to the Town a signed affidavit that the plans for the project were prepared by said
architect or engineer, his employees or by an agency of the federal, state or local government. No
building permit shall be issued until after a final site plan has been approved in accordance with
the provisions of this article.

§ 185-191. Preliminary application submission requirements.

All applications for preliminary site plan shall be made by the owner or the owner's agent and filed
with the secretary of the Planning Board in accordance with such Board's approved submission
schedule. No application shall be accepted, considered or scheduled for public hearing until all
required materials have been deemed to be complete and accurate. The application shall include,
as applicable, the following:

A. An area map showing the applicant's entire holding, that portion of the applicant's
property under consideration and all properties, their ownership, uses thereon,
subdivisions, streets, zoning districts, easements and adjacent buildings within 500
feet of the applicant's property.

B. If grades exceed 5% or portions of the site have a moderate to high susceptibility to
flooding and ponding, a topographic map showing contour intervals of not more than
five feet of elevation shall be provided with an overlay outlining the above susceptible
areas, if any.

C. A project information form and environmental assessment form as required by SEQRA.
D. A preliminary site plan, including the following information:
(1) The title of the preliminary layout, including name and address of the applicant.

(2) The North point, scale, date and general location map and names of owners of
adjacent land or names of adjacent subdivisions. The North point should be in
the upper right-hand corner of each sheet, and the direction of North should be
either to the top of each page or to the right- hand side of each page.

Page 219 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

3)

4

&)

(6

O

®)

&)

The boundaries of the project, plotted to scale; if the applicant intends to develop

the project in stages, the entire project shall nevertheless be included in the
preliminary layout with anticipated stages and timing indicated. The location of
proposed land uses and their area in acres and the location, proposed use and
height of all buildings and estimates of population and dwelling units by type
shall be provided for each layout or stage and an equivalent population estimate

for areas not proposed for residential development.

A topographic survey showing ground contours for the parcels and parcels
adjacent to and

within 200 feet of the project at intervals of not more than five feet of elevation, and
all pertinent topographic and planimetric features within the site and the adjoining
tract, including existing buildings, watercourses and their one-hundred-year flood
limits, water bodies, swamps, wooded areas and individual large trees. Features to
be retained in the project should be so indicated. If the proposal is not to be served
by a public sanitary sewer system, then the topographic survey shall be provided as
above except at not more than two feet of elevation, and perk test results,
administered by the County Health Department, and the layout of the proposed
sewage system indicated shall be provided.

A detailed location map showing the boundaries of the project in relation to
adjoining streets; schematically, the locations of the nearest elementary school;
water and sewer lines, parks and playgrounds within 1/2 mile of the proposed
development and other public facilities, such as shopping, places of worship and
public transportation routes, as appropriate, and land uses adjacent to the
proposal.

A system for stormwater drainage conforming to Chapter 127, Stormwater
Management and Erosion and Sediment Control of this Code.

Existing streets immediately adjoining and within the project and the distance to
the nearest major street intersection.

Existing drains, water lines and sanitary sewer nearby and within the project with
their location, size, type and approximate elevations and gradients using mean
sea level as datum plane. Existing easements for such facilities should also be
shown.

A statement as to proposed sources of water supply and method of sewage
disposal to include a statement as to who will own the water and sewer systems,
a conceptual layout of each system, whether necessary districts are formed or are
in process, the receiving sewage treatment plant, the lines, dimensions and
purpose of all utility easements, including properly placed fire hydrants and
preliminary design of bridges and culverts. Sanitary and storm sewers and water
service must be in public ownership. Also, where water mains are not looped,
blowoff valves should be provided.

(10) A tracing overlay showing all soil areas and their classifications and those areas,

if any, with moderate to high susceptibility to erosion. For areas with potential
erosion problems, the overlay shall also include and outline any

Page 220 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

description of existing vegetation.

(11) A separate drainage report which will clearly indicate the basis of design and the
intended method of all stormwater disposal and flood hazard prevention, how all
runoff will be handled during grading and development operations and erosions
and sedimentation prevention measures.

(12) The approximate lines and gradients of proposed streets and sidewalks and the
names of proposed streets.

(13) A preliminary grading plan of the site showing locations and approximate size
of cuts and fills and cross section for any final grading steeper than 2:1 or where
the cut or fill will be deeper than five feet.

(14) The approximate lines of proposed lots, the acreage or square footage contained
in each lot and individual lot numbering. If a proposed lot contains one or more
existing buildings, the proposed yard dimensions for such buildings shall be
indicated.

(15) The approximate locations and dimensions of areas proposed for neighborhood
parks or playgrounds or other permanent open space.

(16) The location of any municipal boundary lines, existing special service district
lines and zoning district lines within the project.

(17) Location of all parking and truck-loading areas with access and egress drives
thereto.

(18) Type and location of any potentially hazardous materials of any nature.

(19) The location and quality of water bodies directly affected by and adjacent to the
project and finish or design water levels.

(20) Any variance or special use permit that may be needed, and any permits needed
from the county, state or federal government.

(21) The location of buffers required either during or after construction is completed
and the reason for the buffer and the location of other proposed vegetation and
the location of all other site improvements whether public or private.

(22) The location, size and type of proposed lighting and any anticipated signs.

(23) The name or names of the landscape architect and/or licensed professional
engineer and licensed land surveyor responsible for the preparation of the
preliminary layout and preliminary information.

(24) A delineation of the various residential areas, if applicable, indicating for each
such area its general extent, size and composition in terms of total number of
dwelling unit type, general description of the intended market structure and a
calculation of the residential density in dwelling units per gross acre for each
such area.

(25) When applicable, a general description of the provisions of other community

Page 221 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code

facilities, such as schools, fire-protection services and cultural facilities, if any,
and indication of how these needs are proposed to be accommodated.

(26) Conceptual building elevations.
In addition, the following documentation shall accompany the preliminary site plan:

(1) Evidence that the proposal is compatible with the goals of the Comprehensive
Plan; and, if the proposal relates to the Mixed-Use Commercial District, that the
plan conforms to the requirements of the Monroe Avenue Design Guidelines,
dated April 2, 2002, as amended and supplemented. !4

(2) If the development is to be staged, a general indication of how the staging is to
proceed. Whether or not the development is to be staged, the preliminary plan
shall show the intended total project; any project that requires more than 24
months to complete shall be staged.

All preliminary site plans shall be submitted to the Design Review and Historic
Preservation Board for its recommendations to the Planning Board.

The Planning Board may consult with any other Town board, commission,
department, agency and/ or official it deems advisable. It may also engage the
services of engineers, planners or other professionals to aid in the review
process. All costs incurred by the Board for such professional services shall be
reimbursed to the Town by the applicant.

The Planning Board may require such additional information as appears necessary
for a complete assessment of the project.

§ 185-192. Preliminary approval.

A.

Planning Board action. Within 62 days of the receipt of a certified complete
preliminary site plan application from the authorized official or upon completion of
the SEQRA review process, whichever last occurs, the Planning Board shall act upon
it. Prior to acting, the Planning Board shall consider the site plan at a public hearing
upon due legal notice. The Planning Board's action shall be in the form of a written
resolution approving, with or without conditions, or disapproving the application. The
Planning Board's review of a preliminary site plan shall include, but is not limited to,
the following considerations:

(1) Adequacy and arrangement of vehicular traffic access and circulation.
(2) Adequacy and arrangement of pedestrian traffic access and circulation.

(3) Location, arrangement, appearance and sufficiency of off-street parking and
loading.

(4) Location, arrangement, size and design of buildings, lighting and signs.
(5) Relationship of the various uses to one another and their scale.

(6) Adequacy, type and arrangement of trees, shrubs and other landscaping

Page 222 of 269

REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

constituting a visual and/or noise-deterring buffer between adjacent uses and
adjoining lands.

(7) Adequacy of stormwater and sanitary waste disposal.

(8) Adequacy of structures, roadways and landscaping in areas with moderate to
high susceptibility to flooding, ponding and/or erosion.

B. Conditions. In acting upon a preliminary site plan, the Planning Board may impose
conditions. These conditions may include recommendations as to desirable revisions
to be incorporated in the final site plan, which conformance shall be considered a
condition of approval. If the preliminary plan is conditionally approved, the Planning
Board's resolution shall contain the reasons for such findings. In such a case, the
Planning Board may recommend further study of the site plan and resubmission of the
preliminary site plan to the Planning Board after it has been revised or redesigned.

§ 185-193. Final site plan application and approval.

A. Final application. After receiving approval from the Planning Board on a preliminary
site plan and approval for all necessary permits and curb cuts from state and county
officials, the applicant may prepare a final site plan, which shall be filed with the
secretary of the Planning Board in accordance with such Board's approved submission
schedule. All final site plans shall be submitted to the Design Review and Historic
Preservation Board for its recommendation to the Planning Board. The final site plan
shall conform to the approved preliminary site plan and shall incorporate any revisions
or other features that may have been recommended by the Planning Board at the
preliminary review. All compliances shall be clearly indicated by the applicant.

B. Final approval. Within 62 days of receipt of the certified complete final plan
application from the
authorized official, the Planning Board shall act upon it. The Planning Board's action shall
be in the form of a written resolution approving, with or without conditions, or
disapproving the application. If no decision is made within the sixty-two-day period, the
final site plan shall be deemed approved.

(1) Upon approval, the Planning Board shall endorse its approval on a copy of the
final site plan and shall forward it to the Code Enforcement Officer who shall
then issue a building permit if the project conforms to all other applicable
requirements, including the approval of the Design Review and Historic
Preservation Board.

(2) Any requirements for improvements shown on the site plan shall be those set
forth in this chapter and in other laws, rules and regulations of the Town.

§ 185-194. Design; access; landscaping.

A. In addition to the specific requirements set forth herein, all site plan applications in
the commercial zoning district shall conform to the Monroe Avenue Design

Page 223 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Guidelines, dated April 2, 2002, as amended and supplemented.!®

B. All projects shall be suitably landscaped, including the provision of vegetation of
suitable species and at appropriate levels of maturity in order to screen effectively
dissimilar uses from one another, both visually and acoustically, and to protect and
enhance the overall quality of the environment. A landscaping plan shall be prepared
by a licensed landscape architect and shall show his seal and signature.

C. All projects shall have landscaping equal to a minimum expenditure of 1% of the total
project cost. Landscaping shall be considered as any living plant but shall not include
excavating, earthmoving, fill, grading or paving associated with normal requirements
of building.

§ 185-194.1. Duration of site plan approval.

A final site plan approval granted pursuant to the provisions of this article shall expire three years
from the date granted unless a certificate of occupancy or conditional certificate of occupancy for
such site has been issued by the Code Enforcement Officer within such three-year time period.

§ 185-195. Consolidated review.

Nothing in this article should be construed as prohibiting an applicant from filing an application
for preliminary site plan approval, together with one for final site plan approval, and the Planning
Board from reviewing and acting on both applications at the same time, if the Planning Board in
its discretion deems it appropriate.

Editor's Note: The Monroe Avenue Design Guidelines are on file in the Town Clerk's office.

Page 224 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE

Edit

AvA Pesisn-Guideli i i} i
e esig; & filein-the Town-Clerk's-office

Page 225 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTHCEEE-XXX. Landmarks, Historic
Districts and Certificates of
Appropriateness

§ 185-195.1. Purpose; intent.

It is hereby declared as a matter of public policy that the protection, enhancement and perpetuation
of historic landmarks is necessary to promote the economic, cultural, educational and general
welfare of the public. Inasmuch as the identity of a people is founded on its past and inasmuch as
the Town of Pittsford has many significant historic, architectural and cultural resources which
constitute its heritage, this article is intended to:

A. Protect and enhance the historic landmarks which represent distinctive elements
of Pittsford's historic, architectural and cultural heritage.

B. Foster civic pride in the accomplishments of the past.

C. Protect and enhance Pittsford's attractiveness to visitors and the support and stimulus
to the economy thereby provided.

D. Ensure the harmonious, orderly and efficient growth and development of the Town.

Stabilize and improve property values in the Town.

§ 185-195.2. List of inventoried structures. [Added 6-17-2014 by L.L. No. 6-2014'2014'9]

A.  The Town Board shall, at its discretion, and by resolution, create and update a list of
inventoried structures that the Town Board finds generally meet the criteria set forth
in § 185-195.3 of this chapter for potential designation as a landmark.

B. In creating or updating the list of inventoried structures, the Town Board shall take
into consideration the results of any survey conducted by the Design Review and
Historic Preservation Board, pursuant to § 185-150A(8) of this chapter; the
recommendations of a qualified consultant commissioned by the Town Board to make
such recommendations; and/or input from community organizations or citizens.

§ 185-195.3. Designation of landmarks.

A. The Design Review and Historic Preservation Board may designate a structure as a
landmark if it:

(1) Possesses special character or historic or aesthetic interest or value as part
of the cultural, political, economic or social history of the locality, region, state
or nation;

(2) Isidentified with historic personages;

Page 226 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(3) Embodies the distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style;
(4) Isthe work of a designer whose work has significantly influenced an age; or

(5) Because of a unique location or singular physical characteristic, represents an
established and familiar visual feature of the neighborhood.

B. The Board may, in designating landmark structures, include a reasonable amount of land
surrounding the structure, including any nearby outbuildings, so as to protect the
structure or structures from undue encroachment.

C. Notice of a proposed designation shall be sent by certified mail to the owner of the
structure proposed for designation, describing the structure proposed and announcing
apublic hearing by the Board to consider the designation. Notice of such hearing shall
be published at least once in a newspaper of general circulation at least 10 days and
not more than 20 days prior to the date of the public hearing. Once the Board has
issued notice of a proposed designation, no building or demolition permits shall be
issued by the Code Enforcement Officer until the Board has made its decision.

D. The Board shall hold a public hearing prior to designation of any historic landmark.
The Board, owners and any interested parties may present testimony or documentary
evidence at the hearing which will become part of a record regarding the historic,
architectural or cultural importance of the proposed landmark. The record may also
contain staff reports, public comments, or other evidence offered outside of the
hearing.

E. The Board shall file with the Town Clerk the record of its proceedings and its
resolution of designation which shall describe the boundaries of the land, if any,
surrounding the structure. The Board shall file in the Monroe County Clerk's office a
notice of each designated structure, including surrounding land, if any, referencing it
by street name and number and/or tax account number, and referring any interested
person to the Town Clerk's office and the Town Municipal Code for more detailed
information.

§ 185-196. Certificate of appropriateness required.

No person shall carry out any exterior alteration, restoration, reconstruction, demolition, new
construction or moving of a designated structure or a structure located within a historic district,
nor shall any person make any material change in the appearance of such a structure, its light
fixtures, signs, sidewalks, fences, steps, paving or other exterior elements—visiblefrom—a—puble
street-oralley-orfromthe Erie Canal, without first obtaining a certificate of appropriateness from

the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board.

§ 185-197. Criteria for approval of certificate of appropriateness.

A. Inpassing upon an application for a certificate of appropriateness, the Design Review
and Historic Preservation Board shall not consider changes to interior spaces, unless
they are open to the public, or to architectural features that are not visible from a public
way. A public way shall include the Erie Canal.

Page 227 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

B. The Design Review and Historic Preservation Board's decision shall be based upon
the following principles:

(1) Designated structures and/or structures which contribute to the character of a
historic district shall be retained, with their historic features altered as little as
possible.

(2) Any alteration of existing designated structures shall be compatible with its
historic character and, if located within a historic district, with the surrounding
structures of such historic district.

(3) New construction shall be compatible with the structure and, if located within a
historic district, the surrounding structures of such historic district.

C. In applying the principle of compatibility, the Design Review and Historic
Preservation Board shall take into consideration any and all distinguishing character-
defining features identified at the time such structure was inventoried and/or
designated as a landmark, shall be guided by the Standards and Guidelines for
Certificates of Appropriateness, dated November 18, 2011, as amended and
supplemented, and shall consider the following factors:

(1) The general design, character and appropriateness to the designated structure
and/or surrounding structures in a historic district of the proposed alteration or
new construction.

(2) The scale of proposed alteration or new construction in relation to the designated
structure itself and/or surrounding structures in a historic district.

(3) Texture, materials and color and their relation to similar features of the
designated structure and/ or surrounding structures in a historic district.

(4) Visual compatibility with the designated structure and/or surrounding structures
in a historic district, including the proportion of the structure's front facade,
proportion and arrangement of windows and other openings within the facade,
roof shape and the rhythm of spacing structures on streets, including setback.

(5) The importance of historic, architectural or other features to the significance of
the designated structure and/or its historic district.

§ 185-198. Application procedure.

A.  Prior to the commencement of any work requiring a certificate of appropriateness, the
owner shall file an application for such a certificate with the Design Review and
Historic Preservation Board. The application shall contain information sufficient to
clearly describe the alteration and/or construction proposed. Such information shall
include, as appropriate, the following:

(1) The name, address and telephone number of applicant.
(2) The location and photographs of the structure.

(3) Elevation drawings of proposed changes, in the case of new construction or-

Page 228 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

additions to a structure.

(4) Perspective drawings, including relationship to adjacent structures, in the case of
new construction or additions to a structure.

(5) Samples of color and materials to be used.

(6) Where the proposal includes signs or lettering, a scale drawing showing the type
of lettering to be used, all dimensions and colors, a description of materials to be
used, method of illumination and a plan showing the sign's location on the

property.

(7) Any other information which the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board
may deem necessary in order to visualize the proposed new construction and/or
addition.

B. No building or demolition permit shall be issued for such proposed work until a
certificate of appropriateness has first been issued by the Design Review and Historic
Preservation Board. The certificate of appropriateness required by this section shall
be in addition to and not in lieu of any building or other permit that may be required
by this chapter or any other law or ordinance of the Town.

C. The Design Review and Historic Preservation Board shall hold a public hearing on the
application at
which an opportunity will be provided for proponents and opponents of the application to
present their views. The Board shall approve, deny or approve with conditions the
application within 62 days from the close of the public hearing.

D. All decisions of the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board shall be in
writing. A copy shall be sent to the applicant and a copy filed with the Town Clerk's
office for public inspection. The Design Review and Historic Preservation Board's
decision shall state the reasons for granting, denying or modifying any application.

§ 185-199. Hardship.
A. Hardship criteria.

(1) An applicant whose certificate of appropriateness for a proposed demolition has
been denied may apply for relief on the ground of hardship. In order to prove the
existence of hardship, the applicant shall establish that:

(a) The structure is incapable of earning a reasonable return, regardless of
whether that return represents the most profitable return possible;

(b) The structure cannot be adapted for any other use, whether by the current
owner or by a purchaser, which would result in a reasonable return; and

(c) Efforts to find a purchaser interested in acquiring the structure and
preserving it have failed.

(2) An applicant whose certificate of appropriateness for a proposed alteration has
been denied may apply for relief on the ground of hardship. In order to prove

Page 229 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

the existence of hardship, the applicant shall establish that the property is
incapable of earning a reasonable return, regardless of whether that return
represents the most profitable return possible.

B. Hardship application procedure.

(1) After receiving written notification from the Design Review and Historic
Preservation Board of the denial of a certificate of appropriateness, an applicant
may commence the hardship process. No building permit or demolition permit
shall be issued unless the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board makes
a finding that a hardship exists.

(2) The Design Review and Historic Preservation Board may hold a public hearing
on the hardship application at which an opportunity will be provided for
proponents and opponents of the application to present their views.

(3) The applicant shall consult in good faith with the Design Review and Historic
Preservation Board, local preservation groups and interested parties in a diligent
effort to seek an alternative that will result in the preservation of the structure.

(4) All decisions of the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board shall be in
writing. A copy shall be sent to the applicant and a copy filed with the Town
Clerk's office for public inspection. The Design Review and Historic
Preservation Board's decision shall state the reasons for granting or denying the
hardship application.

(5) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this section, an applicant may
combine a hardship application with an application for a certificate of
appropriateness in the first instance.

§ 185-200. Enforcement.

All work performed pursuant to a certificate of appropriateness issued under this article shall
conform to any requirements included therein. It shall be the duty of the Code Enforcement Officer
to inspect periodically any such work to assure compliance. In the event that work is found that is
not being performed in accordance with the certificate of appropriateness, or upon notification of
such fact by the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board, the Code Enforcement Officer
shall issue a stop-work order, and all work shall immediately cease. No further work shall be
undertaken on the project as long as a stop-work order is in effect.

§ 185-201. Maintenance and repair required.

A. Nothing in this article shall be construed to prevent the ordinary maintenance and
repair of any exterior architectural features of a designated structure or structure
within a historic district which does not involve a change in design, material, color or
outward appearance.

B. No owner or person with an interest in a designated structure or structure within a
historic district shall permit the structure to fall into a serious state of disrepair so as

Page 230 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code

to result in the deterioration of any exterior architectural feature which would, in the
judgment of the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board, produce a
detrimental effect upon the character or life of the structure or the historic district.
Examples of such deterioration include:

(1) Deterioration of exterior walls or other vertical supports.
(2) Deterioration of roofs or other horizontal members.

(3) Deterioration of exterior chimneys.

(4) Deterioration or crumbling of exterior stucco or mortar.

(5) Ineffective waterproofing of exterior walls, roofs or foundations, including
broken windows or doors.

(6) Deterioration of any feature so as to create a hazardous condition which could
lead to the claim that demolition is necessary for the public safety.

§ 185-202. Penalties for offenses.

Notwithstanding any provisions of this chapter to the contrary, the following provisions are
applicable for violations of this article:

A.

Failure to comply with any of the provisions of this article shall be deemed a violation,
and the violator shall be punishable as provided in § 185-7B of this chapter.

Any person who demolishes, alters, constructs or permits a designated structure or
structure within a historic district to fall into a serious state of disrepair in violation of
this article shall be required to restore the structure and its site to its appearance prior
to the violation. Any action to enforce this subsection shall be brought by the Town
Attorney upon Town Board authorization. This civil remedy shall be in addition to
and not in lieu of any criminal prosecution and penalty.

§ 185-203. Appeals.

Any person aggrieved by a decision of the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board
relating to

hardship or a certificate of appropriateness may, within 15 days of the decision, file a written
application with the Town Board for review of the decision.

Page 231 of 269

REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XXXI. Design Review

[Amended 4-15-2014 by L.L. No. 3-2014]

§ 185-204. Findings and purpose.

The Town Board hereby finds that excessive uniformity, dissimilarity, or inappropriateness with
respect to existing neighborhood character and/or context or poor quality of design in the exterior
appearance of buildings erected in any area in the Town adversely affects the desirability of the
immediate area and the neighboring areas for residential and business purpose or other purposes
and, by so doing, impairs neighborhood character, impairs the benefits of occupancy of existing
property in such areas, impairs the stability and value of both improved and unimproved real
property in such areas with attendant deterioration of conditions affecting the health, safety and
general welfare of the community and destroys a proper relationship between the taxable value of
real property in such areas and the cost of the municipal services provided therefor. It is the purpose
of this article to prevent these and other harmful effects of such exterior appearance of buildings
erected or altered in any area in the Town and thus to promote the health, safety and general welfare
of the community, conserve the value of buildings and encourage the most appropriate use of land
with the Town.

§ 185-205. Design review required.

A. No person shall carry out any new construction or alteration involving exterior
elements of a building, sign or other structure without first obtaining design review
approval from the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board, except that review
under the provisions of this Article shall not be required with respect to any such new
construction or alteration for which a certificate of appropriateness is required
pursuant to Article XXX of this chapter; or with respect to exterior alterations of
residential or agricultural structures that do not require a building permit; or for
accessory structures that are in full conformance with the requirements of § 185-113
of this chapter. The Design Review and Historic Preservation Board may approve,
approve conditionally subject to specified modifications or disapprove any application
for design review. Any disapproval shall be based on a finding that the building, sign
or other structure for which design review approval was applied, would, if erected or
altered, result in one or more of the harmful effects set forth in § 185-204 of this
article.

B. As to buildings and other structures, the Design Review and Historic Preservation
Board may disapprove such application if it finds one or more of the harmful effects
set forth in § 185-204 of this article, by reason of:

(1) Excessive similarity to any other nearby structure with respect to one or more
of the following features of exterior design and appearance:

(a) Apparently identical front or side elevations.

(b) Substantially identical size and arrangement of either doors, windows,
porticos or other openings or breaks in the elevation facing the street,

Page 232 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

including reverse arrangement.

(c) Other significant identical features of design, such as but not limited to
material, roofline and height or other design elements, provided that a
finding of excessive similarity shall state not only that such excessive
similarity exists, but also that it is of such a nature as to be reasonably
expected to provoke one or more of the harmful effects set forth in this
article.

(2) Excessive dissimilarity to any other nearby structure with respect to one or more
of the following features:

(a) Height of building or height of roof.

(b) Other significant design features such as material or quality of architectural
design, provided that a finding of excessive dissimilarity exists, but that it
is of such a nature as to be reasonably expected to provoke one or more of
the harmful effects set forth in this section, and that the finding is not based
on personal preference as to taste or choice of architectural style.

(3) Inappropriateness in relation to the established neighborhood character and/or
context of other structures in residential, commercial and industrial districts in
respect to significant design features, such as material or quality or architectural
design, provided that a finding of inappropriateness shall state not only that such
inappropriateness exists, but also that it is of such nature as to be reasonably
expected to provoke one or more of the harmful effects set forth in this section,
and that the finding is not based on personal preference as to taste or choice of
architectural style.

(4) With respect to commercial district applications, failure to conform to the
Monroe Avenue Design Guidelines, dated April 2, 2002, as amended and
supplemented.!’

(5) With respect to residential district applications, failure to conform to the
Residential Design Standards and Guidelines, dated November 18, 2011, as
amended and supplemented.'®

C. Asto signs, the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board may disapprove such
application if it finds one or more of the harmful effects set forth in § 184-204 of this
article, by reason of noncompliance with any of the following design guidelines:

(1) Signs shall be designed to be compatible with the surroundings and appropriate
to the architectural character of the buildings on which they are placed. Sign
panels and graphics shall be related with, and not cover, architectural features
and should be in proportion to them.

(2) Signs shall be appropriate to the types of activities they represent.

(3) Layout shall be orderly and graphics should be of simple shape, such as rectangle,
circle or oval.

Page 233 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(4) Ilumination shall be appropriate to the character of the sign and surroundings.

(5) Groups of related signs shall express uniformity and create a sense of harmonious
appearance.

(6) All signage shall be professional in appearance and construction and shall not
visually detract from the character of the area or have a negative effect upon the
quality and value of surrounding properties.

§ 185-206. Time for decision.

The Design Review and Historic Preservation Board shall approve, approve conditionally or
disapprove any application for design review within 90 days of the date of filing such
application.

Editor's Note: The Monroe Avenue Design Guidelines are on file in the Town Clerk's office.

Editor's Note: The Resi ial Design Standards and Guidelines are on file in the Town Clerk's office.

§ 185-207. Appeals.

Any person aggrieved by the action of the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board in
disapproving a building permit application and of the Code Enforcement Officer in denying such
permit because of such disapproval may take an appeal therefrom to the Zoning Board of Appeals.

§ 185-208. through § 185-223. (Reserved)

Page 234 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XXXII. Nonconforming Structures
and Uses

§ 185-224. Purpose and general provisions.

A. It is the purpose of this article to allow for the continuation of nonconforming
structures and uses, while restricting the expansion, reconstruction, repair and/or
structural change of a nonconforming structure or use.

B. Any lawful structure or use existing at the time of the adoption of this chapter, or
existing whenever a district in which it is located is changed, may continue although
such structure or use does not then conform to the requirements of this chapter.

§ 185-225. Nonconforming single-family residential and farm structures.

A. A nonconforming single-family residential or farm structure shall not be expanded
in a manner that increases its nonconformity.

B. A nonconforming single-family residential or farm structure which is damaged or
destroyed, to any extent, may be rebuilt on the original footprint, or less.

C. Nothing in this section shall prohibit the granting of an area variance to bring a
nonconforming structure, including any expansion thereof, into compliance with this
chapter.

§ 185-226. Nonconforming structures other than single-family residential and farm
structures.

A. A nonconforming structure other than a single-family residential or farm structure
shall not be expanded in a manner that increases its nonconformity.

B. A nonconforming structure other than a single-family residential or farm structure
which is damaged or destroyed, to the extent of 75% or less of its then existing fair
market value, may be rebuilt on the original footprint, or less.

C. A nonconforming structure other than a single-family residential or farm structure
which is damaged or destroyed, to the extent of more than 75% of its then existing
fair market value, may not be rebuilt, except in conformity with the requirements of
this chapter.

D. Nothing in this section shall prohibit the granting of an area variance to bring a
nonconforming structure, including any expansion thereof, into compliance with this
chapter.

§ 185-227. Nonconforming single-family residential and farm uses.

A. A structure associated with a nonconforming single-family residential or farm
use shall not be expanded in a manner that increases its nonconformity.

Page 235 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

B.

A nonconforming single-family residential or farm structure which is damaged or
destroyed, to any extent, may be rebuilt on the original footprint, or less.

§ 185-228. Nonconforming uses other than single-family residential and farm uses.

A.

A nonconforming use other than a single-family residential or farm use may not be
expanded or the intensity of such use increased by the erection of any additional
structure or the extension or enlargement of the use or of any existing structure.
Structural changes may be made to a structure associated with a nonconforming use
other than a single-family residential or farm use, only under the following
circumstances:

(1) The cost of all such structural changes within a ten-year period shall not exceed
50% of the fair market value of the structure at the time such changes are
commenced.

(2) The granting of a special use permit allowing for such structural changes, in
accordance with the substantive and procedural requirements of Article XXV
of this chapter.

A structure associated with a nonconforming use other than a single-family residential
or farm use that is damaged or destroyed may be repaired or reconstructed on the
original footprint, or less, only under the following circumstances:

(1) The damage or destruction to the structure may be no more than 75% of its
then fair market value.

(2) The granting of a special use permit allowing for such repair or reconstruction,
in accordance with the substantive and procedural requirements of Article XXV
of this chapter.

§ 185-229. Termination of a nonconforming use.

A nonconforming use shall terminate when:

A.

B.

Such use is abandoned.
Such use has been discontinued for a period of one year.

Any property owned by the United States or any of its agencies or departments or by
the State of New York or by any municipality devoted in whole or in part to such use
is sold.

Page 236 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Article XXXIII. Incentive Zoning

§ 185-230. Purpose and objectives.

A. Tt is the purpose of this article to empower the Town Board to grant incentives to the
private sector engaged in the land development process to advance the Town's specific
policies in accordance with the Town of Pittsford's Comprehensive Plan and in
coordination with other community planning mechanisms or land use techniques.

B. This authority may be used by the Town Board to assist the following objectives from
the Town's Comprehensive Plan:

(1) To protect highly valued ecological resources and environmentally sensitive areas.
(2) To protect active farm operations.

(3) To preserve greenways and important open spaces, develop the Pittsford Trail System,
preserve historic and archaeological resources and protect high-quality scenic
resources.

(4) To provide a sound mix of housing types. including accessible, affordable housing
options for seniors.

(5) To promote provision of neighborhood services in growing areas in a carefully planned
manner with a design quality reflecting the values of the community with a secondary
benefit of relieving some traffic congestion in other areas of the Town.

(6) To secure important public works improvements which would not otherwise be
provided, such as extending sidewalks, connecting residential areas with schools or
providing stormwater detention and treatment basins in excess of that necessitated by
immediate project demand.

§ 185-231. Authority.

In accordance with § 261-b of the Town Law of the State of New York, the Town Board is
empowered to provide for a system of zoning incentives as the Town Board deems necessary
and appropriate, consistent with the purposes and conditions set forth herein.

§ 185-232. Applicability.

Except as specifically limited herein, this chapter will apply to all districts in the Town of
Pittsford.

§ 185-233. Definitions.

Page 237 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Asused in this article, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

COMPREIENGIVE DI AN The T £ Pittoford Coapanrabongiva Dign Tladas 4 C
P P

Page 238 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

REVIEW — A preliminary, nonbinding review by the Town Board of an application for use
of incentive zoning to determine the merits of applying the incentive zoning concept to a
particular project.

SEQORA Tha Stata T 3 tal O) Lt R 3 Aot Artiaola Q oftha NI N arle Stata T 3 tal
S2=254 &t A 12:23050 VHCW 5 t iz W e 2

BaTY

e Hon ded—and-th lati leated-thereunder:
serva sw—as-amended—andt s-promy -

§ 185-234. Permitted incentives.

The Town Board may grant the following specific incentives:

A. Single family, attached housing, provided there are no more than four attached units
per building and no more than one dwelling per lot.

AB. Development of current residential unit density over a full parcel, as long as an
equivalent amount of the open space that would have been required is provided for
elsewhere.

B-C. Changes in lot area and dimensional requirements.

c.D. Changes of use.

BE. Reduction/elimination of the recreation fee required under § 185-125 of this chapter.

E-F.Reduction of road construction standards applied under Chapter 175, Subdivision of
Land, for example, permitting a slightly narrower pavement width to serve a limited
development project.

§ 185-235. Community benefits or amenities.

A. The following community benefits or amenities may, at the discretion of the Town
Board, be accepted in exchange for an incentive as provided in § 185-234. These
community benefits or amenities may be either on or off the site of the subject
application, may involve one or more parcels of land and may be situated in any district,
unless otherwise specifically limited in this chapter:

(1) Agricultural conservation, open space, scenic, ecological, historic or other permanent
conservation easements.

(2) Donations of land in fee simple for conservation and other community benefit purposes.

(3) Construction of recreation amenities, serving a Town-wide need, acceggéle)]%g% f151(69
§



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

general public, above and beyond that required under § 185-125 of this chapter.

(4) Construction or improvement to public works above and beyond that required to
mitigate proposed impacts in accordance with SEQRA and the Town Code.

Page 240 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE - MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

£the C. issi £ Public Weorks.

(5) Preservation and improvements of historical or cultural sites or structures.

Page 241 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

B.

(6) Construction of accessible and affordable senior housing opportunities specifically

marketed to and intended for residents aged 55 years or older in support of the housing
goals of the Town of Pittsford Comprehensive Plan. Such housing developments may
include supporting care services and ancillary uses where provided solely for the
benefit of residents within the development and otherwise not open to the general

public.

£6)(7) Other facilities or benefits to the residents of the community, as determined by the Town

Board.
£H(8) Any combination of the above-listed community benefits or amenities.

These amenities will be in addition to any mandated requirements pursuant to other
provisions of the Town of Pittsford Code and any other applicable law or regulation.

§ 185-236. Special conditions.

A. The particular incentive granted will be in relative proportion to the value and

importance of the amenity provided, as determined by the Town Board at the time of
application.

Residential unit density increases;—available—enly—in—the—Ceomprehensive—Plan
will be granted in percent increments not to exceed 100% of the original zoned density
for the particular parcel receiving the density increase.

S5

§ 185-237. Criteria and procedure for approval.

A. Optional pre-application review. It is recommended that the applicant meet informally

B.

with Town public works staff prior to completion of an application for purposes of
gathering information for the proposed amenity/incentive exchange. The applicant is
advised to review the Comprehensive Plan, the Resource Inventory and Evaluation
Report and any other materials the Town may have on file regarding the incentive
zoning program.

Applications for incentives in exchange for amenities will be submitted to the Town
Board in accordance with adopted procedures for requests to amend this chapter. The
application will include the following information:

(1) The requested incentive.

(2) The proposed amenity.

(3) The estimated cash value of the proposed amenity.
(4) A narrative which demonstrates the following:

(a) The benefits to the community from the proposed amenity.

Page 242 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(b) Consistency with the goals and objectives of the Town's Comprehensive Plan.
(c) The relative importance and need for the amenity.

(d) That there is adequate sewer, water, transportation, waste disposal and fire-
protection facilities in the zoning district in which the proposal is located to
handle the additional demands the incentive and amenity, if it is an on-site
amenity, may place on these facilities beyond the demand that would be placed
on them if the district were developed to its fullest potential.

(e) Thatall conditions and other applicable requirements of the law are met.
(5) Any other information or support materials as needed or requested by the Town Board.

C. Non-binding Review by Town Board. Within 45 days of submission of an application,
pursuant to Subsection B herein, the Town Board will prepare a brief response to the
proposal, outlining, in writing, the Town Board's non-binding determination on
whether the proposal is worthy of further consideration and the basis for that
determination. The Town Board may engage a consultant to assist in review of the
application, the cost of which will be borne by the applicant. Suggested modifications
to the proposal may also be provided by the Town Board to the applicant. With a
supporting determination, the proposed application will be transferred to the Planning
Board.

D. Advisory referral to Planning Board.

(1) The application will be submitted to the Planning Board for its nonbinding advisory
opinion to the Town Board. The review at this stage is intended to obtain the input of
the Planning Board for the subject land use decision. It is not intended to serve as a
site or subdivision review, which would only occur after a decision by the Town Board
on the incentive zoning request.

(2) The Planning Board will schedule a public workshop on the application, which may
be conducted as part of its regularly scheduled meeting. The intent of the workshop is
to share information between the applicant, the Planning Board and interested members
of the public. The workshop will not supplant the formal hearing which will be
conducted by the Town Board later in the review process.

(3) Within 45 days of receipt of the application from the Town Board, the Planning Board
will prepare an advisory report to the applicant and the Town Board. The Planning
Board's report will describe the beneficial aspects of the proposal and make
recommendations for the amelioration of any adverse aspects of the proposal. The
Planning Board's report and the application will then be transferred back to the Town
Board for its final decision on the application.

E. Compliance with SEQRA.

(1) Every decision by the Town Board concerning an application for use of incentive zoning

Page 243 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

on a particular project will fully comply with the provisions of SEQRA.

(2) The applicant will submit an Environmental Assessment Form, Part 1, to the Town
Board after the referral by the Planning Board.

(3) The Town Board will establish itself as SEQRA lead agency for all applications
submitted pursuant to this article.

(4) Ifa generic environmental impact statement has been prepared by the Town Board in
enacting or amending this article, the applicant will pay a proportionate share of the cost
of preparing such impact statement.

F. Public hearing by Town Board. Prior to its final decision and in conjunction with its
SEQRA review, the Town Board will conduct a public hearing in accordance with the
standard procedures for adoption of an amendment to the zoning ordinance or local law.
At least five days' notice (14 days if a draft environmental impact statement or
supplemental environmental impact statement was required) of the time and place of
the hearing will be published in an official newspaper of the Town.

G. Findings and final decision.

(1) Following the public hearing and completion of the SEQRA process, the Town Board
will approve, approve with modifications or conditions or deny the proposed incentive
zoning application. A written statement of the findings will be prepared by the Town
Board documenting the basis of its decision. The findings will include, but not be
limited to, the following:

(a) SEQRA. That all requirements of SEQRA have been met, including the
required findings under that law.

(b) Development capacity. That the proposed project, including the incentive, can
be adequately supported by the public facilities available or provided as a result
of the project, including but not limited to sewer, water, transportation, waste
disposal and fire protection, without reducing the availability of such facilities
for projects permitted as of right under the Town of Pittsford Code.

(c) Public benefit. That the public benefit realized by the amenity provided by the
applicant is commensurate with the incentive granted by the Town Board.

(d) Project quality. That the project is in harmony with the purpose and intent of
this article and with the stated objectives and will promote the purposes herein,
that the project is sufficiently advantageous to render it appropriate for grant of
an incentive and that the project will add to the long-term assets of the Town of
Pittsford.

(e) Comprehensive Plan. That the use of incentive zoning for the particular project
is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Page 244 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

(2) The Town Board may impose conditions on a project to ensure that the above findings
are ensured through the subsequent plan review and construction phases of the project.

H. Plan review. Following the receipt of a favorable decision by the Town Board, an
application for approval may be submitted pursuant to the applicable provisions of the
Town of Pittsford Code.

Page 245 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

ARTICLE XXXIV. Land Acquisition

§ 185-238. Purpose.

It is the purpose of this article to provide for the acquisition of interests or rights in real property
for the preservation of open space and areas which shall constitute a public purpose for which
public funds may be expended or advanced after due notice and a public hearing, by which the
Town may acquire by purchase, gift, grant, bequest, devise, lease or otherwise the fee or any lesser
interest, development right, easement, covenant or other contractual right necessary to acquire
"open space" or "open area" as the same is defined in § 185-241 herein.

§ 185-239. Authority.

In accordance with § 247 of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York, the Town Board
has the authority to acquire such interests or rights in land. Pursuant to the above authority, the
Town Board has prepared and adopted this article setting forth standards to be followed in the
acquisition of such interest.

§ 185-240. Applicability.

This article shall apply to the entire area of the Town.
§ 185-241. Reserved.

§ 185-242. Procedure.

A. Proposal by owner. Any owner or owners of five or more acres of undeveloped or
agricultural land which is suitable for residential development may submit a proposal
to the Town Board for the granting of interests or rights in real property for the
preservation of open spaces or areas, provided that the owner or owners are not
receiving tax abatement pursuant to New York State Agricultural and Markets Law,
Article 25. Such proposals shall be submitted in such manner and form as may be
prescribed by such Town Board and shall include a Real Property Tax Map and a
concise description of the areas proposed for the open space protection easement
proposed area. The owner shall pay to the Town an application fee as required by
the Town's fee schedule which shall be deemed a
reasonable sum to cover the costs of administration, no part of which shall be
returnable to the applicant.

B. Review by Environmental Board. Upon receipt of such proposal, the Town Board
shall refer such proposal to the Environmental Board. The Environmental Board shall
investigate the area to assess whether the proposal would be of benefit to the people
of the Town. In making this assessment, the Environmental Board shall consider the
composite ratings provided for key parcels in the Town's Resource Inventory and
Evaluation Report and other factors it deems relevant. Within 30 days of the Town
Board referral, the Environmental Board shall make an advisory recommendation to
the Town Board for the purpose of advising whether or not the

Page 246 of 269



Town of Pittsford | Zoning Code REDLINE — MARCH 12, 2025 DRAFT

Town should accept such proposal.

C. Public hearing by Town Board. If the Town Board determines it appropriate to
advance the proposal to a hearing, it shall, within 45 days of the receipt of the
Environmental Board's advisory recommendation, hold a public hearing concerning
such proposal at a place within the Town. At least 10 days' notice of the time and place
of such hearing shall be published in a paper of general circulation in the Town.
Written notice of such proposal shall be given to Monroe County and to the school
district in which it is located.

D. Determination. The Town Board, after such public hearing, may adopt the proposal
or any modification thereof it deems appropriate or may reject it in its entirety. In
making its determination, the Town Board shall consider recommendations of the
Environmental Board, Monroe County and the school district.

E. Recording agreement. If such proposal is adopted by the Town Board, it shall be
executed by the owner or owners in written form suitable for recording in the Monroe
County Clerk's office.

F. Cancellation. Said agreement may not be canceled by either party. However, the
owner or owners thereof may petition the Town Board for cancellation upon good
cause shown, and such cancellation may be granted only upon payment of the
penalties provided in § 185-244 herein.

§ 185-243. Valuation for taxation.

After acquisition of any such interest pursuant to this article, the valuation placed upon such area
for the purpose of real estate taxation shall take into account and be limited by the limitation on
the future use of the land.

§ 185-244. Penalty for violation or cancellation.

If there is a substantial violation of the terms and conditions of the conservation easement
agreement or if said agreement is canceled by the Town Board upon petition, the owner or owners
of said property must pay to the Town the following amounts in taxes and penalties:

A. All taxes granted abatement under and pursuant to the conservation easement
agreement, said taxes to include the state, county, Town, school districts and all
special improvement districts and other taxing units to which the property is subject.
Said back taxes shall be limited as follows: any easement terminated prior to
beginning of the 11th year will be subject to a five-year maximum rollback; an
easement terminated between its 11th and 15th year will be subject to a four-year
maximum rollback; an easement terminated in its 16th year or later will be subject to
a three-year maximum rollback.

B. A penalty assessed on the basis of the previous year's tax abatement multiplied by a
factor equal to the term of the easement divided by the current year of the easement.
This factor shall not exceed five.

Page 247 of 269



EXHIBIT B



TOWN
OF

PITTSFORD

Settled 1789

RESIDENTIAL DESIGN
STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES

Dated: November 18, 2011
Adopted by Town Board: December 7, 2011
Amended by Town Board: September 18, 2012
Amended by Town Board: March 26, 2025




Residential Design
Standards and Guidelines

General

¢ In reviewing proposals for residential structures in existing neighborhoods involving new
construction, alterations and/or additions, the Desigh Review and Historic Preservation Board shall
consider the surrounding neighborhood context to determine what is appropriate for maintaining the
character of the area. The Board shall also, as appropriate, refer to the Town’s “Residential Styles
Guide”, dated November 18, 2011, as amended and supplemented, for additional guidance.

e To further the goals of the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, the Design Review and Historic Preservation
Board shall consider the type of neighborhood and architecture contemplated in the Planning Board’s
subdivision/development approval process, specifically allowing for a wider variety of home styles for
new developments that do not necessarily meet the specific standards of these guidelines.

¢ If a proposal involves a residential structure that is located contiguous to a designated landmark or
an inventoried structure, the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board shall take such
circumstance into consideration in making its determination.

¢ If the proposal involves an inventoried structure, the Design Review and Historic Preservation Board
shall, in making its determination, take into consideration the “Standards and Guidelines for
Certificates of Appropriateness”, dated November 18, 2011, as amended and supplemented, as well as
any and all distinguishing character-defining features identified at the time such structure was
inventoried.

Building Orientation — Building orientation describes how a building relates to the street and its neighbors.

e New structures and additions should be compatible with the site arrangement, setback distance and
orientation of neighboring houses to reinforce the existing character of the street. [Figure 1]

¢ The front of the house should face the public street, with the front entry readily visible and
identifiable.

¢ Front entry walks are encouraged to connect to existing sidewalks, if present.

Figure 1- Orientation, Arrangement and Setback

STREET




Garages and Driveways

¢ Attached garages are encouraged to be consistent with the existing neighborhood or new
development in which they are located.eriented-se-thatthe-bay-doors-do-netface-thestreet: Where
practical, Ggarages with two or more car bays are strenghy-encouraged to not face the street, and
should instead be oriented to the side of the lot where space conditions permit. [Figure 2] Side yard
facing garages may be required to provide adequate landscaping or screening from the neighboring
property.

¢ Garages with bay doors facing the street should be set back behind the plane of the front facade.

¢ Detached garages should be located behind the house and set back from the road so as to appear
secondary to the primary structure.

* Garages may be located partially or fully in front of the main structure, provided that the garage
does not represent the dominant architectural feature. By way of example, side loaded garages or
garages that are incorporated into a courtyard layout, similar to the examples below, meet the intent
of these provisions. [Figures 3, 4]

* Driveways should only be as wide as necessary for egress in and out of the property — typically no
wider than 20’ at the curb cut. The width of the driveway, however, may get wider toward the house if
necessary to accommodate required area for garage access or turning. [Figure 5]

Figure 2- Side Garage Figure 3- Entry Coutyard Example

GARAGE

i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
!
[

PUBLIC STREET . PUBLIC STREET




Figure 4- Entry Courtyard Example Figure 5- Driveway Width

The formal “entry court” on this house provides an attractive

entry wile screening the garage and parking area from the
street.

PUBLIC STREET

Scale & Massing — Scale is the relative size of the building and its elements (such as individual windows or
materials) compared to other structures around it. Massing is the overall volumetric size of the structure and
its parts compared to other structures around it.

* The overall size, scale and massing of new structures or additions should be compatible with the size,
scale and massing of neighboring houses. [Figure 6 & 7] New construction, including infill construction,
reconstruction, and homes built on lots that are larger than neighboring lots shall not be significantly
larger in size and scale relative to neighboring houses. [Figure 7]

Figure 6- Scale and Massing

T H|EHE
00O HHE DB B

Although these two houses above are roughly the same size, they are different in terms of scale and massing. The
building on the left has smaller scale appearance with the use of smaller design elements, more intricate details and
materials. Its massing also appears smaller because it has been broken up into two wings, has an entry porch and roof
dormer. The building on the right creates a larger scale appearance with larger, bolder features, and a larger mass as
a single block. The scale and massing of these two buildings are generally not compatible with each other.

-

4



Figure 7- Scale and Massing - New Construction

Top (Incorrect): The size and scale of the house in the middle is not compatible with the surrounding houses.
Bottom (Correct): The size and scale of the house in the middle is more compatible with the surrounding houses.

* The permitted height of a structure or addition should minimize the visual impact on neighboring
back yards and limit the loss of privacy of residents of neighboring lots.

¢ The scale of a new addition should be generally similar with the scale of the original structure.

¢ The massing of a new addition should generally be subordinate in size and placement to the original

structure. [Figure 8]

Figure 8- Scale and Massing of Additions

Incorrect. The massing and placement of this new
addition overwhelms the original house next to it.

Correct. The new addition here is keeping with the scale
and massing of the original structure, and steps back
slightly from the road to let the original house remain the

primary focus.




¢ New construction should avoid creating overly complicated massing in a neighborhood where the
typical character of nearby houses has much simpler forms.

¢ New construction should avoid creating “faux massing” facades, such as those with multiple gables
within gables. Such horizontal facade projections or changes in massing should instead extend a

minimum of several feet out from the plane of the facade in order to create a distinctly different mass,

especially in older neighborhoods. [Figure 9]

Figure 9- Massing

Incorrect. Faux massing fa¢ade design such as this-
commonly found in more contemporary subdivisions-
may look good in drawings but do little to break up the
massing when viewed in reality. The “gables nested
inside gables” act as a facade decoration and to not
extend out from each other to create distinct masses.
Such designs are often not appropriate in older
neighborhoods where the massing is typically more
simplified.

Correct. The different forms and massing seen here
extend out from each other significantly, reflecting the
actual living space inside them and creating distinct
masses which are easily identifiable. This simpler
massing style is more appropriate for older
neighborhoods.

Roof Design — Covers the overall style, slope and shape of individual roof elements.

¢ Additions should match the roof style and roof pitch of the original structure.

¢ Additions should match the roofing materials of the original structure, except in cases where the new

roof is a very minor element to the overall design, such as roofing over a new bay window or entry

vestibule.

¢ Any vertical steps or fluctuations in the roof ridge should be a minimum of a few feet in difference.
Minor variations in roof heights are discouraged. [Figure 10]




Figure 10- Roof Transitions

Incorrect. The transition from one roof ridge to the other
here is very minor. Such transitions do little to help break
up the roof areas of a house and sometimes cause water
problems.

Correct. The transition on this roof is much more
noticeable and helps break up the roof area.

¢ Roofs should be designed to divert the fall of rain and snow away from entry areas.

Fenestration - Includes openings in the facade for windows and doors.

¢ Additions and renovations should maintain the general style, size and materials of the original
window and door openings.

* The style and proportion of window and door opening in new construction should generally match
those found on houses in the neighborhood. [Figure 11]

* The style and proportion of windows should be generally consistent across all facades of the
structure. Exceptions to this can be made however for the occasional specialty or decorative window
as a design accent in the facade.

* The size and design of components (sash rails and muntins) should match the original design.

* Replacement windows should match the overall dimensions (width and height) as the windows they
replace.

¢ Window and door openings, especially in masonry facades, should express a lintel or arch above the
opening to reflect how it is supporting the weight above. Such lintels used either structurally or as
decorative trim, should always extend beyond the width of the opening. [Figure 12]

¢ The arrangement of windows on a facade facing the road should generally align with each otherin a
regular pattern or readily apparent organization. Windows which appear to be randomly arranged on
the facade are discouraged.

e Large areas of blank wall are strongly discouraged along all facades of the house.

¢ Sliding glass doors are prohibited on the front facade.

7



Figure 11- Window Proportion and Style

DRIP—
¢ ] TRIM
E ¥
S 5
S =
¢
~ X
N
.’__ = o .;.
SILL
width

Figure 12- Window Lintels on Masonry Buildings

-incorrect correct
— ST T T
| | f
| SILL —,
4

C -] L |

Although these two windows are different sizes and
designs, they have the same general proportions (twice as
tall as they are wide) and are the same basic style (double
hung).

Lintels expresses over window openings should extend beyond the
width of the window.

Front Porches & Entry Areas —

e Existing open-air porches should not be enclosed or walled in. If an existing porch must be enclosed,
it should be done in a manner which retains the existing columns, railings in an exposed fashion and
maintains an open-air appearance. [Figure 13] This treatment however should be reserved for porches
which are on the side or less visible areas of the house, and not the front.

Figure 13- Enclosed Porch Exampl

»~

BEBIR,

Figure 14- Entry Way

This architecturally significant porch has been carefl/y enclosed so | Front door entry should be appropriately scaled to the
that the original columns, railings and details are retained and still | size of the facade. Grand, multi-story entryways such
highly visible. The new enclosure is set within the porch and

painted a dark color to be less noticeable.

as this are overly sized for the home, and are typically
not compatible with the older neighborhoods and are
discouraged.




e New front porches added to an existing structure may not always be appropriate for the
architectural style or neighborhood context, and may be discouraged in these cases.

¢ New front porches should be constructed of materials which are compatible with the materials,
architectural style and design of the original structure.

¢ Uncovered wood decks or porches which do not include a permanent roof overhead are prohibited
along the front facade. Uncovered masonry patios or entranceways are permitted, but may not be
appropriate on some homes of certain styles and periods.

* The proportion of columns or posts along a front porch or facade should appear appropriate to the
amount of weight they appear to be carrying. Columns which are too thin or too thick for their height
are discouraged. Alterations should be designed to match the architectural style and proportion of
existing exterior columns and the beams or entablature they support.

¢ Front door entry areas should be appropriately scaled to the size of the facade. Two story tall
entryways or columns are generally discouraged, especially in neighborhoods where this is not
common. [Figure 14]

¢ Porches which have open airspace underneath should not have the underside enclosed in a manner
which would prevent proper air circulation.

Materials — Includes the proper use of exterior materials on a structure.

¢ New construction should attempt to use one exterior material on a facade as the dominant theme,
with additional materials only used sparingly for accents or trim. The use of many different transitions
from one material to the next along the same horizontal level- commonly found in contemporary
subdivisions- is generally discouraged in older neighborhoods. [Figure 15]

* The use of two or more different facade materials is sometimes better utilized at different vertical
levels. (e.g. masonry at bottom, wood clapboard above.) [Figure 16]

Figure 15- Discouraging material Transitions Figure 16- Preferred Material Transitions

Incorrect. The use of many different transitions from one Correct. A preferred use of material is shown here, where

material to the next along the same horizontal level- wood clapboard is the dominant material used, while the
commonly found in contemporary subdivisions- is often stone and trim is used more sparingly above and below it
not appropriate, especially in older neighborhoods. as a design accent.




¢ Material transitions at outside corners are discouraged (e.g. wood clapboard turning the corner and changing
into masonry.) [Figure 17] The transition from one material to the next should occur at a logical step or
massing change in the facade, such as in inside corner. [Figure 18]

Figure 17- Outside Corner Example \ Figure 18- Inside Corner Example

Incorrect. Material transitions at outside corners, such as Correct. Material transitions at the inside corners, such
the example above, are generally discouraged. as the example above, are generally preferred because
they reinforce the different massings and provide a
logical location for one material to end and the next one
to begin.

10



EXRIBIT C



____________ ] Town
9 I S e . l : P, .
& ot Lo, 8 4
(}Z « /5%’ N Park (Pvt)
TOWN ; LI
o Club of N §’ o Landmarki® @% @'7% N
OF = Hochester 2 QOO 4)0@ Linden ) &
oy
o / < Oaks g
PITTSFORD W n 1 S > f
/) eights
| 0 O O r o - Al 1Z A ., HTOP
~ i' Ao -
Settled 1789 QD / Lanz lok or Kilbourn Road greto” <o S Cir
; % 3
Monroe County, New York / / . Xl s B
L
/ Duerbrook | [ N = Edyth
.l Woddbury N = St
/ Pl (Pvt) 3 e Uy
/ = = Y[
o o]
A Crest Wood Cir N-9 Hopkins Point Road N-2 Old Farm Cir 1-10 Stonecreek Lane (Pvt) G-6 Wessex Ct H-4 N £ Road ’
Abbey Woods (Pvt) H-5 Crestline Road B-9 Hunters Pointe F-12 Old Forge Lane N-12 Stonegate Lane (Pvt) F-8 Wexford Glen H-5 o / ATk ) b ]
Abrams Lane (Pvt) G-5 Crestview Dr  G-9 Huxley Lane (Pvt) D-10 Old Homestead Road (Pvt) M-8 Stoneleigh Ct B-8 Wheatley Ter (Pvt) G-5 1 i ) ‘ g SRA A W-Commergi
Aden Hill L-7 Cricket Hill Dr  G-7 1 Old Kings Lane I-6 Stoney Clover Lane G-5 Whispering Meadow N-11 / School o S = M[@
Allen Pkwy B-9 Croft Road E-7 Ingridshire Dr 1-8 Old Landmark Dr A-8 Stonington Dr J-7 White Briar K-9 l' 5 = 8 8 RN La/ /
Allens Creek Lane (Pvt) A-6  Cross Meadow Lane H-7 Ithaca Dr L-10 0ld Linden Ave A-9 Stoutenburgh Lane (Pvt) F-10  Whitecliff Dr 1-8 J Whitestone[Lane SRAA ' < s = Allen Pkwy " N
Allens Creek Road A-6 Cross Ridge Road L-12 J Old Lyme Road J-12 Sturbridge Lane M-11 Whitestone Lane B-6 / S S 2 St John S 3
Alpine Dr B-9 Crownwood Cir I-7 Jackson Park F-9 Old Monroe Ave E-8 Stuyvesant Ct 1-9 Whitestone Lane N B-6 ’ 2 > 2 w ! Fisher = c J
Amber Hill Dr L-6 Cullens Run H-11 E Jefferson Cir G-9 Overbrook Road A-8 Stuyvesant Road I-9 Whitley Ct K-2 < I 3 ©) Road Alping U e tv £ 7
Ambergate Rise 1-6 D E Jefferson Road H-10 P Sugarbush Lane K-11 Widewaters Lane E-5 L Whitestone D % fuversity = /
Ames Cres H-6 Dartmouth Ct (Pvt) G-4 W Jefferson Road F-6 Paddington Pl (Pvt) I-8 Sugarwood Dr K-11 Wild Berry Lane M-10 S .l o o %o,, £ I.
Arbor Creek Dr N-11 Deer Creek Road N-11 Jordan Road 1-9 Palmyra Road G-11 Summer Tree (Pvt) F-10 Willard Road J-6 o / G S i 4 g 5 - s
Arlington Dr  F-11 Delancey Ct 1-4 K Panorama Trl S A-12 Summers Cir J-3 Willoughby PI 1-6 ,' B - Rl\ Sylvania | Ro@ Z g II
Arrowhead Road M-12 Devonwood Lane 1-7 Kalleston Dr  J-8 Park Bluff Way L-12 Summit Oaks K-9 N Wilmarth Road M-5 ~ /Shareham § = 7
Arrowhead Road (Pvt) M-12 Doral Ct (Pvt) G-4 Kerrygold Way (Pvt) G-6 Park Road L-11 Sunrise Hill L-9 S Wilmarth Road N-4 » Knowiton = § ,l
Auburndale (Pvt) K-10 Downing Dr K-11 Kilbourn Road B-8 E Park Road F-7 Sunrise Park L-9 Winchester Dr M-12 / —h— Lane (PVD 2 2 3 1
Austin Park F-9 Dryden Cir (Pvt) G-5 Kimberly Road D-11 Park Square Lane F-5 Sunrise Park (Pvt) L-10 Wind Mill Road 1-9 | Pickwick|Dr| J | ° Al in(en o §
B Dunbridge Cir D-9 Kingsbury Ct D-9 Parker Dr G-8 Sunset Blvd G-7 Wind Tree Cir M-10 / N Oak ity Club Dr P s & Rodney_}
Babcock Farms Lane H-7 Dunnewood Ct L-5 Kingsfield Dr (Pvt) M-9 Parkridge Dr L-12 Surrey Lane L-10 Winding Road D-8 / Pickwick Dr Hill Cott Dr Bragdor] O B Janes—t
Barker Road J-7 Durham Way (Pvt) F-9 Kinwood Lane (Pvt) H-6 Pebble Creek Lane (Pvt) 1-8 Sutherland St F-8 Winding Wood (Pvt) F-10 ’ Country Club \\\o‘“‘ Club (Pvi) Park .I
Barnswallow Dr G-10 Duxbury Way C-10 Kirklees Road D-11 Pepperwood Ct L-6 Sutton Pt H-4 Windscape Park J-11 g — Country | ’?0,5,0, .l
Barnwood Hgts (Pvt) D-10 E Kittredge Dr (Pvt) G-5 Pheasant Hollow F-11 Swickley Ct (Pvt) H-4 Winthrop Way K-11 Fline 4 /
Barrington Hills 1-6 Eaglewood Cir F-4 Kitty Hawk Dr F-12 Pickwick Cir (Pvt) B-5 Sylvania Road B-8 Wood Creek Dr F-10 RRAA Dr % D/ /
Bay Colony Dr J-9 East Ave C-8 Knickerbocker Road H-9 Pickwick Dr B-6 T Wood Gate G-7 SRAA e
Baynard Ct K-10 East St K-11 Knobb Hill Dr G-8 Pilgrim Cir D-9 Tall Acres Dr 1-9 Wood Hill Road G-7 e
Bedford Way G-8 Eastview Ter F-9 Knollwood Dr A-7 Pin Hook Lane D-5 Tamarron Way G-11 Wood St F-9 RN - S
Beech Road E-6 Edyth St B-10 Knowlton Lane (Pvt) B-8 Pine Acres Dr C-9 Taylors Rise D-5 Wood Stone Rise L-9 ! ¢ 9 ~. E
Bellingham Creek K-4 Elatia Cir M-10 Krislynn Dr (Pvt) K-4 Pine Cone Dr K-12 Ten Eyke Cir 1-9 Woodbury PI (Pvt) A-7 'I ¢ Irond it 2 I \.:? S ¢
Bishops Ct H-6 Eliot Cir (Pvt) G-5 L Pine Vista M-8 Thomas Grove H-9 Woodgreen Dr L-3 J “é“ e‘i“‘" 9| 4 7 S
Black Wood Cir L-7 Ellingwood Dr B-8 La Due Cir (Pvt) L-11 Pittsford Henrietta Thornell Road K-10 Woodland Road E-7 / (()jl;nbry 2 \'\.R o
W Bloomfield Road L-8 Elm St E-9 Laguna Lane (Pvt) J-2 Town Line Road K-2 Thornwood Cir K-11 Woods End H-10 ’ " & ‘9///}79,7 Il /1
Boughton Ave F-9 Elmbrook Dr F-9 Lancaster Rise 1-3 S Pittsford Hill Cir H-4 Thrush Field Way M-10 Woods Hole Ct G-7 ! - Qq? Sl Stienvood Sl e
Bragdon Dr (Pvt) C-9 Enfield Dr L-10 Landmark Lane E-12 S Pittsford Hill Lane H-4 Tiffany Ct (Pvt) F-5 Woodside Cir G-11 ¥ E - Oc‘? o > Dy \'\.S l
Brakenberry Road D-5 Epping Wood Trl L-9 Landsdowne Lane D-9 Pittsford Manor Lane D-12 Timberfield Way (Pvt) G-7 Woodside Lane G-11 / 3= N /7‘5'077,4/ K N ¢ r
Bretton Woods Dr A-8 Escena Rise K-7 Langley Rise H-5 Poinciana Dr (Pvt) J-3 Tobey Brook (Pvt) G-6 Woodstock Lane K-11 Lo = Qoq & /?Oad\ N,
Brewster Lane [-7 Esternay Lane E-5 Larwood Dr D-5 Ponds Edge Way (Pvt) H-6 Tobey Ct (Pvt) F-6 Woolston Road N-12 ’ c‘g % 0(5’ S/ 3 /?an' Ses.
Briar Cir D-9 Evergreen Lane D-5 Latchmere Ct D-12 Poolside Dr (Pvt) A-9 Tobey Road G-7 Wren Field Lane M-10 J) S IZ glyer  Dr Py Briar—& > & S _g‘b A \'\,,
Briar Patch Road D-9 Evesham PI (Pvt) K-9 Laureldale Dr J-11 Post Side Lane N-8 Tobey Village Road F-5 JClover of - Cir—(c o & 3 g /
Brickston Dr L-10 F Lawden Woods (Pvt) N-1 Preston Cir L-12 Tobey Woods (Pvt) G-6 / Hills Dr Pittsford $€Toseph S = < Khodse\ Oy o~/
Bridge Water Ct (Pvt) G-4 Fairport Road C-10 Lawton Dr J-10 Princeton Pl (Pvt) F-5 Tobin Road N-1 / RN Place Trinity & ) arar O 3 lngsBun\ 6 oy . Ocfes RN/ /&4
Bridleridge Farms M-2 Fairway Xing F-5 Le Pere Dr K-10 Prospect Hill Road E-5 Tor Hill K-8 *Taylars MU_C Mall Montessori University LanetPwt) '/ Oak-Marior c§ o /
Brightford Heights Road A-8 Falcon Trl F-12 Leeds Cir L-3 Q Torwood Cir D-10 !/ Rise o School Dunbridge Crés & 2 sr
Brightford Heights Road (Pvt) A-9 Falconbridge Dr E-5 Leeward Lane D-5 Quaker Road D-7 Touraine Ct K-10 y Ever9r® = Cir & © o Dr & |
Brittany Lane (Pvt) D-7 Fall Meadow Dr M-11 Lehigh Station Road K-3 R Trailwood Cir D-5 / Lane Fock'6 Pittsford Pittsford SRAA ® ‘Bhswick Lane,/ /& % g sL T
Bromley Road J-8 Falling Creek Road H-12 Lexton Way L-7 Railroad Mills Road M-12 Travis Grove J-4 / 1Pls or Colony N St Bernard's Qe Z > | h, 1
Bromsgrove Hill L-9 Farm Field Lane H-7 Lincoln Ave F-8 Rainberry (Pvt) F-10 Trotters Field Run H-7 / Old Acre Canal Az Plaza 2 3 Schoolof Landsdo & 3 alihgham _ | &
Brook Road E-7 Fawn Run (Pvt) M-9 Linden Ave A-10 Rainbrooke Dr J-8 Trowbridge Trl D-10 .5 Lane Larvoad Park S x Theology o % Skdgebrodk Road S !
E Brook Road E-7 Featherstone Ct 1-7 Linden Cove (Pvt) G-4 Rambling Woods (Pvt) H-6 Trumbull Lane (Pvt) G-5 I3 9 PRy Q) Y/ Barnwosd Road = !
W Brook Road E-6 Fellview Dr M-11 Linden Oaks A-9 Rand P1 F-9 Turnberry Lane H-7 /\\2 % & & Hgts (Pvt) z 2 | Gir 4 |
Brookwood Road G-7 Fenimore Dr J-9 Linden Park A-10 Random Woods D-10 Turning Leaf Dr L-6 / % J g N =) Windin New. England g’@ 2 2 GlendoWe Q ! .
Brownell Lane (Pvt) G-5 Field Gate Cir H-7 Linden Park (Pvt) A-10 Ravenna Cres K-4 Turtle Creek M-9 / = rench wedh g e 9 \Soo&’ s 2 o 24 | /
Browning Lane (Pvt) M-10 Fitzmot Glen (Pvt) H-6 Line St E-9 Reeves Road L-2 Tuxford Road D-11 . S B 2 Random Torévlood |5y 2 £ 2 | /
Buchanan Road 1-9 Fletcher Road J-8 Little Brook Dr H-12 Reitz Cir  G-9 Twining Ct -9 / N S o Pilgrim - s = z e
Burncoat Way G-9 Forest Knoll K-12 Lochnavar Pkwy C-10 Reitz Pkwy G-9 A% / Lane Brage,, S = 2 Fréing, Cir Pittsford Road !
Burr Oak Dr J-12 Forestwood Lane 1-12 Locke Dr M-11 Rensselaer Dr  1-9 Van Buren Road 1-9 ./ Pin ook Ros @’9, Falconbridge « © S Cemetery i g !
Buttermilk Hill Road G-8 Founders Green H-8 Locust St F-9 Ridgeview Ct (Pvt) K-10 Van Cortland Dr H-9 / g Dr R : Kirklee |
Butternut Dr  G-11 Framingham Lane E-6 Long Meadow Cir E-6 Rippingale Road D-11 Van Voorhis Road M-10 / " e, aq RN I
C Frederick Road 1-9 Lusk Farm Cir H-9 Robin Dr (Pvt) C-5 Vantage Dr 1-10 ’ ay Uan® X @bo‘ﬂ = i
Calkins Road 1-5 French Road D-7 M Rockdale Meadows L-4 Village Grove G-8 ! Estefn & o « MATZ PUD High's :
e X = BABE | [ Golf Ave Golf Ave
Callahan Ct (Pvt) G-6 G Mahogany Run K-5 Rollins Xing 1-3 Village Lane (Pvt) E-8 / £ DO, L Line/St, cmpmrmeme e
Callingham Road C-11 Gaskin P1 (Pvt) G-8 N Main St E-9 Roosevelt Road B-10 Vincent Dr H-11 I A\ o) 1 . = & !
Canal Park P1 E-5 Gennis Dr (Pvt) A-10 S Main St G-8 Rosewood Dr L-11 w I. ° Prospegt st %‘ o 2 ! Z Rg‘be‘;)t C ‘;’ Elm| St @\Q' 1 SRA
Candlewood Cir G-4 Gladbrook Road  J-11 Malm Lane B-6 Round Trail Dr 1-10 Walnut Grove K-11 / N Road 2 | Erie oroy 8 & i
Candlewood Dr  G-4 Gleason Cir (Pvt) A-10 Mandalay Ridge N-9 Roxbury Lane H-5 Wandering Trl N-11 ] %3 Byoq N o e i Canal Al‘boretumane A O | Grove Wa? ‘
Canfield Road N-6 Glencannon Trl (Pvt) F-10 Maple St F-9 Rt 441 A-9 Warder Dr  1-9 / Cangt o4 W s Natuie OQ;\' <, St Villace Of !
Canterbrook Meadows M-2 Glendower Cir D-11 Marsh Road G-11 Rustic Pines G-10 Washington Ave F-8 / & Park\PI RN S E ! = o 2 g |
Carriage Ct L-11 Glenmore Cir H-5 Masters Cove (Pvt) G-4 Ryder Cup Cir F-5 Washington Road D-10 / & Hastings sdand O |x Road | Preserve S P gtSfOF d < Pitts fO 7d-
Carters Grove (Pvt) H-10 Golden Flyer Dr (Pvt) D-8 Maywood Ave B-8 S S Washington St C-10 I. §§’ Cir Héafthstont c Didm Ave i % = H RRAA
Caversham Woods 1-6 Golf Ave E-11 Meadow Cove Road G-11 Saddle Brook I-8 Wayside Cir C-10 ’ Rdad 8 -?g s \mc . X <, > !
Cedarwood Cir K-10 Grandhill Way J-5 Meadow Wood Cir H-7 San Rafael Dr C-8 / = ?) o Brobk ?\03(\ =7 ! S Erie Canal Park ! Monroe
Chapin Way (Pvt) B-7 Graywood Lane (Pvt) K-4 Mendon Center Road K-7 Sand Brook Road J-11 / 2 W/ S Port of Pittsford - | AG Golf
Charmwood Road C-11 Green Hill Lane F-8 Mendon Road K-8 Sandpiper Lane G-7 / Lock 32 v 3 0@0 - 5 Schoen i Club
Charter Oaks Dr J-9 Greenpoint Trl (Pvt) F-4 Merrycreek Xing H-6 Sandy Lane G-5 / State Canal Beech Road //-& N5 (T 10d Place Copper .
Chatham Woods H-6 Greentree G-7 Merryhill Lane H-6 Sasan Pkwy (Pvt) N-2 s L i 2 = 3 R ,'/ ,.’7 P\i/t.tlslf"r d Avg Beech Park !
Chattingham Ct (Pvt) H-4 Greenwood Park J-7 Mid Ponds Lane (Pvt) G-6 Sassafras Lane J-12 / Park 3|8 Q:79 £ast S -7 e / Glr:é;: |
Chelsea Park H-6 Grey Fawn F-12 Mile Post Lane H-8 Saxony Road 1-9 ! 5 4./ P / S i
Cherry Hills Dr L-4 Greylock Ridge H-10 Mill Neck Lane H-9 Schoen P1 F-9 yi e ’ 9 ® H )
Chesterbrook Lane I-6 Greythorne Hill 1-3 Mill Road J-10 Schoen Road E-7 4 {] %m %, ! Summer Rainberry !
Chisholm Lane (Pvt) G-5 Greythorne Hill (Pvt) H-3 Millay Cir (Pvt) G-5 School Lane  G-9 / 2 oI/ s 2 Novwre] Tree (Pvi) S\Ridge. g, (*¥0 |
Chriswell Lane  K-3 Grove St E-9 Miller Ct (Pvt) A-7 Sedgebrook Road D-11 - foittstord & S A Lty W N o] & Y i
Church St F-9 Guilford Way 1-8 Millstone Ct K-10 Settlers Green 1-5 L /Sutherland .S S VI 4 Sy . Winding > - !
Clover Hills Dr C-5 H Millwood Ct J-10 Shelwood Dr B-9 Rydler / B 2 I ¥ 2 LA Wood (Pvt)~ =2 2 . :
Clover St I-5 Hadley Ct 1-6 Mitchell Road G-10 Sheridan Ct G-8 o 2 Kino's / st ¢ n; CERe Arington D 1
Coach Side Lane N-8 Hagen Dr (Pvt) A-9 Monroe Ave D-7 Sherwood Dr C-11 i P 8" J Stohg L L Wood / Wood B i
Coddington Grove I-6 Hahnemann Trl (Pvt) F-11 Monterey Dr (Pvt) L-10 Shire Oaks Dr D-11 > O \ Bend J Lap, Jate <« Stl = faon ZEITE !
Colonial Pkwy D-7 Harleston Lane B-10 Morningside Park (Pvt) N-2 Shoreham Dr B-6 S S PUD Park IZ / Pvy / /st Louis Ple'g 5 52 % 32 ! ') 5 |
W Commercial St B-10 Harper Dr  1-9 Moss Creek Ct (Pvt) G-4 Silco Hill 1-9 & 2 / West Jefférsofs S Schgol £ e “fg =49 /"%a pheasant Hoy, Hunters|Pointe i
Concord Dr M-11 Harrison Cir M-12 Muirfield Ct J-10 Sinclair Dr (Pvt) G-5 Jefferson Road / g 7004 é P\us\'\“va‘ 7 i z % Sfo(/f Y H
Connemara Dr (Pvt) G-6 Harvest Glen J-3 Mullett Dr (Pvt) F-5 Skylight Trl L-8 - / il d Roaq S = V23 $one 8, |
Copper Woods K-7 Harwood Lane B-10 Musket Lane L-11 Skytop Lane G-7 st Princeton Tobey | Office Obey, S O — 3 g @ | - m@f‘% Hahnemann Falcon Trl |
Copper Woods (Pvt) K-7 Hastings Cir E-5 N Smead Road F-7 Dr | Tiffany ( PJO Village | 2" pey Gt @ =/ % 2 S S I rl (Pvt) |
Corby Ct K-3 Hawkstone Way K-8 Nature View M-8 Soho Cir L-3 Cl oyt CLEYD Offife Way 4 i = 3 = | Vilaga s st e S, i RN ‘
Cottonwood Lane 1-12 Hearthstone Road E-6 New England Dr D-9 South St F-9 Park ey V'//age / &) @ g | Grove @ 5 S0, % ; Eatvrl !
Country Club Dr C-8 Heathcote Ct  M-11 Norhill Dr (Pvt) A-9 Southern Woods K-12 3 Lhne o e —Y RN 7 o 3 3 3 ” ] oakiy > i
N Country Club Dr C-8 Heatherhurst Dr  F-8 Northfield Gate 1-7 Split Rock Road G-7 Leets R = Dr (Pvy) | Millay &4 / Gaskin Pl e 2 ot NG | Ro?® PUD Oc();irSI © 9 - i
Country Club Road B-10 Hedge Wood Lane N-9 Northstone Rise H-9 Springdale Lock G-11 Hill M%Sts( te)e'( &% sand\/—‘ Trambull IR / KeusunoD (PVE) & 7or T i % =
Country Oaks Dr J-8 Hepburn Lane L-3 o Spruce Lane (Pvt) G-8 Country Club & Lane(Put) Qakfield StOCecreek Waod 9 ] s N I L=l — A ———t ————em e e e By % s
Courtenay Cir G-8 Hidden Springs Dr H-4 Oak Leaf Lane J-12 Squire Lane L-11 . Mas®rs Abrams . @) Way (Pvt) (s\?te) . EAD . Reitz ol _\\d\e\\ &/d@ % 1
Coventry Ridge L-4 High Hill Dr J-8 Oak Manor Cres D-10 St Andrews Hill G-4 Lane(Pvt) : \a\ﬁo (G Woods—| (@ | S & o bbb . Spruce Reitz Cir Y W et e 4 i
Covington Woods (Pvt) I-3 High Oaks Dr J-8 Oak Manor Lane D-10 Stable View M-7 Brownell Sinc Hinak £\ Hae\ @ (e Y el Lané (Pvt) o 5, ;
Cranston Road 1-8 High St E-9 Oak Meadow Trl K-9 Standish Way G-7 RN Lane (Pt) Lane (Pvt) Q? %, Ot % € - Parket 5 @ IS (%,/ !
Cranswick Lane D-9 Hilltop Dr G-8 Oakfield Way (Pvt) G-6 State St F-9 Wheatley = & OOO, S N N '?O@ @ %, |
Creek Ridge (Pvt) F-10 Hines Hill Road N-6 Office Park Way (Pvt) E-5 Stefenage Ct H-7 ol Chishalm Ter (Pvt) Kerfygold S e S % B & % A - % i
Creekside Lane A-7 Hogan Ct (Pvt) G-4 Old Acre Lane D-5 Stone Road H-6 ’ 4 OganCt (Bt) Gt Lane (Pvt) : Way (Pyvt) q)ﬁ’ Wood); & 2 ¢ - ° ) 2 3@ !
Creekwood Lane  H-12 Holley Creek K-10 Old Brick Cir N-12 Stonebridge Lane H-7 ! Ct Py B & PW LN S 3 N 9 %% Pl '
'I o B ) i Connemera Callahan i § Jefferson 6\‘9*5‘/ WALY I
AT <. Cir (Pvt) Dr (Pvt), IS S Dr Hilltop Road ES 55 o I
[on - (o] . .
! g a E] @ Split > o = p Mg i
.I S " dSt 5 y 2 Greer\\‘ea Tim\!;)verfield \8'\\\\ Bedford o Hill \Dr o = 'DE_ g o?'b\e !
. . . a ndréws én O ' '
RN Residential Neighborhood Protected Land f Hil o) 2 g%ee &3 Mepdol (P ey = S Burncoat Batnsialoh_| [© 5Q‘\Q & ® RN i
/ go < > % = %% Cir Sandpiper s 5 Dr 3 & “), i
. . . l /V\leuE @) (o) ~ = = y x :,? |
B Residential Purchase of Development Rights (PDR) ] 0 ) |9 s Eﬁ 5, wh i I £ Shegdan Clestuiew, > %, %,S/y 2 I
. . . ‘ ® :$ % o < t 8 . © .
RRAA Rural Residential NY Power Authority Easement ) & Ra® Lajge (Pyl) % _é Crgss Meadpw Lane 3 [ My portas PWools\ /X Carters % ﬁoo/r 1
/ one Road o n © [ Post |Lane L Grove (Rvt) Cullens Or
] ] ) ’ Stone ) End\ O A 1
RRSP Rural Residential South Pittsford Real Property Parcel Y Chattingham | |2 Hidden 5 L Roag ]l;“’“e.” i
/ » Ct » - Ponds o) WWYE ) 3 ® H
. . I ® Spting % o 5 G d Rise > ¢
SRAA Suburban Residential / e (i * Dr S Edge ® 52 v e ey 2 !
= g" Swickley X ot’% = Ames Wy {Pvt) E %J g Founders Z o 44 YON !
MATZ Monroe Avenue Transitional Zone ! SPitsford | & Gt o o S 2 % =] Green & RN X Q, g i
= = Cres @ (o7 5]
/ il Cir x Pv) Fitzmot 2 g b S = s 'F-USK S Road i
. [ = e} @ arm
MATZ PUD MATZ Planned Unit Development ! I \ ol § Glen (Py) e L & 2 e :
/ @ e‘ﬁ‘o‘ lenm : L % = 2 f
PUD Planned Unit Development / E {éngley SR g <) 2 e e ¢ = Knickerbogker N :
/ RN Rise %(% 28 & £ Babchy, | & {4 e Gréat ¢ Oacsi
. 4 = S
AG Agricultural ! Grevin O $ v & 8 /N S Embankment | &° '
/ Pty o] )i 5Tk y 7/ o RN o |
1Z Incentive Zoning ; & e & gae z 3 = H gotan I
Abbey () 2 59 & 3 2 V.
B\ & = (o2 o an ) ]
. . 4 ds (PVD) \se2 % 7 S o3 & o » < 1
MU-C Mixed Use - Commercial / il wo? 5 ¢ i 2 m%& DS = y t el 2 % ~ e
Ve 5 waod s uy\(/:esan 8 o © % o 1
. S = of o t S Dr o oy 3 |
GC General Commercial /5 & S SOOI S (2 /9 :
I. = S} © \ & RN > a Feath&rstone S = § i 2
. s © ® '
HTOP High Technology and Office Park / 5 RRAA Setiiers 2 S _ & Paddington & Earm 06§ s
. . [ Covington Srn &y, gr; % Q@Q RHEY o2 Dr Saxony A > i
LI Light Industrial / Wods (Pyt) o Caversham - Swster ® e k5 %) %3y S
ings , Raund S
; ; / - Road Vane Calkins ne Road Mendon Qé') aun 2 [t
VI Village of Pittsford / CalKiris Center ES LS obd ) 12 Harper S
D " Crownwood Wayder, & ) I
o Chest Willoughby ! d — t D 5 '
LWOD Local Waterfront Overlay District J %, Pl ) Gir Mestdop Roa Or S o = Vantege — |
/ : o Lq S\ lan™ AG i
A GNE SN E O\ Ropd_ )/~ ey 3 !
V8 % o) el 5 - 3 = Man i
/ 2 ® % dl & = 2 .
I. & ugg o .%2 ® - = Way %— e 082 1@ Te)
JAE 2 [<i 3 = g el K {
S = Py} 5 o © S Ward S = = i
0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Vi< Calkins Grdve 5 & /o I TE 3= = g = i
i RN Gry S S = S |Rainbrooke Q 3 a -(g? QL |
v Qo 2
I i 2o . RRAA i
0 200 400 600 800 / é@ S HIPBHUM o H a | g
L & ke =) . .
1 Q@ S il Or Shdrter Odks Twining Sassafras |
"U‘I = Ct Lane ICD
P>
* Ha"l/ » S Oy 0\ § k] T = @?X— i -
1 inch = 1,000 feet =~ ey 0 = &) [ 8] -ohan or & = e
K =) < o aks o |
Intended print size: 30"W x 36"H © I’f”; -~ B 539 Dr 2 [ Fehy E ] = J
N ar 0! = < = [a]
< 5 =\ ITTR S 2 i~
< / Sus, Willard Road i PUD s ui'_: §® Pittsford o br Millwood % & iO
/ Mg, ) _ 5 459 Mendon HS 5 ct 3 onok Road !
2y g :é—‘ N S RN = S wigidicapk = & Old Lyme 1 =
S .
/ Ldguna Q S8 o e Stuyvesant ) S Park o Road i
Dated: QI. Land o = 90d. . park. | @ Country g a‘“\o . H
e = Oaks D \ 9 !
o) '6{5 Barker e Road Z O oak (@sf |
Kenign S =5 KN Miltstone Liane )+
¢ Hopkins T E E; = et 5 :
A . 3 o o 3T |
Commissioner of Public Works Eiston o AG Park Thornell = Eho(rinélgl g = g 5 Ceda(x:?:/ood B, d I
O .
\Wood® Barker Farm oad ES s @ 3
~ RRAA _ o Road MS = :
) Iénslynn 15 Park “ t>°$ e A ind 1
< .
Approved by Pittsford Town Board TP g i 8 & {_-,} O%,b Sugarbush Y 1
by Resolution Dated: /:é" § B = z £ % Lare & i
. % '
/ x 5 n i
MarCh 27, 2025 .I . § ??S (OQ’/?S Wi\y\}hrop SugaDr\;vood R i
e s 0 ] w RRAA ° 3 i i
IS r ] < |
&Q I~ RN © Coppar Tharnell 9 i
© White a Southern '
Please refer to Chapter 185 in the Code of the Town of Pittsford, J = Corby st Briax Holley Or ) & WAL Cir Woods Forest |
New York, for the purpose, definition and permitted uses of the ) ,I = %,@ Ct (04 O‘e?»\(‘ o Tor Hill E\IG'SP\m % Creek Toyrainé :s) Ghove | 3 e i
zones and districts depicted on this map. &~ 1§ K4 & O N P B > 3 3 1
i~ QO Chvinty 5 : : 5 2 |
c £7,
Zoning designations are subject to change. Contact the Town y 3 Mahogany & / > %' < 12 |
/ o K 2 Monroe [ ® Lap Rosey) < '
of Pittsford Planning, Zoning, and Development Department L o] 0 z County U Rise 7 Yo 0od |
. X . U 3 S €herry Hills Df y | ay Stone 4 RN H
. b/ o = yater Authority ASt Stree
for verification of zoning Z = Water Authorit; >, East Street |
S = Soho £ Turhing Leaf 2 9| (—Cemetery '
@ - — idl Epping (1 Musket
I.IJ: Cir %J g5 s > Wood T RN Luarr:zy B Powder 1
: oun? S - = Park Mills f
@ Q i )
I.I‘o (et . $ S/ _Blatk RN Hill BiCckS o %,% =) Road ES Park I|
S .
NS i Wodd| Gir Brom Road i
Data Sources: 15 ol sgfove Slinrise i
Town of Pittsford GIS, February 2025 v L'i\* Park(Pvt | i
Monroe County Real Property Tax Service, July 2024 ,I Isaac Gordon 5. e Enf'e/d O@Oy Z Preston Pa\r/l\(/ Rl ! L
U.S. Geological Survey, February 2019 ] RN Nature Park z e? Refwood o ' ?QG CfS‘,f ’é};, Cin ay |
I ( ‘s 175} & 40 L4
i RN - i
e 2 '
The information depicted on this map is representational -I | Dr %“N\S . L (@ ¢ 3 i
and should be used for general reference purposes only. .I ihill Road % & *
No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for 1 X | ne © 2 !
the data or its use or interpretation. I' New New = é‘i 5 Squire \e ® 2 |
. " o Monterey 3 © !
/ Reeves York 9 e 2 Dr (Put) Q b2 @ |.
Town of Pittsford GIS /. o RRAA Power 65 RRAA % E FawnRun | % & 5 woord < ks :)% |
= [e) O
February 19, 2025 / %o Authority 3 [PV 5 X Browning & > 3 RIOWheq AlropRead |
W= (%) £ d Ro,
. 5 Lane (Pvt) = = 99 |_Road (Pvt) |
£ s Van a Z 2 +
.l' : North Wilmarth Road : o e L '
/ 1. Ork TSome X Kingsfield Etata] i 5 S !
N / Bridleridge © Viszg Dr (Pv) : : ol | Heatheote @ § % RN |
i\/ 4 =) Ct S S :
/ ) o/ (R, = 2% |
W ;\ A> E / Canterbrook R\ RRAA \£§ La” Aview Dr % i
s/yy £ Meadows Farms Srable Vidy, Wild By ® o 'I M
. — - 1
/ ! |
S i o U ® oy :
/ . g K Rall 5 |
‘ 03 ]
/ Oog) 8 o 0o, TIE Cree RN %%« ot C i
[} (o)
/ 2 = Homestead - & 1
I. ?@ Road (Pvt) %?/ LQE) YVinchester !
; » 2 o i RRAA
; RRSP I W SN
] % _ W o
£ [ E RN Sidé o Wind! st '
/ < ¢ Coach S HrEEl Creek 3 % !
4 C‘ef;,;-e/ Mendon § Z . 5 v/ Atbor AN\ \& |
‘ S & O\ !
/ /(\36. Morningside Ponds S 3 ?s} 2 .396 Creek o N7 g > 0:47 l,
I' ) Park (Pvt) Park 2 Sjad Lane = & -/ /“Whispeting S Z. i
F = Wobod 9 Meadow P '
— O,
I'I Rodd - U Wi, ¢! \%Qe&@ 5 7 a gtk % :
S R Q 3 = ir
I' Lawd ’?OQO: §b R A @ c = i N
/] awden = =) '
/ Vicods 1| P lcr RRAA . pjo |
Il (Pvt) Wandering V974 S/ W I I 0 T e
. . S ey U\ oo v AN U /T TV L YA e e Llididiciciniamcoranson= -t :
JA / Hopkin® Point S g Ny, Y el caffield Road (/0 | e Ll Ll e e I
/ Sasan % . 1RO @ e N N R S —————m PP PP Pl |
, Pkwy % \e\o()\“ns Point Canfield | L i .
! (Pvi) ) T own of Mendon I
L el e e A e
/
/

11

12




MEMORANDUM

To: Pittsford Town Board

Settled 1789

From: Paul Schenkel — Commissioner of Public Works

Date: March 12, 2025
Regarding: Grant for the Barker Road Sidewalk Project: SEQRA
For Meeting On: March 18, 2025

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The Town has succeeded in its application for a grant from the Monroe County
Department of Transportation for a new sidewalk on Barker Road. For the County Legislature
to formally confirm the grant, the Town must furnish a SEQRA resolution.

The new sidewalk will run from Hopkins Park to Barker Road Middle School. It will
provide a safe year-round walking path from the Copper Woods neighborhood to both the
Middle School and Mendon High School. Its construction will fill a sidewalk gap identified for
attention in the Town’s Active Transportation Plan. The County grant covers up to half the cost
of the project, with the remainder coming from budgeted funds.

The approval resolution, SEQRA Short Environmental Assessment Forms and a map
depicting the project are attached.



At a Regular Meeting of the Town Board
of the Town of Pittsford, New York, held
at the Town Hall, Pittsford, New York, on
the 18th day of March, 2025.

PRESENT:

William A. Smith, Jr., Supervisor

Kim Taylor, Deputy Supervisor
Naveen Havannavar, Councilperson
Cathleen A. Koshykar, Councilperson
Stephanie Townsend, Councilperson

In the Matter
of SEQRA RESOLUTION

THE PROPOSED BARKER ROAD SIDEWALK PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Town Board has applied for a grant through the Monroe County
Department of Transportation for the construction of a sidewalk on Barker Road between
Hopkins Park and Barker Road Middle School in the Town of Pittsford; and

WHEREAS, the Town Board, as part of a coordinated review and acting as Lead
Agency with Monroe County as in Involved Agency, has determined that the action
proposed herein is an “Unlisted Action” under SEQRA which will be undertaken by the

Town Board; and

WHEREAS, a Short Part 1 and Part 2 EAF form has been prepared for the

proposed project and carefully reviewed by the Town Board and is attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, the completed Short EAF does not identify any significant adverse

environmental impacts associated with the proposal; and

NOW, THEREFORE, be it



RESOLVED, the Pittsford Town Board, following due deliberation and consideration,
finds that the proposed Tobey Road Sidewalk Project will have no significant adverse
impact on the environment; and, accordingly, issues a Negative Declaration of

Environmental Significance.

Said matter having been put to a vote, the following votes were recorded:

William A. Smith, Jr. VOTING
Kim Taylor VOTING
Naveen Havannavar VOTING
Cathleen A. Koshykar VOTING
Stephanie Townsend VOTING

The resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted.

DATED: March 18, 2025

TOWN CLERK CERTIFICATION

I, Renee M. McQuillen, Town Clerk of the Town of Pittsford, New York, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY that | have compared a copy of the Order as herein specified with the original in
the minutes of the meeting of the Town Board of the Town of Pittsford, and that the same is

a correct transcript thereof and the whole of the said original.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand this day of March,
2025.

Renee M. McQuillen, Town Clerk



Short Environmental Assessment Form
Part 1 - Project Information

Instructions for Completing

Part 1 - Project Information. The applicant or project sponsor is responsible for the completion of Part 1. Responses become part of the
application for approval or funding, are subject to public review, and may be subject to further verification. Complete Part | based on
information currently available. If additional research or investigation would be needed to fully respond to any item, please answer as
thoroughly as possible based on current information.

Complete all items in Part 1. You may also provide any additional information which you believe will be needed by or useful to the
lead agency; attach additional pages as necessary to supplement any item.

Part 1 - Project and Sponsor Information

Name of Action or Project:
Barker Road Sidewalk Project

Project Location (describe, and attach a location map):
Barker Road - Between Hopkins Park and Barker Road Middel School

Brief Description of Proposed Action:

The Town of Pittsford is proposing to construct a sidewalk on the north side of Barker Road (County Road) between Hopkins Park and Barker Road
Middle School. The sidewalk will connect the Copper Woods neighborhood allowing children to walk year around to the adjacent school.

Name of Applicant or Sponsor: Telephone: (585) 248-6250

Town of Pittsford - Paul Schenkel E-Mail: pschenkel@townofpittsford.org

Address:
11 8. Main Street
City/PO: State: Zip Code:
Pittsford New York 14534
1. Does the proposed action only involve the legislative adoption of a plan, local law, ordinance, NO YES
administrative rule, or regulation?
If Yes, attach a narrative description of the intent of the proposed action and the environmental resources that I:l
may be affected in the municipality and proceed to Part 2. If no, continue to question 2.
2. Does the proposed action require a permit, approval or funding from any other government Agency? NO YES
If Yes, list agency(s) name and permit or approval: Monroe County Department of Transportation D
3. a. Total acreage of the site of the proposed action? Sacres
b. Total acreage to be physically disturbed? 5acres
¢. Total acreage (project site and any contiguous properties) owned
or controlled by the applicant or project sponsor? Oacres

4. Check all land uses that occur on, are adjoining or near the proposed action:
[] Urban [] Rural (non-agriculture) ~ [] Industrial ] Commercial Residential (suburban)
[ Forest (] Agriculture [C] Aquatic [J Other(Specify):
[] Parkland

Page 1 of 3 SEAF 2019




5. Is the proposcd action,

a. A permitted usc under the zoning regulations?

b. Consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan?

~
wn

E

Z
>

) &

L[]

6. Is the proposed action consistent with the predominant character of the existing built or natural landscape?

~
V2]

E

N

7. Is the site of the proposed action located in, or does it adjoin, a state listed Critical Environmental Area?

If Yes, identify:

~
o]
[92]

[]

8. a. Will the proposed action result in a substantial increase in traffic above present levels?
b.  Are public transportation services available at or near the site of the proposed action?

¢.  Are any pedestrian accommodations or bicycle routes available on or near the site of the proposed
action?

=<
w

E

N|/(

9. Does the proposed action meet or exceed the state energy code requirements?

If the proposed action will exceed requirements, describe design features and technologies:

N/A

URIRIE| R3] L8 |=IL

!
td
w

10. Will the proposed action connect to an existing public/private water supply? NO | YES
If No, describe method for providing potable water: v
[l
11. Will the proposed action connect to existing wastewater utilities? NO | YES
If No, describe method for providing wastewater treatment:
L]
12. a. Does the project site contain, or is it substantially contiguous to, a building, archaeological site, or district YES

which is listed on the National or State Register of Historic Places, or that has been determined by the
Commissioner of the NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation to be eligible for listing on the
State Register of Historic Places?

b. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in or adjacent to an area designated as sensitive for
archaeological sites on the NY State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) archaeological site inventory?

NIE

N

13. a. Does any portion of the site of the proposed action, or lands adjoining the proposed action, contain
wetlands or other waterbodies regulated by a federal, state or local agency?

b. Would the proposed action physically alter, or encroach into, any existing wetland or waterbody?

If Yes, identify the wetland or waterbody and extent of alterations in square feet or acres:

YES

NIl

HiN




14. Identify the typical habitat types that occur on, or are likely to be found on the project site. Check all that apply:
[IShoreline [_] Forest [_] Agricultural/grasslands [_] Early mid-successional
[Iwetland [] Urban Suburban

15. Does the site of the proposed action contain any species of animal, or associated habitats, listed by the State or

Federal government as threatened or endangered?

D'-<
m
95]

16. Is the project site located in the 100-year flood plan?

=

ES

]

<

ES

17. Will the proposed action create storm water discharge, either from point or non-point sources?
If Yes,

a.  Will storm water discharges flow to adjacent properties?

NINNEINIEINIE

b.  Will storm water discharges be directed to established conveyance systems (runoff and storm drains)?

L0

If Yes, briefly describe:

18. Does the proposed action include construction or other activities that would result in the impoundment of water NO | YES
or other liquids (e.g., retention pond, waste lagoon, dam)?

If Yes, explain the purpose and size of the impoundment:

[]
19. Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the location of an active or closed solid waste NO | YES

management facility?

If Yes, describe:

]
20.Has the site of the proposed action or an adjoining property been the subject of remediation (ongoing or NO | YES

completed) for hazardous waste?
If Yes, describe:

I CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF
MY KNOWLEDGE

Applicant/sponsor/name: "2aul Schenkel Date: March 12, 2025

p)
Signature: @j \M_/é Title: Commissioner of Public Works

PRINT FORM Page 3 of 3




Agency Use Only [If applicable]

Project: L

|

Date:

Short Environmental Assessment Form
Part 2 - Impact Assessment

Part 2 is to be completed by the Lead Agency.

Answer all of the following questions in Part 2 using the information contained in Part 1 and other materials submitted by
the project sponsor or otherwise available to the reviewer. When answering the questions the reviewer should be guided by

the concept “Have my responses been reasonable considering the scale and context of the proposed action?”
No, or Moderate
small to large
impact impact
may may
occur

1. Will the proposed action create a material conflict with an adopted land use plan or zoning
regulations?

2. Will the proposed action result in a change in the use or intensity of use of land?

3. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of the existing community?

4. Will the proposed action have an impact on the environmental characteristics that caused the
establishment of a Critical Environmental Area (CEA)?

5. Will the proposed action result in an adverse change in the existing level of traffic or
affect existing infrastructure for mass transit, biking or walkway?

6. Will the proposed action cause an increase in the use of energy and it fails to incorporate
reasonably available energy conservation or renewable energy opportunities?

7. Will the proposed action impact existing:
a. public / private water supplies?

b. public / private wastewater treatment utilities?

8. Will the proposed action impair the character or quality of important historic, archaeological,
architectural or aesthetic resources?

9. Will the proposed action result in an adverse change to natural resources (e.g., wetlands,
waterbodies, groundwater, air quality, flora and fauna)?

10. Will the proposed action result in an increase in the potential for erosion, flooding or drainage
problems?

I1. Will the proposed action create a hazard to environmental resources or human health?

=
NNNINENNREN RN ENRRE

L O OO OO0 O O O O O

PRINT FORM Page 1 of 2

SEAF 2019



Agency Use Only [If applicable]

Project:

Date:

Short Environmental Assessment Form
Part 3 Determination of Significance

For every question in Part 2 that was answered “moderate to large impact may occur”, or if there is a need to explain why a
particular element of the proposed action may or will not result in a significant adverse environmental impact, please
complete Part 3. Part 3 should, in sufficient detail, identify the impact, including any measures or design elements that
have been included by the project sponsor to avoid or reduce impacts. Part 3 should also explain how the lead agency
determined that the impact may or will not be significant. Each potential impact should be assessed considering its setting,

probability of occurring, duration, irreversibility, geographic scope and magnitude. Also consider the potential for short-
term, long-term and cumulative impacts.

D Check this box if you have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation,
that the proposed action may result in one or more potentially large or significant adverse impacts and an
environmental impact statement is required.

Check this box if you have determined, based on the information and analysis above, and any supporting documentation,
that the proposed action will not result in any significant adverse environmental impacts.

Town of Pittsford March 12, 2025

Name of Lead Agency Date
Commissioner of Public Works

Pﬁ@r Type Narpe of Responsibl cer in Lead Agency Title of Responsible Officer

Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsible Officer)

Paul Schenkel

PRINT FORM

Page 2 of 2




Barker Road

Hopkins

6 : %, .. I '_ x '~‘: v
Park £, \ fiigy Sac] ) 3

41141

T 994297119784

o et LR

1 inch = 200 feet

Barker Road Feet

0 100 200 300 400

P r 0 p 0 S e d S i d e W a l k Source: Town of Pittsford GIS, September 2024

NYS Digital Orthoimagery Program, April 2023

H 0 kin S P ark tO B arke r R oa d M S Monroe County Real Property Tax Service, July 2024
p Town of Pittsford GIS | September 26, 2024

Settled 1789




MEMORANDUM

To: Pittsford Town Board

Settled 1789

From: Paul Schenkel — Commissioner of Public Works

Date: March 12, 2025
Regarding: Set Bid Date for Installation and Repair of Concrete Sidewalks

For Meeting On: March 18, 2025

Ladies and Gentlemen:

With the possibility of a number of sidewalks that are scheduled to be newly constructed
or repaired over the next several years, we would like to have the option to be able to utilize a
private contractor to assist us. We typically use an existing contract with Monroe County to hire
a concrete contractor, but that contract has expired and is currently being renewed. The County
contract does not necessarily cover the type of work we are looking to perform and is limited to
one contractor so scheduling work is difficult. Having a second contractor available would provide
some flexibility. We have prepared our own bid specifications that will be specific to our needs
but could also be utilized for other spot sidewalk repairs. | recommend that the Town Board set
a bid date for the Installation and Repair of Concrete Sidewalks for April 30, 2025, at 11:00 AM to
be publicly opened at the Department of Public Works.

In the event the Town Board determines that the proposed action should be taken, the
following Resolution is suggested:

Resolution

Resolved, that the Town Board sets a bid opening date for the Installation and Repair of
Concrete Sidewalks for April 30, 2025 at 11:00 AM.



Timeline for

2025 Installation and Repair of Concrete Sidewalk

March 18, 2025 - Bid Date set at Town Board Meeting
March 21, 2025 - Legal Notice submittal to Town Clerk for publication in Daily Record
March 31, 2025 - Bid appears in The Daily Record & Post to Town Website
March 31, 2025 -Vendor packages sent or available at Town Hall
April 30, 2025 - Bid opening date at Town Hall (Schedule Room)
May 1, 2025 - Successful Bidder Resolution due for Town Board Agenda
May 6, 2025 — Award Contract to Bidder at Town Board Meeting

May 7, 2025 - Notice to Proceed letter sent from Public Works



MEMORANDUM

To: Pittsford Town Board

Settled 1789

From: Paul Schenkel — Commissioner of Public Works

Date: March 12, 2025
Regarding: Set Public Hearing for Sewer District Extension JHSD-162
For Meeting On: March 18, 2025

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The Estate of Kevin J. Peterson owns a vacant parcel on Park Road (to be designated
31 Park Road) and wishes to connect it to the existing Town Sanitary Sewers when a house is
built on the lot. Accommodating this request would require a Sewer District Extension.

The Department of Public Works has received a Petition, signed by the Administrator of
the Estate, Cressida A. Dixon, Esq., for the proposed Sewer District Extension JHSD-162. |
recommend that the Town Board set a public hearing to consider this matter.

Attached is a proposed “Order for Public Hearing,” together with the Petition, which
includes a map and Entrance Fee Schedule for the requested Extension.

The proposed date for the public hearing is April 1, 2025 as set forth in the proposed
Order. In the event that the Board determines that a Public Hearing should take place on the
proposed Sewer District Extension, the following resolution would be appropriate:

RESOLUTION

Resolved, that Town Board sets a Public Hearing for April 1, 2025, at 6:00 P.M. local
time, to consider the approval of the proposed “Sewer District Extension JHSD-162” to the
“Pittsford Consolidated Sewer District,” as set forth in the written Order.



At a Regular Meeting of the Town Board

of the Town of Pittsford, New York, held at Pittsford Town
Hall, 11 S. Main Street, in the Town of Pittsford, New York,
on the 18" day of March, 2025.

PRESENT:

William A. Smith, Jr., Supervisor

Kim Taylor, Deputy Supervisor

Naveen Havannavar, Councilperson
Cathleen A. Koshykar, Councilperson
Stephanie M. Townsend, Councilperson

ABSENT: NONE

TOWN BOARD STATE OF NEW YORK
TOWN OF PITTSFORD COUNTY OF MONROE
In the Matter of Extension JHSD-162 ORDER FOR

to the PITTSFORD SEWER DISTRICT PUBLIC HEARING

to include:

Park Road 178.20-2-75 Estate of Kevin J. Peterson

WHEREAS, a Petition, signed by the Administrator of the Estate, Cressida A. Dixon, Esq., of the
proposed “Extension JHSD-162” to the Pittsford Sewer District, has been presented to the Town Board
of Pittsford, Monroe County, New York, the said proposed Extension being located, in general terms, on
the real property located at the vacant parcel to be assigned as 31 Park Road, Pittsford, New York, all
as is more particularly set forth in the Petition; and

WHEREAS, no public monies are proposed to be expended for the Extension of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Sewer Entrance, Connection and other County Fees are to be paid by the future
owners of the unit within the Extension are in the aggregate amount of $533.90;

NOW, ON MOTION duly made and seconded, it is

RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that a public hearing be held before the Town Board of the Town
of Pittsford, at the Town of Pittsford Town Hall, on April 1, 2025 at 6:00 o’clock P.M., Local Time, to
consider the said Petition and to hear all persons interested therein, and for such other and further action
on the part of the Town Board with relation to the said Petition as may be required by law or proper in the
premises; and it is further

RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that a copy of the within Order be duly published in The Daily
Record, which paper is designated as the official paper for such publication, and a copy of the said Order
be posted on the bulletin board of the Town Clerk of the Town of Pittsford, New York, maintained pursuant
to Section 30 of the Town Law, not less than ten (10) nor more than twenty (20) days prior to the date of
the said hearing.



Said matter having been put to a vote, the following votes were recorded:

William A. Smith, Jr. VOTING
Naveen Havannavar VOTING
Cathleen A. Koshykar VOTING
Kim Taylor VOTING
Stephanie M. Townsend VOTING

The Order was thereupon declared duly adopted.
Dated: March 18, 2025

TOWN CLERK CERTIFICATION

I, Renee M. McQuillen, Town Clerk of the Town of Pittsford, New York, DO HEREBY CERTIFY
that | have compared a copy of the Order as herein specified with the original in the minutes of the
meeting of the Town Board of the Town of Pittsford, and that the same is a correct transcript thereof and
the whole of the said original.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand this day of March, 2025.

Renee M. McQuillen, Town Clerk





















MEMORANDUM

To: Pittsford Town Board
From: Brian Luke, Director of Finance
Date: March 14, 2025

Regarding: Surplus Inventory
For Meeting On: March 18, 2025

Attached is a list of inventory to be declared surplus and removed from the Town’s inventory.

Be it resolved that the attached list of inventory be declared surplus and be removed
from the Town’s inventory.

Asset #|Description Department |Cost Status
13313 Single OPAC Station Library $ 974.00 [Dispose
13316 Single OPAC Station Library $ 974.00 [Dispose
14063 Mitchell Road Pump Station Pump [Sewer $3,795.00 [Dispose
14228 Mitchell Road Pump Station Pump [Sewer $4,736.00 [Dispose
13852 Mitchell Road Pump Station Pump [Sewer $3,851.00 [Dispose




Accounts Payable

Outstanding Invoices

User: BLuke@townofpittsford.org
Printed: 3/14/2025 - 9:31 AM

Date Type: JE Date

Date Range: 02/26/2025 to 03/14/2025

Account Range: (All)

TOWN

OF

PITTSFORD

Setiled 1788

Vendor
Account Number JE Date  Invoice Date Invoice No Journal Entry Amount Description
00189 - REGIONAL INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
0004-5130-4106-0053-00( 3/11/2025 3/5/2025 011243923P 00121-03-2025 90.96 shift knob
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122217
0004-5130-4106-0053-00( 3/12/2025 3/11/2025 011244301p 00130-03-2025 15.10 lug nut covers
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 00189 - REGIONAL INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION: 106.06
00225 - UNICELL
0001-7110-4105-0002-711 3/6/2025 2/27/2025 30008 00103-03-2025 1,206.28 base angles for V plow truck 336-2
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650525
0001-7110-4105-0002-711 3/6/2025 2/27/2025 310899 00105-03-2025 1,426.04 carbide plow cutting edge, wing rubbers
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650526
Total for Vendor 00225 - UNICELL.: 2,632.32
00341 - RICHARD STEIN
0001-7020-1008-3299-00( 3/12/2025 3/11/2025 7231 00162-03-2025 250.00 Rich the Magic Man After School performance 3/28/25.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 00341 - RICHARD STEIN: 250.00
00353 - S & S WORLDWIDE, INC
0001-7020-4400-3228-00( 3/3/2025 2/26/2025 IN101552276 00060-03-2025 99.48 Summer Fun supplies.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0001-7020-4400-3299-00( 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 IN101560108 00159-03-2025 88.66 After School supplies.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 00353 - S & S WORLDWIDE, INC: 188.14
00565 - BENEFIT RESOURCE, LLC
0004-9089-8000-0001-00( 3/3/2025 2/28/2025 1078174 00010-03-2025 6.16 FSA Monthly Administration
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0006-9089-8000-0001-00( 3/3/2025 2/28/2025 1078174 00010-03-2025 4.62 FSA Monthly Administration

AP-Outstanding Invoices (3/14/2025 - 9:31 AM)

Page 1


https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=4deb6e5a-aeaf-4c97-baef-ee180a98cfea
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0004-5130-4106-0053-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0004-5130-4106-0053-0004
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=ed4732f8-4775-4a79-aa52-f4e91080f39d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4105-0002-7111
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4105-0002-7111
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=f4738ac0-580d-4a58-8cfe-1840867fead9
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-1008-3299-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=deca4bbc-e59f-4d2d-9ee0-b37ad74e7f55
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-4400-3228-0002
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-4400-3299-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=9f29921d-1eb4-450f-bde8-d8926a78678e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0004-9089-8000-0001-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0006-9089-8000-0001-0006

Vendor

Account Number JE Date  Invoice Date Invoice No Journal Entry Amount Description
00565 - BENEFIT RESOURCE, LLC
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0003-9089-8000-0001-00( 3/3/2025 2/28/2025 1078174 00010-03-2025 7.70 FSA Monthly Administration
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0005-9089-8000-0001-00( 3/3/2025 2/28/2025 1078174 00010-03-2025 7.70 FSA Monthly Administration
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0001-9089-8000-0001-00( 3/3/2025 2/28/2025 1078174 00010-03-2025 123.20 FSA Monthly Administration
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0002-9089-8000-0001-00( 3/3/2025 2/28/2025 1078174 00010-03-2025 4.62 FSA Monthly Administration
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 00565 - BENEFIT RESOURCE, LLC: 154.00
00573 - BRAD'S TRAILER SERVICE
0001-7110-4105-0002-711 3/6/2025 3/5/2025 644628-1 00110-03-2025 50.02 trailer lights 369
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650533
0001-7110-4105-0002-711 3/10/2025 3/6/2025 644639-1 00230-03-2025 19.99 trailer lights 369
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650535
Total for Vendor 00573 - BRAD'S TRAILER SERVICE: 70.01
00713 - AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOC.
0003-7410-4604-0001-00( 3/11/2025 2/27/2025 1391223 00091-03-2025 860.00 Education
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 88904
Total for Vendor 00713 - AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOC.: 860.00
00761 - CUMMINS INC.
0001-8540-4400-0002-00( 2/27/2025 2/27/2025 W2-250242327 00397-02-2025 817.18 SERVICE CALL - REPAIR GENERATOR AT REITZ PKWY PUMP STATION
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0001-8540-4400-0002-00( 2/27/2025 2/27/2025 W2-250242491 00396-02-2025 437.80 INSTALL CONTROL BOARD AT LEHIGH PUMP STATION
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 00761 - CUMMINS INC.: 1,254.98
00856 - VP SUPPLY CORP.
0001-2620-4118-0010-00 3/7/2025 3/5/2025 5877661 00031-03-2025 248.27 Electrical supplies
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 111116
0001-2620-4118-0010-00 3/7/2025 3/5/2025 5877662 00031-03-2025 51.08 Electrical supplies
Total for Vendor 00856 - VP SUPPLY CORP.: 299.35
00981 - AMERICAN ROCK SALT COMPANY, LLC
0004-5142-4119-0050-00( 3/6/2025 2/25/2025 0792602 00039-03-2025 2,371.29 38.88 ton salt

AP-Outstanding Invoices (3/14/2025 - 9:31 AM)

Page 2


https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=9f29921d-1eb4-450f-bde8-d8926a78678e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-9089-8000-0001-0003
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0005-9089-8000-0001-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-9089-8000-0001-0001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0002-9089-8000-0001-0001
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=b8f18bb2-6154-44be-ab1b-0b00c3a769c3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4105-0002-7111
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4105-0002-7111
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=fb133465-ab7f-47e5-9ec3-1908ec4a33e7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-7410-4604-0001-0003
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=32708a39-473e-4e95-9dd8-00d0f567a8ce
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-8540-4400-0002-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-8540-4400-0002-0004
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=fccee5ae-681c-4d28-9692-02cd45243b82
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-2620-4118-0010-0011
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-2620-4118-0010-0011
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=fd8748e9-48f2-4f0c-b429-cef4fe0c7f29
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0004-5142-4119-0050-0004

Vendor

Account Number JE Date  Invoice Date Invoice No Journal Entry Amount Description
00981 - AMERICAN ROCK SALT COMPANY, LLC
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122139
0004-5142-4119-0050-00( 3/6/2025 2/26/2025 0792851 00039-03-2025 2,383.49 39.08 ton salt
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122139
0004-5142-4119-0050-00( 3/6/2025 2/27/2025 0793095 00039-03-2025 8,244.63 135.18 ton salt
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122139
0004-5142-4119-0050-00( 3/11/2025 3/4/2025 0793828 00122-03-2025 4,827.26 78.98 ton salt
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122139
Total for Vendor 00981 - AMERICAN ROCK SALT COMPANY, LLC: 17,826.67
00996 - ALRO STEEL CORPORATION
0004-5130-4111-0053-00( 3/11/2025 2/28/2025 {b23436rz 00127-03-2025 65.00 step material 447 packer
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122212
Total for Vendor 00996 - ALRO STEEL CORPORATION: 65.00
01002 - KAREN HANSON
0001-7020-4400-2174-00( 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 250318Hanson 00146-03-2025 2,990.05 March instructor pay 110401 110402 Ballet.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 01002 - KAREN HANSON: 2,990.05
01097 - CREIGHTON SELF-DEFENSE INC
0001-7020-4400-1110-00( 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 250318Creighton  00142-03-2025 3,776.68 March instructor pay 110328 110351 120237.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 01097 - CREIGHTON SELF-DEFENSE INC: 3,776.68
01476 - STATE COMPTROLLER
0001-0000-0690-0000-00( 3/7/2025 2/25/2025 263669020250101 00199-03-2025 5,840.75 January 2025 Town Court Fees
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 01476 - STATE COMPTROLLER: 5,840.75
01504 - CHASE CARD SERVICES
0006-8120-2026-0002-00( 3/12/2025 1/27/2025 BBY01-80702571. 00227-03-2025 799.00 MICROSOFT SURFACE PRO COMPUTER FOR PSD TRUCKS
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 103737
0006-8120-2026-0002-00( 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 BBYO01-80702571. 00227-03-2025 799.00 MICROSOFT SURFACE PRO COMPUTER FOR PSD TRUCKS
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 103737
Total for Vendor 01504 - CHASE CARD SERVICES: 1,598.00

01519 - GRASSLAND EQUIPMENT AND IRRIGATION CORPORATION

AP-Outstanding Invoices (3/14/2025 - 9:31 AM)


https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=fd8748e9-48f2-4f0c-b429-cef4fe0c7f29
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0004-5142-4119-0050-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0004-5142-4119-0050-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0004-5142-4119-0050-0004
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=adeb8224-a278-4d25-b0b9-12e8884ad462
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0004-5130-4111-0053-0004
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=3fbec6f3-7376-4f04-a5d8-48a9a04a6b37
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-4400-2174-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=7c457b74-6dcc-419c-9bf4-1ca4d9c92167
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-4400-1110-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=ea902c31-8869-4948-9905-ac8049e63ca4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-0000-0690-0000-0000
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=406f4bbe-c0f9-4732-8b8a-7fd48eb91d44
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0006-8120-2026-0002-0006
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0006-8120-2026-0002-0006
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=052517f6-f797-4358-8d35-b16d56b7ef45

Vendor

Account Number JE Date  Invoice Date Invoice No Journal Entry Amount Description
01519 - GRASSLAND EQUIPMENT AND IRRIGATION CORPORATION
0001-7110-4133-0010-711] 3/10/2025 2/24/2025 1384971 00235-03-2025 82.90 toro mower parts 348-1
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650514
0001-7110-4133-0010-711] 3/10/2025 2/24/2025 1384972 00235-03-2025 79.20 toro mower parts 348-1
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650514
0001-7110-4133-0010-711 3/10/2025 2/28/2025 1385314 00235-03-2025 708.69 toro mower parts 348-1
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650514
Total for Vendor 01519 - GRASSLAND EQUIPMENT AND IRRIGATION CORPORATION: 870.79
01532 - MIDWEST TAPE
0003-7410-4130-0022-00( 3/6/2025 2/17/2025 506768231 00025-03-2025 52.48 Children's Audiovisual
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 88260
0003-7410-4130-0022-00( 3/6/2025 2/21/2025 506788698 00025-03-2025 112.43 Children's Audiovisual
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 88260
Total for Vendor 01532 - MIDWEST TAPE: 164.91
01579 - BRODNER EQUIPMENT, INC.
0001-7110-4133-0010-711 3/6/2025 3/3/2025 449045 00204-03-2025 275.94 anti-scalp wheels for both exmark mowers 349-2, 360-4
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650529
Total for Vendor 01579 - BRODNER EQUIPMENT, INC.: 275.94
01582 - ACTION TELEPHONE EXCHANGE
0006-8120-4400-0002-00( 2/27/2025 2/27/2025 198002252025 00401-02-2025 195.86 Answering Service
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 01582 - ACTION TELEPHONE EXCHANGE: 195.86
01598 - HOME DEPOT
0001-7110-4003-0010-711] 2/27/2025 2/25/2025 4022712 00399-02-2025 17.19 GLASS SCRAPERS AND LOCK WASHER
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650524
0001-7110-4003-0010-711] 2/27/2025 2/25/2025 5022529 00399-02-2025 269.04 GRINDER, DRILL BITS, HARDWARE
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650524
0001-7110-4003-0010-711] 2/27/2025 2/25/2025 5022606 00399-02-2025 11.27 RIVETS
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650524
0001-7110-4003-0010-711] 2/27/2025 2/25/2025 5031628 00399-02-2025 98.85 CABLE, BUCKETS, RAGS, STORAGE SUPPLIES
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650524
0001-7110-4003-0010-711] 2/27/2025 2/27/2025 5191759 00399-02-2025 -119.00 REFUND - RETURN GRINDER
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650524
0004-5130-4103-0053-00( 3/5/2025 3/5/2025 7011811 00033-03-2025 499.00 compound miter saw
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122219
0001-5132-4118-0010-00( 3/5/2025 1/24/2025 7071575 00034-03-2025 73.75 material for sign shop
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122150

AP-Outstanding Invoices (3/14/2025 - 9:31 AM)

Page 4


https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=052517f6-f797-4358-8d35-b16d56b7ef45
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4133-0010-7111
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4133-0010-7111
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4133-0010-7111
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=1c2cde9a-df7b-4b9e-886d-9f096d59c852
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-7410-4130-0022-0003
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-7410-4130-0022-0003
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=30bd8a8d-9a92-4d3a-b046-9e66146505c9
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4133-0010-7111
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=7aa2caeb-c742-465c-b094-3a8ce472169a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0006-8120-4400-0002-0006
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=615df8bb-4627-4520-9610-40f3381bb6c3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4003-0010-7110
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4003-0010-7110
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4003-0010-7110
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4003-0010-7110
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4003-0010-7110
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0004-5130-4103-0053-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-5132-4118-0010-0004

Vendor

Account Number JE Date  Invoice Date Invoice No Journal Entry Amount Description
01598 - HOME DEPOT
0004-5142-4111-0002-00( 3/11/2025 3/7/2025 h1247-360778 00125-03-2025 428.92 mailbox lumber
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122223
0004-5142-4111-0002-00( 3/12/2025 3/11/2025 1194284 00138-03-2025 291.16 mailboxes
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122228
0006-8120-4111-0002-00( 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 1617509 00218-03-2025 51.83 PIPE AND COUPLINGS
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0006-8120-4111-0002-00( 3/12/2025 3/10/2025 2091584 00219-03-2025 35.95 HYDRAULIC OIL
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0006-8120-4111-0002-00( 3/12/2025 3/7/2025 5623111 00219-03-2025 95.72 BINS, ORGANIZERS
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0006-8120-4111-0002-00( 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 7011805 00218-03-2025 94.68 BINS, CARGO BAR
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 01598 - HOME DEPOT: 1,848.36
01672 - AUTO VALUE PARTS STORES
0001-2620-4105-0002-26: 3/12/2025 3/7/2025 719378/20 00116-03-2025 150.46 oil/filter/fluids
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 111121
Total for Vendor 01672 - AUTO VALUE PARTS STORES: 150.46
01809 - BRIGHTON MOWER SERV., INC
0001-7110-4133-0010-711 3/6/2025 2/28/2025 118605 00104-03-2025 75.93 caster axle and seals toro mower 340-2
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650528
Total for Vendor 01809 - BRIGHTON MOWER SERV., INC: 75.93
01957 - WEHNER MOWER INC. PITTSFORD POWER EQUIPMENT
0001-7110-4133-0010-711 2/27/2025 2/25/2025 206390 00394-02-2025 43.58 hydraulic oil filter scag mower 354-1
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650519

Total for Vendor 01957 - WEHNER MOWER INC. PITTSFORD POWER EQUIPMENT:

02053 - NAPA AUTO PARTS

Total for Vendor 02053 - NAPA AUTO PARTS:

0001-7110-4109-0002-711
Task Label:

0001-7110-4109-0002-711
Task Label:

02065 - THOMSON REUTERS - WEST

0001-1420-4126-0001-00(

2/27/2025

2/27/2025

3/5/2025

2/25/2025

Type:
2/25/2025

Type:

3/1/2025

101971

PO Number:

101973

PO Number:

851561633

00392-02-2025
650520
00392-02-2025
650520

00030-03-2025

43.58

21.65

21.65

43.30

353.54

hydraulic oil

hydraulic oil

Westlaw Database March 2025

AP-Outstanding Invoices (3/14/2025 - 9:31 AM)

Page 5


https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=615df8bb-4627-4520-9610-40f3381bb6c3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0004-5142-4111-0002-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0004-5142-4111-0002-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0006-8120-4111-0002-0006
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0006-8120-4111-0002-0006
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0006-8120-4111-0002-0006
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0006-8120-4111-0002-0006
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=b8d7a39e-adf7-4da8-8c35-728cea6cfc3b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-2620-4105-0002-2620
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=f4c0cea3-dc04-4951-b372-7cc2146f1a1e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4133-0010-7111
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=4af691e1-fcd5-40ce-90b8-8b28a070b075
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4133-0010-7111
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=6aa4ad73-27d4-450e-9caa-a08c9a798d65
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4109-0002-7111
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4109-0002-7111
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=6a46665e-42e6-405d-b204-086140dcd063
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-1420-4126-0001-0001

Vendor

Account Number JE Date  Invoice Date Invoice No Journal Entry Amount Description
02065 - THOMSON REUTERS - WEST
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 02065 - THOMSON REUTERS - WEST: 353.54
02576 - EXODUS EXTERMINATING INC
0001-7110-4003-0010-711 3/13/2025 3/12/2025 517315 00214-03-2025 50.00 parks dept mouse control
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650537
Total for Vendor 02576 - EXODUS EXTERMINATING INC: 50.00
02651 - ALTA ENTERPRISES, LLC
0004-5130-4400-0053-00( 3/11/2025 2/27/2025 s11/7635 00124-03-2025 1,107.95 diagnostic 476
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122199
Total for Vendor 02651 - ALTA ENTERPRISES, LLC: 1,107.95
02662 - ROCHESTER FENCING CLUB
0001-7020-4400-1288-00: 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 250318ROCFence 00172-03-2025 18.20 March instructor pay 141203 FIT Kids.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 02662 - ROCHESTER FENCING CLUB: 18.20
02750 - TOSHIBA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
0001-7020-4409-0001-00( 3/7/2025 3/5/2025 6509979 00078-03-2025 390.89 Rec copier service 02/01/25-02/28/25.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0001-1620-4409-0001-00( 3/7/2025 3/5/2025 6510226 00055-03-2025 229.57 Maintenance Invoice 1st F1 Copier-02/01/2025-02/28/2025
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0001-6772-4409-0001-00( 3/10/2025 3/6/2025 6512932 00081-03-2025 20.09 Seniors copier service 02/10/25-03/09/25.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0001-5010-4101-0001-00( 3/11/2025 3/6/2025 6512894 00126-03-2025 28.27 printer billing
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0003-7410-4001-0001-00( 3/12/2025 3/5/2025 6510836 00100-03-2025 49.23 Public Copier
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 88897
0003-7410-4001-0001-00( 3/12/2025 3/5/2025 6510965 00100-03-2025 197.45 Workroom Copier
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 88898
0006-8110-4409-0001-00( 3/12/2025 3/6/2025 6512926 00224-03-2025 32.65 PSD - TOSHIBA MONTHLY COPIER MAINTENANCE
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 103706
Total for Vendor 02750 - TOSHIBA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS: 948.15
02815 - BLAIR SUPPLY CORP
0005-5110-4145-0055-00( 3/12/2025 3/5/2025 1268094 00131-03-2025 1,132.68 pipe for roads
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122204.1

AP-Outstanding Invoices (3/14/2025 - 9:31 AM)

Page 6


https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=6a46665e-42e6-405d-b204-086140dcd063
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=d7d4ec5b-9b1c-4a5a-a6f8-376386025182
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4003-0010-7110
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=ca95a4d6-c7a7-4b47-a88d-1133e4ee7551
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0004-5130-4400-0053-0004
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=760f7565-3d24-4982-bbad-81314bd618d3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-4400-1288-0058
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=704b7fc2-b303-4620-a5f0-ccbeb49030cb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-4409-0001-0002
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-1620-4409-0001-0001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-6772-4409-0001-0002
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-5010-4101-0001-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-7410-4001-0001-0003
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-7410-4001-0001-0003
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0006-8110-4409-0001-0006
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=936f7ff2-f77f-48d9-a9a0-b9be8b31f2a1
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0005-5110-4145-0055-0004

Vendor

Account Number JE Date  Invoice Date Invoice No Journal Entry Amount Description
Total for Vendor 02815 - BLAIR SUPPLY CORP: 1,132.68
02818 - ABVI - GOODWILL
0001-6772-4400-0029-00( 3/5/2025 2/28/2025 IN0016103 00071-03-2025 4,160.24 February Seniors MWF County Lunches.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 02818 - ABVI - GOODWILL: 4,160.24
02854 - MICHON BALL
0001-1110-4602-0001-001 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 022525 00086-03-2025 28.28 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT MCCCA MTG ATTENDANCE
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 02854 - MICHON BALL: 28.28
03030 - DEBORAH ROBINSON
0001-7020-4400-2158-00( 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 250318Robinson  00170-03-2025 215.60 March instructor pay 140406 Belly Dance.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 03030 - DEBORAH ROBINSON: 215.60
03035 - BONADIO & CO., LLP
0001-1320-4403-0001-00( 3/7/2025 2/28/2025 BN413861 00196-03-2025 2,000.00 2024 Justice Court AUP
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0001-1320-4403-0001-00( 3/10/2025 2/28/2025 BN414774 00185-03-2025 2,490.75 Consultations, planning and/or meetings for GASB 87/96
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 03035 - BONADIO & CO., LLP: 4,490.75
03496 - MANITOU CONCRETE
0005-5110-4145-0055-00( 3/5/2025 3/1/2025 1191459 00038-03-2025 751.00 risers
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122182
0005-5110-4145-0055-00( 3/5/2025 3/1/2025 1191470 00038-03-2025 751.00 risers
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122182
0005-5110-4145-0055-00( 3/5/2025 3/1/2025 1191482 00038-03-2025 751.00 risers
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122182
0005-5110-4145-0055-00( 3/5/2025 3/1/2025 1191493 00038-03-2025 751.00 risers
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122182
0005-5110-4145-0055-00( 3/5/2025 3/1/2025 1191507 00038-03-2025 751.00 risers
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122182
0005-5110-4145-0055-00( 3/12/2025 3/8/2025 1191919 00136-03-2025 501.00 risers
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122182
0005-5110-4145-0055-00( 3/12/2025 3/8/2025 1191930 00136-03-2025 751.00 risers
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122182

AP-Outstanding Invoices (3/14/2025 - 9:31 AM)

Page 7


https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=666529b0-1eea-4572-a292-b28e570818ca
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-6772-4400-0029-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=14ba959e-b2f0-4eb7-a43a-1555259f15f6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-1110-4602-0001-0012
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=85718ece-49db-4186-8d9e-402ad17f35ff
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-4400-2158-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=ede34bee-48f2-4af9-aa58-bae81e5bf5e8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-1320-4403-0001-0001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-1320-4403-0001-0001
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=a9d3c73c-42a9-4296-91d1-f86f6e59407a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0005-5110-4145-0055-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0005-5110-4145-0055-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0005-5110-4145-0055-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0005-5110-4145-0055-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0005-5110-4145-0055-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0005-5110-4145-0055-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0005-5110-4145-0055-0004

Vendor

Account Number JE Date  Invoice Date Invoice No Journal Entry Amount Description
03496 - MANITOU CONCRETE
0005-5110-4145-0055-00( 3/12/2025 3/8/2025 1191949 00136-03-2025 2,253.00 risers
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 122182
Total for Vendor 03496 - MANITOU CONCRETE: 7,260.00
03637 - ENVIRONMENTAL PRODUCTS & ACCESSORIES, LLC
0001-8540-2026-0002-00( 3/12/2025 2/28/2025 277703 00222-03-2025 2,098.45 HOSE FOR FLUSH TRUCK
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 103742
0006-8120-2026-0002-00( 3/12/2025 3/10/2025 277889 00223-03-2025 509.01 ROOT CUTTER
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 103744
Total for Vendor 03637 - ENVIRONMENTAL PRODUCTS & ACCESSORIES, LLC: 2,607.46
03648 - OVERDRIVE, INC.
0003-7410-4127-0020-00( 3/6/2025 2/13/2025 01327C025048241 00024-03-2025 2,969.01 Adult E-Materials
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 87398
Total for Vendor 03648 - OVERDRIVE, INC.: 2,969.01
03662 - MOFFETT TURF EQUIPMENT, INC.
0001-7110-4133-0010-711] 3/6/2025 2/27/2025 01-415061 00112-03-2025 97.50 ventrac belts
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650523
Total for Vendor 03662 - MOFFETT TURF EQUIPMENT, INC.: 97.50
03689 - CASTLE BRANCH INC
0001-4560-4000-0001-00( 3/3/2025 2/19/2025 0986371-IN 00013-03-2025 303.00 Employment Screenings
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0003-4560-4000-0001-00( 3/3/2025 2/19/2025 0986371-IN 00013-03-2025 72.00 Employment Screenings
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 03689 - CASTLE BRANCH INC: 375.00
03698 - TRACY MAGGIO
0001-7020-4400-1276-00( 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 250318Maggio 00148-03-2025 98.49 March instructor pay 140303 Martial Arts for Women.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 03698 - TRACY MAGGIO: 98.49
03711 - BRODART
0003-7410-4101-0026-00( 2/27/2025 2/27/2025 652950 00387-02-2025 83.97 Supplies
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 88903
0003-7410-4126-0023-00( 2/27/2025 1/24/2025 B6924322 00388-02-2025 39.37 Adult Books

AP-Outstanding Invoices (3/14/2025 - 9:31 AM)

Page 8


https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=a9d3c73c-42a9-4296-91d1-f86f6e59407a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0005-5110-4145-0055-0004
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=139e0685-1a4e-4eda-93bc-71fb40149196
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-8540-2026-0002-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0006-8120-2026-0002-0006
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=e9a39f84-4f14-44fd-bbd2-cfba57f94b51
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-7410-4127-0020-0003
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=5d06af8d-3726-4582-ab02-b6ed997266e9
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4133-0010-7111
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=013a8728-af15-4065-b90d-035e3b26e6fe
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-4560-4000-0001-0001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-4560-4000-0001-0003
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=87f56ebb-e45a-4416-ad7c-fb667a69c610
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-4400-1276-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=785acc58-705e-47a7-8e28-d959e511a4cd
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-7410-4101-0026-0003
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-7410-4126-0023-0003

Vendor

Account Number JE Date  Invoice Date Invoice No Journal Entry Amount Description
03711 - BRODART
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 42900
0003-7410-4126-0023-00( 2/27/2025 2/11/2025 B6933059 00388-02-2025 225.00 Adult Books
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 42900
Total for Vendor 03711 - BRODART: 348.34
03759 - KETCHUM MFG. CO., INC.
0001-3510-4009-0001-00( 3/4/2025 3/4/2025 187196 00016-03-2025 407.90 Dog License Tags
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 111099
Total for Vendor 03759 - KETCHUM MFG. CO., INC.: 407.90
03851 - RHONDA WRIGHT
0001-6772-4400-2040-00( 3/3/2025 2/22/2025 0225 00065-03-2025 150.00 February Seniors NIA classes.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0001-6772-4400-4010-00( 3/3/2025 2/22/2025 0225 00065-03-2025 195.00 February Seniors Chorus.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 03851 - RHONDA WRIGHT: 345.00
03904 - W. B. MASON CO., INC.
0003-7410-4101-0001-00( 3/6/2025 2/7/2025 252226567 00021-03-2025 58.20 Supplies
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 88894
0003-7410-4101-0001-00( 3/6/2025 2/12/2025 252318887 00021-03-2025 57.74 Supplies
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 88894
0003-7410-4101-0001-00( 3/6/2025 2/13/2025 252348115 00021-03-2025 288.45 Supplies
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 88894
0003-7410-4101-0001-00( 3/6/2025 2/14/2025 252361642 00021-03-2025 294.03 Supplies
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 88894
0002-8020-4101-0018-00( 3/6/2025 2/27/2025 252637389 00054-03-2025 17.97 Fastener Prongs 3inch-2PC
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0001-1620-4101-0001-00( 3/7/2025 2/26/2025 252592316 00056-03-2025 23.95 Mason 1/3 Asst File Folder/Bic Mechanical Pencil/Staple Remover
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0001-1410-4101-0001-00( 3/7/2025 2/26/2025 252592316 00056-03-2025 19.77 Punch, 3-Hole,Black
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0002-8020-4101-0018-00( 3/7/2025 2/26/2025 252592316 00056-03-2025 18.39 ACCO Prong Paper File Fasteners/100 BX
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0001-1490-4101-0001-00( 3/7/2025 2/26/2025 252592316 00056-03-2025 6.49 Pilot Refill Erasable Gel Ink 3 PK
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0002-8020-4101-0018-00( 3/7/2025 2/27/2025 CM3514121 00056-03-2025 -18.39 Punch, 3-Hole,Black
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0003-7410-4101-0001-00( 3/12/2025 2/4/2025 252120297 00099-03-2025 174.89 Supplies
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 88873

AP-Outstanding Invoices (3/14/2025 - 9:31 AM)

Page 9


https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=785acc58-705e-47a7-8e28-d959e511a4cd
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-7410-4126-0023-0003
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=562d5d42-f65b-4044-a6d6-bde4cf8df3d5
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-3510-4009-0001-0001
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=8efe1637-d8db-47a7-a4ab-6fc7bd328511
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-6772-4400-2040-0002
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-6772-4400-4010-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=3ca21ca7-08c2-4faf-8971-bc91c49f1e6c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-7410-4101-0001-0003
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-7410-4101-0001-0003
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-7410-4101-0001-0003
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-7410-4101-0001-0003
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0002-8020-4101-0018-0001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-1620-4101-0001-0001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-1410-4101-0001-0001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0002-8020-4101-0018-0001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-1490-4101-0001-0001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0002-8020-4101-0018-0001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0003-7410-4101-0001-0003

Vendor

Account Number JE Date  Invoice Date Invoice No Journal Entry Amount Description
Total for Vendor 03904 - W. B. MASON CO., INC.: 941.49
03926 - URMC DEPARTMENT OF PSYCHIATRY
0001-9089-8000-0001-00( 3/3/2025 3/3/2025 TOP0325 00011-03-2025 222.23 EAP Services March 2025
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 03926 - URMC DEPARTMENT OF PSYCHIATRY: 222.23
03940 - AMY COPPOLA
0001-7020-4400-2159-00( 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 250318Coppola 00141-03-2025 432.89 March instructor pay 110432 Irish Dance.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 03940 - AMY COPPOLA: 432.89
03980 - WILFRED HERZOG
0001-6772-4400-2041-00( 3/3/2025 2/26/2025 133 00062-03-2025 320.00 February Seniors Line Dancing.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 03980 - WILFRED HERZOG: 320.00
03981 - DONNA KAWCZYNSKI
0001-6772-4400-2181-00( 3/3/2025 2/28/2025 250228Kawczynsk 00063-03-2025 320.00 February Seniors Yoga.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 03981 - DONNA KAWCZYNSKI: 320.00
03982 - PATRICIA ROSE
0001-6772-4400-2046-00( 3/3/2025 2/28/2025 250228Rose 00064-03-2025 320.00 February Seniors Fitness Sessions.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 03982 - PATRICIA ROSE: 320.00
03988 - PERINTON YOUTH HOCKEY
0001-7020-4400-1267-00: 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 250318PYH 00152-03-2025 206.36 March instructor pay 111292 Intro to Youth Hockey.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 03988 - PERINTON YOUTH HOCKEY: 206.36
03993 - TIM SWAGLER'S TREE SERVICE, LLC
0001-8540-4000-0002-00( 2/27/2025 2/25/2025 93 00400-02-2025 1,800.00 TREE REMOVAL BEHIND BOAT HOUSE
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 103674
0001-8540-4000-0002-00( 2/27/2025 2/27/2025 94 00398-02-2025 900.00 REMOVE MAPLE TREE ON PROPERTY LINE AT REITZ PKWY PUMP STATIO!
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 103677

AP-Outstanding Invoices (3/14/2025 - 9:31 AM)

Page 10


https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=ab730bef-17a4-45e1-a16c-73fb613ea3a8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-9089-8000-0001-0001
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=f0b6da51-2525-425c-8589-f4fbf59eb164
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-4400-2159-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=e28ff8d7-b347-433d-9d26-831d6c7ce563
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-6772-4400-2041-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=2e40a0e8-f1bb-4129-a5a5-a33a1af98272
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-6772-4400-2181-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=b4628912-da8d-41eb-84db-cc45dfa4c11f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-6772-4400-2046-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=1006a0a7-a3a0-433b-bc5d-0f6d98960dbf
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-4400-1267-0058
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=ad55ae32-15a6-49bc-95cd-d0ac22f50a62
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-8540-4000-0002-0004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-8540-4000-0002-0004

Vendor

Account Number JE Date  Invoice Date Invoice No Journal Entry Amount Description
Total for Vendor 03993 - TIM SWAGLER'S TREE SERVICE, LLC: 2,700.00
04110 - MARY SLAUGHTER
0001-7020-4400-1251-00( 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 250318Slaughter  00154-03-2025 2,285.68 March instructor pay 111297 111291 111296 141299
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0001-7020-4400-4116-00( 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 250318Slaughter  00154-03-2025 241.50 March instructor pay 110225 Tiny Tot Art Class.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 04110 - MARY SLAUGHTER: 2,527.18
04194 - DONNA EVEVSKY
0001-6772-4400-2047-00( 3/5/2025 3/3/2025 5174 00069-03-2025 120.00 February Seniors Get Fit & Stress Less Classes.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
0001-6772-4400-2303-00( 3/5/2025 3/3/2025 5174 00069-03-2025 480.00 February Seniors Tai Chi & SUN Classes.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 04194 - DONNA EVEVSKY: 600.00
04224 - SHERRY MURRAY
0001-7020-4400-4116-00( 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 250318Murray 00169-03-2025 347.20 March instructor pay 111314 Preschool Adventures.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 04224 - SHERRY MURRAY: 347.20
04254 - EDP, KGS, LLC
0001-7020-4400-1171-00: 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 250318SoccerSho 00173-03-2025 1,421.00 March instructor pay 111254 Soccer Shots for Youth.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 04254 - EDP, KGS, LLC: 1,421.00
04290 - CONSTELLATION NEW ENERGY, INC.
0006-8120-4202-0002-00t 3/13/2025 2/28/2025 70290696701 00205-03-2025 189.55 13 Greythorne Hill
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 04290 - CONSTELLATION NEW ENERGY, INC.: 189.55
04342 - PERINTON RV RENTALS INC.
0001-7110-4105-0002-711 3/6/2025 3/6/2025 s0-3549 00108-03-2025 177.21 seals for trailer 369
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650530
0001-7110-4105-0002-711 3/10/2025 3/7/2025 SO-3565 00233-03-2025 145.28 seals for wheels equipment trailers
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650536
0001-7110-4105-0002-711 3/13/2025 3/10/2025 SO-3572 00217-03-2025 161.35 seals and cups trailer wheels (landscape trailers)
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650540

AP-Outstanding Invoices (3/14/2025 - 9:31 AM)

Page 11


https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=68ad2a40-d0b9-4b45-8a8c-585f88a90a72
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-4400-1251-0002
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-4400-4116-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=98bb52f6-b51e-4402-9fc0-51d0e90a4ced
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-6772-4400-2047-0002
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-6772-4400-2303-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=dcc9039a-f1a1-4c59-b7b2-801f68da9ff3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-4400-4116-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=f755d5fc-7eda-484c-a5db-c7f06087b474
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-4400-1171-0020
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=d11837bc-edf0-4560-b271-97898304d8b4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0006-8120-4202-0002-0062
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=ab716b41-b58c-4492-baef-62365f54e466
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4105-0002-7111
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4105-0002-7111
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4105-0002-7111

Vendor

Account Number JE Date  Invoice Date Invoice No Journal Entry Amount Description
04342 - PERINTON RV RENTALS INC.
0001-7110-4105-0002-71] 3/13/2025 3/10/2025 SO-3575 00217-03-2025 37.66 seals and cups trailer wheels (landscape trailers)
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650540
0001-7110-4105-0002-71] 3/13/2025 3/11/2025 SO-3579 00217-03-2025 30.56 seals and cups trailer wheels (landscape trailers)
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 650540
Total for Vendor 04342 - PERINTON RV RENTALS INC.: 552.06
04354 - LOURDES DOLORES DE LA COLINA
0001-7020-4400-4357-00( 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 250318Lourdes 00147-03-2025 420.00 March instructor pay 110903 110952 110953 Spanish.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 04354 - LOURDES DOLORES DE LA COLINA: 420.00
04361 - ROBERT KOEGEL
0001-1420-4604-0001-00( 2/28/2025 2/25/2025 02252025 00405-02-2025 1,814.25 Travel expenses for NYAOT Meeting (Lodging, Meals, Parking)
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 04361 - ROBERT KOEGEL.: 1,814.25
04384 - FISHER ASSOCIATES, P.E.,L.S.,L.A,, D.P.C.
0114-5112-2009-0000-00( 3/5/2025 1/27/2025 TFP Number 17 00017-03-2025 7,499.00 MENDON THORNELL SIDEWALK
Task Label: Type: PO Number: 110950
Total for Vendor 04384 - FISHER ASSOCIATES, P.E.,L.S.,,L.A.,, D.P.C.: 7,499.00
04427 - LISA MAGLIATO
0001-7020-4400-1251-00( 3/12/2025 3/12/2025 250318Magliato  00149-03-2025 1,001.00 March instructor pay 140398 Wiggles Giggles, 141298 Lil Athletes
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 04427 - LISA MAGLIATO: 1,001.00
04444 - LINDA STEIDLE
0001-6772-4602-0001-00( 3/3/2025 2/27/2025 250227Steidle 00066-03-2025 17.50 Seniors bus trip 2/27/25 chaperone lunch.
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 04444 - LINDA STEIDLE: 17.50
04488 - IRON MOUNTAIN, INC
0001-1620-4409-0001-00( 3/6/2025 2/28/2025 KDGG214 00053-03-2025 972.12 Record Retention-03/01/25-03/31/2025
Task Label: Type: PO Number:
Total for Vendor 04488 - IRON MOUNTAIN, INC: 972.12

AP-Outstanding Invoices (3/14/2025 - 9:31 AM)

Page 12


https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=ab716b41-b58c-4492-baef-62365f54e466
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4105-0002-7111
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7110-4105-0002-7111
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=924a0c24-66e0-4399-98a9-23d1dbb8393c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-7020-4400-4357-0002
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=329e5ae7-bbc0-4aa7-8b38-543c35186c53
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2025:0001-1420-4604-0001-0001
https://ssi-cloud-portal-prod.azurewebsites.net:443/Deployment/3096?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=5e9fd887-c3f4-4043-8440-d6029a203cc4
http:/